bl

Brighton & Hove
City Council

Environment, Transport & Sustainability

Committee
Date: 17 March 2020
Time: 4.00pm
Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall

Members: Councillors:Pissaridou (Chair), Wilkinson (Deputy Chair), West
(Opposition Spokesperson), Wares (Group Spokesperson),
Brennan, Brown, Davis, Fowler, Heley and Lloyd

Contact: John Peel
Democratic Services Officer

01273 291058
john.peel@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date.

Electronic agendas can also be accessed through our meetings app available through
ModernGov: iOS/Windows/Android

This agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper


http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en_GB
https://www.microsoft.com/en-gb/p/modgov/9nblggh0c7s7#activetab=pivot:overviewtab
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en_GB

PART ONE

AGENDA

Page

PROCEDURAL MATTERS

70 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS

71

72

(@)

(b)

(©)

Declarations of Substitutes: Where councillors are unable to
attend a meeting, a substitute Member from the same political
group may attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting.

Declarations of Interest:

(a) Disclosable pecuniary interests;

(b) Any other interests required to be registered under the local
code;

(c) Any other general interest as a result of which a decision on
the matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting you or a
partner more than a majority of other people or businesses in
the ward/s affected by the decision.

In each case, you need to declare

(i) the item on the agenda the interest relates to;

(i) the nature of the interest; and

(i) whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other
interest.

If unsure, Members should seek advice from the committee lawyer
or administrator preferably before the meeting.

Exclusion of Press and Public: To consider whether, in view of
the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration.

Note: Any item appearing in Part Two of the agenda states in its
heading the category under which the information disclosed
in the report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not
available to the press and public. A list and description of
the exempt categories is available for public inspection at
Brighton and Hove Town Halls and on-line in the
Constitution at part 7.1.

MINUTES

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on [insert date].
Contact Officer:  John Peel Tel: 01273 291058

CHAIRS COMMUNICATIONS



73 CALL OVER

74

75

(@)

(b)

Items 76 — 86 will be read out at the meeting and Members invited
to reserve the items for consideration.

Those items not reserved will be taken as having been received
and the reports’ recommendations agreed.

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

To consider the following matters raised by members of the public:

(@)

(b)

(©)

Petitions: To receive any petitions presented by members of the
public;

(1) Tree Preservation Orders
(i)  Help End Sewage Pollution
(iii)  Pedestrian Crossing on Goldstone Crescent

Written Questions: To receive any questions submitted by the
due date of 12 noon on the 11 March 2019;

(1) Preston Circus Pollution

Deputations: To receive any deputations submitted by the due
date of 12 noon on the 11 March 2019.

MEMBER INVOLVEMENT

To consider the following matters raised by Members:

(@)
(b)

(€)

Petitions: To receive any petitions;
Written Questions: To consider any written questions;

) Traffic Survey- Councillor Yates

(i)  Cityclean- Councillor Wares

(i)  Valley Gardens- Councillor Wares

(iv)  Flyposting- Councillor Wares

(V) COP26- Councillor Heley

(vi)  20mph Speed Limits- Councillor Davis
(vii) Refuse and Recycling- Councillor Davis

Letters: To consider any letters;

i) Carden Woods- Councillors Wares, McNair & Theobald
(i)  Bikeshare- Councillor Wares

(iii)  Cityclean Modernisation reports- Councillor Wares

(iv)  Old London Road Pavement- Councillor Wares

(V) Patcham Roundabout- Councillor Wares

(vi)  Tree Planting on Glebe Villas- Councillor Nemeth

33-36

37 -54



76

77

78

79

80

81

(d)  Notices of Motion: to consider any Notices of Motion referred
from Full Council or submitted directly to the Committee.

(1) Environmental Impact Assessment and Traffic Modelling-
Proposed by Councillor Wares

ENVIRONMENT & SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS
HEALTH & SAFETY SERVICE PLAN 2020-21

Report of the Interim Executive Director Housing, Neighbourhoods &
Communities

Contact Officer: Nick Wilmot Tel: 01273 292157
Ward Affected: All Wards

OFFICIAL FEED AND FOOD CONTROLS SERVICE PLAN 2020/21

Report of the Interim Executive Director Housing, Neighbourhoods &
Communities

Contact Officer: Nick Wilmot Tel: 01273 292157
Ward Affected: All Wards

GRAFFITI REDUCTION STRATEGY - OUTCOMES OF
CONSULTATION

Report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture

Contact Officer: Saoirse Roach Tel: 01273 294739
Ward Affected: All Wards

BULKY WASTE CONTRACT

Report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture

Contact Officer:  Lynsay Cook Tel: 01273 291851
Ward Affected: All Wards

NATURE2020 - A CELEBRATION OF BIODIVERSITY IN THE
BIOSPHERE

Report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture

Contact Officer: Sarah Dobson Tel: 01273 294720
Ward Affected: All Wards

TRANSPORT & PUBLIC REALM MATTERS
2020/21 LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture

Contact Officer: Andrew Renaut Tel: 01273 292477
Ward Affected: All Wards

55 -60

61 - 86

87 - 108

109 - 116

117 - 122

123 -138



82

83

84

85

86

87

88

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN (LCWIP)
— UPDATE REPORT

Report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture

Contact Officer:  Paul A. Holloway Tel: 01273 290368
Ward Affected: All Wards

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS UPDATE REPORT

Report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture

Contact Officer.  Catherine Dignan Tel: 01273 292235
Ward Affected: East Brighton; Hove Park;
Patcham; Withdean

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS - OBJECTIONS TO ORDERS
RELATED TO NEW DEVELOPMENTS

Report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture

Contact Officer:  David Farnham Tel: 01273 292368
Ward Affected: Central Hove; Hollingdean &

Stanmer; Patcham; Queen's

Park; St Peter's & North Laine

DYKE ROAD WAITING RESTRICTIONS EXPERIMENTAL TRO (TRO-
12-2019)

Report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture

Contact Officer:  Ben Thomas Tel: 01273 290398
Ward Affected: Regency; St Peter's & North
Laine

BTN BIKESHARE

Report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture

Contact Officer:  Matthew Thompson Tel: 01273 293705
Ward Affected: All Wards

PART TWO
BTN BIKESHARE (EXEMPT CATEGORY 3)

Report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture (copy
circulated to Members only)

Contact Officer:  Matthew Thompson Tel: 01273 293705
Ward Affected: All Wards

PART TWO PROCEEDINGS

To consider whether the items listed in Part Two of the agenda and
decisions thereon should remain exempt from disclosure to the press and
public.

139 - 158

159 - 182

183 - 224

225-234

235 -298

299 - 332



89

ITEMS REFERRED FOR FULL COUNCIL

To consider items to be submitted to the 2 April 2020 Council meeting for
information.

In accordance with Procedure Rule 24.3a, the Committee may determine
that any item is to be included in its report to Council. In addition,

any Group may specify one further item to be included by notifying the
Chief Executive no later than 10am on the eighth working day before the
Council meeting at which the report is to be made, or if the Committee
meeting take place after this deadline, immediately at the conclusion of
the Committee meeting



The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public. Provision is also made on
the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be raised
can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings.

The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12
noon on the fourth working day before the meeting.

Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on
disc, or translated into any other language as requested.

Infra-red hearing aids are available for use during the meeting. If you require any further
information or assistance, please contact the receptionist on arrival.

FURTHER INFORMATION

For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact John Peel, (01273
291058, email john.peel@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email democratic.services@brighton-
hove.gov.uk

WEBCASTING NOTICE

This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s website. At the
start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed. You
should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act 1998.
Data collected during this web cast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s
published policy.

Therefore, by entering the meeting room and using the seats in the chamber you are deemed
to be consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings for the purpose of web casting and/or Member training. If members of the public
do not wish to have their image captured, they should sit in the public gallery area.

ACCESS NOTICE

The Public Gallery is situated on the first floor of the Town Hall and is limited in size but does
have 2 spaces designated for wheelchair users. The lift cannot be used in an emergency.
Evac Chairs are available for self-transfer and you are requested to inform Reception prior to
going up to the Public Gallery. For your own safety please do not go beyond the Ground
Floor if you are unable to use the stairs.

Please inform staff on Reception of this affects you so that you can be directed to the Council
Chamber where you can watch the meeting or if you need to take part in the proceedings e.g.
because you have submitted a public question.

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council staff.
It is vital that you follow their instructions:

e You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts;

e Do not stop to collect personal belongings;

e Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move

some distance away and await further instructions; and
e Do not re-enter the building until told that it is safe to do so.

Date of Publication - Monday, 9 March 2020



mailto:democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk




53
53(a)
53.1
53(b)
53.2
53(c)

53.3

53.4
54

54.1

54.2

54.3

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL
ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
4.00pm 21 JANUARY 2020
COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL
MINUTES
Present: Councillor Pissaridou (Chair) Wilkinson (Deputy Chair), West (Opposition

Spokesperson), Wares (Group Spokesperson), Brennan, Brown, Davis, Heley, Lloyd and
Moonan

PART ONE

PROCEDURAL BUSINESS

Declarations of substitutes

Councillor Moonan was present as substitute for Councillor Fowler.

Declarations of interest

There were none.

Exclusion of press and public

In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (“the Act”), the
Committee considered whether the press and public should be excluded from the
meeting during an item of business on the grounds that it was likely, in view of the
business to be transacted or the nature of proceedings, that if members of the press and
public were present during that item, there would be disclosure to them of confidential
information (as defined in section 100A(3) of the Act) or exempt information (as defined
in section 100(1) of the Act).

RESOLVED- That the press and public not be excluded from the meeting.

MINUTES

With reference to items 47.4 and 47.8, Councillor Wares stated that he had not received
briefings on either matter.

The Chair apologised for the delay as assured Councillor Wares these would be sent as
soon as possible.

RESOLVED- That the minutes of the previous meeting be approved and signed as the
correct record.



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY
2020

55 CHAIRS COMMUNICATIONS
55.1 The Chair provided the following communications:

“The city council declared a climate emergency in December 2018, and we have
committed to becoming a carbon neutral city by 2030. We have to address the climate
crisis urgently and our local actions in and around the city will make an important
contribution to addressing this challenge. | am pleased to feedback following approval of
a report at P&R Committee on 5 December, the Carbon Neutral programme has now
been established and the committee also formally agreed the establishment of a cross-
party member group to oversee this programme.

There are steps that the council, public sector partners and local businesses can take to
reduce their carbon emissions. We also want to involve our residents and we will
develop an engagement programme to inform and support the carbon reduction work.
As part of this, | am pleased to report we are organising a climate assembly, to bring
together a randomly selected but representative group of around 50 residents to shape
how we combat climate change over the next decade. The assembly will have good
geographical coverage, involving residents from across our city. It will be designed and
facilitated by an independent organisation, which is experienced in delivering
deliberative engagement processes, and a procurement process is underway. We are
planning that this first climate assembly will focus on transport which, along with energy,
causes around 95% of carbon emissions in Brighton & Hove. We anticipate that the
climate assembly will meet in March and April to help shape a programme of action for
delivery from summer 2020. The assembly recommendations would help shape the
consultation for the next local transport plan for the city.

On the 7™ January | was delighted to host a visit from the Transport Minister, George
Freeman MP accompanied by the Director of OLEV (the Office for Low Emission
Vehicles) to congratulate us on the initial rollout of our 200 on street Electric Vehicle
Charging Points funded by OLEYV following our successful bid. As well as demonstrating
to the Minister that Brighton & Hove is a forward thinking city in our planning and
thinking, it shows we can deliver innovative transport projects quickly and with great
skill. I discussed with the Minister our ambition to be a Carbon Neutral City by 2030 as
well as our emerging Transport Infrastructure that is embracing technological innovation,
including the transition to EV’s, on-line and virtual Parking Payment Systems as well as
support to public transport from multi-operator ticketing. | also shared our further
thoughts on how we were open to the City being a future test bed for innovative projects
and programmes that might aid the transition to greater take up of sustainable public
transport, walking and cycling, a switch to electric and hydrogen fuels that will also
support our Carbon Reduction aims.

| have met the Minister now on several occasions now and believe he now understands
that our City means business in its Transport and Climate ambitions. | am also pleased
to see the reintroduction of the Environment Bill in the Queen’s speech before Christmas
along with a proposal to establish an Office of Environmental Protection. We look
forward to hearing the details of this over the coming months. It was also announced in
the Queen’s speech that a National Infrastructure Strategy will be brought forward to set
out a long-term vision to improve the nation’s digital, transport and energy infrastructure.
It is important that Government works with local councils to deliver on its infrastructure
commitments, including transport and energy infrastructure”.

10



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

56
56.1
57
(B)
(i)

57.1

57.2

(i)

2020

CALL OVER

All items on the agenda were reserved for discussion.
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

WRITTEN QUESTIONS

Smoke Control Area

Adrian Hill put the following question:

“I| suffer with life threateningly poor respiratory health; particulates cause poor health
(lung, heart, cancer, birth defects, premature death). | recorded dangerous levels of
particulates on Christmas day after fires were lit in homes. DEFRA says burning fuels in
homes is the biggest contributor to particulate emissions and there are no safe levels for
health. | struggled to breathe while sleeping that night and my blood oxygen levels fell.
Burning smokey fuels is an unnecessary luxury because there are alternatives. Burners
are gaining popularity; for my health and others, can the Smoke Control Area be
widened to cover the whole city”.

The Chair provided the following reply:

“I am very sorry to hear that your health has been affected over the Christmas and hope
that this recent episode has now passed and that you are feeling better.

The city does have five Smoke Control Areas in the central and eastern areas. These
were established through the Clean Air Act legislation from 1968, prior to domestic
central heating becoming common place, and the last one to be declared was in 1979.
However, it is recognised that alternatives to gas-fired central heating such as wood and
coal burning have become more popular in recent years, not just in the city but across
the country too.

| realise that your condition is affected by particulates, and the Government’s 2019
Clean Air Strategy particularly highlighted the contribution that woodburning makes to
fine particulate matter. It has also published a further report about progress towards
meeting World Health Organisation guidelines for particulates, placing further focus on
this matter.

Our 2019 Air Quality Annual Status Report has outlined the work that the council is
doing to address and reduce fine particulate emissions, but we will need to review our
2013 Air Quality Management Areas and the 2015 Air Quality Action Plan very soon.
Therefore, | think we should place a greater emphasis on understanding the extent and
effects of emissions from woodburning in the city and I will be asking officers if we can
do this as part of that work. | expect that this will provide a clearer indication about the
possibility and implications of widening the area of the city’s existing Smoke Control
Area coverage”.

TRO Goldstone Crescent

57.3 Gareth Hall put the following question:

11



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

57.4

57.5

57.6

(iii)

S57.7

2020

“There is a TRO being proposed to extend double yellow lines along a section of
Goldstone Crescent. This will only serve to move the congestion problem further down
the road. Will the Chair consider removing the parking restrictions adjacent to the park
enabling city park workers to park there (spaces are empty during the day around the
park) or alternatively extend the double yellow lines all along the far end of Goldstone
Crescent reducing congestion and protecting the grass verges which are getting badly
damaged by cars driving on them?”.

The Chair provided the following reply:

“Thank you for your representation and we do understand the parking concerns of
residents.

The reason for the proposed double yellow lines in this section of Goldstone Crescent is
that they were requested by the bus company. Site meetings were held, and this area
was highlighted by the bus company as being problematic to run a service due to the
obstructive parking.

| realise that some residents feel that the lines aren’t long enough, but if we were to
introduce excessive double yellow lines, we would just simply push the problem
elsewhere and into the smaller roads causing further complaints from other residents.
Currently we are not considering removing the three-hour limited free parking adjacent
to Hove Park as this was implemented to prevent all day parking limiting opportunities
for park users.

However, we will be undertaking a review of Zone P as part of the parking scheme
priority timetable. This can consider how the scheme is working for residents in the
scheme and if any improvements can be made to deal with some of the displaced
vehicles in the wider area”.

Gareth Hall asked the following supplementary question:

“I understand that for a number of years now, there has been a trial of stopping people
parking on grass verges in certain places in Brighton. I've been told by my ward
councillor that you won’t add anymore areas onto that trial however, as there’s clearly
going to be a problem on Goldstone Crescent with parking issues that have come in due
to permits, will you consider adding Goldstone Crescent to that trial?”

On behalf of the Chair, the Assistant Director, City Transport provided the following
reply:

“We've taken forward a verge parking trial in a number of locations, but they come
forward on a case by case basis. We can pick up your request and that could be an area
we can look at. In addition, the government’s pavement parking review is at the third bill

of reading in Parliament and that will hopefully give local authority’s more powers in this
area’.

Local Cycling & Walking Infrastructure Plan
Alexander Sallons put the following question:

‘I understand that the LCWIP Task and Finish group has met multiple times, although |
could find no mention of that on the council website or in the public domain, in the

12



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

57.8

(C)
(i)
57.9

57.10

2020

accepted amendment by the Green Group to the scoping report the Task and Finish
Group was said to offer key stakeholders earlier and stronger engagement. Can the
Council provide a timetable for when those stakeholders, and the public, will be engaged
with?”

The Chair provided the following reply:

“Thank you for your question.

I would like to reassure you that the Member Task & Finish Group for the Local Cycling
and Walking Infrastructure Plan has only met once formally so far — and this was just
before Christmas. This was because we have had to make sure that all the preparatory
discussions and administrative work in setting these new councillor groups up was
completed first. The next planned meeting of the group will be in June, but | am also
expecting a report about the plan to be brought to the next meeting of this committee, so
that we can all hear and discuss the progress being made and what else is planned.

As the group is now up and running, we will be commencing engagement with
stakeholders in spring this year, to assist with the initial development of the Plan. This
will include a number of local area workshops across the city and will be supplemented
by a city-wide stakeholder event and wider public consultation. We are still finalising the
details for this engagement stage as it involves a lot of planning, but we will announce
these as soon as possible. The outcome of the initial round of stakeholder engagement
will feed into a background report, ahead of commencing the walking and cycling
network planning stage”.

DEPUTATIONS
Barriers to cycling

The Committee considered a deputation that detailed a number of cycling access issues
caused by the recent introduction or widening of barriers in the city and requested a
more strategic response to the issue.

The Chair provided the following response:

‘I am sorry you feel the Council has deliberately created a barrier for cycling at Ship
Street and other locations.

Let me first say that officers have been in active discussions with you on this matter and
I myself have taken a very keen interest and have called for a further meeting with
officers to find a way forward.

Unfortunately, the Council has been compelled to take this action due to the failure of
the original solution and reliance on lockable removeable bollards, in that they have
literally been removed by others. This theft or damage has occurred so frequently that
the Council has endured a bill of tens of thousands of pounds and has therefore as a
last resort, faced with a further bill to replace this unsustainable measure, installed gates
at Ship Street.

The smallest gate that we could install still requires posts at each end to prevent
vehicular access and therefore there is a reduced width for the footway and southbound
cycle lane. As this Cycle lane is intended to be southbound only it is still practical and
safe to pass but we do appreciate with pedestrians in Ship Street at busy times,

13



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

57.11

57.12
57.13

57.14

(i)

57.15

57.16

2020

particularly evenings and weekends, there may be times when people also wishing to
use this for a northbound manoeuvre will lead to conflict.

Whilst | will be seeking to confirm myself that this measure is the most practical and
safest option through the meeting that | have arranged, | would also like to say that we
are commencing through the LCWIP (Local Walking Cycling Infrastructure Plan) where
we will be reviewing our cycle network, planning and cycling infrastructure.

Within this process we will be engaging the views of the local cycling community,
including yourselves as we would like to hear what works for you and what we can
improve, including looking at shortfalls in existing cycling infrastructure.

| can assure you that | will be reviewing these recent gate installations and if there is a
better more cost-effective solution that works for everyone | will be asking officers to
take it forward. In the meantime, officers will be reporting on the Local Walking and
Cycling Infrastructure Plan process for a future meeting of this Committee and | have
asked that they consider how best to consult with our community as part of that process
and | would like to thank your deputation for bringing this matter to the Committee’s
attention”.

Councillor West stated that there was huge disquiet about the issue and in his view,
many of the problems could have been resolved by a cycle forum. Councillor West
moved a motion to request an officer report on the request made in the deputation.

Councillor Lloyd formally seconded the motion.
The Chair put the motion to the vote that passed.

RESOLVED- That the committee request an officer report on the requests made in the
deputation.

Parking Schemes

The Committee considered a deputation that set out various objections and concerns
relating to the consultation process for the introduction of controlled parking zones.

The Chair provided the following response:

“Thank you for your deputation and I’'m sorry to hear of your concerns about the service
you have received from the Council.

The parking scheme consultation process is one of the most rigorous and extensive
within the Council and can take up to 18 months to ensure it meets the needs of
residents and that any concerns outlined during the various stages of consultation are
considered.

The parking scheme priority timetable up to 2022/23 was agreed at this Committee last
November and was based on areas which had strong support from residents and Ward
Councillors.

During the consultation process there are three opportunities for residents to comment
on the proposals. The first two opportunities are at the initial then detailed design
phases while the final stage is the Traffic Regulation Order stage. All three stages of the
consultation are made public and discussed at this Committee for agreement to go
forward to the next stage.

14



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

57.17
58
(A)
(i)
58.1

58.2

2020

The legal Traffic Regulation Order for any parking scheme allows for enforcement and
gives any member of the public the chance to make a comment. Any proposals for
changes to further parking restrictions outside of parking schemes also go through a
Traffic Regulation order which includes advertising the proposals in the press and on the
Council website as well as the ability to view the proposals in the Customer Service
Centres in Brighton & Hove as well as notices on street furniture in the nearby location.
The parking schemes are all consulted, designed and implemented by a small
experienced in-house Parking Infrastructure Team who deal with all parking timetable
work alongside planned and reactive lining and signing maintenance.

| can assure you that the team visit residents and deal with phone calls whenever they
can. The team have identified that they have visited at least one of the residents listed
in the deputation in Hazeldene Meads which is a particular issue at the moment due to
displaced parking following the implementation of the Hove Park scheme.

The team have recently advertised double yellow lines within this location and it's
important to note that budget cuts are not the main reason for us to carry out obvious
works as there may be road safety issues that are prioritised.

Comment within the deputation suggests that implementing the Hove Park scheme was
a mistake and this should be rectified. This scheme was agreed at this Committee and
was requested by a significant amount of residents in the area with support from Ward
Councillors.

The Council have had very few complaints about the parking scheme itself, however, as
part of the priority timetable a review of Zone P will be undertaken later in the year. This
can consider how the scheme is working for residents in the scheme and if any
improvements can be made to deal with some of the displaced vehicles in the wider
area’.

RESOLVED- That the Committee note the deputation.
ITEMS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL

PETITIONS

Dropped Kerbs

The Committee considered a petition referred from the meeting of Full Council held on
19 December 2019 and signed by 112 people requesting a survey of safe provision of
dropped kerbs.

The Chair provided the following response:

“The City Council already has a programme for providing new or improved dropped kerb
facilities across the city each year. These kerbs are provided either in response to
individual householder requests or are provided for selected route improvements, for
example the whole of EIm Grove in Brighton now has a dropped kerb route on both
sides, works which were completed last year. Many requests are received each year
from the public for new dropped kerbs and unfortunately due to budgetary constraints it
is not always possible to deliver all of the dropped kerbs requested each year.

However, any requests not dealt with remain on the request list until funding becomes
available.

15



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

58.3
(i1)

58.4

58.5

58.6

59

(B)

59.1

59.2

2020

The City Council has also started to map all of the existing dropped kerb locations within
the city, as over the years it has expanded in a very ad hoc manner. As can be
appreciated though this is a very time-consuming process and resources are limited, but
once completed it will allow a more holistic approach to the provision of dropped
crossing facilities in the future, particularly with a focus on completing accessible routes
along the main transport corridors throughout the city.

With specific regard to Sackville Road this is one of the routes that has already been
identified as needing both new and improved dropped kerb facilities, particularly the
section between Blatchington Road and the Old Shoreham Road. With this in mind it is
hoped, subject to funding, to carry out these works in the 2020 / 2021 financial year”.

RESOLVED- That the Committee note the petition.

Replacement Bus Shelter at the Avenue

The Committee considered a petition referred from the meeting of Full Council held on
19 December 2019 and signed by 380 people requesting a replacement bus shelter at
the Avenue, Moulsecoomb.

The Chair provided the following response:

“The Public Transport team would like to apologise for the delay in replacing this shelter.
The shelter was involved in a Road Traffic Accident and was dismantled in August 2019.
The time frame between orders and installation is normally about three months, but due
to supply issues in the industry the stock was temporarily unavailable resulting in an
increased delivery time. We have now had assurance from our contractor that
installation will now take place in May. We are in communication with our supplier to see
if delivery can be hurried up”.

RESOLVED- That the Committee note the petition.

MEMBER INVOLVEMENT

WRITTEN QUESTIONS

Woodburning Stoves

Councillor Heley put the following question:

“This winter, many residents have been in touch with me about woodburning stoves.
Woodburners and open fires cause smoke and contribute to our extremely dangerous
levels of air pollution in our city. Is the council doing anything to deal with this? What
more could the council do?”

The Chair provided the following reply:

“Thank you for your question Councillor Heley. | can understand why your residents

have some concerns about them and their effects on air quality and therefore people’s
health.

16



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

(©)

59.3

59.4

59.5

59.6

2020

| referred to the Clean Air Act in my response about woodburning to Adrian Hills’s
question earlier this afternoon. More recent legislation agreed in the 1990s sets out the
statutory duties of councils to assess and improve local air quality, including the
declaration of Air Quality Management Areas where legally binding pollution standards
are not met. It also covers the assessment of statutory nuisance, and complaints
relating to domestic solid fuel burning and smoke are received and considered by the
council’'s Environmental Health Officers under that legislation.

The council’s current Air Quality Action Plan was produced in 2015 and includes a
section on domestic solid fuel burning. The council’s website also has a lot of
information about this in the pollution and air quality section, on a page entitled ‘Using
solid fuels safely and legally’. There have been a number of funded projects with the
relevant Government’s Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (which is
known as DEFRA), which have helped raise awareness of the issues. | also said to
Adrian Hills that | would ask officers to look more closely at woodburning as part of our
future review of our Air Quality Management Areas.

DEFRA is also reviewing the Clean Air Act and consulting with Local Authorities on how
to make it more useful. We very much hope that this work will be progressed by the
Government after the election and that the outcomes will be a good basis on which to
further consider what, and how much more, the council can do”.

LETTERS
Stoneham Area Tree Planting

The Committee considered a Letter from Councillor Nemeth and Councillor Peltzer
Dunn requesting the support of the committee to combined four tree planting projects
into a single project with a designated lead officer and timetable.

The Chair provided the following response:

“The available staff in arboriculture are working on the tree planting agreed by ET&S
Committee, public donations, the remedial inspection and pruning work reported to this
committee. There is currently no capacity to survey or arrange additional planting.

The donated trees in Stoneham Recreation ground that have died are not scheduled to
be replanted this year. However, as parks planting is a relatively straight forward
process | have asked for these to be added to this year’s tree order and subject to
availability from the supplier, these will be planted this year.

An additional post has been created in the arboricultural section to help deal with the
upsurge of interest in tree planting and the increased inspection regime introduced for
our tree stock. We are currently having service delivery problems which we anticipate
will ease prior to next year’s planting season”.

Councillor Wares expressed his hope that support could be given to the request as
residents and ward councillors had spent a great deal of time on the projects. A solution
was offered, and support would be timely given the current focus and commitments
relating to climate change.

The Chair stated that she would speak with the City Parks team and see what help
could be offered.

17



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

59.7

(D)

59.8

59.9

59.10

59.11

2020

RESOVLED- That the Committee note the Letter.
NOTICES OF MOTION
Car-free city centre by 2023

The Chair noted that a revision to the Notice of Motion had been circulated and in line
with council procedure rules, the revision would need to be accepted by a majority of the
committee members. The committee agreed to this proposal.

Councillor Heley moved the following joint Green Group and Labour Group Notice of
Motion:

“In January 2020 York City Council pledged to become the UK’s first car free city centre
within three years, and in 2019 we saw Bristol pledge to become our country’s first city
to ban diesel cars from entering parts of the city centre. Edinburgh already hosts regular
car-free days and has further plans to shift away from private car use. Brighton and
Hove City Council must take action on a similar scale.

The climate emergency, the environmental and public health crisis caused by air
pollution, and dangerous roads in the city can and must be tackled by drastically
reducing private car use in the city centre.

Therefore, this committee:

1) Requests that a report is brought to the Environment, Transport and Sustainability
Committee that explores the feasibility and costs of developing a car-free city centre
by 2023 in Brighton and Hove, for the October 2020 committee meeting.

2) Requests that this report will detail costs and practicalities, rules for exemptions (for
those with accessibility needs and some trades vehicles for example) and how the
council’s plans to introduce an Ultra-Low Emission Zone for private vehicles in the
city centre can act as a transition to a car free city centre

3) Notes that this notice of motion should be considered during the council’s Climate
Assembly, as part of our resident-led conversation as a city about how we reach the
target of becoming net-zero by 2030”

Introducing the Notice of Motion, Councillor Heley stated that requesting a feasibility
report was a sensible step in understanding what could be done to ensure the city met
its ambition to be carbon neutral by 2030. Councillor Heley stressed that people with
disabilities should be at the forefront when considering such a proposal as was
highlighted in the Motion. Other key exemptions to consider were taxis, trade vehicles
and emergency vehicles. Councillor Heley referred to other potential benefits such as
improved air quality and a reduction in road traffic casualties.

Councillor Wilkinson formally seconded the Notice of Motion. Councillor Wilkinson stated
that the council was compelled to consider all the ways in which could become carbon
neutral and combat climate change to preserve the environment for future generations.
Councillor Wilkinson stated that the council had to introduce a transport system that was

18



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

59.12

59.13

59.14

59.15

59.16

59.17

2020

carbon neutral in a short number of years. Councillor Wilkinson also highlighted the
number of deaths caused not only by road traffic casualties but also by air pollution.

Councillor Wares stated his support for the Notice of Motion. Councillor Wares stated
that everything should be explored in detail and a wide consultation with all residents
and welcomed the proposal for an economic impact assessment. Councillor Wares
noted that the cities specifically mentioned in the NoM were all very different to Brighton
& Hove which had unique challenges, and all had established a Park & Ride providing
choice to residents not to use a vehicle in the city centre. Councillor Wares stated that it
was important to consider and review all forms of transport and highlighted that two of
the cities most polluted roads in North Street and Western Road were almost exclusively
used by buses. Councillor Wares explained that there were other factors to consider
such as knock on effect on parking income that provided for concessionary bus passes
and subsidised bus routes.

Councillor Davis welcomed the Notice of Motion that was an important step in
discussing how best to safeguard the city in terms of both health and climate.

Councillor West welcomed the comments made by Councillor Wares adding that there
would be more such challenges arising as the feasibility exercise progressed. Councillor
West stated that the city was overly car dependent and the issue would be a challenge.

Councillor Moonan thanked Councillor Heley and Councillor Wilkinson for proposing and
seconding the motion and that consensus would be an important part of moving toward
carbon neutrality. Councillor Moonan stated that engagement through the Climate
Assembly and wide-ranging debate with residents was vital.

The Chair provided the following response:

‘I am very interested in developments, relating to harmful emissions, that are arising
across the UK as well as cities across Europe and farther afield. As you know we as a
Council formally declared a Climate Emergency and have set out an ambitious Carbon
Reduction Programme and will be establishing a Climate Assembly to consider these
matters and will be informing our future thinking.

| believe it worthwhile that the committee be informed of the feasibility, costs associated
and other potential implications of introducing a car-free city centre by 2023.

In my view, it would help us build a knowledge base, alongside those actions we are
already taking, on the type of measures we could undertake to prioritise the measures
that this City will need to deliver on air quality and become Carbon Neutral by 2030.

It's important that we consider this alongside the discussions that will be taking place
through the Climate Assembly and through consultation with residents and stakeholders
on the new Local Transport Plan, so | am pleased to see this emphasised in the revised
motion”.

RESOLVED- That the Committee agree the Notice of Motion as follows:
1) Requests that a report is brought to the Environment, Transport and Sustainability

Committee that explores the feasibility and costs of developing a car-free city
centre by 2023 in Brighton and Hove, for the October 2020 committee meeting.

19



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

(i)

59.18

59.19

59.20

59.21

59.22

2020

2) Requests that this report will detail costs and practicalities, rules for exemptions
(for those with accessibility needs and some trades vehicles for example) and how
the council’s plans to introduce an Ultra-Low Emission Zone for private vehicles in
the city centre can act as a transition to a car free city centre

3) Notes that this notice of motion should be considered during the council’s Climate
Assembly, as part of our resident-led conversation as a city about how we reach
the target of becoming net-zero by 2030

Hydrogen Hub for Brighton & Hove
On behalf of the Green Group, Councillor LIoyd moved the following Notice of Motion:

“This council has declared climate emergency, and it is time we explored the potential of
developing or own municipal Green energy company with a specific emphasis on the
production and delivery of Hydrogen Fuel from a dedicated Hydrogen Hub in the city.
We have seen other authorities such as Hackney Council successfully launch public
owned Green Energy companies and we have perfect resources in this city to do the
same.

Hydrogen has huge potential as a clean fuel of the future that can power our fuel cell
buses and eventually replace 20% of the natural gas that we use in our domestic boilers
and cookers. Hydrogen is therefore seen as an essential part of any future zero carbon
energy mix and we are in an excellent position in Brighton and Hove to produce it
cheaply and cleanly.

Therefore, this committee:
(1) Recognises the potential of hydrogen as a source of clean energy

(2) Requests that a feasibility report is brought to the Environment, Transport and
Sustainability committee outlining the potential of establishing a hydrogen hub in
Brighton and Hove, including practicalities, costings and potential locations.

Councillor West formally seconded the Notice of Motion and referenced work already in
place by other local authorities on the subject matter and the positive impact it had
realised.

Councillor Wares thanked Councillor Lloyd for the proposal and his research on the
matter. Councillor Wares asked if the use of hydrogen would be cheaper for end users
and whether the feasibility assessment could include options for use in council homes
and to power its vehicle fleet.

Councillor Lloyd explained that the price of hydrogen was dictated by the cost of
electricity used to create it.

Councillor Moonan noted that she had previously raised the issue of the number of
requests for reports made at every meeting and the impact that may have creating an
unsustainable workload for officers. Councillor Moonan stated that a detailed work
programme could not be maintained when new requests were approved on a case by
case basis.

20



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

59.23

59.24

59.25

59.26

2020

Councillor West stated that whilst he appreciated that resources were stretched and
there was a lot for officers to do, in his view, the Administration would obliged to find the
necessary resource through the upcoming Budget setting process.

Councillor Wares stated that Members were obliged to react to issues that were raised
with them and some of the matters raised were historical where no adequate action had
been undertaken or proposed and were not new issues.

The Chair provided the following response:

“The council recognises that hydrogen has great potential to be a clean replacement for
intensive energy uses like heavy freight, buses, aviation, shipping and heating.
Hydrogen can be a strong complement to electrification on the journey towards a zero-
carbon energy system.

Developing a low-carbon hydrogen economy over the next decade could help Brighton
& Hove City Council to meet its 2030 carbon neutral pledge, as well as addressing poor
air quality in the city. | have personally met with a number of businesses who would like
to explore opportunities to develop hydrogen infrastructure in the city.

Brighton & Hove City Council is leading on the Greater Brighton Energy Plan, which will
set the scene for a low carbon energy system that benefits our communities and
environment. Officers and | are engaging with key players on future hydrogen
development including the gas utilities, transport providers and business partners.
Establishing a manufacturing hub that will be part of a future development of our energy
system is being looked at as part of the process of developing and implementing the
Energy Plan across Greater Brighton. | expect that Plan to include suggestions that will
generate ideas that in turn will inform other, more detailed, feasibility studies that will
come forward to this committee.

Through the Energy Plan, and as part of our work to carbon neutral by 2030, we will
continue to work with neighbouring local authorities, businesses, academics and other
stakeholders including Greater Brighton, Coast2Capital, and Greater South East Energy
Hub on many innovations in the energy system, including hydrogen.

We will look to move towards a more developed infrastructure to support the production,
use and sale of hydrogen. For example, there may be opportunities to trial the
installation of hydrogen-ready hybrid boilers. We will also ensure that the hydrogen
economy is embedded in the Coast2Capital Local Industrial Strategy, to meet the
energy and transport needs of our community”.

RESOLVED- That the Committee agree the Notice of Motion as follows:

This Committee:

(1) Recognises the potential of hydrogen as a source of clean energy

(2) Requests that a feasibility report is brought to the Environment, Transport and

Sustainability committee outlining the potential of establishing a hydrogen hub in
Brighton and Hove, including practicalities, costings and potential locations.

The meeting was adjourned at 5.40pm and reconvened at 5.50pm

21



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

60

60.1

60.2

60.3

60.4

60.5

2020

FEES AND CHARGES 2020/21

The Committee considered a joint report of the Executive Director, Economy,
Environment & Culture, the Interim Executive Director, Neighbourhoods, Communities &
Housing and the Executive Lead Officer, Strategy, Governance & Law that set out the
proposed 2018/19 fees and charges for the service areas covered by the Environment,
Transport and Sustainability Committee in accordance with corporate regulations and

policy.

Councillor West expressed his disappointment that there was very little in the structure
of the fees and charges that focussed on the commitment to carbon neutrality.
Councillor West stated his disappointment that there was very little or no overall
increase in the parking charges and he believed this should be looked at again.
Councillor West noted that there was an unacceptable surcharge in the cost of buying
permits on a monthly basis against buying annual permits. Councillor West stated that
this was unacceptable as it penalised residents and businesses that couldn’t afford an
annual permit due to cash flow issues or those that did not want to buy an annual
permit. Councillor West believed this should be corrected through the budget process.
With regard to parking charges for parks, Councillor West explained that whilst setting a
cheaper tariff compared to the other charges in the CPZ had been a noble intention, the
reality was that park car parks had been overloaded precisely because the charges
were cheaper than compared to the surrounding area. Councillor West stated the
parking charges for parks should be increased subject to recommendation 2.3.
Furthermore, Councillor West expressed his disappointment that there was no
differentiation in fees and charges for vehicle types and level of emissions, as was used
for car tax as it did not encourage people to purchase lower emissions vehicles.
Councillor West stated that he believed the committee should defer the decision to
Policy & Resources Committee.

Councillor Wares queried the justification for the increase proposed for garden waste
collection when the service wasn’t delivering as expected. In relation to recommendation
2.3, Councillor Wares observed that a recent meeting of the Stanmer Park Working
Group had brought up a number of issues that may be difficult to resolve so agreement
may take some time.

In relation to Stanmer Park, the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture
replied that he had been given feedback from the meeting however, it was still intended
and achievable to meet the deadlines as set out. In relation to garden waste collections,
the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture added that there had been a
lot of good work made in improving the service area and fees and charges had not been
increased in the previous financial year in order to stabilise the service. It was felt that as
the service waiting list was about to re-open and the service had been stabilised and
improved, it was now appropriate to increase the charge to ensure costs were
recovered. The Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture noted that if
agreed, this would be the first price increase since the service had been introduced.

Councillor Wares stated that he believed the price increases would predominately
impact upon those on low income and he was surprised Councillor West was advocating
an increase in fees and charges. Councillor Wares expressed his dismay that traders
permits would increase by £100 per annum, an act that would further hit businesses in

22



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

60.6

60.7

60.8

60.9

60.10

60.11

60.12

60.13

2020

the city. Furthermore, Councillor Wares believed it was an outrage that Doctors permits
would rise by 100%, when they were undertaking such an important duty. Councillor
Wares observed that whilst he agreed with some aspects of the proposals were good,
many of the fees and charges would undoubtably affect those on low income the most
and he would therefore, be voting against the recommendations.

Councillor Brown echoed Councillor Wares objections to the rise in Doctor’s permits. In
relation to paragraph 3.10, Councillor Brown did not believe a price increase at the King
Alfred Centre was rationale as it would deter people from physical activity and exercise.

In response to queries from Councillor Heley and Councillor West, it was explained that
as no amendments to the report had been received by 10am, procedurally, the
committee had three choices available. To vote against the report, which would mean
the report would be referred to the Policy & Resources Committee. This was because
the 2020/21 budget proposals were developed on the assumption that fees and charges
are agreed as recommended and any failure to agree would have an impact on the
overall budget proposals, which meant the decision would need to be dealt with by
Policy & Resources Committee as per the requirements of the Constitution. The second
option would be to abstain and the third option to vote in favour of the report.

Councillor Lloyd stated that it was correct to introduce fee increases to deter
unnecessary car journeys and promote sustainable transport. However, every journey a
trader made was a necessary journey and he objected to any increase in this area.

Councillor Moonan welcomed the report, highlighting key aspects: that parking charges
were lower than in neighbouring authorities, that Doctors would be able to park
anywhere in the city for £1 per day and that the balance set in the parking fees and
charges would help reduce congestion and work toward the overall program of carbon
neutrality by 2030. Councillor Moonan noted that the some of the surplus would go
directly towards the climate change programme and noted that with ten years of a
reducing government grant, local authorities were left with no other option that to look
closely at its fees and charges.

Councillor Wares noted that the council had lost millions of pounds in bad management
of Coin Co International and the Shelter Hall project and it was acceptable to punish
residents by asking them to pay for those mistakes by increasing fees and charges.

Councillor West expressed his disappointment in the report proposals as he felt a
golden opportunity had been missed to dissuade people from using motor vehicles by
raising fees and charges and in turn, raise funding that could be re-invested in
sustainable transport infrastructure and projects.

In response to a further query from Councillor West, the committee received legal and
procedural advice on rules for submission of amendments for this committee, Policy &
Resources Committee and Budget Council.

Councillor West stated that he would like to propose a motion to amend the
recommendations and requested the Chair’s discretion to do so.

23



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

2020

60.14 The Chair stated that the council had clear procedural rules on amendments and

60.15

60.16
60.17
61

61.1

61.2

61.3

61.4

61.5

61.6
61.7
61.8

1)

following the technical advice provided by officers at the meeting, she was not prepared
to accept a late amendment.

Councillor Moonan expressed her frustration that a complex, technical amendment had
been proposed at the last minute when the council had clear procedural rules and
timescales on the matter and the report had been published on time.

The Chair then put the recommendations to the vote that failed.
The report was referred to Policy & Resources Committee for decision.
TEMPLE STREET PETITION

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture that detailed the implications for the closure of Temple Street and proposed
reversing the traffic flow to reduce the impact of rat running.

On behalf of the Green Group, Councillor LIoyd moved the following motion to amend
recommendation 2.1 and add a recommendation 2.2 as show in bold italics below:

2.1 That the Committee agrees to advertise an Experimental Traffic Regulation Order
to close the southern end of Temple Street to stop rat running in the street.

2.2 That the committee agrees to monitor the effect of the Experimental Traffic
Regulation Order on Temple Street and surrounding streets and bring a
report to this committee at the end of the trial period with the results of the
trial and recommendations for a permanent solution.

Introducing the motion, Councillor Lloyd stated that the residents of Temple Street were
in support of the closure to stop rat running completely. Councillor Lloyd stated that low-
cost option for closure such as street planters could be effective.

Councillor West formally seconded the motion explaining that the proposals were
supported by both ward councillors and residents. Councillor West highlighted that the
problem with reversal would be the impact upon cyclists and if there was a subsequent

impact on adjoining roads, the committee should consider the wishes of those residents
too.

Councillor Wares stated that the committee relied upon ward councillors views on such
matters and on the basis of their support, his Group would be supporting the motion.

The Chair put the motion to the vote that passed.
The Chair put the recommendations, as amended to the vote that were agreed.
RESOLVED-

That the Committee agrees to advertise an Experimental Traffic Regulation Order to
close the southern end of Temple Street to stop rat running in the street.

24



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

2)

62

62.1

62.2

62.3

62.4

62.5

62.6

62.7

62.8

2020

That the committee agrees to monitor the effect of the Experimental Traffic Regulation
Order on Temple Street and surrounding streets and bring a report to this committee at
the end of the trial period with the results of the trial and recommendations for a
permanent solution.

CAR FREE DAY AND ACCESS GRANT FUNDED PROJECTS

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture that set out options for a Car Free Day to be held on 22 September 2020 and
other options including school and non-school road closures.

Councillor West asked if Boundary Road was proposed as the preferred option as per
recommendation 2.3 as recommendation 2.2 referred to additional consultation.

The Access Fund Manager confirmed that Boundary Road was the preferred option and
clarified that recommendation 2.2 was reference to further work required on other sites
for a non-school closure.

Councillor West stated that his preference was for a more central location for a Car Free
Day and the city centre was ideal as both a visitor destination and a prominent location.
Councillor West stated his preference for a Car Free Day event on the stretch of the
A259 between Middle Street and Pool Valley as this would ensure the event was as
visible and high profile as possible but also maintain access to Churchill Square and to
coaches in Pool Valley.

As clarification, the Access Fund Manager explained that Boundary Road had been
chosen due to its high levels of traffic, high rates of car ownership and as a location
where planning for such an event would be more feasible in the timeframe compared
with a major city centre location.

Councillor Wares noted that the closure of St James’s Street was forecast to cost
£55,800 and asked if this was the same cost as for the Pride Party. Councillor Wares
asked if there were other instances in the calendar year where the section of the A259
referred to was closed to traffic.

The Access Fund Manger explained to the cost to the council for a Car Free Day road
closure on St James’s Street and the cost to the Pride Trust were not comparable as the
costs incurred for each party would be for very different things. The Access Fund
Manager confirmed that the section of the A259 discussed was closed during the
Brighton Marathon.

Councillor Wares stated that whilst closing a section of the A259 would be a big task,
there was some experience in the procedures for doing so linked to other events.
Councillor Wares explained that he did understand the educational and awareness
benefits of a closure on Boundary Road. Councillor Wares stated that he found it curious
that there was no commitment for funding for certain elements of the report proposals
when the Administration controlled the council budget and could make such a
commitment.

25



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

62.9

62.10

62.11

62.12

62.13

62.14

62.15

62.16

62.17

62.18

2020

Councillor Heley welcomed the report stating that although there was a good case for
Boundary Road to host a Car Free Day, a city centre location would be beneficial in
terms of attendance, scale and profile.

Councillor Davis asked when the first School Streets events were scheduled to take
place.

The Access Fund Manager replied that there would be a Taster Day to coincide with Car
Free Day and following appropriate timescales, the first timed School Streets road
closure would be in February 2021.

Councillor Moonan asked how schools could apply to be part of the School Streets
taster day as she was aware of two schools in Central Hove ward that experienced
multiple problems relating to traffic.

The Access Fund Manager explained that the locations were subject to the funding
available through the Access Fund and there was a case that the school chosen should
be within the area that Fund was designated.

Councillor Wilkinson welcomed the report that would benefit the environment and air
quality however, he believed there was much more to do to make meaningful change
than a one-day event.

The Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture noted that as identified in the
report’s financial implications, the funding for a non-school Car Free Day was subject to
the budget process and Budget Council in February 2020 and the funding for the
location proposed or an alternative location, would be dependent on the outcome of that
process.

The meeting was adjourned at 7.30pm and reconvened at 7.40pm

Councillor West proposed a joint motion to amend recommendations 2.2 and 2.3 as
shown in bold italics and strikethrough below:

2.2 To note the feasibility assessment (Appendix 2) and indicative costs (Appendix 3)
associated with various options for potential non-school Car Free Day road
closures and to request that officers undertake further consultation with Ward
members and other key stakeholders on the option(s) (named in Appendix 2 & 3)
preferred by members subject to an additional budget ef-up-te-£65,000 being
identified;

2.3 Request that officers liaise with Ward councillors , residents and other

stakeholders regarding a petential non-school road closure in-BeundaryReoad that
could on the A259 from Middle St to Pool Valley and The Lanes: (Boyce's St;

Middle St; Duke St; Ship Street; Prince Albert St; Bartholomews; East Street)
to occur in 2020 for Car Free Day as part of Year 4 of the Access Projects;
Councillor Wares formally seconded the joint motion.

The Chair put the motion to the vote that passed.

26



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

2020

62.19 The Chair then put the recommendations, as amended, to the vote that were agreed.

62.20 RESOLVED- That the committee:

1)

2)

3)

4)

63

63.1

63.2

63.3
1)

2)

3)

Progress the development of possible school road closures and events for European
Mobility Week and Car Free Day 2020 in association with the extension (Year 4) of the
council’s Access Fund Project in 2020/21 and a School Streets taster day, subject to
confirmation from the Government of the funding for that project, and subject to
agreement of the proposed school selection criteria (Appendix 1);

Note the feasibility assessment (Appendix 2) and indicative costs (Appendix 3)
associated with various options for potential non-school Car Free Day road closures and
to request that officers undertake further consultation with Ward members and other key
stakeholders on the option(s) (named in Appendix 2 & 3) preferred by members subject
to an additional budget being identified,;

Request that officers liaise with Ward councillors, residents and other stakeholders
regarding a non-school road closure on the A259 from Middle St to Pool Valley and The
Lanes: (Boyce's St; Middle St; Duke St; Ship Street; Prince Albert St; Bartholomews;
East Street) to occur in 2020 for Car Free Day as part of Year 4 of the Access Projects;

Welcome requests for community events or activities in local streets that will contribute
to the council’s participation in European Mobility Week and Car Free Day 2020.

PARKING PERMIT REVIEW

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture that advised the committee on the progress of the parking permit review and
sought approval for changes to the operation of various parking permits throughout the
city.

Councillor Wares guestioned the value of a consultation process where only council
officers were involved and expressed his view that it should have been wider. Councillor
Wares stated his objection to the proposal to double the cost of Doctor’s permits as they
performed a life changing and lifesaving service in the city. Councillor Wares stated that
the report recommendations were closely linked to the Fees & Charges report and
therefore, he could not support the proposals.

RESOLVED-

That the Committee agrees the “No change” proposals outlined in Appendix A.

That the Committee notes the links to the 2020/21 fees and charges proposals in
Appendix B which are being presented for approval in a separate report at this same
meeting.

That the Committee notes the working proposals in Appendix B to be presented fully at

the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee in Jan 2021. This will link to any
fees and charges proposals for 2021/22.

27



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

64

64.1

64.2

64.3

64.4

1)

2)

3)

4)

65

65.1

2020

PARKING SCHEME UPDATE REPORT

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture that provided an update on the progress of recent resident parking scheme
consultations and requested approval for a range of proposals.

Councillor Wares referred to the concerns raised in the deputation received by the
committee earlier in the meeting, particularly that action was taken based on a relatively
low response rate to consultations. Councillor Wares stated that he believed the council
needed to find a way to improve the response rate to provide greater assurance on the
decisions it made.

Councillor Moonan stated that the parking scheme consultation process was one of the
most resident led. The process began with petitions then three opportunities to be
engaged as the process progressed. Councillor Moonan stated that a higher response
rate would be welcome however, the council had to make decisions on the responses it
received.

RESOLVED-

That Committee agrees that no changes are required in Zone B and Zone D (Match Day
Parking).

That Committee approves that a new resident parking scheme (Light Touch Monday —
Friday 10-11am & 5-6 pm) be considered within the Coombe Road area and that this
proposal be progressed to the final design with the Traffic Order advertised to allow for
further comment. All comments will be reported back to a further Environment,
Transport & Sustainability Committee.

That Committee having taken account of all duly made representations and comments,
agrees to proceed to the next stage of the detailed design for a Light Touch parking
scheme within the South Portslade Area.

Agrees that the following Traffic Regulation Orders are approved for Freshfield
Street/Queens Park Rise and the Top Triangle Area and proceed to the implementation
stage:

e BRIGHTON AND HOVE VARIOUS CONTROLLED PARKING ZONES

CONSOLIDATION ORDER 2018 AMENDMENT ORDER NO.*201* (TRO-31-2019)

e BRIGHTON AND HOVE VARIOUS CONTROLLED PARKING ZONES

CONSOLIDATION ORDER 2018 AMENDMENT ORDER NO.*201* AMENDMENT
ORDER NO.*201* (TRO-32-2019)

TRANSPORT FOR THE SOUTH EAST - RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION ON
DRAFT TRANSPORT STRATEGY

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture that set out the progress being made on supporting delivery of Transport for The

28



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

65.2

65.3

65.4

65.5

65.6

65.7
65.8

1)

2)
66

59.1

59.2

2020

South East’s (TfSE) draft Transport Strategy and sought retrospective approval of the
council’s formal response to the consultation on the draft Strategy.

Councillor West expressed his disappointment by the TfSE’s aim for carbon neutrality by
2050 that was unambitious, too late and at odds with the council’s own target. Councillor
West stated his dissatisfaction that the TfSE was overly focussed on road schemes that
was again, at odds with carbon neutrality targets. Councillor West stated that he could
not endorse the response as it was to a flawed draft strategy.

The Assistant Director, City Transport explained that the strategy was focussed on
regional movement and there was a strong emphasis on sustainability. Furthermore, the
strategy did not fetter the ability of local authorities to set their own travel priorities.

Councillor West noted that active travel was not referenced at all in the draft strategy
and there was a need to reduce and localise journeys.

Councillor Wares agreed with the concerns made and noted that there was a chance for
officers to speak to the opposition spokespersons or brief them ahead of providing the
response to the consultation.

The Chair proposed the following amendment to recommendation 2.2 as shown in bold
italics and strikethrough:

2.2  That the Committee formally agree note the Consultation response set out in
Appendix 1.

The Committee were in agreement with the proposal.
RESOLVED-

That the Committee note the progress being made on supporting delivery of Transport
for The South East’s Draft Transport Strategy

That the Committee formally note the Consultation response set out in Appendix 1.
CITY ENVIRONMENT MODERNISATION UPDATE

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture that provided a progress update on the City Environment Modernisation
programme.

Councillor Wares noted that the Modernisation programme had begun in July 2018 and
at the time, the committee were informed that it would take two years to resolve the
issues identified. Councillor Wares stated that 18 months on, many big issues were
incomplete, and it was not acceptable for the service to be at a perpetual amber rating.
Councillor Wares asked if the Operator’s License was still in special measures and what
actions could be undertaken to convert health and safety to a green rating given its
critical importance. Furthermore, Councillor Wares asked why data collection on
communal bins was rated as poor when the council were the holders of that information,
when the correct paint would be available for community clean ups and what action was

29



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

59.3

59.4

59.5

59.6

59.7

2020

being taken with Sussex Police to ensure prosecutions for graffiti were proportionate.
Councillor Wares asked for an update on the current status of the proposed round
restructure and gave details of an instance in his ward where a resident on an assisted
collection service was not having their rubbish collected. Furthermore, Councillor Wares
stated that there appeared to have been no benefit to bringing the environmental
enforcement service in-house as enforcement activity was down and staff levels
remained static.

The Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture stated that the City
Environment management team had undertaken a great deal of good work laying the
foundation for improvement and in managing change, new issues had arisen that
required priority action meaning the modernisation programme had evolved. In relation
to the Operator’s License, the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture
stated that there was a need for vigilance until there was complete satisfaction that the
council was compliant, and the progress made over the past 18 months had been very
positive. With regard to health and safety, the Executive Director, Economy,
Environment & Culture noted that there were many risks associated with operation of
the service that meant that similarly, there was a need for absolute assurance that the
council was fully compliant. The Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture
explained that capacity within the health and safety team had been increased and a new
governance structure within the Directorate where he chaired the Health & Safety Board.
The Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture stated that the service would
continue to tackle the issues in this area. With regard to fleet, the Executive Director,
Economy, Environment & Culture noted that the committee had recently agreed to
develop a Fleet Strategy and progress was being made.

The Head of Business Support & Projects explained that the scope of the modernisation
programme had increased as new issues had been found undertaking the programme.
One such issue related the query raised on communal bin data where it had been found
that no such data existed, and extensive work was required to gather that data. In
relation to feedback provided to Sussex Police and the individual case relating to
assisted collection raised by Councillor Wares, the Head of Business Support & Projects
stated that an update could be provided directly after the meeting. The Head of
Business Support & Projects explained that the round restructure was going well and
there would be an update provided to the March meeting of the committee. Feedback
would be provided to the environment enforcement team in relation to the concerns
raised on staffing levels however, these were difficult posts to recruit to.

Councillor Wares stated that it was important that the modernisation updates continued
to be clear and candid however, it was important also that if there was some slippage in
the modernisation programme then the committee members be reappraised of that.

Councillor West stated that there may be some benefit in presenting the modernisation
update in the form of a performance management report, similar to those presented to
the Audit & Standards Committee.

The Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture stated that it was unusual to
report a modernisation update to a committee and he would be happy to speak to the
committee members if potential changes to the report format would be required and
beneficial.

30



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 21 JANUARY

59.8

67

67.1

67.2

67.3

67.4

67.5

67.6

67.7

1)

68

68.1

2020

RESOLVED- That the Committee notes the progress made through the City
Environment Modernisation Programme.

BRIGHTON CHAMP (CHALK MANAGEMENT PARTNERSHIP) FOR WATER 2020
ONWARDS

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture that provided information on the Brighton Chalk Management Partnership
(ChaMP) project, its proposed projects and plans for the next five years.

Councillor Brown asked if ChaMP were routinely consulted on major developments and
specifically, on the proposed Toad’s Hole Valley development.

The Assistant Director - City Development & Regeneration explained that ChaMP were
not a statutory consultee. However, water cleanliness and water run-off were planning
application matters and some of the ChaMP partners such as Southern Water and the
Environment Agency would consider such matters as part of that process.

Councillor Wares welcomed the report that was a key element in managing nitro
pollution and mitigating surface water flooding. Councillor Wares expressed concern that
if the Shaping Climate Change Adaptive Places (SCAPE) project were to fail, that would
negatively impact upon resident’s perception of the benefit of potential ChaMP projects.

The Assistant Director - City Development & Regeneration explained that the plants
used for the SCAPE project would be specifically chosen for their ability to clean water
supplies.

In response, Councillor Wares confirmed that he was aware the plants would be chosen
for a specific purpose. However, the visual presentation received on ChaMP had been
very impressive and he hoped that could be shared more widely to offset any potential
concerns relating to SCAPE.

RESOLVED-

That the Committee notes the information about ChaMP, its proposed projects and its
plans for the next five years.

ITEMS REFERRED FOR FULL COUNCIL

No items were referred to Full Council for information.

The meeting concluded at 8.45pm

Signed Chair

Dated this day of

31



32



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 74(a)
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Petitions

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2020

Report of: Monitoring Officer

Contact Officer: Name: John Peel Tel: 01273 291058

E-mail: john.peel@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Wards Affected: Various

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

3. (i)

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

To receive any petitions submitted directly to Democratic Services or any e-
Petition submitted via the council’s website.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Committee responds to the petition either by noting it or writing to
the petition organiser setting out the Council’s views, or where it is considered
more appropriate, calls for an officer report on the matter which may give
consideration to a range of options, including the following:

taking the action requested in the petition
considering the petition at a council meeting
holding an inquiry into the matter
undertaking research into the matter
holding a public meeting

holding a consultation

holding a meeting with petitioners

calling a referendum

PETITIONS
Tree Preservation Orders — Gareth Hall

To receive the following petition signed by 330 people at the time of
publication:

“‘We the undersigned petition Brighton & Hove Council to Place a Tree
Preservation Order (TPO) on all trees on council owned parks and public
places.

There is a climate emergency. Planting and preserving trees is a priority
if we are to save the planet.

33



3. (i)

3. (iii)

BHCC continue to agree to trees being felled in public places for
example planning permission was given to fell four trees in Hove Park in
order to build a cafeé.

| am requesting the council to put a TPO on all trees they manage on
behalf of BHCC residents so that they cannot be felled without a
legitimate and valid reason”.

Help End Sewage Pollution — Andrew Coleman

To receive the following petition signed by 270 people at the time of
publication:

We the undersigned petition Brighton & Hove Council to demand that
Southern Water provides year-round sewage alerts to the Safer Seas
Service with better information about which outfalls are responsible for
the sewage alerts and takes urgent action to stop all sewage discharges
into recreational waters - use the Safer Seas Service to post alerts on
the Council's website, Twitter and other social and local media outlets -
require lifeguards to use red flags and written warnings when there is a
sewage alert - carry out monitoring of waste materials such as tarry
residues, plastic and other litter and warns beach users and sea users
about them.

Pedestrian Crossing on Goldstone Crescent— Rachel Weinstein

To receive the following petition hosted on the 38 Degrees website and
signed by 565 people at the time of publication:

Petition requesting a Pedestrian Crossing on Goldstone Crescent
between bottom of woodland drive and bottom of Nevill Way

The increasing danger of crossing this road for Pedestrians, especially
Children on their way to and from school.

This has greatly increased due to the new parking restrictions in the
surrounding area. The speeding traffic is a hazard, where the speed limit
is still 30mph as opposed to 20mph along the rest of Goldstone
Crescent. There have been a numerous near misses with children and
cars on a daily basis.

34



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 74(b)
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

17 March 2020 Brighton & Hove City Council

WRITTEN QUESTIONS

A period of not more than fifteen minutes shall be allowed at each ordinary
meeting for questions submitted by a member of the public.

The question will be answered without discussion. The person who asked the
guestion may ask one relevant supplementary question, which shall be put and
answered without discussion. The person to whom a question, or supplementary
question, has been put may decline to answer it.

The following written questions have been received from members of the public:

(1) Preston Circus Pollution — Adrian Hill

“I suffer with very poor respiratory health and advised to stay indoors regularly
when air quality is poor. NO2 is responsible for aggravating lung conditions,
allergies and the creation of Ozone. Preston Circus has high NO2, particulates
and ozone and levels remained stagnant the last four years according to 10
closest monitors, exceeding limits. The location has been neglected, what
improvements are coming? ULEZ, move and synchronise traffic lights, widen
20mph zones, radar speed signs, signage, reduce Stanford Avenue’s lanes,
narrow roads, force deliveries to use cargo bikes, park and ride, fully electric
buses, tram. What is the expected effects?”

35



36



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 75(b)
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

17 March 2020 Brighton & Hove City Council

WRITTEN QUESTIONS

A period of not more than fifteen minutes shall be allowed at each ordinary
meeting for questions submitted by Members.

The question will be answered without discussion. The person who asked the
qguestion may ask one relevant supplementary question, which shall be put and
answered without discussion. The person to whom a question, or supplementary
question, has been put may decline to answer it.

The following written questions have been received from Members:
(1) Councillor Yates — Traffic Survey

In the last few weeks Hillside in Moulsecoomb and Bevendean ward has seen
two serious vehicle accidents. One involving two cars and a motor cycle nears
its junction with the Lewes Road that highlighted the problems caused by
parking near that junction and a two-car collision near Hillside Way where
residents have been warning for years about the impact of a sharp bend and
inconsiderate parking on road safety.

Can the Chair please consider a traffic survey along to full length of Hillside and
additional parking restrictions to ensure the safety of road users, residents and
pedestrians?

(2) Councillor Wares- Cityclean

On the 29" January 2020 (and on other dates) the press reported on what they
headlined as the “Bin Crisis”. In reporting about the missed collections and the
£1m bill for agency staff, they highlight the cause of the problems. It seems that
the Administration’s reasons were down to staff shortages due to sickness, but
the unions disputed this and said it was down to defective vehicles. Please
could the Chair confirm who was telling the truth?

(3) Councillor Wares- Valley Gardens

Recently the council obtained an extension to the funding deadline for Valley
Gardens Phase 3. This being something that last year was expressed as being
virtually impossible to force through the decision on preferred option 1. To
secure the extension only a verbal presentation was given by officers to the
LEP. This happened in December last year. Officers’ actions were not brought
to the attention of Audit & Standards when the audit report was presented. Their
actions were not briefed to ETS Committee, there is no paperwork or report to
be able to check and scrutinise what was said. In a press release a council
spokeswoman was quoted as saying the council had no duty to inform
councillors. Unless the Chair of ETS has lost control of her brief she must have
sanctioned this. Please could the Chair confirm that she sanctioned this
approach designed to keep Councillors out of the loop and prevent open and
transparent scrutiny of this Administration?

37



(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Councillor Wares- Flyposting

We note the recent prosecution of a fly-poster and applaud the strong words
issued by the Chair and in particular when she said, “flyposting is illegal for a
very good reason and we (the council) will have hesitation in taking them to
court”’. The Chair went on to say, “they all help ruin the appearance of the city”.
It felt very “Mayor Giuliani” with his successful zero tolerance stance for New
York. Please could the Chair assure us that prior to the next Labour Party
Conference being held in the city, she will write to them and their fringe
organisations and make it clear that fly-posting is illegal, will not be tolerated
and that those who intend to will not be welcome in Brighton and Hove. We
would be encouraged if the Chair would show the same courage of conviction
as her previous colleague and former Leader of the Council namely, Clir.
Warren Morgan.

Councillor Heley- COP26

COP26 is being held in Glasgow later this year and has the potential to be a
turning point in the international struggle for climate justice. As we have pledged
to become net-zero by 2030, How can we as a council participate in these
crucial climate talks?

Councillor Davis- 20mph speed limits

The 20mph speed limit has been an emotive subject but nobody can deny that
slower moving vehicles lead to less serious injuries and a safer environment for
pedestrians and cyclists.

This month Tfl have introduced a blanket 20mph speed limit to their central
streets alongside and an enforcement team to further enhance city centres and
S0 my question is, would this administration consider following suit and rolling
out a city wide 20mph speed limit?

Councillor Davis- Refuse and recycling

After my election in May | could never have imagined just how many recycling
and rubbish related emails | would have from my residents. My inbox groans
under their weight on a daily basis and the situation is getting worse week by
week and while | fully understand the strains put on our hard-working
colleagues at City Clean by a decade of Conservative party austerity, and it's
attacks on all wonderful public services, the administration needs be providing a
much better service. | absolutely appreciate that my main role as a councillor is
to represent my residents with their interactions to this council, but I firmly
believe they would prefer the majority of my time not to be taken up with these
enquires.

My question is, in 2015 the Labour party were elected on a manifesto to “get the
basics right” and this quite clearly isn’t happening so can the administration
please tell me what plans they have for improving this unsatisfactory service?

38



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 75 (c) (1)

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
Brighton & Hove City Council

Geoff Raw — Chief Executive
Brighton & Hove City Council
7th February 2020

Dear Geoff

We are submitting the following letter under Council Procedure Rule 23.3 to be
included on the agenda for the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee
meeting of 17th March 2020.

We recently proposed to City Environment an idea to use the slopes above Carden
Park in Hollingbury for a new woodland area. This area is presently open chalk
grassland with a few mature trees scattered around. Part of the area sits within the
western side of Wild Park Local Nature Reserve.

Following a meeting with officers, the Council’s Conservation Manager assessed that
part of the slope was species rich grassland and worthy of preservation and the rest
suitable for extensive tree planting.

In further discussions it was felt that the following was possible and is reflected on
the plan that we attach with this letter: -

1. The slope would be used to plant 8,000 trees with pathways cut between and
around blocks of tree planting.

2. Trees would be planted down the northern boundary that would help screen
the industrial estate from the park/ housing development and link up with Old
Boat Corner Community Centre who are planting a small orchard at the rear
of the building.

3. The very top of the slope (being species rich grassland) would be
encompassed within the adjacent grazed area. The cost of fencing material
can be met from s106 funds for Crowhurst Corner with the work carried out by
volunteers.

4. The embankment separating the playing field and slope would be extensively
landscaped to create bee banks, wild flowering and increased biodiversity
provision. The cost can be met from the Changing Chalk HLF partnership led
by the National Trust.

Adjacent to Carden Park is Carden Avenue that is subject to the SCAPE sustainable
drainage system project using planted water catchment areas and immediately
opposite is Carden School that will be part of the Brighton Chalk Management
Project. To the south of Carden Park is Woodbourne Meadows that the conservation
group has over several years transformed now resulting in rare butterflies being
seen. We have an active Ward conservation group, a trained tree warden, dozens of

39



keen residents, and the city’s only UN climate change qualified teacher. The schools
are keen to take part and the community centre is able and willing to have display
and educational areas and perhaps even organise walks and talks.

This proposal provides the council with an opportunity to create a vast area of
rejuvenated open space that will conserve, preserve, create and increase
biodiversity. It will produce a wealth of flora and fauna that also helps link and draw
closer the natural environment to the built environment and it is a very long time
since our city planted a brand-new woodland area on this scale.

This initiative will go right to the very heart of tackling climate change and our
commitment to be carbon neutral. We all talk about the climate emergency and say
there needs to be a radical change. We are offering an initiative that is possible now.

Officers advise that these ideas are achievable with minimum impact on the council’s
budget and we have allocated most of our ward budget to this proposition.

To that end, we respectfully ask this Committee to consider our idea and request
officers to bring to 23rd June 2020 Environment, Transport and Sustainability
Committee a report that details the scheme and provides the necessary financial and
legal advice that we hope will result in Committee authorising the scheme to
progress. Time is of the essence, not just in respect to climate change but the need
to organise and make purchases ready for planning in November this year.

Yours sincerely

Clirs. Lee Wares, Alistair McNair and Carol Theobald

40



1<

Community Ce
‘ Playground
L3 T

""‘

N

‘\—\

Options for
Land Above
Carden Park

“mww- Fence

Amenity Mown

BBank

Football Pitch
- Hard Path
Orchard
Scrub
Scrub Clearance
Species Rich Grassland

Tree Planting

~ _ .| Trees
.

Date: 03/02/2020
1:1,250

Reproduction from the
Ordnance Survey mapping
with the permission of the
Controller of H.M. Stationery
Office. © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction
infringes Crown Copyright
and may lead to prosecution



A%



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 75 (c) (2)

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
Brighton & Hove City Council

Geoff Raw — Chief Executive
Brighton & Hove City Council
23" February 2020

Dear Geoff

| am submitting the following letter under Council Procedure Rule 23.3 to be included
on the agenda for the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee (ETS)
meeting of 17" March 2020.

Since July 2019 | have been seeking answers to questions in respect to BTN
Bikeshare. | have raised a number of questions at ETS all of which have been
answered “with a response to follow” or “it will be in the report”.

Today items 86 and 87 are being presented by the Administration to Committee of
which fail to answer the questions previously raised. | therefore reintroduce the
guestions for which | would be grateful to receive a comprehensive answer.

1. Tariffs to use the bikes were increased in August 2019. The Administration
gave reasons such as the ability to reinvest the revenue citing that the
charges were less expensive or comparable with other city’s (that it seems
are now closing their bikeshare schemes). The confidential briefing dated 25"
July 2019 provides entirely different reasons for the need to raise the tariffs.
Will the Chair please disclose those reasons?

2. Has Hourbike paid all debts due to the council. If not, please could you
provide the detail and reasons?

3. The council ordered and paid for electric ready bikes. During the contract the
supplier was acquired by Uber who subsequently would not supply the electric
conversion kits. The council has now received e-ready bikes that cannot be
electrified but, in the process paid circa £30k more than had standard bikes
been purchased. Please could the Chair confirm what action is being taken to
either force Uber to supply the conversion kits the council has paid for or
recover the overpaid £30k.

4. ltis clear (and reinforced in the report) that the original business case was
flawed. Costs were under-estimated and revenue over-stated. The scheme
relies on sponsorship to supplement revenue from customers. The ability for
the scheme to succeed also appears to rely on subsidies and grants to
acquire capital infrastructure without borrowing costs. Any further decision
should be based on a revised business case taking account of actual data

43



established over the last two years. Please could the Chair request a revised
business case to support the procurement options in item 86.

5. Please could the Chair explain why the council condones the use of older
diesel vehicles to collect and redistribute (and service) the bikes throughout
the city when the premise of the bikeshare scheme is to encourage a healthier
lifestyle and tackle climate change.

Yours sincerely,
Clilr. Lee Wares

44



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 75 (c) (3)

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
Brighton & Hove City Council

Geoff Raw — Chief Executive
Brighton & Hove City Council
23" February 2020

Dear Geoff

| am submitting the following letter under Council Procedure Rule 23.3 to be included
on the agenda for the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee (ETS)
meeting of 17" March 2020.

It is clear from previous reports regarding Cityclean’s modernisation that
improvement in some areas is stalling or even going backwards. We are 18 months
in to a two-year programme and it is no longer clear when the problems will end, and
the city will enjoy a reliable service.

It is disappointing that Committee today does not have an update report. Regardless,
the method of RAG rating the reports is no longer effective in being able to properly
assess progress towards reform.

Please would the Chair therefore request officers to produce future Cityclean update
reports with an appended table that lists all the issues originally discovered 18
months ago (and those discovered since). Against each item there needs to be a re-
evaluated end date and then progress towards that end date expressed as a
percentage. Subsequent reports should identify the change in percentage and/or the
change in end date.

What is beginning to happen is continued failure of the service masked by
“‘modernisation in progress”. We now need to see far greater accuracy and
accountability of where things are.

Equally, where modernisation is going well, we need to be able to recognise that.
Yours sincerely,

ClIr. Lee Wares

45



46



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 75 (c) (4)

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
Brighton & Hove City Council

Geoff Raw — Chief Executive
Brighton & Hove City Council
23" February 2020

Dear Geoff

| am submitting the following letter under Council Procedure Rule 23.3 to be included
on the agenda for the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee (ETS)
meeting of 17" March 2020.

In July last year | raised an issue regarding a short section of pavement on Old
London Road. Over approximately 2m, the pavement, due to damage from tree
routes, is exceptionally difficult to pass by those with mobility scooters, walking aids
or sight impairment. Also, it is very difficult for those using wheelchairs; this was
demonstrated to me by a resident and her young son who is a wheelchair user.

There is no alternative to this route unless you use the road that is a busy bus route;
there is no pavement on the opposite side of the street.

| have been in dialogue with officers for the last seven months but although there is
progress of sorts, there is no indication of when the matter will be resolved.

At ETS Committee we discuss much about encouraging people to use sustainable
travel, to be active and lead more healthy life-styles. On Old London Road we have a
barrier to everything we encourage. We also have a serious health and safety issue
that forces our less able citizens to choose between navigating the dangerous
pavement or using the busy road. In some instances, they are choosing not to make
the journey leading to greater isolation.

Please would the Chair of ETS assist officers in being able to make this a priority.
Yours sincerely,

Cllr. Lee Wares

47



48



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 75 (c) (5)

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
Brighton & Hove City Council

Geoff Raw — Chief Executive
Brighton & Hove City Council
23'Y February 2020

Dear Geoff

| am submitting the following letter under Council Procedure Rule 23.3 to be included
on the agenda for the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee (ETS)
meeting of 17" March 2020.

For years Patcham Ward Councillors have been lobbying the council and Highways
England to undertake improvement works to the roundabout at the A23/27
intersection in Patcham. When the council decided to remove the floral welcome
display in the same location last year we made further representations to ETS.

We received personal assurances from the Chair of ETS that “something” would be
done by the end of 2019. That promise was not fulfilled. We have subsequently
raised the issue at Full Council and twice at ETS to be told that the council has a
plan/ design and everything is ready to go with the delay being Highways England. |
have also written directly to the Chair of ETS.

We have on four previous occasions requested a briefing and plans/ details of the
proposals. We have three times been promised we would receive such a briefing.
This is our fifth request.

Please could the council provide Patcham Ward Councillors with a briefing, including
plans and designs, of the proposals that apparently exist relating to Patcham
roundabout and the floral display. Please can the council also provide us with copies
of the communications between the council and Highways England with emphasis
on demonstrating that Highways England are the sole cause of delay.

Yours sincerely,

ClIr. Lee Wares

49



50



Geoff Raw

Chief Executive Office

Brighton and Hove City Council
Hove Town Hall

Norton Road

Hove, BN3 3BQ

05.03.2020

Dear Geoff;

| am submitting the following letter under Council Procedure Rule 23.3 to be included
on the agenda for the 21% January meeting of the Environment, Transport &
Sustainability Committee

TREE PLANTING ON GLEBE VILLAS

We write this letter for inclusion on the agenda of the 17" March meeting of the
Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee.

For the past year, we have been working closely with the Friends of Glebe Villas to
bring forward a tree-planting scheme for the street.

A local historic quirk is that Glebe Villas is the only street of its type in the area that
has no street trees. All surrounding streets are blessed with sizeable trees which are
generally considered to be a highly attractive feature for numerous reasons.

We are backing the scheme in full recognition of the Council’s declaration of a
‘climate emergency’ on the basis that planting trees is an obvious way to reduce net
carbon emissions. There are numerous other environmental benefits including
pollution reduction, flood prevention and wildlife encouragement.

Fundraising is now well underway. The plan is to save approximately £10,000 for 20
trees (ten on either side of the street).

The reason for our letter is to win the backing of the Environment, Transport &
Sustainability Committee for (i) the usual tree-planting fee to be honoured in lieu of
any revised figure and (ii) a survey to be undertaken as a matter of urgency so that
planting can take place in the autumn.

We look forward to having the opportunity to attend committee to present the
proposal and to answer any questions as necessary.

With best wishes

Cllr Robert Nemeth and Clir Garry Peltzer Dunn
Wish Ward

51



52



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & | Agenda Item X
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

17" March 2020 Brighton & Hove City Council

NOTICE OF MOTION
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND TRAFFIC MODELLING

CONSERVATIVE GROUP

This Committee agrees to request the Executive Director Economy, Environment &
Culture: -

1. To commission and undertake a full environmental impact assessment
(including air quality assessment) and full comprehensive traffic modelling
assessment (including traffic displacement and bus congestion impact analysis
for North Street and Old Steine) over the project areas known as Valley
Gardens 3 and Duke’s Mound including the A259 and Madeira Drive. The
assessments to consider the areas as if they were one; and

2. Report back the results of those assessments for further consideration by this
Committee at the earliest opportunity.

Proposed by: ClIr. Lee Wares Seconded by: ClIr. Vanessa Brown
Supporting information.
Valley Gardens Phase 3 and Duke’s Mound are inextricably linked.

Valley Gardens Phase 3 and Duke’s Mound have not been subject to any
environmental impact assessment or detailed air quality assessment.

Valley Gardens Phase 3 and Duke’s Mound have not been subject to any traffic
modelling overlapping the relationship between the two.

Duke’s Mound has not been specifically subject to any discussion, debate or detailed

briefing or report to ETS Committee Members. All matters relating to Dukes Mound
have been secreted into the Planning Application for Blackrock.

NMO1 18.10.18 Status: Proposed

53




54



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 76
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Health & Safety Service Plan 2020-21
Date of Meeting: 17" March 2020
Report of: Interim Executive Director Housing,
Neighbourhoods & Communities
Contact Officer: Name: Nick Wilmot Tel: 01273 292157
Email:  nick.wilmot@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: (All Wards);

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

11

1.2

1.3

2.1

3.1

3.2

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

The Health & Safety Service Plan is required under the National Local Authority
Enforcement Code, issued by the Health and Safety Executive, under Section 18
of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974.

This work is very important to a city like Brighton & Hove with its leisure and
tourist industry, its night time economy and its retail businesses. It keeps the
city’s workers, residents and visitors safe and healthy and enhances the city’s
reputation as an attractive place to work, live and visit.

Recent years’ activities were determined by reducing service budget, the local
public health agenda and the ‘better regulation’ agenda. Deregulation impacted
on health and safety following Lord Young’s review of health and safety,
Common Sense - Common Safety, the Lofstedt review recommending reducing
the burden of unnecessary regulation on businesses and the HSE’s National
Local Authority (LA) Enforcement Code which provided a principle based
framework that recognised the respective roles of business and the regulator in
the management of risk.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Committee approves the proposed Health & Safety Service Plan
2020/2021 at Appendix 1.

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Health and safety legislation in Great Britain is enforced by HSE or one of the
over 380 Local Authorities (LA), depending on the main activity carried out at any
particular premises. In general, Local Authorities are the main enforcing
authority for retail, wholesale distribution and warehousing, hotel and catering
premises, offices, and the consumer/leisure industries. In Brighton and Hove this
is approximately 8,000 businesses.

Each LA is an enforcing authority in its own right and must make adequate
provision for enforcement. The LA National Enforcement Code introduced in

55



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

5.1

5.1

6.1

6.2

May 2013 sets out the principles that each LA should follow to ensure a
consistent, proportionate and targeted approach to regulation based on risk.

Local Authorities use a number of intervention approaches to regulate and
influence businesses in the management of health and safety risks including:
Provision of advice and guidance to individual businesses or groups

proactive interventions, including inspection reactive interventions, e.g. to
investigate an accident or complaint.

LA inspectors may use enforcement powers, including formal enforcement
notices, to address occupational health and safety risks and secure compliance
with the law. Prosecution action may be appropriate to hold duty holders to
account for failures to safeguard health and safety.

The Health & Safety Annual Service Plan is a statutory document required under
guidance issued by the Health and Safety Executive (HSE), National Local
Authority Enforcement Code. This Code requires Local Authorities to make
adequate arrangements for providing a health and safety service that includes an
enforcement role.

There have been a number of national health and safety reviews over the last
five years. Consequently, Central Government thinking on how Local Authorities
should approach enforcement of health and safety has changed. Regulators are
to achieve their objectives in a way that minimises the burdens on
business. Local Authorities are to embed a risk-based, proportionate, targeted
and flexible approach to regulatory inspection and enforcement. This approach
will ensure that regulators are efficient and effective in their work, without
imposing unnecessary burdens on those they regulate.

To ensure local transparency and accountability, it is a requirement that the
Health & Safety Service Plan is submitted to the relevant member forum for
approval

ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

The Service Plan is a statutory requirement. LAC 67/2(rev 7) and The National
Local Authority Enforcement Code provides direction to Local Authorities on
meeting statutory requirements.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

None

CONCLUSION

This report details how the Council intends to comply with its statutory duties.
Whilst the primary responsibility for managing health and safety risks lies with the
business who creates the risk, health and safety regulators have an important
role in ensuring the effective and proportionate management of risks, supporting

business, protecting their communities and contributing to a wider public health
agenda

56



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The costs of
implementing the service plan are budgeted for within the Housing,
Neighbourhoods and Communities Directorate.

Finance Officer Consulted: Michael Bentley Date: 28/01/20

Legal Implications:

Section 18(4) of the Health & Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 imposes a duty on
every local authority to make adequate arrangements for the enforcement within
their area of the relevant statutory provisions for which they are responsible, and
to perform those duties in accordance with guidance issued by the HSE. The
Health & Safety Service Plan proposed for approval will assist the council in
discharging its Section 18 duties.

Lawyer Consulted: Elizabeth Culbert Date:28/012020

Equalities Implications:

Where business considers that they operate in a lower risk sector and have
been unreasonably subject to a proactive health and safety inspection by an LA
they can complain to the Independent Regulatory Challenge Panel whose
members have the competence and experience to assess regulatory matters.

Sustainability Implications:

Unacceptable risk, fatalities and major injuries would reduce development of the
city, tourism and benefits to local people, in addition to private and family lives.

Any Other Significant Implications:

The service plan protects public health by improving standards in work places
reducing sickness and ill health. The public and visitors to the city are also
protected from accidents and incidents that can lead to injury.

A safe and healthy workforce benefits the local economy and develops the city’s
tourism.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

The reduction in preventative work may lead to an increase in poorly performing
business resulting in more enforcement action,

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications

Proportionate decision making is required by the Council’s Enforcement Policy,
HSE’s Enforcement Policy Statement and Enforcement Management Model

57



Public Health Implications:

7.9 Health and safety at work enforcement complements accident protection work
like road safety and home safety. E.g. the health and safety team work with adult
social care regarding reducing falls in care homes.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:
7.10 Inspectors take a risk-based approach to intervention planning for both local &
national priorities
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Appendices:
1. Health & Safety Service Plan 2020/2021

Background Documents

1.

2.

Health & Safety at Work etc Act 1974

Reducing administrative burdens: Effective inspection and enforcement — Philip
Hampton - March 2005

Health & Safety Executive strategy ‘be part of the solution’
Local Authority Circular (LAC 67/2 (rev7)

Common sense, Common Safety - Professor Ragnar E Lofstedt
October 2010

Lord Young Report - Department of work and pensions. Good Health & Safety,
Good for Everyone March 2011

Local Government Group2 (LGG) and HSE published joint guidance -
“Reducing Proactive Inspections

Reclaiming Health & Safety for all. An Independent review of health & safety
legislation. Professor Ragnar E Lofstedt. November 2011

The LA National Enforcement Code

58



6S

Service Plan 2020-2021

Housing, Neighbourhoods &
Communities

Responsible Officer: | Nick Wilmot, Safer Communities Manager.

- Safer Communities - Health And Safety Team

T

A growing and learning city

A sustainable city

A healthy and caring city

1 A city to call home °
2 A city working for all 6
3 A stronger city

1 To comply with the National Local Authority Enforcement Code

Key Service deliverables

Internal
: . Accountable | /External
Action/deliverable Due Date Lead Officer | partners Measure of Success
involved
Proactive inspection of high risk activities in those 31° March Nick Wilmot HSE Inspection of high risk activities in
sectors specified by HSE or where intelligence 2021 Fire Brigade | those sectors where intelligence
suggests risks are not being effectively managed. Planning suggests that risks are not bei
Building effectively managed.
Control

sledlh

Brighton & Hove
City Council




09

Action/deliverable

Due Date

Accountable
Lead Officer

Internal
/External

partners
involved

Measure of Success

Action/deliverable

To investigate 150 RIDDOR accident notifications.

31 March
2021

Due Date

Nick Wilmot

Accountable
Lead Officer

HSE

Police

Fire Brigade
Planning
Building
Control

Internal
/[External
partners
involved

150 RIDDOR notifications
investigated.

Measure of Success

To investigate 200 complaints of poor working
practices/conditions.

31 March
2021

Nick Wilmot

HSE

Police

Fire Brigade
Planning
Building
Control

200 complaints investigated.

Brighton & Hove
City Council




ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 77
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Official Feed and Food Controls Service Plan
2020/21

Date of Meeting: 17" March 2020

Report of: Interim Executive Director, Neighbourhoods,
Communities & Housing

Contact Officer: Name: Nick Wilmot Tel: 01273 292157

Email:  nick.wilmot@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: (All Wards);

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

11

2.

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT:
To agree the Official Feed and Food Controls Service Plan.
RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the committee agrees the Official Feed and Food Controls Service Plan
2020/2021 set out in the appendix to this report.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Food Standards Agency’s Framework Agreement on Local Authority Food Law
Enforcement requires the production and publication of a service plan. Every local
authority is required to develop an annual food enforcement service plan, which
provides the basis on which local authorities are monitored and audited by the Food
Standards Agency.

To ensure local transparency and accountability, it is a requirement that the Official
Feed and Food Controls Service Plan is submitted to the relevant member forum for
approval.

The attached plan (Appendix A) is an integral part of the organisation of Regulatory
Services.

In accordance with the standard outlined in the Framework Agreement the food
service is a mix of enforcement, intelligence based work, investigation and education.
Key performance targets are completion of 98% of programmed food safety
interventions, 90% of service requests responded to within 5 days and 95% of food
businesses being deemed ‘Broadly Compliant’ ie having a Food Hygiene Rating Score
of 3 out of 5 or better.

In addition, areas of current good practice, and opportunities for further improvement,
have been identified, both in Food Safety and Food Standards, in section 6.3 of the
Service Plan. The targeting of resources to these areas of work aims to provide a
balanced mix of services, which is most likely to benefit the business sector,

61



4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

consumers and other stakeholders. The service will continue to focus enforcement
action on the poorer performing businesses.

ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

The plan and activities detailed within it are legally required to comply with the
Food Law Code of Practice.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

The planning process is governed by the national Food Safety Framework
Agreement and so follows the same format each year. In past years draft plans
have been circulated to the Brighton & Hove Food Partnership, the Brighton &
Hove Citizens panel and Regulatory Services Peer Review.

CONCLUSION

That the committee agrees the Official Feed and Food Controls Service Plan
2020/2021 set out in the appendix to this report.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

The costs associated with implementing and enforcing the proposed Official
Feed and Food Controls Service Plan 2020/21 will be met from within the Food
Safety revenue budget within Safer Communities services. The proposed
2020/21 net budget for the Food Safety service is £0.499m, subject to agreement
by Budget Council on 27" February 2020.

Finance Officer Consulted: Michael Bentley Date: 05/02/20

Leqgal Implications:

The Food Standards Agency places a requirement on local authorities to develop and
submit a service plan. Local authorities are audited and assessed by the Food
Standards Agency on the basis of their food law enforcement service as provided for
in their Service Plans. The Food Safety Act 1990 (Code of Practice) places a
requirement on local authorities to operate an inspection rating scheme, which
determines frequency of intervention of food premises. The Official Feed and Food
Controls Service Plan 2020/21 identifies the planned number of interventions for that
period.

Lawyer consulted: Elizabeth Culbert Date 05/02/2020

Equalities Implications:

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken. See 2.4.6 of appendix 1 for
profile of the ethnicity of food business proprietors where notified during the year
2016/17. The service is mindful of the greater assistance food business operators
require where their first language is not English. Written information, translation and

62



interpreting services are employed where necessary to assist businesses to comply
with regulatory requirements.

Any Other Significant Implications:

Public Health Implications:

7.4  The Food and Feed Service Plan is seen as key to protecting public health in the
City. It is in line with the stated outcome to ‘reduce health inequalities and long
standing public health issues’ as part of the priority of tackling inequalities which
states that ‘we will continue with high profile enforcement of food and health and
safety rules, maintaining our excellent record of environmental health
improvements.’

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:
1. Draft Official Feed and Food Controls Service Plan 2020/2021
Background Documents

1. None

63



64



Brighton & Hove City Council Official Feed and Food Controls Service

Plan 2020/2021

1. Service Aims and Objectives

11

111

1.1.2

1.13

114

1.15

Aims and Objectives

The food service function of Brighton & Hove City Council is enforced
by staff within the Safer Communities Service of the Housing,
Neighbourhoods & Communities Directorate. The Head of Safer
Communities reports to the Executive Director of Housing,
Neighbourhoods & Communities.

The strategic aim of the directorate being to put communities at the
heart of the services. To this end the directorate consolidates
Environmental Health and Trading Standards food enforcement teams
in one service.

The service is primarily concerned with protecting and improving public
health across the city. Within this service food safety officers work to
ensure that food prepared and sold from local establishments is safe.
This is achieved by carrying out a programme of interventions at food
businesses, sampling and responding to service requests. Wherever
practicable links are formed with the business community and all
relevant professional groups with the objective of increasing and
promoting food safety awareness.

The overall objective of the service is to provide a comprehensive food
safety service to benefit consumers and the business community, with
a considered balance between enforcement, investigation, advice and
education.

Trading Standards officers aim to provide a comprehensive range of
enforcement and advisory services to the community within a statutory
framework. Its goal is to contribute, in conjunction with other agencies,
to the development of a safe, fair and equitable trading environment for
all consumers and businesses, by means of advice, information,
education and enforcement.

The core aims being to ensure: -

= Accurate food information for consumers.

» That compositional standard of food is maintained.

= Prevent food fraud

= That food and feed are free from unsafe contaminants

The objectives being: -

= To carry out risk-based and intelligence led activities;

» To undertake screen testing and food sampling to reflect identified
areas of concern;

65



1.2

121

1.2.2

123

= To respond appropriately to food complaints and initiate
proportionate action;

» Respond to trader requests in a timely manner; and

» To educate the public on compositional and labelling issues to
improve eating habits.

Links to Corporate Objectives and Plans

Brighton & Hove City Council’s Draft Corporate Plan 2020-23 ‘A Fairer
City, A Sustainable Future’ identifies six outcomes:

= Acity to call home;

= A city working for all;

= A stronger city;

= A growing and learning city;

= A sustainable city; and

= A healthy and caring city.

The food safety and standards service has particularly strong links with;
a city working for all through the assistance and support given to
small businesses; a stronger city based on fair engagement with all
businesses, residents and visitors and; a healthy and caring city from
the core aim of protecting public health.

The service continually monitors business opinion through satisfaction
surveys. The findings help to ensure that the service meets the
requirements of local businesses, residents and visitors and provides a
service the city deserves.

2. Background

2.1

211

2.1.2

2.1.3

Profile of the Local Authority

Brighton & Hove is a unitary authority on the south coast of England. It
is approximately 50 miles from London. It is bounded by the English
Channel to the south and the South Downs to the north, it covers an
eight-mile stretch of seafront and extends inland for approximately five
miles.

Demographic information reported in the Corporate Plan gives a
population of 290,395 (2017). One in five residents, or 19.5%, are from
a Black or Minority Ethnic groups and the population profile is younger
than the national with 62% being 20 to 59 years old against the
average across England of 53%.

Tourism plays a major part in the local economy supporting over
21,000 jobs in the area.

66



2.2

221

2.3

231

2.3.2

2.3.3

234

Organisational Structure

Brighton & Hove City Council is a unitary authority that operates a
committee system model. Responsibility for the food safety and
standards services is delegated to the Environment Transport &
Sustainability Committee.

Scope of the Feed and Food Service

A specialist Food Safety Team within Environmental Health carries out

the food safety function. The work of the team includes:-

» Inspecting food premises:-

» The investigation of food safety complaints;

» Food poisoning investigations when linked to a premises;

* [Investigating infectious disease notifications;

= Microbiological food sampling;

* Food safety training;

= Responding to requests for advice;

» [nitiatives relating to working with the community and businesses;

» Taking appropriate steps to publicise and act upon national food
alerts;

» Publicising the food hygiene standards of local businesses;

* Promoting healthy catering initiatives within local food businesses.

The food standards and feed hygiene functions are carried out by
competent Trading Standards Food and Feed Officers. The work of the
team includes the following: -

» Risk based enforcement activity — including inspections

= Complaint investigation;

» Food analysis and investigation;

= Service Requests from businesses;

» Education programmes;

» Reacting to Food Alerts.

= Sampling

Food Standards and Feed Hygiene work is undertaken in conjunction
with work on other areas of Trading Standards law. For instance, a
programmed food visit will also include inspecting and giving advice
about other matters such as product safety, counterfeit, age restricted
products, prices, business names and weights and measures. In this
way, a comprehensive visit is under taken, so as to minimise any
inconvenience caused to the general day-to-day running of the
business.

Both Trading Standards and Environmental Heath officers have
responsibility for enforcing relevant legislation in respect of imported
products of animal origin and non-animal origin. The food safety team
deal with microbiological issues and Trading Standards, compositional
standards and also contaminants which includes mycotoxins and

67



2.4

24.1

24.2

243

244

245

chemicals. Trading Standards have responsibility for the enforcement
of regulations pertaining to allergen information relating to food.

Demands on the Feed and Food Service

Food Safety

As at January 2020 there were 3229 food businesses registered.
These premises are broken down into the following profile:

6 Primary Producers
41 Manufacturers/Processors
7 Packers
8 Importers/Exporters
33 Distributors/Transporters
598 Retailers
2533 Restaurants and other Caterers
3 Manufacturers Selling Mainly by Retail
3229 TOTAL

Four food businesses are approved under Regulation (EC) 853/2004
for specific dairy, fish and meat products processing.

The nature of the city results in a considerable seasonal variation in the
department’s workload. Some businesses only open during spring,
summer or school holidays. The intervention programme has to be
tailored to meet these service needs. There is a dramatic increase in
the number of visitors in the spring and summer, this increases the
volume of requests for service, enquiries and other reactive work.
Outdoor events such as music events, festivals, specialist markets,
farmers’ markets, open-air concerts and funfairs also add to the
seasonality of the workload.

Premises data is captured on the Uniform database and therefore the
premises profile is similar to the LGR scheme. However, the risks for
Trading Standards matters differ to those for the Food Safety function
with individual premises having different inspection frequency. As of
January 2020, 3312 premises were considered to have an ‘inspectable
risk’ for Food Standards work. It has been noted that there is a high
turnover of new premises requiring food standards advice.

At the time of preparing this plan the effect of BREXIT on the service
and local food business are not fully known. Impacts will depend on the
level of divergence from the EU legislative framework and the terms
agreed between the EU and UK.

68



2.4.6

m 16.1% Any other White background

® 0.7% Asian or Asian British - Indian

Access to services

Up to January 2017 businesses were requested to compete feedback
questionnaires following inspections. The questionnaires request
information on the ethnic origins of the business owners. The last data
available being for the eleven months to January 2017 58.7% of those
who gave an answer identified themselves as White British. The
ethnicity of the remaining businesses identified as below.

Ethnicity of Food Businesses Where Notified
2016/2017

o

= 3.5% Asian or Asian British - Bangladeshi

= 6.3% Any other Asian Background - Chinese = 4.9% Any other Asian Background

= 1.4% Mixed - Asian & White

= 0.7% Mixed - Black African & White

0.7% Mixed - Black Caribbean & White = 2.1% Any other mixed background

1 2.8% Arab 1.4% Any other ethnic group

2.4.7

2.4.8

In addition to having a number of key food safety advice leaflets in a
variety of languages, the service has the capacity to have any leaflet,
letter or other document translated as required. Wherever possible,
opportunities are taken to provide information about services to ethnic
communities. Where necessary, interpreters accompany officers on
planned interventions.

Access to the service is provided by:

" Visiting either the Brighton or Hove Customer Services Centre,
open hours 9:00am to 4:30pm weekdays;

" Self-help points across the city including all the main council
offices, libraries, leisure centres and some schools;

" General telephone calls to the Call Contact Centre on (01273)
292161;

. Advice can also be accessed via the council's website,
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk;

" Email to ehl.food@brighton-hove.gov.uk.

69

m 0.7% Asian or Asian British - Pakistani


http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/
mailto:ehl.food@brighton-hove.gov.uk

2.4.9 Food Standards complaints are usually received by Citizens Advice
Consumer Service. There is a referral protocol regarding food issues
requiring enquiries to be sent to Trading Standards within 24 hours.
Complaints and referrals are also received via the food safety team.

2.4.10 The food safety team operates an advice line during office hours where
businesses and consumers can obtain immediate advice from a food
safety officer. Senior food competent staff provide cover for an out of
hour’s service to respond to food safety emergencies and incidents.

2.4.11 New food businesses registering with the service are provided with
access to a wide range of online documents, hard copies can be
provided on request to assist compliance with food legislation.

2.5 Regulation Policy

2.5.1 The Council has a Corporate Enforcement Policy in line with the
national Regulators Compliance Code for Enforcers and is published
on the Council’s website. The enforcement policy is grounded in better
regulation principles of proportionality, accountability, consistency,
transparency and targeting.

2.5.2 Any breaches of food law noted in businesses where Brighton & Hove
City Council has an interest, either as proprietor or responsibility for
structural repair, are brought to the attention of the Chief Executive
without delay.

3 Service Delivery

3.1 Interventions at Food and Feedingstuffs Establishments

Food Safety

3.1.1 The Food Safety Team undertakes the planned food safety intervention
programme. The level of achievement in food safety intervention based
activity over the past four years is shown in the chart below and Table
3.1.1 along with estimates for completion of the current year and
2020/2021.

3.1.2 Inspection intervals are calculated on a risk-based approach. The
service has a key performance indicator of achieving 98% compliance
with the annual programme. The target takes account of possible
service or operational problems such as a turnover of staff at the end of
the year, emergencies or difficulties contacting home caterers.

70



Chart of Intervention-Based Activity 2015-2021

1200

1000 -

800

600 -
400
200 -

Programmed Programmed Secondary Visits New/Change of

Interventions Interventions Ownership
Accounted for

m2015/116 B@2016/17 @2017/18 0O2018/19 B2019/20est 2020/21est

See tables 3.1.1 and 3.1.3 for further details.

Year 15/16 16/17 17/18 | 18/19 19/20 20/21est
Programmed 1116 1008 1079 1004 1058 939
Interventions

Accounted for 1113 1004 1077 1001

Target % 98 A-D 98 A-D 98 A-D 98 A-D 98 A-D 98 A-D
Achieved% 99.7% 99.6% 99.8% 99.7%

Table 3.1.1 Achievement of Planned Food Safety Inspection/Intervention Programme 2015-21.

3.1.3

3.14

3.1.5

The national Food Safety Code of Practice contains a mechanism for
risk rating each businesses based on factors such as: if unwrapped
high risk-food is handled, prepared or cooked; size of the business; any
high-risk operations undertaken; number of customers; vulnerability of
the customers to food-borne iliness; standards of hygiene; condition of
the structure and confidence in management. Scoring all of these
factors gives an overall risk rating of A to E. Category A premises are
the highest risk and E the lowest.

Category E businesses present a minimal risk due to the limited types
of food they handle and/or they cater for a limited number of people.
The service operates an alternative enforcement strategy to maintain
surveillance of these low risk businesses. This strategy enables the
service to provide greater focus on higher risk category A to D
establishments. Data on the number of interventions undertaken since
2015 and estimates for 2019/20 and 2020/21 can be seen in table
3.1.2.

The alternative surveillance of low-risk businesses follows a structured
documented procedure: postal questionnaires, sample inspections to
check the validity of the information gained and follow up inspections.

Year

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20est | 20/21est

Questionnaires 255 132 133 39 200 250

Visit

40 2 49 2 30 40

Table 3.1.2.Premises dealt with under alternative strategy or inspected.

71




3.1.6 Planned food safety interventions programme for the year 2020/2021 as
estimated at 1% January 2020 being:-

Risk Category of Premises Number of Interventions Due
A 2
B 71
C 322
D 544
Total 939
Low-risk premises due for intervention 272

3.1.7 A further target is to ensure that at least 95% of food establishments
are ‘broadly compliant’, with a Food Hygiene Rating Score (FHRS) of
three or more.

3.1.8 As at January 2020 the level of broadly compliant establishments rated
in the FHRS scheme stood at 97%. This is in line with the average
across all English Unitary Authorities.

3.1.9 Secondary Interventions - The main purpose of secondary
interventions is to monitor food businesses that fail to comply with
significant statutory food safety requirements, or where directly
required by Regulation. Failure could include:-

» Failure to comply with a single requirement that compromises food
safety, public health or prejudices consumers;

» Failure to comply with a number of requirements that, taken
together, indicate ineffective management; or

= Service of a Hygiene Emergency Prohibition Notice or Order.

3.1.10 When considering both the need for and timing of a secondary
intervention, consideration is given to the seriousness of any failing,
history of the business, confidence in management and the likely
effectiveness of this action when compared to any other enforcement
option.

3.1.11 Safeguard measures associated with the FHRS permits any food
business that does not attain the top rating to request a rescore once
any necessary issues have been resolved. Any revisit is unannounced.

3.1.12In late 2016 the service introduced a charge for those businesses who
requested a rescore visit. From the introduction of the charging scheme
to December 2019 152 businesses pursued this option.

3.1.13 Other secondary interventions are categorised as those that are not
primary interventions but include:-
= Additional interventions of establishments that are subject to
product-specific food hygiene regulations;
=  Sampling visits;
= Visits to check on the progress of measures required after a
previous intervention;

72



= Visits to investigate food and food premises complaints;

» Visits to discuss implementation of Hazard Analysis of Ciritical
Control Points based system;

= Visits involving training of food handlers;

* Inspections of premises to assess a licence.

3.1.14 Interventions at New Businesses/Change of Ownership - Where
the service becomes aware that ownership of a food business has
changed or a new business has commenced, it aims to undertake an
intervention within 28 days of the business starting trading.

3.1.15 The purpose of the intervention is to establish the scope of the
business, gather and record information, determine if food sampling or
swabbing is necessary, identify food safety breaches, determine
relevant enforcement action to be taken by the food service,
communicate this to the business and determine a risk rating score.
Based on the last five years’ data, it is predicted that there will be 420
new businesses or changes of ownership in 2020/2021.

3.1.16 Monitoring of Vacant Premises — The service aims to inspect all new
food businesses within 28 days of opening. Food safety law does not
require prior approval.

Year 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20est 20/21est
Secondary inspections 647 654 580 416 438 410
New Premises or 450 467 435 391 450 420
Change in Ownership

Table 3.1.3 Estimate for 2019/2020 and 2020/21 based on data since 2015.

3.1.171t is estimated that the number of staff required to carry out the
programme of inspections plus other visits is 6.4 full time equivalents.
Resources required to undertake secondary visits generated by
complaints, enquiries or to undertake sampling are included in the
appropriate part of this plan.

Food Standards and Feed Hygiene

3.1.18 The LGR system requires high-risk premises to be visited each year,
medium risk every two years and the low risk every five years. This
means that all 421 high risk, 50% of the 1080 medium risk and 20% of
the 1811 low risk premises should be visited each year. The service
was proposing to move to the FSA risk rating scheme at the start of
2018/19, but due to IT problems with the service provider, this was not
possible; due to the FSA’s Regulating Our Future programme, there
will be a major change to the risk rating of Food Premises; whilst these
changes are not expected until 2022/23, a decision has been made not
to move to the current FSA system; in addition the Service has applied
to join the pilot of the new risk rating scheme scheduled to start April
2020, the decision as to whether we will be participating in the pilot is
currently awaited.

73




3.1.19 The target for 2019-20 was to visit 421 high-risk and 458 medium risk
premises liable to inspection. Due to work undertaken on compliance
with allergen information, the risk profile of a number of premises have
changed to high or medium instead of low risk. Due to the additional
work required to ensure compliance with allergen information in poorly
performing businesses, the target for 2020-21 is to visit 100% of High
Risk premises and 33% of Medium Risk premises, with priority given to
Medium Risk premises with poor allergen compliance.

3.1.20 There is no commitment to visit low risk premises but in 2019-20, 246
low risk premises were visited up to 24th Jan 2020, as a result of
project work, referrals, complaints and other routine inspections.

3.1.21 Approximately 5% of inspections require a follow-up visit. Officers do
not work exclusively on the food function. Follow up visits will be made
to all premises when a non-compliance is detected and formal action is
contemplated.

3.1.22 One full time and one part time posts make up the Food Standards
Team. This equates to 1.6 FTE. About 95% of their time is spent on
the food and feed function.

3.1.23 New Businesses — Trading Standards Officers aim to assess new
food businesses within 56 days.

3.1.24 High Risk Premises - Premises with good management control, no
history of contraventions or complaints will be subject to a minimum
intervention approach and will only be inspected if they change their
product range or complaints are received.

3.1.25 Poorer performing High Risk Premises -These premises will be
inspected every year but may be the subject of additional interventions
depending on their compliance. Poor compliance with allergen
information with the corresponding risk to the safety of food is a
continuing threat.

3.1.26 Medium Risk Premises -These premises will receive an intervention
at three yearly intervals. These interventions will alternate between
comprehensive inspections, and a mix of sampling visits, complaint
visits or other monitoring or surveillance. At least 33% of the premises
liable to an inspection will be subject to a comprehensive visit. Where
medium risk rated premises have a Primary authority relationship with
a local TS service, or if they are part of a national or regional chain,
these premises will be re rated to low risk. This will allow officers more
time to support independent and new businesses, together with those
businesses with a history of poor compliance.

3.1.27 Low Risk Premises - A programme of interventions will be based on

the intelligence received about the individual premises or where the
business requests support/advice.

74



3.1.28 Feed Hygiene — The service participates in the National Trading
Standards feed programme. We will undertake inspections of premises
identified by the national team as requiring a visit. This equates to
approximately 12 visits per annum.

3.2

Feed and Food Complaints

Food Safety

3.2.1 It is the policy of this authority to respond promptly to all requests for
advice from business. It is the target of the service to respond to 90%
of planning application consultations within 10 working days, and all
other demand driven work within 5 days.

Year

14/15

15/16

16/17

17/18

18/19

Within target %

96.8

97.2

96.6

97.1

94

Table 3.2 Percentage of Demand Driven Work within Target Response Time

3.2.2 All food complaints received are investigated in accordance with the
council’'s Enforcement Policy and documented procedures. See below
for a chart showing the pattern of demand driven work since April 2015
and estimates for the current year and 2020/2021. The source figures
for this chart are contained in tables within the relevant part of the plan.

Year 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20est 20/21est
Food Complaints 14 11 10 14 6 10
Condition of Premises 406 440 461 429 450 420

Table 3.2.1 Estimate of complaints for current year and 2020/2021 based on data from 2015 onwards.

Chart of Demand Driven Work 2015-2021

m2015/16 @2016/17 m2017/18 0O2018/19 m2019/20est m2020/21est

See tables 3.2.1, 3.4.1, 3.5.0, 3.5.1 and 3.8 for the source of data.

3.2.3 ltis estimated that 1.8 Full Time Equivalent officers will be required to
meet this level of service requests.

75



Food Standards

3.24 It is the policy of this authority to respond promptly to all food
complaints and to carry out enquiries in accordance with the complaints
procedure. The following figures show a final estimate for 2018/19 as
the report is generated before the end of the calculated year.

Year 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 est
Number of 133 125 130 125 152
Complaints

3.3 Home Authority Principle and Primary Authority Principle

3.3.1 Brighton & Hove City Council fully supports the Home Authority
principle, and has entered into 8 informal arrangements with
businesses whose operational activity extends outside of the city.
Currently there are no primary authority partnerships in the city.

3.4 Advice to Businesses

Food Safety

3.4.1 Advice is given during inspections, by hotline, website and an e-
newsletter. Group emails can also be sent from the food establishment
database to over 2000 businesses who have supplied email addresses.

3.4.2 Table 3.4.1 gives the number of planning applications viewed by food
safety officers and the number of requests for advice from businesses.
Such focussed guidance includes advice on the construction,
development and structural alterations to food establishments.

Year 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20est 20/21est
No of Requests 125 128 119 160 150 160
Planning Applications 7 31 45 17 12 10

Table3.4.1 Requests received since 2015 and estimates for the current year and 2020/2021

3.4.3 It is estimated that 0.5 Full Time Equivalent Officer is required to meet
this estimated demand.

Food Standards

3.4.4 The level of requests for advice has remained reasonably consistent
over several years. The following figures show an estimate for 2019/20
as the report is generated before the end of the calculated year. There
has been an increase in requests following an improved system of
referrals for business advice on allergens via the Food Safety Team.

Level of Service Requests

Year 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 est
No of 190 146 150 136 150
Requests

76




3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

Feed and Food Sampling

Food Safety

A formal arrangement is in place with Public Health England’s (PHE)
Food Water & Environment laboratory based at Porton Down for the
analysis of samples that require microbiological examination.

The service participates in national microbiological sampling initiatives
coordinated PHE and regional sampling programmes across
Hampshire, Kent, Surrey and Sussex. Samples of food and swabs of
food-contact surfaces may also taken as part of routine work and when
investigating specific issues at food premises.

The three national food sampling programmes for 2019/2020 were:-

Study 66 - Frozen fruit and vegetables from retail and catering
premises. This study was undertaken in the spring of 2019 with the
aim of providing microbiological quality data on frozen fruit and
vegetables from retail and catering premises, with a focus on Listeria.
All samples collected across the city were satisfactory.

Study 67 - Vacuum/Modified atmosphere packed ready to eat
(RTE) food. The study aims to provide microbiological quality data on
RTE vacuum packed foods and the hygiene of vacuum packing
machines. Of the 22 samples reported at the time of preparing this plan
all but 4 were satisfactory. Where unsatisfactory results were obtained
corrective action has been agreed.

Study 68 - Raw milk cheeses. The study aims to ascertain
microbiological safety and quality for raw milk cheese at retail sale, with
particular emphasis on a particular form of E.Coli. All of the 6 samples
reported so far as part of this study were satisfactory.

Year 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20est 20/21est

No. of samples 6 3 9 19 20 20

Table 3.5.0 Food Safety Sampling visits 2015-2019 & estimate for the current year and 2020/2021.

3.55

3.5.6

3.5.7

Food standards

The Public Analyst contract was awarded to Kent Scientific Services in
2017. For the year 2019/20 a budget allocation of £5,000 was made for
sampling analysis. It is envisaged that a similar amount will be
allocated for 2020/21. The focus of the contract remains composition,
allergens labelling and chemical contamination. .

Inspections, investigations and advice for 2019/20 equated to
approximately 1.6FTE.

In 2017 the FSA withdrew all funding for National and Regional
Sampling. Sampling programmes locally have therefore been based on

77




TSSE regional programmes. In 2017/18 some funding for sampling
was provided via TSSE in order for local authorities to participate in
Regional Sampling programmes; this funding has continued and it is
anticipated that this funding may continue in 2020/21. It is intended that
in 2020/21 further sampling will be undertaken locally focusing on meat
species and also sampling for allergens; it is anticipated that this will tie
in with TSSE led projects.

Food Sampling Work undertaken in 2019/20

PROJECT

Wine and Spirit sampling

Meat species

Allergens including Gluten Free *

Complaints and investigations

* Denotes TSSE led project

3.5.8 The FSA has withdrawn all funding for National initiatives. The cost for
the regional and local projects will be set to allow for contingencies,
such as complaints and reacting to food alerts. It is understood that the
FSA as part of the Regulating Our Future programme of work will be
providing some funding for intelligence led risk based food sampling at
some point in 2020/21; it is currently unknown whether this will be
administered regionally or if Local Authorities will have to bid for
funding.

3.5.9 During 2019/20 Trading standards have also carried out work funded
by the FSA via NTSB (National Trading Standards Board) on animal
feed which ties in to the Official Feed and Food Controls. This work will
be funded again in 2020/21 but funding is likely to be reduced.

3.5.10 New regulations governing the labelling of food and whether they
contain allergens, came into force in 2014. Officers have undertaken
work to inform and educate businesses of their obligations under these
regulations; compliance with the requirement to provide allergen
information still remains an issue and therefore this work will continue
in 2020/21 prioritising advice and support to small independent traders.
In addition new labelling requirements will come into force in October
2021 for pre-packed for direct sale foods and amended labelling will
also be required as a result of EU Exit.

3.5.11 Control and Investigation of Outbreaks and Food-related
Infectious Disease - Specific infectious diseases are notifiable to the
local authority. The department investigates these cases in an attempt
to identify the cause of illness and any practical measures to control
potential outbreaks. See below for the number of cases investigated
from 2015 to 2019 and an estimate of the numbers expected for the
current year and 2020/2021. Investigations of outbreaks must

78




commence as soon as practical. In individual notifications, the
investigation has to commence within 5 days. It is estimated that 0.3
FTE officer will be required to meet this level of complaints.

Year

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20est 20/21est

No. of reports

485 494 485 521 480 490

Table 3.5.1 Notifications for 2019/2020 & 2020/2021 based on data from 2015 onwards.

3.5.12 The number of notifications included in table 3.5.1 has been corrected

to discount those illnesses not associated with food such as mumps,
measles and hepatitis.

Year 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20est | 20/21est
Campylobacter 267 253 294 313 300 290
Salmonella 20 24 19 27 20 20

Table 3.5.2 Estimate of Number of specific notifications for 2018/2019 & 2019/2020

3.5.13 Food-borne iliness can be contracted as a result of a number of

3.6

3.6.1

3.6.2

3.6.3

3.6.4

3.7

3.7.1

reasons including poor food handling in the home or foreign travel.
Usually it is therefore difficult to attribute any increase or reduction to
one source.

Feed/Food Safety Incidents

An out of hours emergency service is staffed by senior staff who are
suitably authorised to carry out the full range of food safety functions
including responding to emergency food safety incidents.

Information regarding national food safety alerts, such as product
recalls from the FSA, is received during office hours via the national
alert system.

The Food Safety team manager and senior staff are registered on the
rapid alert system to receive food alerts through a text message
scheme direct to their mobile phones. The information contained in the
food incidents is distributed and acted if required.

Introduction of the Smarter Communication platform by the FSA means
that all food officers receive food hazard alerts by email. As the majority
of these concern food allergy alerts and are for information only from
2020 only those requiring action will be reported.

Liaison with Other Organisations
Food Safety
There are a number of arrangements in place with other professions

and local authorities to promote consistency, provide joint projects and
develop services: -

79



3.7.2

3.8

3.8.1

» The Food Safety team sends a representative to Sussex Food
Liaison Group which develops common approaches to regulation
across Sussex.

= An Environmental Health Officer attends the Chartered Institute of
Environmental Health’s Sussex Food Study Group which develops
joint procedures and practices.

» An officer attends the regular liaison meetings with Children’s
Services and school caterers.

* Public Health England’s local Community Consultant in Disease
Control reviews procedures and agrees communicable disease
outbreak and food poisoning control measures across the south east
of England.

* The authority is a member of the Brighton & Hove Food Partnership.
The partnership includes representatives from local businesses and
community groups, community workers and members of the
Sustainability Commission. The Partnership raises awareness of food
producers in supporting health, the economy and the environment
increasing access to nutritious, safe, affordable food and providing a
network for information exchange.

= A liaison arrangement is in place with Sussex Career Services and
local schools to enable teachers and students from Brighton & Hove
to gain work experience.

This work is accounted for in the reactive work estimate of resources
required.

Food Standards

The team works closely with 19 other Trading Standards Services in
the southeast that together make up Trading Standards South East
(TSSE). Activities include liaison on all trading standards issues, co-
ordinated activities, sampling and advice projects and sharing of
information via the TSSE intranet. As well, officers use the national
knowledge hub, which allows access to trading standards services
nationally. The team also work directly with the FSA and receive food
alerts, which identify problem products which we can move quickly to
remove from the food chain at a local level. Officers also use this forum
to receive advice and intelligence regarding the feed function. In
2019/20 the Food Standards Team have also participated in a National
Food Crime Unit project and have provided advice and assistance to
the Early Years and Child Care Team as well as the Families, Children
and Learning on allergen information and the provision of allergy free
foods.

Feed and Food Safety and Standards Promotional Work, and Other
Non-Official Controls Interventions

The city Health and Wellbeing Board’s strategy focuses on priority
areas where it can make the greatest impact. This strategy includes
promotion of healthy weight and good nutrition. A project officer works

80



3.8.2

3.8.3

3.8.4

3.8.5

3.8.6

3.8.7

3.8.8

within the Food Safety Team to develop and co-ordinate a number of
programmes in line with this strategy.

The city’s Healthy Choice Award is one such programme. The award
prioritises the preparation of meals using fresh healthier ingredients
and cooking methods. As at January 2020 127 food outlets have
gained the award with a further 12 working towards accreditation.

Two school catering cookery events with families took place in 2019
with Healthy Choice Awards caterers demonstrating easy healthy and
budget friendly meals to parents. Further work to increase vegetable
consumption in schools is planned for 2020.

Another programme supports the Sugar Smart City campaign. This
aims to motivate settings such as schools, food outlets and retailers to
take action and help residents reduce their sugar intake. Food outlets
being asked to make ‘Sugar Smart Commitments’ such as to promote
free tap water for customers, offer a range of low and no sugar soft
drinks, or to develop lower sugar dessert or children’s menu options.

Between September 2015 and November 2019 several healthier
catering workshops have been staged for food outlets. Topics including
healthier cooking techniques, cooking oil maintenance and general
good practices, types of oils and their properties, allergy and health,
financial and environmental implications. 164 chefs, managers, front of
house staff and business owners have attended these sessions.

A further programme supports national healthy eating campaigns such
as Peas Please and Veg Power which encourages producers,
suppliers, retailers and other actors across the food supply chain and
schools to make it easier for everyone to eat more vegetables. This
project initiated a partnership research project with the retailer Lidl and
the University of Brighton.

In 2017 Brighton and Hove pledged to become a pioneer Veg City,
running catering workshops to increase vegetables in meals for public
and private caterers. During 2019/20, in partnership with the Brighton
and Hove Food Partnership a series workshops across different
settings such as early years, secondary schools and food outlets were
delivered as a cookery competition. Caterers were asked to create an
innovative grab-and-go meal that was packed with vegetables. The
winning recipe is to be championed and trialled in various secondary
schools across the city early 2020 and shared with local and national
networks.

The food safety training activity by number of people trained on the
CIEH Level 2 Award Food Safety in Catering course is given below in
table 3.8. This is a full day course aimed at food handlers. The service
offers seven courses a year.

81



Year 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19est | 2019/20est | 2020/21est

Trained 187 100 119 103 110 112

Table 3.8 Total Training Undertaken since 2015

3.8.9 The service took part in a citywide healthy schools event staffing an
interactive stand to promote food safety to pupils and their teachers. A
Christmas Food Safety Quiz for parents of young children was also
organised at one of the council’s Children’s Centres

3.8.10 It is estimated that this promotional work will be covered within
resources plus the addition of a fulltime project officer to manage and
co-ordinate food nutrition work.

4. Resources
4.1 Financial Allocation

Food Safety

4.1.1 The food safety service net revenue budget for 2019/20 is £522,970.
The proposed net budget for 2020/21 is £498,860, subject to
agreement by Budget Council on 27" February 2020.

Food Standards

4.1.2 1t is difficult to detail the time spent on the food standards function as it
is carried out during a comprehensive inspection. Time monitoring is
not currently used to apportion time to the food function. Cost of the
food standards function in 2019/20 was as follows based on the
percentage of time officers spend on the food function outlined above
and below:

Staffing Inspection, complaints and advice

Management/Support £ 7,000
Food Team £70,000
Total £77,000
Purchases £ 500
Analysis £ 4,500
Total £ 5,000
Total £ 87,000

82



4.1 Staffing Allocation

Food Safety

4.2.1 The 2019/2020 Establishment for the Food Safety Team is as below

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

and equates to nine full time equivalent enforcement officers plus two
administrative support staff, management and Food Nutrition Project
Officer broken down as below:

0.25 x Regulatory Services Manager

2 x Senior Environmental Health Officers

2.8 x Environmental Health Officers

4.2 x Senior Technical Officers

1.68 x Technical Support Officers

1 x Food Nutrition Project Officer

As detailed in 3.1.16, 3.2.3, 3.4.3, 3.5.11 and 3.8.10 of this plan it is
estimated that 9 full time equivalents are required to fulfil the given
objectives plus management. This is in-line with the allocated
resources.

In addition to the food safety responsibilities from 2018 onwards the
Senior EHO'’s of the Food Safety Team took on additional management
and supervisory duties and the team became responsible for the health
& safety enforcement function. See 6.1.6.

Food Standards

The proportion of time allocated to this function in 2019/20 was
estimated as follows:-

Support 0.05

Management 0.05

Food Staff 1.6

Total 1.7 FTE

4.2 Staff Development Plan

4.3.1

4.3.2

The Authority has a structured appraisal and development system.
During staff appraisals, individual training needs and any gaps in
competence are identified. The information is used to produce
individual training and development plans for each officer for the
coming year.

All food safety field officers hold relevant qualifications to comply with
the requirements of the Food Safety Code of Practice. In addition to the
annual appraisal system ongoing professional development is
monitored and managed through officer self-assessment, management
monitoring, regular 1-2-1’s and the quality assurance system detailed in
5.1.1 below.

83



5.0

5.1

5.1.1

Quality Assessment

Quality Assessment and Internal Monitoring

Food Safety

The service has a documented procedure relating to food safety duties.
Internal audits are carried out to ensure compliance with these
procedures. Staff performance is reviewed, monitored and managed
through the appraisal system, monthly 1-2-1 and review by the
departmental management team.

Food Standards

5.1.2

5.1.3

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

We aim to continually improve the level of service provided.
Procedures are implemented and reviewed where necessary to
incorporate identified improvements.

All food standards and feed hygiene officers hold relevant qualifications
to comply with the requirements of the Food and Feed Codes of
Practice. In addition to the annual appraisal system ongoing
professional development is monitored and managed through officer
self-assessment, management monitoring, and regular 1-2-1's to
ensure that they maintain their competency under the Codes.

Review

Review Against the Service Plan.

Food Safety

In addition to the quality checks detailed in 5.1, performance is
reviewed against the service plan by comparing the number of
interventions achieved against the number programmed. Monthly
statistical reports are produced so that performance can be closely
monitored and managed through the year. Any problems are promptly
identified and resolved through management reviews, team meetings
and monthly one to ones between field staff and their line manager.

Official Feed and Food Controls Service Plans are produced and
reviewed on an annual basis by management review and consideration
by elected members through the committee structure and Full Council.

In the year 2018/2019, 99.7% of the due food safety interventions were
accounted for. This included interventions carried out and businesses
that ceased trading before they could receive their planned
intervention. 391 interventions were undertaken of new businesses or
premises that had changed ownership.

84



6.1.4

6.1.5

6.1.6

6.1.6

6.1.7

6.1.8

6.1.9

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

At January 2020, 97% of the food businesses in the city were deemed
to be ‘broadly compliant’, ie a FHRS of three or better.

From April 2018 to March 2019 one business was prosecuted for food
hygiene offences, 11 food establishments were subject to formal
enforcement actions by way of Hygiene Improvement Notices and 1017
were written to following inspections regarding non-compliances.

During 2019/20 as a result of a mixture of one member of staff being
seconded to support another team, a period of extended up-paid leave
for one officer and additional service pressures from the Health &
Safety enforcement function it was necessary to source additional
support from outside of the team to deliver the service.

Food Standards

Service reviews are carried out on a monthly basis to check that the
inspection programme is on target and to ensure that projects are
being completed in the agreed timescale.

The Service Reviews indicate that the service is on target to achieve
the interventions programme.

During staff one-to-one’s each officer’s performance is monitored, to
identify good performance and any areas of improvement.

Complaints are responded to within the stated timescales.

Identification of Any Variation from the Service Plan

Food Safety

The numbers of requests for re-score visits under the Food Hygiene
Rating scheme has increased such that it is now estimated that 70
such requests will be received during 2019/20 against 35 this time last
year. This is due to online takeaway delivery platforms requirement that
business are deemed at least broadly compliant before they are
permitted to sign up to the service.

The number of new businesses registrations has increased over the
year such that it is now estimated that 450 new businesses will be
inspected during the course of 2019/20 against an original estimate of
380. It is though that this is due to an above average churn of
businesses ownerships as a result of more challenging trading
conditions.

Food Standards

There was no significant variation from the plan.

85



6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

Areas of Improvement

Food Safety

As a result of publishing the food safety standards through FHRS
general food hygiene standards are continuing to improve year on year.
Table 6.3 demonstrates the improvement which has been built on from
2013.

FHRS January 2013 January 2020
rating

0 3 2

1 113 38

2 92 33

3 265 194

4 589 549

5 1377 1887
Total 2624 2703

Table 6.3. Number of food businesses in each FHRS Comparing 2013 and 2020
Ratings

The number of Broadly Compliant businesses has continued to
increase and currently stands at 97% of all food business.

Food Standards

Advancements have been made in the delivery of food law
enforcement. There are many examples of joined up working and co-
operation where co-ordinated sampling programmes and officer
training feature highly. However, there are still areas for improvement.
They are as follows:

= Targeting beer, wines and spirits misdiscription and traceability, this

work links in with the Licensing Authority function and Alcohol Project
Board.

= Improvements in the provision of accurate allergen information by

catering businesses.

= Increasing and maintaining the competency and professional

development of food officers.

= Establishing consumer concerns and reflecting this in local activity.
= |mproving our data records and risk rating
» Improving the referral system between the Food Standards and Food

Safety Teams to identify and support poorly performing businesses
on the provision of allergen information.

= Providing support and assistance to independent SMEs (Small and

Medium Enterprises)

= Targeting Food Fraud

86



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 78
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Graffiti Reduction Strategy — outcomes of
consultation

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2020

Report of: Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture

Contact Officer: Name: Saoirse Roche Tel: 01273 294739

Email:  Saoirse.roche@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

In recognition of the scale of graffiti within Brighton & Hove, the Environment,
Transport & Sustainability Committee approved a Graffiti Reduction Strategy in
November 2018.

To support delivery of the Strategy, it was agreed that a public consultation would
take place with businesses, Statutory Undertakers® and private property owners
in relation to a new enforcement process requiring property owners to remove
graffiti within an agreed timeframe. Committee also agreed for officers to explore
the feasibility of creating a chargeable graffiti removal service to owners of
private and commercial buildings. It was agreed both would be brought back to
Committee for approval on how to proceed.

This report details the outcomes of the consultation, making recommendations
based on the results.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Committee:

Note the outcomes of the consultation at Appendix 1.

Authorise Cityclean to use Community Protection Warnings and Community
Protection Notices in relation to graffiti removal from Statutory Undertakers’
property within Brighton & Hove as detailed at Appendix 2.

Authorise Cityclean to use Community Protection Warnings and Community

Protection Notices in relation to graffiti removal from large businesses (250
employees or more) within Brighton & Hove as detailed at Appendix 3.

! Statutory Undertaker is a legal term used to describe organisations or agencies who have legal rights
and obligations to carry out development and infrastructure work. Typically, they are utilities and telecoms
companies: those who deal with water, gas, electricity, railways etc.

87



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Authorise Cityclean to use Community Protection Warnings and Community
Protection Notices in relation to graffiti removal from small to medium sized
enterprises (less than 250 employees) within Brighton & Hove as detailed at
Appendix 4.

Agree not to introduce a graffiti enforcement approach for homeowners.

Approves the creation of a chargeable graffiti removal service, funded through
Service Level Agreements using a tiered pricing structure.

Authorise Environmental Enforcement Officers to issue Community Protection
Warnings and Community Protection Notices

CONTEXT / BACKGROUND INFORMATION

In recognition of the scale of graffiti within Brighton & Hove, the Environment,
Transport & Sustainability Committee approved a Graffiti Reduction Strategy in
November 2018. The Strategy focuses on four workstreams: Prevention,
Enforcement, Removal and Monitoring & Review.

The action plan to deliver the Strategy was shared with Environment, Transport &
Sustainability Committee in June 2019. Further updates on actions taken to
deliver the Strategy were provided to Committee in October 2019 and January
2020.

Current approach to graffiti removal and enforcement

Cityclean is responsible for removing graffiti on council property as well as
offensive graffiti from all private property. Currently, two full time graffiti removal
operatives provide this service. There is no capacity to extend this to non-
offensive graffiti on private property. A consequence of this is a large amount of
graffiti on private property across the city.

The Environmental Enforcement Team issue Fixed Penalty Notices to graffiti
perpetrators when sufficient evidence is available. At present, Brighton & Hove
City Council has no permissions or procedures for enforcing the removal of
graffiti from private property.

Community Protection Notices

The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environmental Act 2005, was superseded by the
Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act in 2014, replacing Graffiti Removal
Notices with Community Protection Notices. A Community Protection Notice can
be issued to an individual aged 16 or over, or a body, if satisfied on reasonable
grounds that:

(a) The conduct of the individual or body is having a detrimental effect, of a
persistent or continuing nature, on the quality of life of those in the locality,
and

(b) The conduct is unreasonable

88



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

The consultation shows that:
e 72.9% of respondents strongly agreed or tended to agree that graffiti is a
problem in their local area
e 85.2% of respondents strongly agreed or tended to agree that graffiti is a
problem in Brighton & Hove
e 82.3% of respondents felt graffiti has a negative impact on people’s
perception of an area, affecting the amenity of areas within Brighton & Hove

Based on this feedback, Community Protection Warnings and Community
Protection Notices are an appropriate enforcement approach to address the
issue of graffiti on private property. Appendices 2 to 4 explain how this will work
in practice, if approved. To deliver this, an additional Environmental Enforcement
Officer will be recruited to process and enforce Community Protection Warnings
and Community Protection Notices. It is proposed that this post will be self-
funding from the income generated by the graffiti enforcement.

Outcomes from consultation

A public consultation on graffiti enforcement and removal took place between 14
October and 14 December 2019. Different approaches to enforcement against
Statutory Undertakers, large businesses, small to medium sized enterprises and
homeowners were proposed, alongside questions relating to the introduction of a
chargeable graffiti removal services.

A total of 1028 responses were received, one of the highest responses in recent
years. Appendix 1 contains all the feedback. Respondents were able to provide

free text for several questions; this has been analysed and the common themes
and feedback to these are contained within Appendix 1.

Overall:

e 44.6% of respondents strongly agreed or tended to agree that the council
should take enforcement action against property owners that fail to remove
graffiti from their property

e 45.2 % strongly disagreed or tended to disagree that enforcement action
should be taken

e 8.4% neither agreed or disagreed

While more respondents disagreed with the introduction of enforcement action
overall, the subsequent questions and responses provides further insight into
this, which is reflected in the recommendations.

Statutory Undertakers:
e 67.5% of respondents strongly agreed or tended to agree with the proposed
enforcement approach for Statutory Undertakers
e Based on the results of the consultation, it is proposed that the enforcement
of graffiti removal for Statutory Undertakers is introduced as per Appendix 2

Large businesses:
e 66.6% of respondents strongly agreed or tended to agree with the proposed
enforcement approach to large businesses (more than 250 employees)
e Based on the results of the consultation, it is proposed that the enforcement
of graffiti removal for large businesses is introduced as per Appendix 3

89



3.14 Small to medium sized enterprises:

51.6% of respondents strongly agreed or tended to agree with the proposed
enforcement approach to small to medium sized enterprises (less than 250
employees)

For those that were responding as a local business, more respondents
strongly disagreed or tended to disagree with the introduction of
enforcement against small and medium sized enterprises, than those that
supported the proposal. The responses from other stakeholders, however,
supported the introduction of an enforcement approach. The purpose of the
enforcement approach is to protect the amenity of an area. It’s clear from
the other stakeholders’ responses that enforcement is required, alongside
the other measures being delivered within the Strategy

Based on the results of the consultation, it is proposed that the enforcement
of graffiti removal for small to medium sized enterprises is introduced as per
Appendix 4

3.15 Homeowners:

37.7% of respondents strongly agreed or tended to agree with the proposed
enforcement approach to homeowners

Based on the results of the consultation, it is proposed that the enforcement
of graffiti removal for homeowners is not introduced. Rather, alternative
options will be provided to encourage removal

3.16 Chargeable graffiti removal service:

3.17

67.3% of respondents strongly agreed or tended to agree with the
introduction of a chargeable graffiti removal service

69.6% of respondents strongly or tended to agree with the proposed
charges of the chargeable graffiti removal service differing for Statutory
Undertakers, large businesses, small and medium sized enterprises and
homeowners

Based on the results of the consultation, it is proposed that a chargeable
graffiti removal service is introduced, with differing charges for the different
types of property owners

Implementation

A phased approach will be used to implement the new enforcement
arrangements, subject to the appropriate approvals from committee today. This
will be:

The creation of Service Level Agreements with Statutory Undertakers for
the council to remove reported graffiti from their property within a given time
frame?

The introduction of Statutory Undertaker enforcement as per Appendix 2
The creation of Service Level Agreements with Large Businesses for the
council to remove reported graffiti from their property within a given time
frame

The introduction of large business enforcement as per Appendix 3

2 If there is insufficient demand for SLAs and the income generated does not make the graffiti removal
service a viable option, then the model proposed in this report will have to be revisited

90



3.18

3.19

4.1

4.2

5.1

6.1

6.2

7.1

e The introduction of small and medium sized enterprise enforcement as per
Appendix 4

Alongside this will be the creation of the chargeable graffiti removal service,
supportive measures for homeowners and delivery of other elements of the
Graffiti Reduction Strategy.

The council will increase its efforts to remove graffiti from its own property as it is
recognised that more work can be done. However, it should be noted that:
e Operatives are only able to use a two-step ladder, so removing graffiti from
height is complex
e Some surfaces will require specialist skills or equipment or a contractor
e High footfall areas can only be cleaned very early in the morning
e Some graffiti removal can only be completed when the weather is dry

ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

The council can continue with its current approach to graffiti removal and
enforcement only, but this will not deliver the aims of the Graffiti Reduction
Strategy.

The public consultation provided an opportunity for residents to comment on the
proposals.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

The feedback from the consultation is detailed in the main body of the report and
Appendix 1.

CONCLUSION

Members agreed the Graffiti Reduction Strategy in November 2018. This
included a commitment to complete a public consultation on a new enforcement
approach requiring property owners to remove graffiti within an agreed
timeframe, plus the introduction of a chargeable graffiti removal service. This
report presents the outcomes of the consultation.

To continue the successful delivery of the Graffiti Reduction Strategy, Members
are asked to approve the recommendations is section 2 to further prevent,
enforce and remove graffiti and/or tagging across Brighton & Hove.
FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

The graffiti removal service has a budget of £0.122m for 2020/21 (the original
budget of £0.082m has been increased by £0.040m following an agreed
amendment at Budget Council). It is assumed that the additional Environmental
Enforcement officer post (paragraph 3.7) will be self-funding (funded from within
this budget). The proposal (as set out in paragraph 3.17) is a phased approach
so that, for example, Service Level Agreements are secured prior to expanding

91



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

the service. This should limit the risk that the additional costs incurred by
expanding the service will exceed the additional income from charging for the
service. As set out in the report, if there is insufficient demand for SLAs and the
income generated does not make the graffiti removal service a viable option,
then the model proposed in this report will have to be revisited. The financial
position will also be reviewed as part of monthly budget monitoring and annual
budget setting.

Finance Officer Consulted: Jess Laing Date: 06/03/2020

Legal Implications:

The power to issue Community Protection Notices is found in section 43 of the
Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, referred to in paragraph 3.5
of this report. That section provides that a Community Protection Notice can only
be issued if the individual or body concerned has been given written warning that
a notice will be served unless the relevant conduct ceases, and that the conduct
has continued.

The Council’s power to charge for discretionary services is found in s.93 of the
Local Government Act 2003. The power is subject to a duty that, taking one
financial year with another, the income from charges does not exceed the costs
of provision.

Lawyer Consulted: Hilary Woodward Date: 19/02/2020

Equalities Implications:

It is recognised that some buildings are more likely to be subject to graffiti
vandalism than others. The different approaches to graffiti enforcement have
been proposed to take this into account.

A scaled pricing system for the chargeable graffiti removal system has been
proposed to make the service as accessible as possible.

Sustainability Implications

The vehicle to be purchased for chargeable graffiti removal service has a 200-bar
pressure washer, which should decrease the operating time of the engine, cutting
vehicle emissions. This will be purchased in line with the recently approved Fleet
Strategy and will have a minimum life of four to five years before it will be
assessed for replacement.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

Graffiti vandalism is a crime. Deploying measures to prevent, enforce and
remove graffiti and/or tagging will reduce the anti-social behaviour associated
with this activity. A graffiti prevention officer has been appointed by Sussex
Police to support the prevention of graffiti vandalism and to ensure consistency
between investigations. Joint patrols and communications will be actioned to
deliver the Graffiti Reduction Strategy.

92



7.8

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

The recommendations in this report support the Corporate Plan commitment to
tackle graffiti and tagging.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

PpwNE

Responses to the public consultation

Proposed approach for Statutory Undertakers

Proposed approach for large businesses

Proposed approach for small to medium sized enterprises

Background Documents

1.

2.

Graffiti Reduction Strategy Report to Environment, Transport & Sustainability

Committee on 27 November 2018

Gratffiti Reduction Strategy Update Report to Environment, Transport &
Sustainability Committee on 25 June 2019
City Environment Modernisation Update Report to Environment, Transport &

Sustainability Committee on 8 October 2019
City Environment Modernisation Update Report to Environment, Transport &

Sustainability Committee on 21 January 2020

93


https://present.brighton-hove.gov.uk/documents/s133845/Graffiti%20Reduction%20Strategy%20APX.%20n%202.pdf
http://present.brighton-hove.gov.uk/documents/s142428/Graffiti%20Reduction%20Strategy%20Update.pdf
http://present.brighton-hove.gov.uk/documents/s145395/City%20Environment%20Modernisation%20Update.pdf
http://present.brighton-hove.gov.uk/documents/s148285/City%20Environment%20Modernisation%20Update.pdf

94



Appendix 1: responses to the public consultation

Question 1 — “How are you responding to this consultation? As a...”

Resident of Brighton & Hove 939
Visitor 26
A local landlord 9

A local business 22
A local community or voluntary group 15
A local stakeholder 5
Other 9
No response 3

Question 2 — “To what extent do you agree or disagree that graffiti is a problem in your local
area?”

This question had a total of 935 resident responses

Strongly Tend to agree | Neither agree | Tend to Strongly Don’t know/
agree nor disagree disagree disagree not sure
527 155 60 91 101 1

Question 3 — “To what extent do you agree or disagree that graffiti is a problem in Brighton
& Hove?”

This question had a total of 1,021 responses

Strongly Tend to Neither agree | Tend to Strongly Don’t know/
agree agree nor disagree | disagree disagree not sure
Residents 679 99 25 58 72 2
Visitors 15 4 0 5 2 0
Local 9 0 0 0 0 0
landlord
Local 18 3 1 0 0 0
business
Local CVS 13 0 0 2 0 0
Local 2 2 1 0 0 0
stakeholder
Other 3 2 1 1 0 2
Total 739 110 28 66 74 4

Question 4 — “To what extent do you agree or disagree that graffiti has a negative impact on
people’s perception of an area?”

This question had a total of 1,023 responses

Strongly Tend to Neither agree | Tend to Strongly Don’t know/
agree agree nor disagree | disagree disagree not sure
Residents 642 127 44 66 56 2
Visitors 15 5 0 3 3 0
Local 9 0 0 0 0 0

landlord

95



Local 16 4 1 1 0 0
business

Local CVS | 13 0 0 2 0 0
Local 3 2 0 0 0 0
stakeholder

Other 5 1 2 1 0 0
Total 703 139 47 73 59 2

Question 5 — “To what extent do you agree or disagree that the council should take
enforcement action against property owners that fail to remove graffiti from their property?”

This question had a total of 1,025 responses

Strongly Tend to Neither agree | Tend to Strongly Don’t know/
agree agree nor disagree | disagree disagree not sure
Residents 240 181 76 165 260 17
Visitors 5 4 1 7 8 1
Local 4 1 0 0 4 0
landlord
Local 3 4 5 4 6 0
business
Local CVS 4 3 4 2 2 0
Local 2 2 0 0 1 0
stakeholder
Other 3 1 1 0 4 0
Total 261 196 87 178 285 18

Question 6 — “To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed approach for
utility, telecommunication and transport providers, referred to as statutory undertakers?”

This question had a total of 1,020 responses

Strongly Tend to Neither agree | Tend to Strongly Don’t know/
agree agree nor disagree | disagree disagree not sure
Residents 424 213 74 76 130 18
Visitors 8 8 1 3 4 1
Local 5 0 1 0 3 0
landlord
Local 7 7 2 2 4 0
business
LocalCVS |9 2 2 1 0 1
Local 0 1 0 1 3 0
stakeholder
Other 2 2 1 0 3 1
Total 455 233 81 83 147 21

Several statutory undertakers participated in this consultation, self-identifying as “Other” and “A
local stakeholder”. The following statutory undertakers completed the consultation:

e The Royal Mail Group Ltd
e UK Power Networks

e Sothern Water

e Network Rall

96



Free text comments on proposed approach to Statutory Undertakers
Common themes found:

e Too much time before action

e Happy with proposed approach

e The cost to the council is a concern

e Not enough time before action

e Police assistance is required to tackle graffiti

e Penalties should focus on perpetrators not victims of crime

e Proposal lacks sufficient preventative measures

o A safe space for graffiti would reduce private property being targeted
e The decision is up to the property owner

e A definition of graffiti is required for this framework

e Council needs to get its own house in order

e Graffiti is not a problem

¢ Community Protection Notices should not be used

e Worries of the cost being transferred to statutory undertaker customers

Question 7 — “To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed approach for

large businesses consisting of more than 250 employees?”

This question had a total of 1,017 responses

Strongly Tend to Neither agree | Tend to Strongly
agree agree nor disagree | disagree disagree
Residents 422 204 78 81 136
Visitors 8 6 1 3 6
Local 5 0 0 1 3
landlord
Local 5 8 2 2 5
business
Local CVS |7 5 1 1 1
Local 1 1 1 2 0
stakeholder
Other 2 3 2 0 2
Total 450 227 85 90 153

Question 8 — Free text comments on proposed approach to large businesses
Common themes found:

e Too much time before action

e The cost to the council in a concern

e Not enough time before action

e Need to consider charities

o Police assistance is required to tackle graffiti

o Penalties should focus on perpetrators not victims of crime
o Proposal lacks sufficient preventative measures

o A safe space for graffiti would reduce private property being targeted
e Graffiti removal should be free to everyone by the council
e Cost to the business is a concern

e The decision is up to the property owner

97

Don’t know/
not sure

11

1

0

0

o o



A definition of graffiti is required for this framework
Council needs to get its own house in order
Graffiti is not a problem

Question 9 — “To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed approach for
small to medium sized businesses?”

This question had a total of 1,016 responses
Strongly Tend to Neither agree | Tend to Strongly Don’t know/
agree agree nor disagree | disagree disagree not sure
Residents 277 211 81 142 203 18
Visitors 5 5 3 4 7 1
Local 4 0 0 1 4 0
landlord
Local 2 5 2 4 9 0
business
LocalCVS | 5 6 1 2 1 0
Local 1 1 0 1 1 0
stakeholder
Other 1 1 4 1 2 0
Total 295 229 91 155 227 19

Question 10 — Free text comments on proposed approach to small to medium businesses

Common themes found:

Too much time before action

The cost to the council in a concern

Not enough time before action

Police assistance is required to tackle graffiti

Penalties should focus on perpetrators not victims of crime

Proposal lacks sufficient preventative measures

A safe space for graffiti would reduce private property being targeted
The decision is up to the property owner

Graffiti removal should be free to everyone by the council

Cost to the business is a concern

The decision is up to the property owner

A definition of graffiti is required for this framework

Council needs to get its own house in order

Small to medium sized businesses should not have to pay
Geographically unfair as some businesses will get vandalised more than others

Question 11 - “To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed approach for

homeowners?”
This question had a total of 1,017 responses
Strongly Tend to Neither agree | Tend to Strongly Don’t know/
agree agree nor disagree | disagree disagree not sure
Residents 209 148 73 130 356 16
Visitors 2 5 2 3 14 0
Local 3 1 0 0 5 0

98



landlord

Local 1 5 2 4 10 0
business

LocalCVS |5 2 3 3 2 0
Local 1 0 1 2 0 0
stakeholder

Other 1 0 3 2 3 0
Total 222 161 84 144 390 16

Question 12 — Free text comments on proposed approach homeowners

Common themes found:

Removal by homeowner may not be possible

Cost to homeowner is a concern

Graffiti removal should be included within council tax

Too much time before action

The cost to the council in a concern

Not enough time before action

Police assistance is required to tackle graffiti

Penalties should focus on perpetrators not victims of crime

Proposal lacks sufficient preventative measures

A safe space for graffiti would reduce private property being targeted
The decision is up to the property owner

Graffiti removal should be free to everyone by the council

Cost to the business is a concern

The decision is up to the property owner

A definition of graffiti is required for this framework

Council needs to get its own house in order

Geographically unfair as some homes will get vandalised more than others

Question 13 — “To what extent do you agree or disagree that the council should set up a

chargeable graffiti removal service for property owners to access across the city?”
This question had a total of 1,013 responses
Strongly Tend to Neither agree | Tend to Strongly Don’t know/
agree agree nor disagree disagree disagree not sure
Residents 391 239 94 65 118 20
Visitors 9 9 1 2 5 0
Local 3 2 0 0 4 0
landlord
Local 3 9 4 1 4 1
business
Local CVS |5 5 3 0 1 1
Local 3 0 1 0 1 0
stakeholder
Other 1 3 2 2 1 0
Total 415 267 105 70 134 22

Question 14 — Free text comments on proposed chargeable graffiti removal service

Common themes found:

99



If the service is not compulsory to use

Commercial service should operate on a minimal cost

Commercial service should operate on a sliding scale of costs

Culprits should remove graffiti rather than victims paying for removal

Low income households/ businesses may still struggle to access the service
Council needs to get its own house in order

Commercial service should be free to residents

The quality of removal by the commercial service is a concern

Commercial service should be contracted out to an external contractor, rather than being
ran by City Clean

Graffiti removal should be provided for free by the council

Commercial service should not operate on a sliding scale of costs

A commercial service will not suffice without any preventative measures

Question 15 - “To what extent do you agree or disagree that the proposed charges should
differ depending on whether it is a statutory undertaker, large business, small to medium
sized business or homeowner?”

This question had a total of 1,010 responses
Strongly Tend to Neither agree | Tend to Strongly Don’t know/
agree agree nor disagree disagree disagree not sure
Residents 432 216 118 35 90 33
Visitors 12 6 3 0 5 0
Local 4 1 1 1 2 0
landlord
Local 8 8 1 1 4 0
business
Local CVS |6 4 3 0 1 1
Local 2 1 0 0 2 0
stakeholder
Other 2 1 1 1 4 0
Total 466 237 127 38 108 34

Question 16 — Free text comments on proposed differing charges for statutory undertakers,

large b

usinesses, small to medium sized businesses or homeowners

Common themes found:

Graffiti removal should be included within council tax

Commercial service should be free to residents

Commercial service should not operate on a sliding scale of costs

Commercial service should be free for homeowners and small to medium businesses
Commercial service should be means tested to determine the price

No commercial service needed

Low income households/ businesses may still struggle to access the service

Need to consider charities

Geographically unfair, as properties in hot spot areas will need to use the service more than
others

Commercial service should be cost neutral

Further information and mitigating actions in relation to the free text comments are:

100



Too much time
before action

Police assistance
is required to
tackle graffiti

Penalties should
focus on
perpetrators not
victims of crime
A safe space for
graffiti would
reduce private
property being
targeted

The decision is up
to the property
owner

Council needs to
get its own house
in order

Geographically
unfair as some
businesses will get
vandalised more
than others
Proposal lacks
sufficient
preventative
measures

Graffiti removal
should be free /
covered by council
tax

A definition of
graffiti is required

Commercial
service should be
contracted out
Need to consider
charities

The proposed approach is based on the legal parameters of the legislation
and feedback from Legal Services.

An additional step of sending a reminder letter to small and medium sized
enterprises has been incorporated as a supportive approach in getting
graffiti removed.

A prevention officer has been appointed by Sussex Police to support the
prevention of graffiti vandalism and to ensure consistency between
investigations. Joint patrols and communications will be actioned to deliver
the Graffiti Reduction Strategy.

Other activities focused on the perpetrators of crime will continue to be
delivered as part of the Graffiti Reduction Strategy.

Based on the feedback of the consultation, enforcement action against
homeowners is not being recommended.

Work is already taking place with the Phoenix Arts Association to create a
mural. Opportunities for graffiti artists are being explored including further
partnership working with Phoenix Arts Association, permissioned murals led
by local residents and researching the benefits of a ‘graffiti safe space’.

Enforcement action will only be taken where there is proof that the graffiti is

detrimental to the amenity of an area and having an impact on the residents

in the locality.

The council is aware that additional effort is required to maintain council

property. A new approach has been adopted by graffiti operatives to do this

by working in zones and revisiting on a regular basis. Additional temporary

operatives are being recruited to work during the summer months when

removal is easier due to the weather. It is hoped that the increased capacity

during the summer months will allow the two full time operatives to maintain

the progress over the winter months.

It is recognised that some buildings are more likely to be subject to graffiti

vandalism than others. The different approaches to graffiti enforcement

have been proposed to take this into account.

A scaled pricing system for the chargeable graffiti removal system has been

proposed to make the service as accessible as possible.

The Graffiti Reduction Strategy has a preventative workstream. Activities in

this workstream include:

e trialling a range of anti-graffiti coating

e working with Trading Standards to restrict the sales of spray cans to
under 16’s

¢ working with Major Projects and Highways Teams to ensure
preventative measures are considered in future designs

There are not sufficient resources available to do this.

Graffiti removal is not a statutory service.

Graffiti art: permissioned street art, created through obtaining appropriate
Permissions, this can include tagging

Graffiti vandalism: any kind of street art which has been done without the
permission of the property owner, this can include tagging

Other graffiti removal companies are available. The council service is
another option for residents and businesses in the city. Property owners can
use which ever graffiti removal service they wish.

Charities will be considered under the SME approach to enforcement and
will be able to use the graffiti removal service at the same price as
homeowners and SMEs

101



102



€0t

Appendix 2: Statutory Undertakers

Complaint received

If SLA not signed, a CPW is

given stating a CPN will be

issued if graffiti not removed
in 14 days

Graffiti not removed: CPN
issued under S43 of the Anti-

Incident recorded and
evidence uploaded to data
base

If SLA signed with council,
council removes graffiti in

agreed timeframe

Social Behaviour Crime and Graffiti removed: no further
Policing Act 2014 stating action taken

graffiti must be removed
within 28 days

Graffiti not removed: council Graffiti removed: no further
removes graffiti action taken

Council recovers costs from [i%
property owner -

Key
CPW — Community Protection Warning

Costs not recovered: . >
(must be issued before a CPN can be given)

Costs recovered: no further council pursues the matter

reasonable costs .
SLA —Service Level Agreement




0T



GOT

Appendix 3: Large businesses

Incident recorded and

Complaint received S evidence uploaded to
data base

If SLA not signed, council If SLA signed with

requests property owner council, council removes
remove graffiti within graffiti in agreed
seven days timeframe

Graffiti not removed:

CPW sent stating a CPN
will be issued if graffiti

Graffiti removed: no
further action taken

not removed within

seven days

Graffiti not removed: CPN
issued under S43 of the Anti-
Social Behaviour Crime and

Policing Act 2014 stating
graffiti must be removed within
28 days

Graffiti removed: no

Graffiti not removed:
further action taken

council removes graffiti

Council recovers costs
from property

Costs not recovered:
council pursues the
matter in court to recover
all reasonable costs

Costs recovered: no
further action taken

Graffiti removed: no
further action taken

Key

CPW — Community Protection Warning
(must be issued before a CPN can be given)
CPN — Community Protection Notice

SLA —Service Level Agreement



90T



L0T

Appendix 4: small and

medium sized enterprises ComplEn e

Graffiti not removed:
CPW sent stating a CPN
will be issued if graffiti
not removed within
seven days

Graffiti not removed: CPN

Incident recorded and Council requests
evidence uploaded to property owner remove
data base graffiti within 14 days

Graffiti not removed:
reminder letter sent
stating a CPN may be Graffiti removed: no
issued if graffiti not further action taken
removed within seven
days

Graffiti removed: no
further action taken

issued under S43 of the Graffiti removed: no
Anti-Social Behaviour further action taken

Crime and Policing Act
2014 stating graffiti must
be removed within 28 days

Graffiti not removed: Graffiti removed: no
council removes graffiti further action taken

Council recovers costs
from property owner

Costs not recovered:

Costs recovered: no council pursues the
further action taken matter in court to recove
all reasonable costs

Key

CPW — Community Protection Warning
(must be issued before a CPN can be given)
CPN — Community Protection Notice

SLA —Service Level Agreement



80T



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 79
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Bulky waste collection services

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2020

Report of: Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture

Contact Officer: Name: Lynsay Cook Tel: 01273 292448

Email: Lynsay.cook@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

Brighton & Hove City Council provides a service to residents for the collection of
bulky waste items — items too large or otherwise inappropriate for the council’s
kerbside or communal refuse and recycling bins. This might include mattresses,
domestic electrical items, furniture and so on. The service is currently provided
by an outsourced contractor which takes the fees from services users.

This report seeks committee approval to change the service delivery model for
bulky waste collection services in Brighton & Hove.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That the Committee:

Approves the bringing in-house, within Cityclean, of the bulky waste collection
services at the end of the current contract on 22 June 2020.

Agrees for charges to remain the same while a complete review is undertaken,
once the service is brought in-house to determine the pricing model moving
forward.

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION

As a local authority, Brighton & Hove City Council has a duty to provide for the
collection and disposal of household waste items. The council currently provides
services to residents for the collection of bulky waste items — items too large or
otherwise inappropriate for the council’s domestic waste collection service. This
might include mattresses, domestic electrical items, furniture etc. The collection
service allows residents to have bulky items picked up and legally disposed of,
rather than having to transport the items to one of the city’s Household Waste
Recycling Sites or be illegally fly-tipped. The council is permitted to charge fees
for these collections.

At present, the collection service is provided by an outsourced contractor, which
directly takes the fees from service users. The contractor keeps 100% of fees

109



3.3

3.4

3.5

collected from residents in exchange for providing the collection service. The
current fees for the service are available in Appendix 2.

There are currently over 300 collections a month with a total monthly value of
around £10-£11k, approximately £130k per annum.

Current challenges

The contractor is KSD Environmental which was awarded the contract in August
2013 following a successful tender process. The contract has been extended on
a rolling basis without further competition to the present date. The contract is
currently under a waiver until 22 June 2020.

At present, all collected items are sent as residual waste to the Energy Recovery
facility; nothing is reused or recycled.

4 ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Please see appendix 1 for a consideration of the options available.

The preferred option is to bring the service in-house to be directly managed by
Cityclean. At the Procurement Advisory Board meeting on 27 January 2020, the
Board were supportive of the proposal for the service to be brought in-house at
the end of the current waiver.

Benefits of bringing the service in-house include:
e Potential surplus income can be invested in refuse, recycling and street
cleaning services
e Opportunities to reuse and recycle the bulky items collected
e Flexibility of service delivery to respond to issues e.g. potential initiatives
with universities to reduce the instance of fly-tipping at the end of term
e Improved assurance in relation to health and safety and customer service

Based on current costs and demand, insourcing the service is estimated to cost
£119,164 per annum and will generate an income of £130,000, leading to a
potential annual surplus of around £11k to be invested into refuse, recycling and
street cleansing services. The costs include:

e Staffing costs: £101,364

e Uniform and other materials: £2,400

e Vehicle costs (initial purchase and borrowing costs): £5,400

e Vehicle running costs: £10,000 a year.

If Members agree for the service to be brought in-house, the service will sit within
the Commercial Team and will not impact on Cityclean’s business as usual
activities. The Commercial Team has successfully improved the financial viability
of the trade waste and garden waste services and has significantly improved
customer service. Therefore, there is confidence that the service will be able to
successfully manage bulky waste.

Bringing this service inhouse will involve the TUPE transfer of staff from KSD.
During due diligence the final list of staff will be agreed but could involve the

110



4.7

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

TUPE of both operational and office staff. These staff will transfer on their own
terms and conditions, and this may result in some risks where staff who have
TUPE’d to the council are on different conditions to our staff.

The current waiver expires on 22 June 2020 and the service will be delivered
directly by the council from 23 June 2020. The service model, including fees, will
stay the same while a complete review is undertaken to determine the model
moving forward.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

The Procurement Advisory Board are supportive of the proposal for the service to
be brought in-house at the end of the current waiver.

If Members agree for the service to be brought in-house, there will be a review of
the service which will include identifying opportunities to work more closely with
the community in relation to service delivery. For example, working with students
to reduce the instance of fly-tipping at the end of term.

CONCLUSION

The council has a duty to provide for the collection and disposal of household
waste items such as mattresses, domestic electrical items, furniture. The current
arrangements have been in place since August 2013 following a successful
tender process. The contract has been extended on a rolling basis without any
further competition to the present day.

This report is seeking approval to bring the service in-house within Cityclean
when the current waiver ends on 22 June 2020. The Procurement Advisory
Board are supportive of proposal for the service to be brought in-house.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

The bulky waste collection service has been delivered by an external contractor
for a number of years at no cost to the council. Based on the information
available, the cost of running the service in-house is expected to be, as a
minimum, cost neutral (breakeven) and might generate net additional income
(the initial assumption is a surplus of £11k). As acknowledged in Appendix 1
(Option 2, Projected cost), there will be initial upfront costs as part of setting up
the in-house version of the existing service. It is anticipated that these will be
covered by the income generated.

Any future changes to fees and charges will be subject to the council’s fees and
charges policy. The financial position will be reviewed as part of monthly budget
monitoring and annual budget setting.

Finance Officer Consulted: Jess Laing Date: 28/02/2020

111



7.3

7.4

7.5

Legal Implications:

Section 45 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 provides that waste
collection authorities have a duty to collect household waste, save in limited
circumstances. Section 45(3) of the Act allows a reasonable charge to be made
for the collection of certain household waste. The types of household waste for
which a collection charge can be made are found in the Controlled Waste
(England and Wales) Regulations 2012, and include bulky waste.

Lawyer Consulted: Hilary Woodward Date: 21/2/2020

Sustainability Implications:

Through bringing the service in-house, Cityclean has more control over what
happens to the items. This means action can be taken to reuse as many items as
possible, and where this is not an option, send the items for recycling. Placing
the item in the residual waste stream will be the last option.

If Members agree for the service to be brought in-house, applicable items will be
sent to the council’s Housing team to be used by residents who do not have their
own furniture. Other options include donating items to charities and other
organisations which re-sell or upcycle applicable items.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

1.
2.

Options for collecting and disposing of bulky waste
Current bulky waste charges

Background Documents

1.

None

112



€Tt

Appendix 1: options for collecting and disposing of bulky waste in Brighton & Hove

Option

Option 1: tender contract o
Place contract out for tender

Option 2: delivered in- o
house

Bulky waste collection and
disposal service delivered o
directly by Cityclean

Benefits

Service delivered by specialist
provider in the market

Expected income to be generated
to reinvest in refuse, recycling and
street cleansing services

More flexibility in terms of service
delivery e.g. initiatives with
universities to reduce instance of
fly-tipping

More opportunities to reuse and
recycle the goods collected BHCC
will be directly accountable for

Risks

It will take about nine months to
complete the procurement
process

BHCC will receive none of the
income

BHCC will have to pay VAT on
collection fees, then reclaim from
HMRC

Does not allow for the service to
be flexible to address issues or
priorities

Provides less assurance around
what is collected e.g. commercial
waste or builders waste may be
disposed of

Provides less assurance relating
to health and safety compliance,
including vehicle weights,
manual handling and PPE
Provides less assurance relating
to customer service

BHCC will solely assume all risks
and legal responsibilities

Future reputation damage if
unavailable to deliver service
Lose the benefit from knowledge
and experience of specialist
suppliers in the marketplace
Additional service provision for
Cityclean at a time of change

Projected cost Pre_ferred
option

VAT would be payable but No

could be reclaimed - therefore

cost neutral.

Surplus £11k Yes

Based on current prices and
staffing of current supplier in
its successful tender bid at
2019/20 pay grades.

Costs would be front-loaded
to allow for equipping staff
and leasing vehicles.



Vil

Option

Option 3: as is
KSD Environmental continues
to deliver the service

Benefits

service provision and not reliant on
external contractors

No contract management /
external performance issues
Remove supplier’s cost margin
Ensure ethical employment
practices through in-house
recruitment / TUPE

Retains the option of contracting
out at some point in the future
No changes to existing
arrangements

Risks

Does not provide assurance that
value for money is being
achieved

Does not allow for the service to
be flexible to address issues or
priorities

BHCC will receive none of the
income

BHCC will have to pay VAT on
the current collection fees
Provides less assurance relating
to financial controls, particularly
where cash is exchanged
Provides less assurance around
what is collected e.g. commercial
waste or builders waste may be
disposed of

Provides less assurance relating
to health and safety compliance,
including vehicle weights,
manual handling and PPE
Provides less assurance relating
to customer service

Preferred

Projected cost .
option

VAT would be payable but No
could be reclaimed - therefore
cost neutral.



Appendix 2: current bulky waste charges

Iltem

Single bed base

Single bed mattress

Double bed base

Double bed mattress (including king size)
Chest of drawers

Small chest of drawers or bed side table
Armchair

Recliner armchair

Electrically operated armchair

Sofa

Sofa bed

Coffee table (average size)

Dining room or garden chair

Wardrobe (up to 2 doors)

Wardrobe (3 or more doors)

Upright piano

TV (up to 15-inch screen)

TV (over 15-inch screen)

Computer monitor

Cooker (must be fully disconnected)
Tumble dryer

Washing machine (must be fully disconnected)
Dishwasher (must be fully disconnected)
Microwave

Vacuum cleaner

Under counter fridge or freezer (domestic size)
Fridge freezer or chest freezer

Door

Small shed - maximum of 6 feet by 5 feet

Other waste: average price for each half cubic metre
(about five tied black sacks)

*50% discount available to residents who:

e are over 60 years old
receive income support or Universal Credit
receive Employment and Support Allowance
receive Job Seekers Allowance
receive Incapacity Benefit

115

Cost Discounted cost*
£14 £7
£14 £7
£25 £12.50
£25 £12.50
£24 £12
£15 £7.50
£18 £9
£24 £12
£28 £14
£41 £20.50
£42 £21
£13 £6.50
£7 £3.50
£38 £19
Price on enquiry

£76 £38
£15 £7.50
£22 £11
£14 £7
£33 £16.50
£29 £14.50
£39 £19.50
£32 £16
£15 £7.50
£14 £7
£30 £15
£42 £21
£15 £7.50
£79 £39.50
£24 £12

receive Personal Independence Payment and/or Disability Living Allowance



116



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 80
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Nature2020 — a celebration of biodiversity in the
Biosphere

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2020

Report of: Executive Director of Economy, Environment &
Culture

Contact Officer: Name: Sarah Dobson Tel: 01273 294720

Email: Sarah.dobson@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

The purpose of this report is to provide information on the Nature2020
programme of public events celebrating biodiversity within the Biosphere region
throughout 2020.

The Living Coast is Brighton & Lewes Downs UNESCO World Biosphere Region
and was designated as such in 2014. The city council is the lead partner.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Committee endorses the Nature2020 programme on behalf of the city
council.

That the Committee encourages elected members to champion and support the
Nature2020 programme in their wards, and promote participation by local
community groups

That the Committee supports the organisation of a Nature2020 information and
knowledge sharing session for elected members.

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Living Coast, Brighton & Lewes Downs UNESCO World Biosphere Region
was designated in 2014 as an international demonstration area for sustainability,
part of the World Network of Biosphere Reserves of over 700 sites (including
seven in the UK) that “inspire a positive future by connecting people and nature
today”.

Biosphere Regions have three objectives: (i) Conserve and enhance nature (ii)
Support human development that is sustainable (iii) Encourage environmental
knowledge, learning and awareness and engagement.

The city council is the lead partner of the Brighton & Lewes Downs Biosphere

Partnership, composed of over 40 local organisations active to pursue the
Biosphere objectives.

117



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

The Biosphere programme is directed by the Biosphere Delivery Board,
composed of 20 organisations that represent a range of sectors and areas, with a
Chair and Vice-chair appointed from partner bodies. The Chair is currently held
by Brighton & Hove Bus Company.

Biosphere Board members deliver projects meeting Biosphere objectives as part
of the Biosphere programme. ONCA Gallery is the Board member leading on co-
ordinating Nature2020. Nature2020 is delivered by a steering group consisting of
representatives from: ONCA Gallery, Big Nature, the Biosphere, Sussex Wildlife
Trust, University of Brighton, University of Sussex, the Royal Pavilion and
Museums, Dorothy Stringer School, Butterfly Conservation Sussex and Brighton
& Hove City Council.

2020 is the last year of the United Nations Decade on Biodiversity. Nature2020
has been developed to mark the end of the Decade, draw public focus to
biodiversity both locally and globally, and provide information and improve public
awareness of how biodiversity can be supported through individuals’ and
organisations’ local actions. The goal of the United Nations Decade on
Biodiversity is to support the implementation of the UN Strategic Plan for
Biodiversity and to promote its overall vision of ‘living in harmony with nature’.

The first year of the UN Decade on Biodiversity was marked in Brighton & Hove
by a series of events co-ordinated by Big Nature with support from BHCC.

The Nature2020 programme consists of flagship events developed and delivered
by steering group members and other key partners, and a larger programme of
community-led events developed and delivered by public individuals, community
groups, charities and other organisations via the Nature2020 framework.

The Nature2020 steering group developed a suite of tools for event planners to
use to enable events hosted by a wide range of individuals and organisations to
be developed, including those without any event management experience. The
event planning toolkit also includes prompts to ensure planners are considering
how they are delivering an event that:

e Connects people with their Biosphere;

e |s accessible for as wide an audience as possible;

e Is diverse and inclusive;

¢ Has minimal environmental impact.

All Nature2020 events are requested to be free or very low cost to attend.

Nature2020 information including the event calendar, event planning toolkit,
event registration form and general, background information is accessible to the
general public and hosted on an external website — www.nature2020.0org.uk —
that was developed and is managed by ONCA Gallery.

The Nature2020 steering group has delivered 2 flagship events so far:

e A pre-launch event for potential event organisers held at the University of
Brighton in October 2019.

118


http://www.nature2020.org.uk/

o The purpose of this event was to publicise Nature2020, to provide
practical event running information and to provide networking
opportunities to facilitate event collaborations.

e A VIP launch event for stakeholders to publicise the start of the
Nature2020 programme, held at the ONCA Community Barge in January
2020 to which all Brighton & Hove Councillors were invited. The event was
opened by the Deputy Mayor of Brighton & Hove and attended by local
MPs.

3.13 Future Nature2020 flagship events that are in development include:
e Global City Nature Challenge, 24 — 27 April 2020;

o This is a global bio-blitz and Citizen Science project. Individuals
become wildlife recorders through using the global iNaturalist free
app, taking photos of wildlife and plant species they see locally,
uploading them to the iNaturalist platform where they are identified
and registered as part of the Biosphere’s biodiversity records.

o The City Nature Challenge is in essence a competition between
participating locations to see who can record the most
observations, the most species, and engage the most participants.

o The Biosphere is competing in the City Nature Challenge for the
first time this year.

o Wildlife recording and identification events — including an event led
by a BHCC Park Ranger - will be held in the run up to and during
the weekend of City Nature Challenge.

o This event is led by the University of Brighton, University of Sussex,
and the Biosphere.

e The Brighton Festival Children’s Parade, 2 May 2020;

o This event is led by Brighton Festival and arts charity Same Sky,
who are supporting Nature2020 by theming this year’s Children’s
Parade ‘Nature’s Marvels'.

e Schools Biodiversity Conference, 8 July 2020;

o This event is being led by students and teachers from Dorothy
Stringer School.

e Youth Art Show, 8 — 26 July 2020;

o This is a group art exhibition themed around biodiversity, featuring
work by children and young people aged 4 — 18 from across The
Living Coast Biosphere.

o This eventis led by ONCA Gallery.

¢ Wild Chalk Festival, 19 July 2020;

o This is a family event celebrating the wildlife, history and water
filtering properties of our chalk downland.

o This event is led by the South Downs National Park and BHCC
Park Rangers.

¢ Nature2020 closing event, date tbc, Autumn;

o This event is planned to be a celebration of Nature2020, a
summary of achievements and outputs and an introduction to any
legacy outputs identified throughout the year.

o This event is led by the Nature2020 steering group.

3.14 The full calendar of confirmed events can be found online.

119


http://citynaturechallenge.org/
https://brightonfestival.org/news/brighton_festival_2020_childrens_parade/
https://www.nature2020.org.uk/whats-on

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

4.1

5.1

5.2

A specific Nature2020 information and knowledge sharing session for elected
members is being arranged to take place in April 2020. This early evening
session will provide information about the Biosphere and Nature2020, and detail
further opportunities for elected members to engage directly with the programme.
Invitations to this session will be issued to all elected members in due course.

The BHCC Corporate Plan 2020 — 2023 ‘A Fairer City, A Sustainable Future’,
includes a priority to: ‘promote and protect biodiversity’.

At Full Council in December 2018 it was unanimously agreed to support the
motion to ‘Declare(s) its recognition of global climate and biodiversity
emergencies;’ and to ‘consider how the Council can strengthen local protection
and enhancement of species, habitats and ecosystems services under available
powers’.

The WWEF Global Futures report, published February 2020, estimates the ‘cost to
the world economy from the loss of nature in a ‘business as usual scenario’ by
2050’ at ‘US$10trillion’.

The 2019 IPBES Global Assessment Report on Biodiversity and Ecosystem
Services notes that: ‘Nature is essential for human existence and

good quality of life’, that ‘Marine and terrestrial ecosystems are the sole sinks for
anthropogenic carbon emissions’, and that ‘around 1 million species already face
extinction, many within decades, unless action is taken to reduce the intensity of
drivers of biodiversity loss’.

Supporting and enhancing biodiversity and nature locally, nationally and
internationally will be an essential action in meeting the Council’s target to
become carbon neutral by 2030.

BHCC are supporting Nature2020 through staff time — a sustainability
programme officer, the Biosphere programme manager and Royal Pavilion and
Museums Officer sit on the steering group, as well as Park Ranger time in
supporting several events — and with a financial contribution of £4k to support the
co-ordination and communication requirements of the programme. BHCC are
also lead partner in the Biosphere programme.

ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

No alternative options are deemed necessary for consideration currently.
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

The Nature2020 concept and programme has been developed through close
working with partner organisations and feedback obtained from the pre-launch

event for organisers held in October 2019.

Specialist input has been sought from BHCC Outdoor Events Team, BHCC
Communities Team and the Sussex Biodiversity Records Centre.

120


https://www.wwf.org.uk/globalfutures
https://ipbes.net/sites/default/files/inline/files/ipbes_global_assessment_report_summary_for_policymakers.pdf

5.3

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Communication with wider stakeholders has also taken place via the Biosphere
website, social media channels and e-newsletters; BHCC website; media
channels of all steering group members and at least 3 press releases.

CONCLUSION

To support, strengthen and enhance biodiversity across the city and contribute to
climate change mitigation, the Committee is requested to help support and
promote participation in the Nature2020 events programme.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

Financial implications of supporting Nature2020 include a one-off financial
contribution of £4,000 to support the co-ordination and communication of the
programme, which will be funded from approved revenue budgets within the
Sustainability service. It is also anticipated that existing officer time will be
required to support steering group membership, communications support, and
event planning and delivery by park rangers. Both events currently planned to be
delivered by BHCC rangers are within their existing work programmes and would
continue to be delivered without the Nature2020 programme.

Finance Officer Consulted: Steven Bedford Date: 20/02/20

Legal Implications:

There are no legal implications arising from this report.
Lawyer Consulted: Alice Rowland Date: 14.02.20

Equalities Implications:

Accessibility, diversity and inclusivity are key considerations for Nature2020
event organisers and specific information is provided within the Nature2020
Event Toolkit to assist organisers in ensuring events meet these considerations.
For example, it is requested that all events are free or very low cost to attend.

Sustainability Implications:

The Nature2020 programme aim is to deliver benefits to biodiversity and
sustainability. Minimising the environmental impact of events is a key
consideration for Nature2020 event organisers and specific information is
provided within the Nature2020 Event Toolkit to assist organisers in ensuring
events meet this consideration.

Brexit Implications:

None

Any Other Significant Implications:

121



7.6

7.7

7.7

7.8

Crime & Disorder Implications:

None

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

None

Public Health Implications:

Spending time in natural environments has been shown to be beneficial to
physical and mental health and wellbeing. Supported and well-functioning
biodiversity and eco-systems provide a huge variety of public health benefits
including air quality improvement, urban heat-island reduction, water quality and
guantity improvements, food production amongst many others.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

Nature2020 supports the Council’s priority to ‘promote and protect biodiversity’
and to be a carbon neutral city by 2030.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1.

None

Background Documents

1.

None

122



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 81
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: 2020/21 Local Transport Plan Capital Programme

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2020 — Environment, Transport &

Sustainability Committee

19 March 2020 - Policy & Resources Committee

Report of: Executive Director — Economy, Environment &
Culture
Contact Officer: Name: Andrew Renaut Tel: 01273- 292477
Email: andrew.renaut@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

11

1.2

2.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

The council receives capital funding each year for transport schemes through the
Government’s Local Transport Plan [LTP] process. The council approved the use
of this capital funding (£4.758m) for approved and new transport schemes and
projects for 2020/21 on 27 February 2020 as part of the overall budget. In
addition, the funding in 2020/21 has also been increased by £3.900m of additional
capital funding for investment in citywide improvements to supplement the
planned LTP investment. This was agreed at Budget Council on 27 February
2020, and therefore provides a total of £8.658m. This report seeks approval of
specific allocations of this funding to particular maintenance and sustainable
transport projects and programmes of work.

The LTP is a statutory document and the council’s fourth LTP [LTP4] was
approved by the council in March 2015. The development of a new LTP will begin
this year. An LTP must consist of a long-term Strategy (2030 for Brighton &
Hove), and a short-term Delivery Plan. Maintaining, managing and improving the
city’s transport and highway infrastructure, which is one of the city’s largest assets
with an estimated value of £4.04 billion, is an essential part of the council’s
investment which helps support and provide access to the many activities that are
important to the city’s residents and local communities and its wider, sub-regional
economic role within the Greater Brighton City Region.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee:

Recommends that Policy & Resources Committee agrees the 2020/21 Local
Transport Plan capital programme budget allocation of £8.658 million, as set out
in Appendix 1 of this report.

123



2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

That the Policy & Resources Committee:

Agrees the 2020/21 Local Transport Plan capital programme budget allocation of
£8.658 million, as set out in Appendix 1 of this report.

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The amount of 2020/21 capital funding is initially based on Government estimates
of how much investment is required in the city. However, over many years, the
levels of funding provided have not been sufficient to fully maintain and improve
the city’s infrastructure to meet standards and demands. This has resulted in
ongoing deterioration of the council’s transport network which becomes more
costly to repair or replace over time. A future report on this issue will be brought
to the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee later this year.

The council ensures that the investment it makes with the funding it is allocated is
focused on maintaining and renewing the road network to a high standard;
improving safety; increasing choices for some journeys by providing for, and
encouraging, the use of sustainable transport; and creating a more attractive
public realm. The proposed, capital programme for 2020/21 allocates funding
across a number of areas including capital renewal (maintenance); capital repairs
(potholes); asset management; and sustainable (integrated) transport projects
and programmes. It includes commitments to schemes that are already
approved, ongoing programmes of works and new projects which will deliver long-
term benefits to the city and its residents. The content of the programme is based
on a number of factors, which include: -

e recent or past decisions made by this or other council committees, often
following public consultation, to deliver transport projects and programmes;

e prioritised projects or programmes identified in investment or action plans to
deliver the aims and objectives of approved council strategies or plans
following public consultation;

e decisions made by committees in response to the receipt of petitions,
deputations or Notices of Motion;

e engagement and discussion with The Connected City’s Transport Partnership;

e requests for improvements from ward councillors or residents which are
prioritised according to need or significance, based on committee-approved
policies or assessment criteria, if available; and

e technical or statistical data, surveys or evidence which indicate that a
significant problem exists and requires capital investment to correct it.

Investment in short-term, reactive repairs to the transport network in response to
relatively minor problems identified by officers or residents is carried out from
within existing revenue budgets, which are allocated separately within each
financial year via the delegated authority assigned to the Executive Director of
Economy, Environment & Culture.

The capital funding secured through the LTP process and invested in its Strategy
and Delivery Plan contributes towards enhancing local neighbourhoods and
environments and strengthening the city’s role as a transport hub and centre for
economic activity within the wider Greater Brighton City Region. Major schemes
include those within the city centre, such as Valley Gardens, and the seafront,
including rebuilding and regenerating the city’s historic ‘arches’ (which are

124



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

highway structures supporting the promenade and A259). More localised
investment in neighbourhoods includes bus stops, pedestrian crossings, cycle
facilities and Rights of Way improvements.

In addition, the LTP budget has been used to help secure and deliver significant
levels of capital funding from other sources for many different projects. These
have included competitive, Government funding rounds, and applications to
secure funding allocated to the Coast to Capital Local Enterprise Partnership
[LEP] as part of the Local Growth Fund, which is the primary funding source for
delivering the Valley Gardens project.

The Government funding included in the 2020/21 capital programme consists of
two traditional LTP block allocations for Maintenance and Integrated (Sustainable)
Transport, plus two additional funding steams which are:-

¢ ‘Incentive’ Funding — additional funding allocated to councils that
demonstrate: approval of a highway infrastructure asset management
strategy; input of stakeholders into the process; collaborative working with
construction partners; standard specifications; joint contracts and
collaboration with other local authorities.

e Pothole Action Fund and Flood Resilience Fund — for minor road surface
repairs, or to prevent potholes forming.

The proposed allocation of funds set out in Appendix 1 is based on a number of
factors: 1) the progress made on completing or continuing spend on 2019/20
projects and programmes; 2) previously agreed financial contributions or
commitments to begin or continue projects or programmes in 2020/21; and 3)
success in securing, or being allocated, additional funding from external sources
e.g DfT and LEP (Local Growth Fund) [LGF].

The funding in 2020/21 has also been increased by £3.900m of additional capital
funding for investment in citywide improvements to supplement the planned LTP
investment. This was agreed at Budget Council on 27 February 2020. This
funding will be allocated across projects and programmes which include
infrastructure to expand zero emission transport; improvements to roads; filling
potholes, repairing uneven pavements and other works to make cycling, walking
and driving safer; improvements to cycling, bus, pedestrian and electric/hydrogen
vehicle projects, to support carbon emission reduction; further investment into the
bus network, introducing more bus shelters, real-time bus stops and schemes to
reduce bus journey times; staff posts (funded through these capital resources) to
support the increased spending on transport projects and priorities; increased tree
planting, to help absorb toxic emissions and improve air quality; and support for
the work and outcomes of the Climate Assembly on transport. A further, revised
appendix to this report will be issued as an addendum in advance of this meeting,
indicating how the additional £3.900m is proposed to be allocated.

The content of the programme is described briefly below, and is consistent with

the principles established within the LTP4 Delivery Plan — maintaining the
network, managing movement, and improving streets and infrastructure.

125



3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

CAPITAL RENEWAL (MAINTENANCE) FUNDING

The proposed allocation of £3.290m of LTP funding for this area of work includes
estimated sums of Incentive Funding and Pothole Action Funds of £0.589m.
Further allocations from the additional £3.900m Budget Council sum will be
proposed to this area in the revised appendix that will be circulated in advance of
the meeting. This area of funding is focused on maintaining links and routes and
reflects the continued and growing need to renew highway infrastructure in order
to ensure that it has a longer life. This minimises the need for ongoing/short-term
repairs which are funded from revenue budgets. This sum is in addition to
£1.792m worth of funding from other approved, council sources for the street
lighting improvement programme.

The programme includes £1.485m for road re-construction. Priority consideration
will continue to be given to repairing damage that has occurred to key routes to
address the effects of high traffic volumes and recent episodes of winter weather
conditions. Sections of roads where the surface requires immediate, major
repairs or renewal will be identified based on recent surveys. A further £0.600m
will help improve the condition of footways across the city, with a continued focus
on well-used corridors. The programme will include the use of permeable, flexible
paving to treat tree root areas and reduce flood risk. £0.095m is also allocated to
continue investment in addressing problems associated with damaged highway
drainage which causes surface water flooding on roads and pavements.

Significant works to assess and strengthen highway structures across the city will
also continue (requiring £0.450m from the 2020/21 LTP allocations) to ensure
they remain in a safe condition and are fit for purpose. The investment involves
the inspection, maintenance or renewal of structures which is currently focused on
the seafront, in line with the principles of the council’s Seafront Investment Plan.
The Shelter Hall structure supports the A259, and the scheme includes
improvements to the King’s Road/West Street junction which are expected to be
completed in June this year. Further work will be undertaken to develop detailed
designs for Phase 4 of the seafront programme. Other sites where structural
work on retaining walls are planned include Dyke Road Drive, Hartington Road
and Bates Road.

A further additional £0.300m will be invested in maintaining Hove Station
Footbridge, which provides important local connections between the Hove Park
area and the station and Central Hove. Network Rail owns the bridge, but the
council has responsibility for its upkeep.

An annual allocation of £0.300m has been previously approved to assist in
reducing the ongoing maintenance requirements for the £10m-plus worth of street
lighting in the city, primarily funded by an ‘Invest to Save’ initiative. Ongoing
surveys and condition assessments identify areas/corridors that require street
lighting column replacement. The works include upgraded lighting with more
efficient lanterns/lamps to help accelerate reductions in electricity and
maintenance costs and achieve the city’s target of becoming carbon neutral by
2030. The programme of investment in 2020/21 is currently being planned and
finalised.

126



3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

The Government requires all Local Highway Authorities to identify and account for
their infrastructure (often referred to as ‘assets’) by updating their Highway Asset
Management Strategy, which provides a comprehensive inventory of current
asset condition. This will be continued during 2020/21 with £0.060m as it is also a
requirement for securing Government funding for maintenance. This strategy is
used to prepare medium and long-term programmes of works to maintain the
highway to required standards. The council’s self-assessment of its progress is a
‘Band 3’ grading, which is the highest level of compliance and is expected to
secure additional (‘incentive’) funding for works of approximately £0.400m.

INTEGRATED (SUSTAINABLE) TRANSPORT FUNDING

The proposed allocation of £1.468m of LTP funding for this area of work includes
increased provision for safe, sustainable and healthy forms of transport and will
create more efficient movement through junctions and crossings that will help
reduce congestion and/or emissions, therefore improving air quality. This is in
addition to £4.482m worth of LGF from the LEP. Further allocations from the
additional £3.900m Budget Council sum will be proposed for this area in the
revised appendix that will be circulated in advance of this meeting. This total
amount of funding will be focused on delivering the following key LTP objectives.

Connecting people with destinations, activities and services

Targeting transport investment in certain locations will help support the wider
needs of the city and deliver a broad range of improved service outcomes. These
locations can include important local facilities and/or more significant destinations
that help draw people and investment to the city, by improving safety and
increasing the transport options available to reach them.

The prioritisation of developing a trial ‘School Streets’ scheme in the city will begin
with a proposed investment of £0.030m in 2020/21, which will be combined with
funding from the council’s Sustainability and Carbon Reduction Investment Fund.
Pioneered in Hackney in London, a ‘School Street’ is a road outside a school with
a temporary restriction on motorised traffic at school drop-off and pick-up times.
This will help improve the safety and environment around school entrances and
complement other measures on routes to and from schools Other measures will
assist in encouraging sustainable travel behaviour change, such as workplace
and school travel planning, some of which are match-funded by businesses, and
which also support the council’s Government revenue-funded Access Fund for
Sustainable Travel project.

Local shopping centres are a focus for many communities/visitors and provide a
variety of facilities and services that can help to reduce the need to make
separate journeys. Enabling these locations to be more accessible and attractive
to everybody and function safely and practically e.g deliveries and servicing,
provides the opportunity for them to thrive as part of the local economy. A funding
allocation of £0.075m is proposed to undertake feasibility, design and consultation
for the Boundary Road/Station Road corridor in Portslade in 2020/21. This work
will be integrated with the successful extension of the council’s Access for
Sustainable Travel Fund for a fourth year.

Local parks and open spaces provide opportunities for people of all ages to
improve their quality of life in terms of relaxation, fresh air or exercise. Improving

127



3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

access to those locations will enable them to be reached safely and sustainably,
or address local perceptions of danger or severance, and therefore be used more
regularly. Improving Rights of Way [RoW] in line with the statutory, approved
RoW Improvement Plan will continue with £0.040m, and improved links between
the city and the South Downs National Park remain a priority.

£0.170m worth of investment is proposed in interchange facilities, where people
can transfer between different forms of transport on their journey/visit. This will
include investment in more secure, on-street motorcycle parking.

Improving neighbourhoods

Continued investment is required in targeted road safety engineering schemes to
maximise casualty reduction, especially the number of people killed or seriously
injured in collisions. £0.173m is proposed to be invested in priority (‘high risk’)
locations, and a programme is currently being developed. Safety improvements
will be implemented in Surrenden Road to address residents’ concerns, especially
about school children; and £0.020m will contribute towards improving the
Whitehawk Road/Bristol Gardens junction which is a priority (‘high risk’) locations.
This scheme will complement the current improvements to the Wilson
Avenue/Roedean Road junction, and both sites are linked to movements to and
from GB Met College, and St Mark’s and Steiner Schools. The programme also
includes £0.040m to undertake an experimental road closure of Temple Street to
address rat-running drivers, as agreed by the ET&S Committee.

Tackling pollution levels in the city’s Air Quality Management Areas remains a
high priority. For example, the new, minor traffic management scheme in
Rottingdean Village is designed to help reduce harmful emissions in the High
Street. Walking and cycling are the best forms of ‘low carbon’ transport and the
activity involved also provides additional personal health benefits for individuals
and can help reduce pollution if they replace some car journeys. ‘Dropped’ kerbs
at road crossings are important ways of increasing the mobility of local residents
and visitors and increasing the attractiveness and convenience of journeys,
especially over short distances. A total of £0.250m is planned to be spent
specifically in these areas in 2020/21, including pedestrian crossing facilities
outside Hove Station and at the A293/Hangleton Lane junction, and
feasibility/design work for a cycle route along the A259 (Wellington Road). Other
named projects within the overall capital programme will also include measures to
enable and increase active and healthy travel.

The expansion of the city’s electric vehicle charging point network will help meet
the growing demands for this infrastructure by widening choice, increasing uptake
and therefore reducing carbon emissions. A £0.070m allocation will help deliver
more ‘Rapid’ charging points and support the additional £0.300m worth of grant
funding secured from the Government’s Office for Low Emission Vehicles for
‘Fast’ charging points.

Managing links and improving routes

Ensuring the efficient movement of people and vehicles across and along key
transport corridors helps to keep the city moving and enable or promote
regeneration. Construction of the agreed Valley Gardens (Phases 1 & 2) scheme
will be completed in 2020/21 using LGF money only; and progress will continue

128



3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

3.31

on developing the detailed design for Phase 3 of the project between Edward
Street and the A259/Palace Pier, also using LGF money only in 2020/21.

Continued £0.350m worth of investment in the use of technology to manage the
city’s transport network is planned to replace, modernise and optimise traffic
signal-controlled junctions and pedestrian crossings and improve the flows of
people and traffic. A prioritised programme of locations is currently being
developed.

A programme of investment in improvements to address locations where buses
frequently get delayed and then impact on the reliable operation of the city’s bus
network will be funded with LTP money. In 2020/21, this will include £0.050 being
invested in improving the busy Western Road/Dyke Road area near the Clock
Tower.

General allocations

Minor investment is often required for some schemes after the main construction
works have been completed in the previous financial year e.g safety audits and
additional remedial works, and to also allow some initial scoping and preliminary
work on new or emerging schemes. Some data collection will also be undertaken
to assist in monitoring and assessing the wider effects of some schemes and
projects. An allocation of £0.065m of funding will enable work to be undertaken
on investing funding secured from permitted planning applications (referred to as
‘Section 106 contributions’) in locations across the city. This will include
investment in transport and highway measures which are primarily focused on
sustainable (walking, cycling and public transport) measures.

Future transport capital programme investment

In approving its 2020/21 budget, the council has also confirmed that it expects to
receive an LTP capital allocation from the Government in the order of £5.0m in
2021/22. This sum could be confirmed in the Government’s forthcoming Budget
announcement in March 2020 and will enable the ongoing development and
delivery of capital projects, programmes and initiatives in line with the council’s
LTP Strategy. The final sum and its allocation will be dependent upon future
funding allocations and budget decisions made by the council.

OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDING

The LTP process is one of many funding sources that are used to deliver
transport schemes. For example, in 2017 the council was successful with its
£1.485m bid for the Government’s Access for Sustainable Travel Fund which
supports sustainable and accessible travel projects to help overcome barriers to
jobs and economic activity. This has been focused in the Sackville Road and
Lewes Road corridors and Whitehawk/Eastern Road. The council’s successful
application for a fourth year of this funding in 2020/21 has secured a further
£0.495m, and will be focused on the Portslade area.

As referred to in paragraph 3.27 above, investment in local transport is also
secured through the planning process via legal agreements. For example, funds
from the redevelopment of the Royal Sussex County Hospital will fund measures
within 2km of the site and the Eastern Road corridor. Other sums previously

129



3.32

3.33

4.1

5.1

5.2

secured for making bus stops and pedestrian routes accessible and level will also
be used in 2020/21 to continue these important work programmes across the city
near development sites. From June 2020 onwards, some transport funding may

also be secured through Planning process via the Community Infrastructure Levy.

The council has also successfully secured funding for major and significant
transport schemes by bidding for Local Growth Fund [LGF] money, such as the
BikeShare scheme and the three phases of Valley Gardens. This funding is
administered by the LEP and ceases to be available beyond March 2021, but any
successor funding has not yet been announced by the Government.

In future years, the LTP capital programme may also need to reflect new or
successful bids for funding, when these opportunities arise. For example, the
council led a bid on behalf of the Greater Brighton City Region to the
Government’s Transforming Cities Fund for the A259 in 2018 but unfortunately it
was not successful. However, future Government funding streams could result in
access to significant levels of investment for transport and travel in the city and
wider City Region such as the new National Roads Fund for the newly established
Major Road Network. This should, which should become available in 2020.

ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

The proposed 2020/21 LTP capital programme is consistent with the Strategy and
the principles of the Delivery Plan in the current LTP, and the proposed allocation
of capital investment will help contribute to meeting local transport and wider
policy objectives and outcomes. The programme includes commitments to
financial contributions to projects and programmes. These will have either helped
secure much larger sums of capital funding from other sources for the council, or
will be combined with other sums to invest in comprehensive improvements to the
city’s transport network. Maintaining these commitments is essential to deliver
those projects and will help support the council’s case for any similar future bids.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

The majority of the overall level of funding available through the LTP process is
the outcome of the council’s budget setting process. The proposed, detailed
2020/21 programme will be conveyed to The Connected City’s Transport
Partnership on 10 March 2020. Engagement and consultation also took place
with the Partnership in 2014/15 prior to the approval of the current LTP in March
2015. The ET&S Committee also considered and approved a number of new
projects and priorities to be progressed as part of the LTP capital
programme/Delivery Plan in November 2015.

As outlined in paragraph 3.2 of this report, many individual projects and
programmes have been, or will be, the subject of consultation with local
communities and ward councillors. Alongside the Maintenance/Renewal
programme, the delivery of Integrated Transport schemes will be considered by
the council’s Head of Traffic Management in order to minimise the potential
effects of works on the overall operation and management of the city’s transport
network.

130



5.3

6.1

7.1

7.2

Multi-agency working remains key to helping achieve improvements in service
outcomes and overall performance across the city through scheme development
and transport investment. Improving transport infrastructure and services ensures
that the council and its partners can meet the varying needs of the city, especially
at a time when achieving sustainable economic, environmental and social
outcomes, through value for money investment, are high priorities. When
required, all projects will be fully co-ordinated with other council schemes and
works by other agencies (gas, water etc) to minimise disruption and ensure
efficient use of funds.

CONCLUSION

The decision of the committees to consider and approve the allocation of the
2020/21 LTP capital programme to projects and programmes will provide a clear
indication of proposed plans for capital investment in transport using the LTP
budget, and other sources of funding such as the LGF. The overall programme is
based on the relevant allocations made at Budget Council on 27 February 2020
and it will enable works to be continued or started, which will support the
council’s, city’s and wider stakeholders’ objectives.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial implications:

In 2014, a Government announcement included the council’s indicative funding
allocations for 2020/21 from the LTP process. The sum for 2020/21 was
confirmed in the Government’s 2018 Roads Information Pack and has been
included within the council’s Capital Investment Programme 2020/21 to 2024/25.

The overall level of 2020/21 funding available through the LTP process was
approved at Budget Council in February 2020. This report sets out the proposed
use of a net sum of £4.758m worth of Government funding within the LTP capital
programme, which takes into account the return of £1.000m to council reserves
which was brought forward to fund works on the Shelter Hall project in 2019/20. It
also includes other sources of funding secured or approved, as summarised in the
table below. A fuller description and breakdown of these sums is shown in
Appendix 1 of this report. Further allocations from the additional £3.900m Budget
Council sum will be included in the revised appendix that will be circulated in
advance of this meeting.

131



7.3

7.4

7.5

2020/21

FUNDING SOURCE Allocations
(E'000s)

Government LTP Grant Funding

LTP Integrated Transport Block 3,059

LTP Highway Maintenance Block 2,110
Sub-total 5,169

Additional Government Transport Funding

Incentive Funding (estimated sum - assumes Band 3 self-assessment

ranking for Highway Asset Management) 400

Pothole Action Fund (estimated sum - assumes same allocation as

2019/20) 189
Sub-total 589

Council funding

Council borrowing — Street lighting ‘Invest to Save’ 1,792

Funding returned to reserves (from Shelter Hall 2019/20) -1,000

Additional capital funding (27/2/20 Budget Council) 3,900
Sub-total 4,692

LEP funding

Local Growth Fund [LGF] — Valley Gardens Phases 1,2 & 3 4,482
Sub-total 4,482

TOTAL TRANSPORT CAPITAL FUNDING AVAILABLE 14,932

Future years’ capital programmes will require Policy & Resources Committee
approval and will reported at future committees. Any revenue implications as a
result of these schemes including financing costs from borrowing will be met from

existing revenue budgets.
Finance Officer Consulted: Rob Allen

Legal Implications:

Date: 26/2/2020

The LTP is a statutory requirement and was adopted by Full Council in March
2015. There are no direct legal implications associated with approving the
2020/21 LTP capital programme, which are consistent with the Strategy and the
Delivery Plan set out within the LTP4. Where sums of money relate to projects
which are funded by the LEP, these are subject to formal Funding Agreements.
Any relevant legal implications will be considered when individual schemes are

brought forward for implementation.
Lawyer Consulted: Hilary Woodward

Equalities Implications:

Date: 10/2/2020

In developing specific projects and programmes within the 2020/21 LTP capital
programme, the needs of those people and communities who are identified as
having ‘protected characteristics’ (those against which discrimination is unlawful)
as defined by the Equality Act 2010 will be prioritised from the outset, and
wherever possible their needs will be incorporated into designs in order to
overcome barriers to movement that may be experienced. In doing so, this will

ensure that the transport network is made accessible to everybody, irrespective of

any protected characteristic. Improvements to local areas and strategic transport
routes will enhance the provision and choice for people, especially those with

132




7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

mobility difficulties, or other disabilities. Road safety schemes will improve
conditions for vulnerable road users.

Sustainability Implications:

LTP capital funding enables the council to meet environmental objectives set out
in the LTP4 Strategy and the council’s Sustainability Action Plan, such as a shift
towards greater use of sustainable transport, improving air quality and reducing
emissions to help achieve a carbon neutral city by 2030.

Brexit Implications

There are none.

Any Other Significant Implications:

The 2020/21 LTP capital programme helps deliver the objectives of the LTP as a
strategic document for the city, and transport and travel have a significant role in
supporting and helping achieve the city’s and council’s wider objectives across a
number of service departments. These are set out below.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

There are no direct implications arising from the proposed 2020/21 LTP capital
programme. However, the LTP4 has a particular focus on improving road safety
and personal security and, wherever possible, its projects and programmes will
seek to support the aims and priorities of the council’'s Community Safety and
Crime Reduction Strategy 2017-20, especially in helping to deliver measures that
improve the physical environment, ensure communities are stronger, and help
people feel safer. This can include work to design, improve, manage and
maintain public spaces and streets so that people feel safe. The positive use of
spaces is encouraged to ensure that crime and anti-social behaviour are
discouraged.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

The design of most transport schemes are road safety audited to ensure they
comply with current design standards. Regular monitoring and reporting
throughout the year of the LTP capital programme and its projects will minimise
any risk of not fully spending the approved investment programme. Maintenance
and renewal of the seafront as an asset to the city is identified within the council’s
Strategic Risk Register (Risk SR23 - Unable to develop an effective Investment
Strategy for the Seafront) because it includes the transport routes and highway
structures that form and support it. Investment in it therefore forms part of the
proposed 2020/21 capital programme. Investment in scheduled maintenance of
roads, pavements and cycle routes provides safer infrastructure for all users and
reduces the need for expensive reactive repairs.

Public Health Implications:

Transport and travel are critical to delivering the city’s public health objectives as
they contribute significantly to some of today‘s greatest challenges to public

133



7.12

health, including road traffic injuries, physical inactivity, the adverse effect of traffic
on social cohesiveness and the impact on outdoor air and noise pollution.
Improving people’s and communities’ health and well-being is a key objective of
the LTP4, and the LTP capital programme allows continued investment in
transport improvements that provide for and promote active travel, such as
walking and cycling. This investment also helps to improve air quality by reducing
harmful emissions therefore delivering objectives and actions set out in the
council’s Air Quality Action Plan, such as providing for electric vehicles and
enabling greater use of alternatives to the car for some journeys. Creating less
dangerous and more attractive environments, such as road safety and public
realm schemes, will improve individual and community health and quality of life.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

The LTP includes principles and objectives that will help support the city’s planned
economic growth, social development and environmental enhancement. The
annual LTP capital programme plays an important role in delivering the council’s
Corporate Plan; the City Plan Part 1 policies (especially Policy CP9 on
Sustainable Transport) and the schemes/projects identified within its associated
Infrastructure Delivery Plan. The LTP capital programme will also reflect the
current and emerging priorities and policies of the council, city, and other partners
and stakeholders which are set out in other strategies, policy documents or
statements such as the LEP’s new Strategic Economic Plan ‘Gatwick 360’; the
Greater Brighton City Region Inward Investment and Trade Strategy and 5-year
Strategic Priorities; and the outcomes set out in the 2014-2019 South Downs
National Park Partnership Management Plan. The council is also playing an
important role within the wider region by its participation in the Shadow
Partnership Board and officer groups that are part of the Sub-national Transport
Body known as Transport for the South East [TfSE]. This is helping to shape the
emerging priorities of a draft Transport Strategy, and seek powers to set
investment plans for roads and railways, reduce emissions, improve air quality
and make travelling simpler and easier which will allow it to transform travel, boost
the economy and protect the environment.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. Proposed 2020/21 LTP capital programme allocations
Note - Further allocations from the additional £3.900m Budget Council sum will be
included in a revised appendix that will be circulated in advance of this meeting.

Background Documents

1. Report and addendum to Budget Council — February 2020

2. Government’s Roads Information Pack - November 2018

3. Report to Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee (LTP Future Priorities)
— November 2015

4. Report to Full Council meeting (Approval of LTP4) — March 2015

5. Brighton & Hove City Council’s Fourth Local Transport Plan [LTP4] — March 2015

134



meeting)

Item 81 - Appendix 1

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED 2020/21 LTP CAPITAL PROGRAMME ALLOCATIONS

(Some sums will increase due to the allocation of the additional £3.9m agreed by 27/2/20
Budget Council. Proposals will be circulated in a revised appendix in advance of this

Project/Programme

Description
(see Footnotes below for explanation of symbols)

2020/21 Proposed
Allocation (£°000s)

CAPITAL RENEWAL/MAINTENANCE

Maintaining links and routes to improve.............

Surfaces Roads * 1,485
Pavement/Footways 600
Drainage Replacement of failed gullies/soakaways 95
Street Lighting Replacement of connections and columns © 300
Bridges & Structures Seafront Highway Arches Renewal Programme 200
Dyke Road Drive retaining wall 150
Hartington Road retaining walll 50
Hove Station footbridge 300
Other sites 50
Highway Asset
Management Surveys/update inventory/strategy evidence 60
CAPITAL RENEWAL/MAINTENANCE SUB-TOTAL 3,290
INTEGRATED/SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT
Connecting people with..........
Education, Training & School Streets
Learning 30
School Travel Plan Measures *** 20
SUB-TOTAL 50
Workplaces & job
opportunities Business Travel Plan Measures *** 20
Personalised Travel Planning *** 20
SUB-TOTAL 40
Shopping areas \ Boundary Road/Station Road - Portslade 75
SUB-TOTAL 75
Parks, open spaces &
the National Park Rights of Way — incl. access to National Park 40
SUB-TOTAL 40
Interchanges Cycle parking 40
Motorcycle parking 80
Accessible bus-stops 50
SUB-TOTAL 170
Improving neighbourhoods with..........
Road Safety measures | ‘High risk’ collision/casualty sites 173
Surrenden Road 75
SUB-TOTAL 248
Air Quality measures Electric vehicle charging points 70
SUB-TOTAL 70
Active travel measures | Pedestrian crossings — freestanding sites 180
Walking network — dropped kerbs and handrails 40
Cycle network *** 15
Cycling & Walking Infrastructure sites 15
Traffic Management Temple Street — experimental closure 40
SUB-TOTAL 290

continued...... /

135




Project/Programme Description

(see Footnotes below for explanation of symbols)

2020/21 Proposed
Allocation (£°000s)

Managing links and routes with..........

Technology & Travel

Information ‘Intelligent/smart’ Traffic Signals 350
SUB-TOTAL 350
Connecting people and neighbourhoods with, and improving, the ..............
City Centre & Seafront | Valley Gardens:Phases 1 & 2 — completion ** 0
Valley Gardens:Phase 3 — detailed design and
construction ** 0
Bus Network Infrastructure 50
SUB-TOTAL 50
General allocations
‘Section 106’ works Various sites * 65
Minor works Scheme completion & scoping/Monitoring 20
SUB-TOTAL 85
INTEGRATED/SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT SUB-TOTAL 1,468
TOTAL ALLOCATIONS 4,758
Allocations Initially Funded From:-
LTP Integrated Transport Block Grant Allocation 3,059
LTP Maintenance Block Grant Allocation 2,110
Additional Government Funding Sources
Highway Maintenance Incentive Fund (indicative sum — to be confirmed) 400
Pothole Action Fund (indicative sum — to be confirmed) 189
SUB-TOTAL 5,758
Additional Council and Other Funding Sources
Maintenance
Council Borrowing — Street lighting ‘Invest to Save’ 1,792
Funding returned to Reserves (from Shelter Hall 2019/20) -1,000
Additional capital funding (27/2/20 Budget Council) * 3,900
Integrated Transport
Local Growth Fund — Valley Gardens Phases 1&2 3,305
Local Growth Fund — Valley Gardens Phase 3 1,177
SUB-TOTAL 9,174
GRAND TOTALS 14,932

Footnhotes
#

- includes Incentive Funding allocation (assumed to be £400,000 based on Band 3 self-

assessment ranking) and Pothole Action Fund allocation (assumed to be £189,000 based on

allocation received in 2019/20).
@

- committed contribution to ‘/nvest to Save’ project (PR&G Committee — 8/2/16).

** - local contribution not required in 2020/21 - funded by LEP Local Growth Fund.
*** . committed contribution to DfT-funded Access Fund for Sustainable Travel project.
* - to enable design and delivery of works associated with approved development.
* - this additional sum will allocated to proposed projects and programmes in a revised

appendix that will be circulated in advance of this meeting

NOTES —
¢ In many cases, costs indicated above are preliminary estimates.

136




e Expenditure on schemes may need to be increased, reduced or deferred during a
financial year as information becomes available, such as survey results, tender returns or
unforeseen engineering difficulties.

e The timing of construction works may be subject to network co-ordination with other
council projects, development, utility companies, contractor availability and weather

conditions.

137



138



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 82
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan
(LCWIP) — Update Report

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2020

Report of: Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture

Contact Officer: Name: Paul Holloway Tel: 01273 296068

Email: paul.a.holloway@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

The council is developing a Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan
(LCWIP) for the city in order to plan strategically for walking and cycling
networks. The first meeting of the LCWIP cross-party Member and Stakeholder
Task and Finish Group (‘LCWIP Task & Finish Group’) took place in late 2019,
and agreed that a report should be brought to the next Environment, Transport &
Sustainability [ETS] Committee in order to provide an update on progress.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Committee note the report, particularly detail of the LCWIP Task &
Finish Group stakeholder organisations and the revised indicative timescale, as
set out in paragraphs 3.4 and 3.6 of this report.

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The development of an LCWIP for the city is following the technical guidance
issued by the Government, and will enable the council to review and prioritise the
infrastructure that is needed to plan and improve the city’s walking and cycling
networks. It will also ensure that the city is well placed to bid for future funding
opportunities relating to walking and cycling, and that cycling and walking are
fully included and incorporated into new developments.

The LCWIP will aim to improve the walking and cycling network, promote active
travel and enhance links between Brighton & Hove and neighbouring areas,
including the South Downs National Park. Wider benefits of the plan include
greater connectivity, equality of opportunity, improved public health and overall
quality of life for residents. It will also help meet the challenge of becoming a
carbon neutral city by 2030. The plan will lead to a 10-year prioritised
programme of walking and cycling improvements focused on principal cycling
and walking routes, and within ‘walking zones’ centred on town and local centres
with the highest levels of footfall.

139



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

On 25 June 2019 the ETS Committee agreed the draft LCWIP Scoping Report,
which included the proposed approach, governance and timescales. It also
agreed to establish a Member Task and Finish Group which would provide
councillors with oversight of the development of the LCWIP document, and
enable key stakeholders to be engaged in the process. At the 8 October 2019
ETS Committee, the Terms of Reference for the LCWIP Member Task and Finish
Group were agreed, and the first meeting of the Group took place on 10
December 2019.

Stakeholder organisations will be invited to one or more future Task and Finish
Group meetings, and the following organisations will be invited to attend, subject
to the theme/topic/scope of meeting:

e Black & Minority Ethnic Community Partnership

Bricycles

B&H Local Access Forum

B&H Older People’s Council

B&H Youth Council

B&HC Equality and Inclusion Partnership

Community Works

Cycling UK

Deafcog (Cultural Outreach Group for Deaf People)

Friends of the Earth

Living Streets

Possability People

Sustrans

Tenant Disability Group

Trust for Developing Communities.

A tendering exercise for up to £50,000 of consultancy support to provide the
technical support that the DfT recommends is undertaken to develop the LCWIP,
is currently underway. The successful supplier has been offered the appointment
subject to contract, and will start in March 2020. Full details can be found in the
issued Service Specification provided in Appendix 2. The supplier will draw on
best practice and lessons learnt from LCWIPs completed or under development
elsewhere across the country which will assist with tasks including:

e Strategic advice on LCWIP approach and methodology;

e Sourcing and analysing of relevant data and production of maps;

e Technical input on Network Planning (walking and cycling) using the range of
LCWIP tools including the Route Selection Tool, Walking Route Audit Tool
and Propensity to Cycle Tool;

e Prioritisation of schemes;

e Feasibility of high-level proposals for key schemes and their costings /
timescale estimates; and,

e Strategic advice on the incorporation of LCWIP into local policy and strategy.

A revised timescale for the completion of key stages is shown in the chart on the
following page.

140



3.7

4.1

5.1

5.2

Stage 1: Determining the scope
Continuing to March 2020

Stage 2: Gathering information
Continuing to May 2020

Stage 3 and 4: Network Planning for Cycling and Walking
April to September 2020

Stage 5: Prioritising improvements (and completed LCWIP) A
September to November 2020

Stage 6: Integration and application
From late 2020

€€€<€LL

It is expected that a completed LCWIP document incorporating a prioritised and
costed programme of infrastructure improvements will be reported to this
Committee towards the end of 2020.

ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

The DfT’s technical guidance states that ‘While the preparation of LCWIPs is
non-mandatory, Local Authorities who have plans will be well placed to make the
case for future investment.” The council is therefore committed to developing an
LCWIP for the city that will enable it to plan strategically for walking and cycling
networks, and to ensure the city is well placed for future funding opportunities
relating to walking and cycling.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

The DfT’s technical guidance states that ‘Effective engagement is critical to
ensuring that high quality LCWIPs are produced. Stakeholders should be
identified at the outset of the LCWIP process, with a planned approach to
engagement agreed.’ The guidance indicates that stakeholder engagement
commences during information gathering (Stage 2), to ensure that additional
information and data sources including perceptions on existing facilities can
supplement the significant amount of information that already exists.

It is recognised that within Brighton and Hove there are a number of
organisations, many specific to walking and cycling, who will be keen to provide
their views and suggestions as part of the LCWIP. A number of these
organisations are represented within the city’s Transport Partnership and will be
drawn from it. It is important to the council that not only key transport/travel-
related organisations are engaged well through this process, but that the wider
public are able to contribute views too.

141



5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

7.1

The early stages of the LCWIP development will be informed by a city-wide
stakeholder workshop. This will be supplemented by local stakeholder
workshops across the city to ensure that the diverse range of local issues and
desired improvements across all areas of the city are identified early on, to feed
into the development of the city-wide LCWIP. Information gathering will be
supplemented by further workshops with officers across the council’s City
Transport Division and other council teams, and relevant information gained from
other public consultations taking place such as the Sport and Physical Activity
survey.

The stakeholder organisations listed in paragraph 3.4 have been identified to
contribute to the LCWIP Task & Finish Group. The wider programme of
engagement for the remaining stages in developing LCWIP will be finalised in
line with advice from the consultants appointed to provide the technical support,
drawing on their experience and knowledge of preparing other LCWIPs across
the country. The engagement programme will capture relevant feedback gained
from engagement activities on the development of the council’s fifth Local
Transport Plan (LTP5), and the city’s Climate Assembly outputs, including
recommendations.

Of further relevance to the development of the LCWIP is this Committee’s
decision on 21 January 2020 after considering a deputation. It agreed to receive
a report later this year which will review the reasons for the use of gates to
manage and control vehicles using certain streets at certain times because of the
barriers that they are considered to create for cycling and walking. The report
will explore a more considered and evidence-based approach to the use and
implementation of gates to achieve particular outcomes. The report will also
consider establishing a cycle forum.

CONCLUSION

The development of an LCWIP will enable the council to review and prioritise the
infrastructure that is needed to plan and improve the city’s walking and cycling
networks. It will also ensure that the city is well placed to bid for future funding
opportunities relating to walking and cycling, and that cycling and walking are
fully included and incorporated into new developments.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

A one-off allocation of £75,000 was agreed at the Budget Council meeting in
February 2019 to support consultation, research and analysis for the
development of a LCWIP. It is anticipated that delivery of the priorities identified
within the LCWIP, when completed, will be achieved through capital works
funded mainly by future Local Transport Plan (LTP) capital programmes subject
to appropriate approvals in accordance with Financial Regulations and
Procedures. Officers will seek to identify other external funding sources to
support the delivery of the LCWIP, such as ongoing or new funds which could
become available from Government or Coast to Capital Local Economic
Partnership (LEP).

Finance Officer Consulted: Steven Bedford Date: 28/02/20

142



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Legal Implications:

There are no direct legal implications associated with the development of the
LCWIP. Any relevant legal implications will be considered when individual
schemes are brought forward for implementation.

Lawyer Consulted: Hilary Woodward Date: 27/2/20

Equalities Implications:

In developing the LCWIP the needs of those people and communities who are
identified as having ‘protected characteristics’ (those against which discrimination
is unlawful) as defined by the Equality Act 2010 will be prioritised from the outset.
The LCWIP guidance states that ‘LCWIPs should reflect the needs of all’.
Wherever possible, the needs of individual groups and communities will be
incorporated into the LCWIP process in order to overcome barriers to movement
that may be experienced. In doing so, this will ensure that the transport network
is made accessible to everybody. Walking and cycling infrastructure
improvements to local areas will enhance the provision and choice for people,
especially those with mobility difficulties, or other disabilities, and will improve
conditions for vulnerable road users. This will also ensure that the council
complies with the public sector equality duty to have due regard to the need to
eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good
relations between different people.

Sustainability Implications:

Improvements to walking and cycling infrastructure across Brighton and Hove will
enable higher levels of active travel and reduce the attractiveness or need to
travel by motorised transport. This will support the delivery of the forthcoming
2030 Carbon Neutral Programme, along with related environmental and transport
objectives, including those set out in LTP4 and the Sustainable Community
Strategy, such as a shift towards greater use of sustainable transport.

Brexit Implications:

There are none.

Any Other Significant Implications:

These are outlined in Appendix 1 of this report.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1.
2.

Other Significant Implications
LCWIP Technical Support — Service Specification

143



Background Documents

1.

2.
3.

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans Technical Guidance for Local
Authorities, Department for Transport, April 2017

Budget Report to Full Council, February 2019

Report to Environment, Transport and Sustainability Committee, June 2019 —
‘Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) - approval of Scoping
Report’

Report to Environment, Transport and Sustainability Committee, October 2019 -
‘Member Task and Finish Groups' Terms of Reference’

144



Item 82 — Appendix 1

Other Significant Implications

11

1.2

1.3

Crime & Disorder Implications:

There are no direct implications arising from developing an LCWIP for the city.
However, in improving walking and cycling infrastructure the plan will have a
particular focus on improving road safety and personal security and, wherever
possible, the identified improvements will seek to support the aims and priorities
of the council’s Community Safety and Crime Reduction Strategy 2017-20,
especially in helping to deliver measures that improve the physical environment,
ensure communities are stronger, and help people feel safer. Improvements are
expected to include measures that improve public spaces and streets so that
people feel safer, while discouraging crime and anti-social behaviour.

Public Health Implications:

Transport and travel are critical to delivering the city’s public health objectives as
they contribute significantly to some of today‘s greatest challenges to public
health, including road traffic injuries, physical inactivity, the adverse effect of
traffic on social cohesiveness and the impact on outdoor air and noise pollution.
Improvements to walking and cycling infrastructure will help address these
challenges through enabling an increase in levels of active travel. Improving the
health and well-being of people and communities will be a key objective of the
plan. By enabling greater levels of walking and cycling, the plan will also help to
improve air quality by reducing harmful emissions if people switch from motorised
transport. This will help deliver the objectives and actions set out in the council’s
Air Quality Action Plan, such as enabling greater use of alternatives to the car for
some journeys. Creating less dangerous and more attractive environments, such
as road safety and public realm schemes, will improve individual and community
health and quality of life.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

The LCWIP will include improvements to help support the city’s planned
economic growth, social development and environmental enhancement. It will
support in delivering the council’s forthcoming 2030 Carbon Neutral Programme,
along with the Corporate Plan, Sustainable Community Strategy, the City Plan
Part 1 policies (especially Policy CP9 on Sustainable Transport) and its
associated Infrastructure Delivery Plan. The improvements will also reflect the
current and emerging priorities and policies of the council, city, and other
partners and stakeholders which are set out in other strategies or plans such as
the city’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2019-2030), Rights of Way
Improvement Plan (2017-27), and the South Downs National Park Cycling and
Walking Strategy (2017-2024). Working with neighbouring authorities will
improve cross-boundary walking and cycling links and strategic routes within the
Greater Brighton City Region contributing to its five-year strategic priorities.
Improved cross-boundary links will support the priorities within the draft Transport
Strategy of Transport for the South East [TfSE], the Sub-national Transport Body.
Once complete, the LCWIP content will be integrated into local and sub-regional
planning, transport and wider policies, strategies and delivery plans.

145



146



Schedule 1 - Service

Specification

Contract name: Local Cycling and
Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP)
Technical Support

Reference: LCWIP

by

Brighton & Hove
City Council

147



Contents Page

1. OVERVIEW OF PROJECT ... 3
2. SERVICE REQUIREMENTS ... ..o e 3
3. BUDGET/FUNDING......coiiiittiitiieeee ettt e e e e e e 11

148



1. OVERVIEW OF PROJECT

1.1 Summary

Brighton & Hove City Council (BHCC) has committed to developing a Local Cycling and Walking
Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) and local budget has been identified to support this process. BHCC
applied for technical support from the Department for Transport (DfT) in 2017 but was
unsuccessful.

BHCC now wishes to commission a suitable supplier to support the technical development of the
LCWIP, a process which will be led by BHCC officers. The supplier should have experience of
successfully applying the DfT LCWIP Technical Guidance for a number of UK Local Authorities,
ideally through the DfT LCWIP Technical Support programme.

The objectives of the procurement are:
e To provide technical support (following DfT guidance) to BHCC to enable the preparation of
the draft Brighton & Hove LCWIP by autumn 2020; and,
e Apply best practice and lessons learnt from LCWIPs completed or under development
elsewhere across the country.

The Contract will be established for an initial period of eight (8) months with an option to extend for
a further period or periods up to a total of four (4) months taking the Contract term to a maximum of
one (1) year. The Contract is intended to start on 9 March 2020 or as otherwise agreed.

Any subsequent extension to the Contract will be agreed between the Customer and the Service
Provider. It is likely that the Customer will seek the Service Provider to demonstrate improvements
and/or price reductions before considering an extension. For any extension(s) to the Contract,
discussions with the Service Provider shall be conducted sufficiently far in advance of the Contract
expiry date to arrive at an agreed position.

2. SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
2.1 Background

In support of the government’s Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy (CWIS), the Department
for Transport (DfT) has been encouraging local authorities to prepare a Local Cycling and Walking
Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP).

Brighton & Hove City Council (BHCC) is committed to developing a LCWIP for the city in order to
plan strategically for walking and cycling networks, and to ensure the city is well placed for future
funding opportunities relating to walking and cycling.

Technical guidance (Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans: Technical Guidance for Local
Authorities) is available from DfT, detailing the suggested process for undertaking a LCWIP and
the tools available to assist with this.

The improvements identified in the LCWIP will support the council’s ambitions for increasing levels
of active travel across Brighton & Hove and to/from neighbouring areas, thereby contributing to
reducing carbon emissions while improving air quality, connectivity, equality of opportunity, public
health, public realm, safety, security, and overall quality of life. They will help increase the
attractiveness of the city for both residents and visitors.

BHCC wishes to commission a suitable supplier to support the technical development of the
Brighton & Hove LCWIP, a process which will be led by BHCC officers in the council’s City
Transport Division. Preparation and approval of the LCWIP document itself will be undertaken by
the council with input from the supplier. The supplier must have experience of successfully

149



applying the DfT LCWIP Technical Guidance for a number of UK Local Authorities, ideally through
the DfT LCWIP Technical Support programme.

The current programme proposes delivery of the completed LCWIP in autumn 2020. An indicative
timescale for the completion of key stages as set out in the LCWIP technical guidance is provided
below; some of these stages will not require support from the supplier, as detailed later.
Confirmation of the programme will be subject to further discussion with the appointed consultant.

Stage Name Timescale

Stage 1 Determining the scope Continuing to March 2020

Stage 2 Gathering information Continuing to April 2020

Stages 3/4 Network Planning for Cycling and Walking April to September 2020

Stage 5 Prioritising improvements (and completed September to October 2020
LCWIP)

Stage 6 Integration and application From late 2020

A draft Scoping Report was prepared in spring 2019 to set out the geographical extent, proposed
delivery and governance arrangements and timescales. It went to the council’s Environment,
Transport & Sustainability Committee on 25 June 2019 for approval, and can be found on the
following webpage (see Item 17). Note that some content of the report is pending an update,
particularly the engagement strategy and timescales.
https://present.brighton-hove.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=823&MId=9506&Ver=4

Work has also commenced on Stage 2 with the collation of background data including the existing
walking and cycling network, travel patterns (including key cycling corridors) and key trip
generators across the city. This has been undertaken at a broad strategic level rather than detailed
local level. Some of this can feed into the Stages 3 and 4 tasks. BHCC officers have also
undertaken initial internal officer workshops on the development of the LCWIP, and are currently
preparing a policy and strategy review. The outputs of these will be provided to the appointed
supplier on commencement of the work.

It is proposed that the initial stages of the LCWIP development are undertaken at a more local level
(with the city split into six broad sub-areas) to ensure that the diverse range of local issues and
desired improvements across all areas of the city are identified early on, to feed into the
development of a city-wide LCWIP. Support will be required with collation and review of strategic
data as well as collection and analysis of local supporting data.

2.2 Integration with Plans, Policies and Strategies

The LCWIP will support delivery of the council’s Sustainable Community Strategy and City Plan
(the city’s development plan), and once completed the outputs will be integrated into local
planning, transport and wider policies, strategies and delivery plans. It will be prepared in close
partnership with work areas across the council including economic development, public health,
sustainability, and tourism. It will be a core plan to support delivery of the council’s 2030 Carbon
Neutral Programme.

BHCC has in place Local Transport Plan 4 (LTP4), adopted in 2015, the objectives of which need
to be considered in this commission. There will be a need to provide linkages with the emerging
new LTP (LTP5), work on which has recently commenced, and other relevant projects including
LCWIPs and/or cycling and walking strategies being developed, or in place, in neighbouring
authorities, in East and West Sussex; as well as any further developments to national guidance.

Improvements set out in the LCWIP will support in delivering a wider range of priorities and
projects across Brighton & Hove, and neighbouring areas inside the Greater Brighton City Region.
They will reflect the current and emerging priorities and policies of the council, city, and other
partners and stakeholders. Development of the LCWIP will be informed by, or inform, a number of
plans and strategies (and the review of these) including the following:

e BHCC Sustainable Community Strategy (2014)

150



https://present.brighton-hove.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=823&MId=9506&Ver=4

BHCC Corporate Plan (2019-2022)

BHCC City Plan Part 1 (2016) and Part 2 (evolving)

BHCC Local Transport Plan 4 (2015)

BHCC Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2019-2030)

BHCC Rights of Way Improvement Plan (2017-2027)

BHCC Open Spaces Strategy (2017)

BHCC Visitor Economy Strategy (2018)

South Downs National Park Partnership Management Plan (2014-2019)
South Downs National Park Cycling and Walking Strategy (2017-2024)
Brighton & Hove and Lewes Downs Biosphere [The Living Coast] Partnership Management
Strategy (2014-2019)

Shoreham Harbour Joint Area Action Plan (2018)

e Greater Brighton Economic Board — 5 Year Strategic Priorities (2019)

e Transport for the South East — Transport Strategy (draft)

2.3 Scope of Services

BHCC wishes to commission a suitable supplier to support the technical development of the
LCWIP, a process which will be led by BHCC officers in the council’s City Transport Division.
Preparation of the LCWIP document itself will be undertaken by the council. The supplier must
have experience of successfully applying the DfT LCWIP Technical Guidance for a number of UK
Local Authorities, ideally through the DfT LCWIP Technical Support programme.

The supplier will assist with tasks covering the following areas:

e Strategic advice on LCWIP approach and methodology;

e Sourcing and analysing of additional relevant data to inform the prescribed LCWIP process;
Production of maps to inform the LCWIP process, displaying relevant information in map
form;

e Technical input on Network Planning (walking and cycling) using the range of LCWIP tools
including the Route Selection Tool, Walking Route Audit Tool and Propensity to Cycle Tool
(PCT);

Prioritisation of schemes;

o Feasibility of high-level proposals for key schemes and their costings / timescale estimates;
and,

e Strategic advice on the incorporation of LCWIP into local policy and strategy.

Specific tasks required (subject to confirmation at inception) under each prescribed stage of the
LCWIP process are as follows; these should be reviewed alongside the contents of the LCWIP
Technical Guidance. We anticipate that the majority of consultant support will be directed to
undertaking Stages 3 and 4, including on-site assessment and auditing. Consultants will be
expected to work at Hove Town Hall on a regular basis.

Details of deliverables are provided later in section 2.6.

Stage 1: Determining the scope
e Provision of strategic advice on the approach for the LCWIP, including engagement and
document content/structure, drawing on best practice and lessons learnt from LCWIPs
completed or under development elsewhere across the country.

Stage 2: Gathering information
e Sourcing, analysing and collating additional background data where required
¢ ldentification and mapping of existing walking and cycling networks
o Identification and mapping of existing travel patterns, including journey distances, principal
corridors and modal split
¢ Identification and mapping of trip generators (existing and planned)
¢ Identification of data on perceptions of existing facilities, and mapping of key issues/gaps

151




Use of existing tools such as Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT) to analyse commuting and
schools data and produce maps for the city and sub-areas based on this data

Strategic input to the stakeholder engagement process, with support at a number
presentations or workshops (see section 2.6 Deliverables below for details)

Option of provision of an interactive tool for stakeholder / public engagement on LCWIP
(optional requirement — please set out previous examples and benefits of such a tool for
engagement)

Interpretation and utilisation of data and information from stakeholder engagement

Note that the following will be undertaken by BHCC staff:

Review of local and sub-regional plans, policies and strategies

Stages 3 & 4: Network Planning for Cycling and Walking

Mapping trip origin and destination points for walking and cycling

Identifying and mapping desire lines for walking and cycling

Classification of desire lines for walking and cycling

Establishing network density for walking and cycling

Mapping of ‘long list’ of walking and cycling network improvements

Utilisation of Route Selection Tool (RST) for selected routes to audit

Establishing cycling infrastructure improvements (with site visits to establish most suitable
improvements and deliverability)

Development of Cycling Network Map

Development of a set of key design principles for each category of mapped cycling routes
Development of Cycling Infrastructure Improvements programme

Identify and map Core Walking Zones

Identify and map Core Walking Routes

Identify barrier and funnel routes for walking

Use of Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) for auditing of Core Walking Routes and Core
Walking Zones

Establish walking infrastructure improvements (with site visits to establish most suitable
improvements and deliverability)

Development of Walking Network Map

Development of a set of key design principles for each category of mapped walking routes
and zones

Development of Walking Infrastructure Improvements programme

Strategic input to the stakeholder engagement process, with support at a number
presentations or workshops (see section 2.6 Deliverables below for details)

Stage 5: Prioritising improvements (and completed LCWIP)

Development of prioritisation criteria, in agreement with the BHCC staff

Development of high level costs of types of infrastructure measures

Development of proposed timescales for delivery of walking and cycling improvements, for
delivery over short, medium and long term

Review of the appraisal and prioritisation exercise (once completed by BHCC staff)

Note that the following will be undertaken by BHCC staff:

High level appraisal of schemes

Prioritisation of improvements, considering effectiveness, cost and deliverability
Development of a Prioritised Programme of cycling and walking infrastructure
improvements

Stage 6: Integration and application

Provision of strategic advice on the incorporation of LCWIP into local policy and strategy

Existing Data and Information

On being appointed to undertake this project, the following existing data and information (updated
where relevant) will be provided, dependent on current status:

152




2.4

Demographic data summaries for each ward, from Census 2011 data

Socio-economic data and maps, via the Brighton & Hove Connected ‘Community Insight’
resource: https://brighton-hove.communityinsight.org/map/

Physical activity data (Active Lives Survey)

Automated traffic counts https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/parking-and-
travel/travel-transport-and-road-safety/counting-traffic-brighton-and-hove

Automated cycle counts https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/parking-and-
travel/travel-transport-and-road-safety/counting-traffic-brighton-and-hove

Travel to work summaries, from Census 2011 data

School Travel data, including hands up surveys

School Travel Plan documents, including note of barriers to active travel and issues around
each school area

Workplace travel data

Data from Sustrans Bike It project

Bus passenger data (DfT)

Rail station usage data (Office of Road and Rail)

BTN Bikeshare data — usage, demographics, wider transport use, bike ownership (Hourbike
and CoMo UK)

Primary school and workplace walking zone maps

National Highways & Transport (NHT) survey data

Brighton & Hove visitor survey
https://www.visitbrighton.com/dbimgs/Visitor%20Survey%20Report%202018.pdf
Brighton & Hove cycle map http://www.brightonandhovecyclemap.com/

Highway maintenance priority routes maps

Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) maps https://www.brighton-
hove.gov.uk/content/leisure-and-libraries/parks-and-green-spaces/rights-way

Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) maps https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/parking-
and-travel/parking/parking-zone-information

Cycling propensity data and maps (commuting and school travel) www.pct.bike

Collision data and maps — pedestrians and cyclists
http://www.dashboard.sussexsrp.org.uk/collisions/

Traffic congestion maps — Highways Analyst using DfT TrafficMaster data

City Plan area maps (site allocations) https://www.brighton-
hove.gov.uk/content/planning/planning-policy/city-plan-part-one

Governance

The Senior Responsible Officer and Project Manager will be based in the Transport Policy and
Strategy team (in the council’s City Transport Division), who will be supported by a small delivery
team. The Project Board will comprise of key officers including those in transport, planning, public
health and public rights of way. A cross-party councillor and (co-opted) stakeholder Task & Finish
Group will be in place to perform an advisory role to inform and scrutinise officer proposals as the
project is delivered. The proposed governance arrangements are summarised below.

153



https://brighton-hove.communityinsight.org/map/
https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/parking-and-travel/travel-transport-and-road-safety/counting-traffic-brighton-and-hove
https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/parking-and-travel/travel-transport-and-road-safety/counting-traffic-brighton-and-hove
https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/parking-and-travel/travel-transport-and-road-safety/counting-traffic-brighton-and-hove
https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/parking-and-travel/travel-transport-and-road-safety/counting-traffic-brighton-and-hove
https://www.visitbrighton.com/dbimgs/Visitor%20Survey%20Report%202018.pdf
http://www.brightonandhovecyclemap.com/
https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/leisure-and-libraries/parks-and-green-spaces/rights-way
https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/leisure-and-libraries/parks-and-green-spaces/rights-way
https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/parking-and-travel/parking/parking-zone-information
https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/parking-and-travel/parking/parking-zone-information
http://www.pct.bike/
http://www.dashboard.sussexsrp.org.uk/collisions/
https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/planning/planning-policy/city-plan-part-one
https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/planning/planning-policy/city-plan-part-one

Coast to Capital oo
Political _ Key additional S T
e stakeholders & elighbouring

Brighton . authorities
members Economic Board general public

Taskand Project Board — BHCC - comprised of key officers in City
Finish Group Transport, Public Health and Planning

Senior Responsible Owner

Core Project Team

Project Manager

Wider BHCC
Officers e.g.
Public Health

Transport Highway Land Use
Planners Engineers Planners

2.5 Engagement

Within Brighton & Hove there are a number of organisations, many specific to walking and cycling,
who will be keen to feed in views and suggestions to the LCWIP. It is important to the council that
not only key organisations are engaged well through this process but that non-cyclists, ‘harder to
reach’ groups and the wider public are able to contribute views too. This is particularly important to
ensure walking as a mode is fully represented within the document.

Details of the engagement strategy are still to be confirmed; we welcome suggestions from the
supplier, based on their experience of LCWIP development for other authorities, and their wider
knowledge of the DfT LCWIP programme nationally. The proposed engagement strategy, including
suggested stakeholders, is set out in the draft LCWIP Scoping Report. The BHCC Transport
Partnership, part of the Brighton & Hove Strategic Partnership, comprises transport lead
councillors, transport operators and providers, cycling and walking groups, and other local
transport user groups.

Full consultation with wider stakeholder groups and the general public is planned to take place
during Stages 2 and during Stages 3/4, once draft Cycling and Walking Network Maps and
Programmes of Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Improvements are available. Where possible,
engagement will be timed to take place as part of the wider community and stakeholder
engagement on LTP5. As part of the Stage 2 consultation, local area walkabouts and workshops
will be held across the city, which will be split into six sub-areas for this purpose.

Initial engagement workshops with officers from across the City Transport Division and wider
council teams took place in spring 2019, with more recent LTP5 officer workshops during autumn
2019. Notes from these meetings will be provided to the supplier upon appointment.

The engagement programme will be managed by the BHCC project team with input from the

supplier, as suggested below. Development of stakeholder and public consultation materials, and
its analysis and results, will be informed and managed by the Transport Division’s Policy &

154




Research Team. The supplier will be required to ensure that the data and feedback are fed into the
LCWIP process and outputs appropriately.

The Tenderer should price for attendance (and supporting presentational material) at a total of 21
engagement workshops, as set out below.

Stage Workshop attendance

Stage 2 6X combined local (sub-area) walkabout and member/stakeholder workshops to
invite feedback on current network and suggested future improvements (3 hours
each)

Stage 2 3X internal stakeholder workshops to support information gathering including
feedback on existing facilities (3 hours each)

Stage 2 1X Transport Partnership workshop to support information gathering including
feedback on existing facilities (3 hours)

Stage 3 6X sub-area member/stakeholder workshops to invite feedback on draft cycling

and walking networks, and programme of improvements, and discuss prioritisation
(3 hours each)

Stage 3 3Xinternal / 1X external stakeholder workshops to invite feedback on draft cycling
and walking networks, and programme of improvements, and discuss prioritisation
(3 hours each)

Stage 3 1X Transport Partnership workshop to invite feedback on draft cycling and walking
networks and programme of improvements, and discuss prioritisation (3 hours)

Stage 4 Combined with Stage 3

Stage 4 Combined with Stage 3

Stage 5 None

Stage 6 None

2.6 Deliverables
Key outputs from the appointed consultant are as follows:

Stage 2: Gathering information

o Background Report to map/summarise the findings of Stage 2, including key data
analysis, identification of trip generators, and feedback from stakeholders and the public
consultation. BHCC will provide a summary of local policy and strategy to be included in the
report

o Excel files with detailed data for data analysis undertaken at this stage

e Other draft maps which informed the process, e.g. existing travel patterns, existing walking
and cycling networks, trip generators (existing and planned)
Outputs and analysis from tools e.g. PCT

o Additional outputs from stakeholder engagement activities
Workshop attendance as set out above

Stage 3 & 4: Network Planning for Cycling and Walking
e Draft and Final Cycling Network Map
Draft and Final Programme of Cycle Infrastructure Improvements
Draft and Final Walking Network Map
Draft and Final Programme of Walking Infrastructure Improvements
Other draft maps which informed the above process, e.g. trip origin / destination points,
desire lines, long list of network improvements identified
Detailed outputs from Route Selection Tool (RST) and Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT)
Additional outputs from stakeholder engagement activities
e Workshop attendance as set out above

Stage 5: Prioritising improvements (and completed LCWIP)
o Inputs (as set out under the specific tasks listed under Stage 5 in section 2.3) to inform the
Prioritised programme of cycling and walking infrastructure improvements (to be prepared
by BHCC staff)

155



¢ Comments on the appraisal and prioritisation exercise undertaken by BHCC staff

In addition, the appointed consultant will provide inputs to and attend monthly Project Board
meetings and be required to attend up to three meetings of the Task & Finish Group.

The indicative programme for completing key deliverables is as follows:

Stage Deliverable Completion date

Stage 2 Background Report April 2020

Stage 3 Draft Cycling Network Map and Programme of Cycle June 2020
Infrastructure Improvements

Stage 4 Draft Walking Network Map and Programme of Walking June 2020
Infrastructure Improvements

Stage 3 Final Cycling Network Map and Programme of Cycle September 2020
Infrastructure Improvements

Stage 4 Final Walking Network Map and Programme of Walking September 2020
Infrastructure Improvements

Stage 5 Prioritised (and costed) programme of cycling and walking | October 2020
infrastructure improvements

Project management and reporting

It is proposed that the Tenderer’s project manager meets the following reporting arrangements:
e Monthly meeting (at BHCC) or conference call
o Fortnightly progress email, to include a summary of completed tasks, planned tasks and
live project risk register

Specifications, standards, and format

The services required under this commission must be carried out in accordance with the
Department for Transport document ‘LCWIP Technical Guidance.’

Consultant staff carrying out the work must be familiar with the application of the guidance and
have extensive experience of delivering LCWIP work within the required procedures, tools and
formats.

Output formats include maps, data and research, and documents in line with the LCWIP guidance
format and content. For mapping outputs, each shapefile package will need to include .shp, .shx,
and .dbf files.

The services required in this brief (research, data, drawings, plans etc.) must be reported on and
presented in a format (to be recommended by the Consultant), that will provide the
information/insight required by BHCC, to enable the project’s progress and conclusions to be easily
interpreted and transferred into more publicly available formats e.g. committee reports.

All data collected and reports created, by the service provider, or by a third party for all work
related to this brief must be made directly retrievable to the employer (Brighton & Hove City
Council) electronically.

2.7 IT & Information Governance

2.7.1 The Supplier undertakes to process the Council’s Data in compliance with the Data
Protection Legislation. The Supplier will notify the Council of any breaches of Council data
as soon as possible upon becoming aware of them and no later than 72 hours following
becoming aware of the breach.

2.7.2 The provider must have in place appropriate organisational structures, policies and
processes in place to understand, assess and systematically manage security risks to

156




personal data so as to comply fully with all applicable Data Protection Legislation. Personal
data must be processed in a manner that ensures appropriate security of the personal data,
including protection against unauthorised or unlawful processing and against accidental
loss, destruction or damage, using appropriate technical or organisational measures. The
Provider may be required to enter into a data sharing agreement with the Council.

2.7.3 The Supplier should be certified to ISO/IEC 27001:2013 or be able to demonstrate that its
policies, procedures and information risk management processes are of an equivalent
standard.

2.7.4 The Council and Supplier will agree on the location of data hosting at the time of contact
signing. The Supplier undertakes not to take any actions to change the location of data
storage or other processing without written permission from the Council.

2.7.5 The Supplier will not transfer data to any country or territory outside the European
Economic Area (EEA).

2.7.6 The Supplier will host the data in accordance with National Cyber Security Centre (“NCSC”)
Cloud Security Principles.

2.8 Mobilisation

Key dates for mobilisation are as follows:
e Award of Contract: 17 February 2020
e Contract commencement: 9 March 2020
e Inception meeting: Week commencing 9 March 2020

2.9 Quality and Standards

The supplier will be required to undertake the commission in accordance with the DfT’s Technical
guidance (Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans: Technical Guidance for Local
Authorities).

The supplier will be expected to undertake tasks to enable the submission of deliverables in line
with the completion dates (to be confirmed on award) set out in the Deliverables section above.
Progress will be kept under review during the proposed project management and reporting
arrangements sets out above.

The supplier will be required to comply with the minimum sustainability standards set out in the
BCHH sustainability policy, which can be found here Council’s Sustainability policy

2.10 Staff

Supplier staff should have experience of successfully applying the DfT LCWIP Technical Guidance
for a number of UK Local Authorities, ideally through the DfT LCWIP Technical Support
programme.

Delivery of some of the tasks (particularly for Stages 3 and 4) and project management activities
will require Service Provider staff to be based in the Brighton & Hove City Council area, including
working on highways, in BHCC offices (Hove Town Hall) and attending stakeholder engagement

activities at different venues. The chosen supplier will be required to have stringent health and
safety policies in place in relation to working away from the supplier’s offices.

3. BUDGET/FUNDING

£50,000 is available for this commission.

Payment will be staged in relation to the completion of the key deliverables for LCWIP stages 2,
3/4 and 5, as set out below.

157



http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/sites/brighton-hove.gov.uk/files/Sustainability%20Policy%20v8.pdf

Stage Deliverable Anticipated Payment
completion date
Stage 2 ¢ Background Report April 2020 25%
Stages 3/4 e Draft Cycling Network Map June 2020 25%
¢ Draft Programme of Cycle
Infrastructure Improvements
¢ Draft Walking Network Map
e Draft Programme of Walking
Infrastructure Improvements
Stages 3/4 ¢ Final Cycling Network Map September 2020 25%
¢ Final Programme of Cycle
Infrastructure Improvements
¢ Final Walking Network Map
e Final Programme of Walking
Infrastructure Improvements
Stage 5 e Comments on the appraisal and October 2020 25%

prioritisation exercise undertaken

158




ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 83
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Traffic Regulation Orders Update Report
Date of Meeting: 17" March 2020
Report of: Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture
Contact Officer: Name: Catherine Dighan Tel: 01273 292235
Email: catherine.dighan@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: East Brighton, Hove Park, Patcham, Withdean

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

The purpose of this report is to update Committee on the recent Traffic
Regulation Orders advertised.

The first is following a request from CityClean for double yellow lines in Manor
Close while the second is for double yellow lines outside of a newly introduced
parking scheme (Zone P) in the Hove Park area. The roads consist of Hazeldene
Meads, The Beeches, The Deneway, Waylands Avenue, Withdean Road and
Woodland Drive.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That the Committee, having taken into account of all the duly made
representations and objection, approves the following order as advertised for

Manor Close.

Brighton & Hove Outer Areas (Waiting, Loading and Parking) and Cycle
Lanes Consolidation Order 2018 Amendment Order No*202* (TRO-33-2019)

That the Committee, having taken into account of all the duly made
representations and objections approves the following order;

Brighton & Hove Outer Areas (Waiting, Loading and Parking) and Cycle
Lanes Consolidation Order 2018 Amendment Order No*202* (TRO-41b-
2019)

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Manor Close — double yellow lines

The Parking Infrastructure Team received a request for a number of changes to
parking restrictions from Cityclean to help them with collections of refuse and

recycling. The draft Traffic Regulation Order was advertised on 8th November
with the closing date for comments and objections on 29th November 2019. The

159



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Ward Councillors for the areas were consulted, as were the statutory consultees
such as the Emergency Services.

Notices with the information about the proposals were erected within the roads
with proposed parking restrictions for 8th November. The notice was also
published in the Brighton & Hove Independent newspaper on 8th November.
Detailed plans and the draft Traffic Regulation Order were available to view at
the Customer Service centres at Bartholomew House and Hove Town Hall.

There was 1 item of correspondence from a resident of the area objecting to the
proposals in Manor Close, a plan showing the proposals is shown in Appendix A.
The other proposals received no objection and have been implemented.

The reasons for objection are that there are already limited parking spaces in the
road with a number of elderly and disabled people, the spaces are needed not
just for residents but carers and other support staff. Reducing the number of
possible spaces will make the situation worse.

Manor Close is very narrow and, while small vehicles can use the road, large
vehicles such as the refuse truck have to unfortunately bump up onto the
pavement to be able to access the road.

There is a telegraph pole just north of no.2 Manor Close and this prevents large
vehicles being able to bump up onto the pavement. This means when cars are
parked opposite no large vehicle can access the road including emergency
service vehicles. Cityclean have requested these road markings as they have
been unable to collect rubbish/recycling.

The other stretch of double yellow lines proposed cover a dropped kerb which
should be kept clear as access is needed to allow mobility scooters and
wheelchairs to be able to get off the pavement and access vehicles on the road.
A white return line has been tried but motorists are parking over it. it will also
allow more room for people to manoeuvre in this turning circle.

Parking restriction proposals outside of newly introduced Zone P (Hove
Park area)

Following the implementation of the Zone P controlled parking zone, the Parking
Infrastructure Team received a number of requests for changes to parking
restrictions just outside the new zone. The draft Traffic Regulation Order was
advertised on 20™ December 2019 with the closing date for comments on 17th
January 2020 .This period was extended from the standard 21 days to 28 days to
give extra time for comments due to the festive period. The Ward Councillors for
the areas were consulted, as were the statutory consultees such as the
Emergency Services.

Notices with the information about the proposals were erected within the roads
with proposed parking restrictions for 20" December 2020. The notice was also
published in the Brighton & Hove Independent newspaper on 20" December
2020. Detailed plans and the draft Traffic Regulation Order were available to
view at the Customer Service centres at Bartholomew House and Hove Town
Hall. A plan showing the proposals is shown in Appendix B

160



3.10

3.11

3.12

3.14

3.15

There were 83 items of correspondence from residents of the areas objecting to
the proposals in Hazeldene Meads, The Beeches, The Deneway, Waylands
Avenue, Withdean Road and Woodland Drive. The comments/objections are
listed in Appendix C.

Hazeldene Meads and The Beeches

There were 8 comments mainly objecting that the proposals didn’t go far enough.
The resident concerns have been considered although the proposed no waiting
at any time is recommended to ensure that junctions are kept clear for safety
reasons and not to control parking outside of residents’ properties.

There has been a number of residents who have come forward requesting a
controlled parking scheme and this was considered on the last Parking scheme
timetable report presented to this Committee in October 2019. At that time it was
recommended in the report that more residential support was needed to proceed
with a consultation for a controlled parking scheme. It was also outlined in
response to a petition at the same meeting that Members of this Committee
would need to agree to this being an additional scheme starting in early 2022
following the work listed, or that this replaces another scheme consultation on the
timetable with others starting later. Neither of these were taken forward as an
amendment to the current agreed parking scheme timetable but will be
considered in any future review of this timetable when presented to a further
Committee.

The Deneway

3.13 There were 6 comments, objecting that the double yellow line proposals
didn’t go far enough and that the limited waiting parking proposals were not
required in the layby. Whilst we appreciate the resident’s concerns, the proposed
no waiting at any time is recommended to ensure that obstruction to passing
traffic was minimised whilst balancing the needs of resident’s and their visitors
that do need to park on-street. It is felt, however, that the limited waiting proposal
should be withdrawn due to the number of objections to the loss of parking.

Waylands Avenue

No comments were received specifically to the proposed no waiting at time at this
location.

Withdean Road

There were 16 comments, mainly supporting the proposals but wanting further
restrictions. Whilst we appreciate the resident’s concerns, the proposed no
waiting at any time is recommended to ensure that obstruction to passing traffic
was minimised and not to control parking outside of residents’ properties.
However, the comments have been noted and we have recently advertised
further restrictions in this road due the correspondence received. Any comments
or concerns outlined in writing during the consultation period can be reported
back to a further Committee if applicable.

161



3.16

4.1

4.2

5.1

6.1

7.4

7.2

7.3

Woodland Drive

There were 8 comments, mainly supporting the proposals but wanting further
restrictions. The proposed no waiting at any time is recommended to ensure that
obstruction to passing traffic was minimised and not to control parking outside of
residents’ properties.

ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

The main alternative option is doing nothing which would mean the proposals
would not be taken forward.

It is, however, the recommendation of officers that the recommended proposals
are agreed for the reasons outlined within the report.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

As set out in the body of the report.

CONCLUSION

As set out in the body of the report and within the recommendations.
FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

It is assumed that the revenue costs of implementing the recommendations of
this report will be contained with existing budgets with Parking Services and that
any impact on revenue income (for example residents parking permits) will be
immaterial. The financial position will be reviewed as part of monthly budget
monitoring and annual budget setting.

Finance Officer Consulted: Jess Laing Date: 04/03/2020

Legal Implications:

The Council regulates traffic by means of orders made under the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984. Procedural regulations require public notice of orders to
be given and any person may object to the making of an order. Any unresolved
objections to an order must be considered by the Environment, Transport and
Sustainability Committee before it can be made.

The Council’s powers and duties under the Highways Act 1980 and the Road
Traffic Regulation Act 1984 must be exercised to secure the expeditious,
convenient and safe movement of all types of traffic. The actions
recommended in this report will assist in demonstrating that the Council is
complying with its statutory duty.

Lawyer Consulted: Stephanie Stammers Date: 02/03/2020

162



Equalities Implications:

7.4  Consultation took place and the comments and wishes of the
respondents were taken into account when considering what changes would best
meet the needs of those local populations. The proposed measures will be of
benefit to many road users

Sustainability Implications:

7.5  No Sustainability implications identified.

Brexit Implications:

7.6 No Brexit implications identified.

Any Other Significant Implications:

None

Crime & Disorder Implications:

7.7 None

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

7.8 None

Public Health Implications:

7.9 None

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

7.10 None

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. Appendix A — TRO-33-2019 Manor Close plan
2. Appendix B — TRO-41b-2019 Plans

3. Appendix C — TRO-41b-2019 Comments

Background Documents

1. Agenda Item 34 Report to ETS Committee 8" October 2019

163



164



APPENDIX A

X T
S

Sub St
ub Sta Py 444/\/0,? Q
Lions I/V‘U/ a
6, ourt
9
5y ‘
S -
9
0>
o @
{ &
& 2
rL’\
,50) N
o >
O
&
N
< 1
\
Q Q%
~ 9% H
&
o 7 H
/sbl\ © L
Key ®h !
S § o PLAYT
g Proposed Double Yellow &
- 1‘ "
:T}
TRANSPORT PARKING INFRASTRUCTURE
Address: Manor Close, Scale : N.T.S.
Brighton Plan Drawn:Oct 19 4 {w 4
Reason: To prevent obstruction | Drawn :D.A. Brighton & Hove
to all road users Drawing Number : B&H-DYLS-MC-001

165



166



APPENDIX B

jdr.SM
BEECHES
<

QN

p—

102.1m

101:0m

o © Crown Copyright. Licence: 100020999.
Brighton & Hove City Council, 2015.

Ng)

EY

Proposed cdouble yellow llens

Existing double yellow lines

%

VvV

evl

1%

PARKING INFRASTRUCTURE

TRANSPORT

yellow lines

Location : Hazeldene Meads Scale: NTS
The Beeches Date:  Dec 19
- Ikmmaﬂove
Project: Proposed double Drawn : RM Council

Drawing Number : B&H/005

167



{2

Ny

2

47.2m

© Crown Copyright. Licence: 100020999.

62

o
~

Brighton & Hove City Council, 2015.

PARKING INFRASTRUCTURE

TRANSPORT

Location: Woodland Drive Scale: NTS
Date : Dec 19
Project: Proposed Double Drawn : RM

yellow lines

Akbly
T

Drawing Number : B&HO004

168




EY

Proposed odouble yellow liens

Proposed Ltd Walting
4 hours, No return within 1 hour
Mon - Sat 8am - 6pm

Ty

10
6
2
W
a/'Q’de

I

& DE/VEW
Ay /\
19M\
El Sub/Sta
Elmcroft

© Crown Copyright. Licence: 100020999.

Brighton & Hove City Council, 2019

PARKING INFRASTRUCTURE

TRAN!PORT

Project: Proposed parking

roactrictione

Location : The Deneway Scale . NIS
Date . DEC 19

il

Dlrawll . KIvI

TOUJULTITULTUTTJY

Drawmg Numboer .
169

B&RAUUZ




rzon/\
AYLAND WENVER2D .
Woodsid /\Q\O‘éi %
South Woodside & ((‘j?“
2
% ® ° e
° © CrownCopyright. Licence: 1086020999:
Brighton & Hove City Council, 2019 PARKING INFRASTRUCTURE TRANSPORT
Location: Withdean Road Scale: NTS | l l
Date : Dec 19
. lhw&ﬂove
Project: Proposed double Drawn : RM Council
yellow lines Drawing Number : B&H001
170




APPENDIX C

Who

Road

Object/Support

reasons

Resident

Hazeldene Meads

Object

Whilst the extension of the double yellow corners is
welcomed; it is not sufficient enough. This will not resolve the
heavily congested area, and extremely dangerous parking
conditions residents suffer.

The roads are not safe as drivers come up onto the pavement as
they cannot get through the road. Full double yellow lines are
needed throughout the area just as other areas are getting.

Resident

Hazeldene Meads

Object

Objecting to the proposal for the simple fact that this is half a job
done. The extension is not sufficient to solve the extensive
horrendous issues residents face due to the parking on Hazeldene
Meads. Neighbouring roads have been granted full extensions
however this road seems to have been left out and parking
problems are just as severe and is incredibly dangerous now.

Cars are driving up on the pavement due to the roads being
too narrow, residents are struggling to reverse out of thier
driveways, and cars are speeding through the narrow roads
only to get stuck where two cars are parked awkwardly.

It is not acceptable to believe double yellow lines on the
entrance of the cul-de-sac is sufficient.

Resident

Hazeldene Meads

Object

The extension of the double yellow lines at Hazeldene Meads are
welcomed but simply don't go far enough to address the issues on
the rest of the estate or address other pinch points and blind spots
further up the road.

Resident

The Beeches

Object

The main goals of these lines should be to reduce the amount of
vehicles parked long term with their owners presumably working in
London. The Beeches and Hazledene Meads needs to be a safe
environment where residents can negotiate their driveways easily
and the councils and emergency vehicles can enter safely and stay
on the road rather than damaging existing infrastructure.

The yellow lines round The Beeches entrance need to go much
further. This will also reduce the total amount of cars in the area
and make it possible for council vehicles to access. The proposals
for The Beeches yellow lines will have absolutely no beneficial
effects.

Resident

Hazeldene Meads &
The Beeches

Object

opposite driveways is making it very difficult for the residents to
exit their properties. This sitution will become more challenging in
the winter moths when the roads are icy.

The proposed double yellow lines in The Beeches need to be
extended by a further 2 metres

Resident

Hazeldene Meads

Object

The extension of the yellow lines does not go far enough. It does
not address the main traffic and parking problems

Resident

Hazeldene Meads &
The Beeches

Object

The Residents Objection to the Councils latest proposals.These last
six months have become untenable, as a result of BHCC creating
parking bay and other restrictions South West of Dyke Road
Avenue, thus driving free parking across the Main Dyke Road onto
our Estate. BHCC INSULT the Residents by suggesting ONLY limited
Yellow Lines at the Entrance to the Estate. That proposal is TOTALLY
unacceptable and contrary to everything we have spoken to BHCC
these last 5 years and more.

171




Resident

Hazeldene Meads

Support

Support these proposals would point out that this in no way
resolves the major issue that residents have in the hazeldene meads
and beeches area of inconsiderate parking, long term abandonment
of vehicles and constant flow of traffic looking for free parking, the
issue was particularly bad over Christmas and New Year and can
only be seen to get worse. Residents would still be looking for an
introduction of parking restrictions in the area similar to the ones
introduced in other areas of hove in September.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Support

As residents we would still be looking for an introduction of parking
restrictions in the area similar to the ones introduced in other areas
of hove in September

Would suggest that residents in the Goldstone area are given
another opportunity to vote for some form of residential parking
permits as this seems to be a solution to the area being gridlocked
due to parked cars everywhere from workers in the local offices.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Support

There is now far too much traffic congestion along Goldstone
Crescent, and in fact to ease it further | would propose double
yellow lines on both sides of the road

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Support

Support the proposal for double yellow lines on goldstone crescent
BUT are on the wrong side of the road? It’s the other side of the
road where everyone parks? There lines here will make no
difference to the problem.

Also, the lines need to extend to cover the area of the junction with
Elizabeth Aveune

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Support

Support lines across goldstone crescent but it needs double yellow
all the entire way. Partial yellow line will not solve the problem

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Support

Double yellow lines are definitely needed along this stretch of road
however they are also needed on the opposite side as when turning
into Elizabeth Avenue because of the cars parked on that side
opposite the entrance to Elizabeth Avenueo you drive at least 10
metres on the wrong side of the road facing oncoming traffic.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

The proposals for Goldstone Crescent are totally inadequate and
will not make the slightest difference to the severe traffic problems
in Goldstone Crescent. because The real problem is that the
carriageway is effectively reduced to one lane on the north side
because of continuous parking along the south side of the road
between Woodland Avenue and Nevill Avenue

Double yellow lines should be painted on both sides of Goldstone
Crescent all the way between Woodland Avenue and Nevill Way.
Residents on the south side find it hazardous when exiting their
driveways into what is effectively a single lane on the north
carriageway because their visibility is severely restricted.

The row of parked cars makes it dangerous for the many children
who have to cross Goldstone Crescent before walking to
Blatchington Mill and Aldrington schools.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

The propposal states double yellow lines on the North side of the
road only. This won't have any positive effect. The double yellow
lines need to be on both sides of the road.

The proposal will NOT solve the problem, as the residential road is
too busy for two way traffic and with one lane blocked by parked
vehicles in the day time.

172




Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

It is now difficult to safely exit out of Woodland Avenue into
Goldstone Crescent when you have a bank of vehicles driving at you
on the wrong side of the road. It will also transfer the two side
parking problem further along Goldstone Crescent and its feeder
roads, where there are no Double restrictions.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Placing double yellow lines on one side of the road will not make
any difference to the problems encountered at the moment. There
are cars permanently parked on one side of the road so the
carriageway is reduced to one lane.

The road is very dangerous at the moment particularly at peak
times as the cars speed up to get through before they have to give
way and no one seems to want to be the one to do that.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

There are many cars which park opposite the junction for Elizabeth
Road and Woodland Avenue, making it impossible for cars from
these roads to exit into the Crescent.

The northern end has cars parking along the side of the road,
making the traffic clog and the bus is unable to move through the
road. Unless you put yellow lines further up you will just push the
problem out further.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Double yellow lines on one side of a small portion of goldstone
crescent will not resolve the dangerous traffic issues. People who
leave their cars on this road during the day park on the opposite
side of the road so it will not reduce parked cars. This will still cause
single file traffic, traffic backed up in rush hour, dangerous driving
and problems for buses and emergency vehicles to get through.

Double yellow lines or permit parking need to be introduced on
both sides of the road all the way down to prevent these issues. A
new consultation on permits is needed.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

The proposal is completely inadequate to solve the current
congestion along Goldstone Crescent. Currently a line of cars park
all day along the south side of the road, this will just support that
activity.

Yellow lines on each side would improve the flow of traffic. As
would a parking scheme .

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Double yellow lines does not resolve the issue of the parking, it will

just further displace the traffic further into Goldstone Creasant and

its sourounding roads. Also adding double yellow lines will not solve
the severe traffic issues.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Limited Double yellow lines in Goldstone Crescent will only result in
moving the problem further down the road.

If double yellow lines are introduced then they need to be
introduced for the whole length of the road otherwise the
congestion will continue.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

| strongly object to this proposal on the basis it is not going to solve
anything. It has become a nightmare to turn into Elizabeth Avenue
from Goldstone Crescent because of cars permanently parked on
the North side. A single stretch of double yellow lines on the south
side will have zero effect.

Double yellows on both sides of Goldstone Crescent starting 100
yardds before Woodland Avenue stretching to 100 yards after
Elizabeth Avenue junctions.

173




Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Double yellow lines only on one side of the Goldstone Crescent
between Elizabeth Avenue and Woodland Avenue is pointless.
Double yellow lines need to be painted on both sides of the road.
Need to stop people from parking on-street to both side of
Goldstone Crescent, espeacially near/between the junctions with
Elizabeth Avenue and Woodland Avenue.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Object to this as the proposed yellow lines are nowhere near
enough and are on the wrong side of Goldstone Crescent to work
properly. The double yellow lines should run on the South Side,
especially before and after T junctions, the abysmal parking
currently means drivers driving on the wrong side of the road for
most of the time whilst travelling along Goldstone Crescent ( both
ways ).

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

There should be double yellow lines along Goldstone Crescent and
Woodland Drive as per the Order but they will not solve the
problem of bus (or car) movement along either of these roads. The
double yellow lines need to be on both sides of the road.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

The proposals for Goldstone Crescent are totally inadequate and
will not make the slightest difference to the severe traffic problems
in Goldstone Crescent because of the continuous row of parked
cars.

The double yellow lines should be on both sides of the road and
should be from the Woodland Drive/ Goldstone crescent mini
roundabout to the King George junction, as the road is too narrow a
road to have parking.

There is a dangerous situation at the junction of Elizabeth Avenue
and Goldstone Crescent where traffic coming out of Elizabeth
Avenue has the choice of only one lane and often has to face a fast-
moving traffic coming from either east — on the wrong side of the
road — or from the west, because of the row of parked cars along
the south side of Goldstone Crescent. Double yellows on the south
side of the road would resolve that problem.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Yellow lines on the north side of Goldstone Crescent between
Elizabeth Avenue and Woodland Avenue will not solve the present
problems.

The whole of Goldstone Crescent between Woodland Drive and the
bottom of King George V1 Avenue needs to be taken into
consideration

The obvious solution to the problem is to introduce further timed
parking restrictions all along one side of Goldstone Crescent to stop
all day. Double yellow lines be painted on the other side. A
pedestrian crossing should be in place to assist the children trying to
cross the road on their way to school or double yellow lines on both
sides of Goldstone Crescent with a 20 mph speed limit and speed
bumps

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

The real problem is that the carriageway is effectively reduced to
one lane on the north side of Goldstone Crescent because of
parking along the south side of the road between Woodand Avenue
and Nevill Way. The Council's proposal fails to solve that problem.

The row of parked cars leads to traffic queues approaching
from both directions which then block the road. Double
yellow lines should be painted on both sides of Goldstone
Crescent between Woodland Avenue and Nevill Way or at
least a continuous yellow line on the south side.

174




There is a dangerous situation at the junction of Elizabeth Avenue
and Goldstone Crescent where traffic coming out of Elizabeth
Avenue has the choice of only one lane and often has to face a fast-
moving stream of traffic.Double yellows or a single yellow line,
would resolve the problem.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

These proposed plans don't address the parking and traffic
problems experienced on Goldstone Crescent. Implementing a
double yellow line on one side of the road will ensure cars park on
the southern side of the street, effectively turning this stretch of
Goldstone Crescent into a single carriageway where cars can only
pass through in one direction at a time. There simply isn't space for
cars to pass in both directions if you allow parking on one side of
the street

The only solution that solves the congestion issue and makes it safe
for residents is to implement double yellow lines on both sides of
the road.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

The proposal for double yellow lines to be painted on one side of
the carriageway and will not solve the traffic queues from both
directions this will continue.

The simple answer is to paint double yellow lines on one side of the
road as suggested and then restrict parking on the other side of the
road on the same basis as applied for other parts of the area, i.e.
none between the hours of 10 and 11am and 1 and 2pm between
Monday and Friday.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Painting yellow lines on the north side of Goldstone Crescent
between Elizabeth Avenue and Woodland Avenue is a totally
inadequate to the problems in this road. Parking needs to be
restricted on both sides of the road.

The carriageway is effectively reduced to one lane on the north side
of Goldstone Crescent because of continuous parking along the
south side of the road between Woodland Avenue and Nevill
Avenue

Potentially dangerous problem is the situation at the T- junction of
Elizabeth Avenue and Goldstone Crescent. Parking in such situations
opposite a T-junction is specifically identified in the Highway Code
as potentially hazardous. It would be sensible at the very least, to
paint double yellow lines on the south side of Goldstone Crescent
directly opposite Elizabeth Avenue for 10m either side of the
junction

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

The parking has got almost impossible in the Goldstone Crescent
area to Neville Way also taking in Elizabeth Ave and corner of Mill
Drive. Something really needs to be done. Double yellow lines
everywhere although some people will not take any notice of them
as they still park on the double yellow lines now.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Object to the proposal to paint double yellow lines on Goldstone
Crescent between Elizabeth Avenue and Woodland Avenue. The
current problem with traffic flow along Goldstone Crescent
between Woodland Drive and Neville Way, is that the highway is
reduced to one lane due to continuous parking along the south side
of the road.

The reduced flow of traffic along Goldstone Crescent causes
tailbacks along the road, making it difficult for buses to get through
and for residents along the south side of the road to access their
property.

175




The councils proposals to point double yellow lines on the north
side of Goldstone Crescent between Elizabeth Avenue and
Woodland Avenue is a wholly inadequate response to the problem.
It will not resolve anything as the situation will not changed because
nobody parks there.

The most sensible way to deal with the issue is to paint double
yellow lines as proposed, with additional double yellow lines on the
south side of Goldstone Crescent between Woodland Avenue and
Neville Way.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Object to this proposal as this needs double yellows to be on both
sides of the highway

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

It would be completely pointless putting double yellow lines down
one side only on Goldstone crescent. It will make no difference at all
to the current situation. There is not enough space on the sides the
cars do park on for the flow of traffic to pull in when trying to avoid
onward traffic. Put double yellow on both sides of the road or at
least add single yellow line that means no parking in rush hour
when the biggest issues occur.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

This proposal will make no difference to Goldstone Crescent as
people already park on the opposite side of the road that you are
proposing. Therefore the parking problem will remain the same.
Whichever side you put the double lines the vehicles will park on
the side without the yellow lines. Perhaps double yellow lines on
both sides would be beneficial.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Although glad this is being looked at and being taken seriously, the
introduction of double yellows on a short stretch of Goldstone
Crescent on one side of the road is completely inadequate. The road
never functions properly due to parked or abandoned cars and the
volume of traffic that flows through Goldstone Crescent. Parking
restrictions for permit parking needs to be implemented.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

The proposal is totally inadequate, there is virtually no parking
taking place on the north side of the road. The problem lies with the
unrestricted parking on the both sides, reducing the road to the
equivalent of a single track with passing places.

Double yellow lines are needed on both sides of Goldstone
Crescent from the mini roundabout at the junction with Woodland
Drive to the junction with Nevill Way . In addition double yellow
lines are needed on the west side of Woodland Drive from the
junction with Goldstone Crescent to Shirley Drive.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

This will make no difference to the problem. It needs to be on both
north and south sides of Goldstone Crescent

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Although understand the reason for putting double yellow lines on
the north side of Goldstone Crescent between Woodland Avenue
and Elizabeth Avenue, unfortunately it will not solve the problem of
inconsiderate parking. Suggest consideration is given to putting
double yellow signs on both sides of the road for the whole length.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

One row of double yellow lines Along Goldstone Crescent will surely
mean continued day parking causing chaos. Surely it would be
much much better to have restricted parking bays (no parking
between say 9-10am and 4-5pm) at staggered locations (either side
of Goldstone Crescent).

176




Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

The real problem in Goldstone Crescent is that the carriageway is
effectively reduced to one lane on the north side of Goldstone
Crescent because of continuous parking along the south side of the
road between Woodland Avenue and Neville Way.

The Council will fail to solve the problem if yellow lines are marked
only on one side of the road between Woodland Avenue and Neville
Way. The Council needs to go further by putting yellow lines on
both sides of the road or introducing restrictions to parking
between Woodland Avenue and Neville Way.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Double yellow lines along this stretch of road will not help as the
majority of cars park on one side of the road only. A single yellow
line on both sides of the road would be preferable as it would stop
all cars parking during the working day. The other alternative would
be double yellow lines on both sides of the road.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

The proposals for a double yellow line on the N side of Goldstone
Crescent between Woodland Avenue & Elizabeth Avenue is
inadequate as it won't address the dangers & disruption caused by
the continuous parking along the S aide of the road between
Woodland Avenue & Nevill Avenue.

Double yellow lines are needed along both sides of Goldstone
Crescent all the way between Woodland Avenue & Nevill Way.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

The introduction of double yellow lines on one side of the road will
have no impact at all. Drivers will continue to park the cars on the
clear side of the road as they are now. .The best resolution would
be two have single yellow lines along both sides of the road with
restrictions Monday to Friday until 6pm. This will keep the road
clear and aid the flow of traffic and still enable residents and visitors
to park in the evenings and weekends

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

Goldstone Crescent, between the junctions of Woodland Avenue
and Nevill Way is effectively reduced to one lane on the north side
of the road due to continuous parking on the south side. It is
pointless merely painting double yellow lines on the north side only
as this wouldn’t alleviate the current traffic situation as hardly
anyone parks there anyway as this would effectively block the road
if they did. Instead double yellow lines should be painted on both
sides of the road then the traffic will keep flowing.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent

Object

The proposed yellow line on the north side only will achieve nothing
as cars tend to park only on the south. Fail to understand why
vellow lines have not been proposed for both sides.

Resident

All Road TRO-41b-
2019

Support

Since the introduction of Zone P, the roads in this order have been
plagued with unsafe parking , in particular on blind bends and
narrow sections creating increased accident risk. Whilst | support
the order disappointed that it does not go far enough. All blind
bends and junctions on all these streets should be protected with
yellow lines.

Resident

All Road TRO-41b-
2019

Support

These changes are to be welcomed as since the introduction of CPZ
P, this area has been plagued by inconsiderate parking causing
obstructions and safety issues. Suggest that wider restrictions are
necessary, such as an extension to the proposed lines both north
and south of the current plans in Withdean Road.

177




Resident

Withdean Road

Support

Will prevent parking that is causing dangerous driving following the
increase in traffic flow and dangerous parking resulting in driving on
pavements and at times resulting in the road becoming blocked by
cars being unable to pass parked cars.

Resident

Withdean Road

Support

Sensible proposal to improve safety and reduce congestion -
however does not go far enough as Double Yellow Lines need to
placed further North.

Resident

Withdean Road

Support

Support the proposal but have comments on how to improve it. It
would be much appreciated if a parking restriction put across our
drive, it would give enough space to pull out of the drive to the
north. Currently have a single yellow line across the top of the drive
that does not go far enough to allow a safe view from the drive
when cars are parked right up against the edge of the single yellow
line.

Resident

Withdean Road

Support

Support the proposal but could you extend the double yellow lines
further than you have on Withdean Road, also the double yellow
lines should extend further round the corner onto Waylands Avenue
as that is a really dangerous corner whether turning right or left
from Withdean Road and Withdean Road coming up the hill from
the stadium is a terrible blind corner.

Resident

Withdean Road

Support

Support the proposal for Withdean Road. However, the new yellow
lines do not go far enough south from the planned lines. With
inconsiderate parking taking place, vehicle egress is often
impossible for residents with driveways in this location. It would be
a fairer and less hazardous solution to extend the yellow lines
south, to the existing lines at the junction with Tivoli Crecent North.

Resident

Withdean Road

Support

Great to see prompt action being taken. This will prevent parking
that is causing dangeous driving following the increase in traffic
flow and dangerous parking resulting in driving on pavements and
at times resulting in the road becoming blocked by cars being
unable to pass parked cars.

Not included is double yellow lines opposite 40/42 Withdean road
on westbound side that creates risk of cars parking on this stretch
that is on a curve a create same issues are seen previosly. Would
ask the Council to consider extending the scheme to cover this area.

Resident

Withdean Road

Support

Support this proposal, but the sight lines when emerging from
property (number 28) which is downhill, would still be entirely
blocked by parked vans and cars. Please extend yellow another 15
metres North on the downhill side for this reason of zero visibility

Resident

Withdean Road

Support

| support this proposal as there is an urgent need of yellow lines on
Withdean Road in particular to prevent dangerous parking and
driving. Concerned that the proposed lines do not extend far
enough South or North.

Resident

Withdean Road

Support

Reluctantly support the proposal because it is better than what is
currently here, however this is not what was petitioned for and
should be much better. Believe that on the side of the road with
even numbered properties, the DYLs should run all the way from
where there is currently a SYL outside number 22, right the way up
to number 46. Between numbers 34 and 42 is a dangerous bend and
there is no way anyone should be allowed to park there

Racidant

WithAdasan RAad

CiinnArt

This might help stop some of the kerb driving, increased emissions
and blocking caused by more cars, vans, campers and dumped
vehicles parking and obstructing the blind bends.

178




ncoiuciiL

vvitiucan nuau

DuppuUI L

This TRO does not cover 34, 36 or 38 which are caught between 2
blind bends and is the narrowest part of the road. There is no
pavement on this side also. This TRO will simply move the problem
along the road not solve it.

Resident

Withdean Road

Support

Support this proposal BUT the proposed yellow lines do not extend
nearly far enough either to the north or to the south. If the lines are
as limited as proposed, people will park their vans and cars and
caravans in the road and there will be trafiic chaos as there was
before which led to a large numbers of potentially dangerous
incidents. The lines should extend the entire length of the road.

Resident

Withdean Road

Support

Since August 2018 when the new parking restrictions within the
Controlled Zone between Dyke Road and Goldstone Cresecent came
into effect Withdean Road has been blighted by out of area owners
leaving their cars parked on the unrestricted parts of this road
causing hazardous driving conditions.

The proposed introduction of new yellow lines on Withdean Road is
a much needed and hugely welcome. The proposals however do not
go far enough and as such in their current form do not adequately
address the traffic needs as they are leaving significant gaps in their
coverage along Withdean Road. Urge B&H Council to modify the
proposal to extend yellow line restrictions througout the whole
length of Withdean Road so that whole day parking cannot take
hold any longer on this road at any point or stretch.

Resident

Withdean Road

Object

Object to this proposal although pleased with the introduction of
the yellow lines, the proposed lines should be extended both north
and south of the current plans. This would ensure there will be no
hazardous blind bend parking and at the same time increase
visibility for residents attempting to leave and enter their own
driveways.

Resident

Withdean Road

Object

Agree to most of the proposed yellow lines in Withdean Road ,
however the yellow lines are not necessary outside no.44 Withdean
Road. This provides one safe parking space which is useful for
visitors or workmen attending the houses nearby.

Resident

Withdean Road

Object

Inspected your proposals for double yellow lines in Withdean Road,
would suggest that a much more comprehensive approach is
required. In addition to extending your current plans both north and
south of proposed new restrictions, would suggest that a further
area of restricted parking would be very beneficial along the
dangerous and winding section of Withdean Road that runs down to
the old stadium entrance. Parking on this part of the road regularly
pushes vehicles to the wrong side of the road when driving up the
hill. This is a dangerous as the road has several blind bends.

Resident

Withdean Road

Object

Road is a rat run and although the proposed changes to include
double yellow line are very welcome they do not go far enough.
Cars will still be able to park on corners and there will inevitably be
accidents. The length of lines planned for Wayland Ave at the
Withdean road junction is far too short. It is a difficult junction to
pull out of and the small addition to the lines planned will still mean
a blind exit if turning right.

179




Resident

The Deneway

Object

Support the double yellow lines on the South and East side of the
Deneway, but do not think this goes far enough. In addition this falls
way short of the road markings required to make a busy,
complicated, main access route into ‘lower’ Westdene safe,
including children walking to and from schools, residents of
Westdene accessing buses on the London Road, and it fails to
address the flow of traffic and lack of road markings on the West
side of the Deneway and on the North East side around the
roundabout.

However | do not think that 4 hour bays are the solution to the lay-
bys and feel this supports the vets but may meet resistance.

Resident

The Deneway

Object

Welcome your proposals to alter the parking arrangments in The
Deneway. The Parking in the immeadiate area of the junction with
London Road is a big concern in terms of safety and traffic flow.
Your proposal will sort this problem out.

However one problem has been overlooked. Some residents have
vehicles that are not used everyday and are parked in The Deneway
during the day. The proposed scheme will result in these vehicles
parked on the road in the unrestricted zone. If the parking bays
where left unrestreicted then the resident can park here well out of
the way of the traffic flow. If there is no place for these vehicles to
park then owners will be forces to park then in another road
possibly creating a problem elsewhere.

Resident

The Deneway

Object

Object to this proposal as work in the residential building at the
Deneway and know a number of staff need to regularly use street
parking.

Resident

The Deneway

Object

Object to this proposal as it would be detrimental for people who
work in the road, but also to the clients accessing the service and
visitors to the site .

Resident

The Deneway

Object

Object to this proposal as on street parking needed for residents
and staff at the RISE supported housing project

Resident

The Deneway

Support

Although support the proposal to the lower section of the Deneway,
disappointed that the double yellow lines are not going to be
continued under the bridge passed the New Priory Vets heading
towards Eldred Avenue.

Many of the residence in Lions Dene have expressed concerns many
times of the blind spots that they have to encounter when crossing
the road to reach the parade of shops on Eldred Avenue . Please can
these be revisited with consideration being given to this important
point.

Resident

Woodland Drive

Object

The Road is heavily impacted by the implementation of parking
zone P, which has displaced cars onto the nearest roads, Woodland
Drive being one of them.

The impact of putting double yellow lines on one side only will be
for the cars to park on the opposite side of the road. It does not
solve the problem, it simply moves it across the road.The double
yellow lines extend only a short way along the road, not even up to
the junction with Shirley Drive. Again, you are just going to move
the problem a few yards up the road.

Resident

Woodland Drive

Object

The council have deliberately put this order out over the festive
season, residents have NOT been informed of this by letter so |
request an extension in time is made immediately and ALL residents
informed of this proposal.

180




Resident

Woodland Drive

Object

It would appear that no notice has been given to the residents of
Woodland Drive. The period of consultation between 19th
December to 17th January is insufficient time to consult the
residents within this area

Resident

Woodland Drive

Object

Whichever side of the road you put yellow lines, it would make no
difference, as recently the parking seems to have evolved into just
being down that side, but there is still constant congestion. It is
absolutely imperative that the council stops parking on BOTH sides.
This road is too narrow and busy to have consistent parking down
any side. Please will the council listen and put yellow lines on both
sides of this part of Woodland Drive, i.e. from Bennett Drive to
Shirley Drive.

Resident

Woodland Drive

Object

Proposing to put yellow lines in Woodland Drive on one side only.
This will not alleviate the problems that are currently happening,
there has been a number of problems with cars buses delivery vans
etc not being able to get through and a few cars have been
damaged.

Resident

Woodland Drive

Support

Support this proposal as daytime parking along Woodland Drive has
inroduced point of traffic conlict along the route as northbound
vehicles hop from gap to gap to avoid southbound traffic. In fact it
needs double yellow lines on both sides of the street.

Resident

Woodland Drive

Support

Although support the proposals to have double yellow lines on the
lower stretch of Woodland Avenue, wonder if double yellow lines
on both sides of the road would be preferred. Since the parking
scheme was introduced in September 2019, one side of Woodland
Drive has become a permanent parking area.

Resident

Woodland Drive

Support

100% in support of the extent of the works currently proposed
which | believe would greatly inprove road safety and traffic
management on this particular stretch of highway.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent
& Woodland Drive

Object

Proposed yellow lines in Goldstone Crescent and Woodland drive is
an Inadequate solution and will not resolve the traffic problems and
safety issues to pedestrians and drivers. The proposed solution
displaces the problem rather than solving it.

Yellow lines on one side of both of these roads will result in a line of
cars on the other side. Neither road is wide enough to handle two-
way traffic along with parked cars.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent
& Woodland Drive

Object

The proposed solutions for Goldstone Crescent and Woodland Drive
are woefully inadequate. Recent parking changes in the Goldstone
Valley are have meant that our previously quiet streets are now
overcrowded with parked cars, causing both traffic congestion and
severe safety issues for pedestrians.

To resolve the local impacts would need to extend the yellow line
schedule along both sides of Goldstone Crescent, both sides of
Woodland Drive, and all of the surrounding roads.

Resident

Goldstone Crescent
& Woodland Drive

Support

With increased parking in Woodland Drive and Goldstone Crescent
since area P was introduced, there is major congestion and the 21
bus and other road users are having great difficulty using these
roads. | would support double yellow lines on both sides of these
roads for their entire length as these are major arterial roads into
and out of Hove.

181




182



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 84

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders
related to new Developments

Date of Meeting: 17" March 2020

Report of: Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture

Contact Officer: Name: David Farnham Tel: 01273 292368

Email: david.farnham@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: St Peter’s and North Laine, Queen’s Park, Central

Hove, Hollingdean & Stanmer.

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

1.1  The purpose of this report is to present to Committee the purpose and basis of
proposed alterations to traffic regulation orders [TRQ] relating to four separate
developments, which have been objected to through consultations, and to seek a
decision.

1.2  This report considers the comments, support and objections received in
consultation of amendment Traffic Regulation Orders associated with developer-
led highway improvement schemes that are being pursued via Highway
Agreements. The need for these schemes was secured in various Planning
Consents for proposed new developments — typically within associated Section
106 Agreements.

1.3 The four TROs are:

e TRO-43-2019 Queen Square — amendments to parking spaces and
restrictions.

e TRO-40b-2019 Circus Street (Phase 2) — this order would introduce a
one-way in Circus Street.

e TRO-36-2019 Kingsway — this order will introduce no loading at any time
on parts of Kingsway and St Aubyns South and a new loading bay in
Kingsway.

e TRO-17-2019 Freehold Terrace — This order will extend double yellow
lines in Freehold Terrace and will also introduce One-Way restriction in
Freehold Terrace northwards and eastwards.

1.4  Within each section of this report that follows the above TROs will be considered
in turn - except where common information or recommendations apply to all.

183



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

RECOMMENDATIONS:
TRO-43-2019 Queen Square

That the Committee, having taken into account of all the duly made
representations and objection, approves the order above as advertised for Queen
Square.

TRO-40b-2019 Circus Street (Phase 2)

That the Committee, having taken into account of all the duly made
representations and objection, approves the order above as advertised for One
Way Restriction in Circus Street.

TRO-36-2019 Kingsway

That the Committee, having taken into account of all the duly made
representations and objection, approves the order above as advertised for
Kingsway.

TRO-17-2019 Freehold Terrace

That the Committee, having taken into account of all the duly made
representations and objection, approves the order above as advertised for
Freehold Terrace.

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION
TRO-43-2019 Queen Square:

This TRO relates to the redevelopment of the former ice rink and number 11
Queen Square. These are being replaced with a 5no storey building that will
provide 26no residential units (C3) and office use (B1 or A2) at lower ground floor
level, with associated works. The scheme was first granted planning permission
in 2012 under application BH2012/00782 and the original full planning description
is as follows:

‘Demolition of former Ice Rink and number 11 Queen Square and erection of a
5no. storey 56 room serviced apartment hotel with a restaurant/café at lower
ground floor level and associated ancillary facilities, incorporating creation of
outside seating area, new service area, 3no. car parking spaces and cycle
spaces.’

As part of the planning decision a Section 106 obligation was secured which
required the developer to design and implement a scheme of highway works, at
their expense, in Queens Square, doing so via a Section 278 agreement with the
Highway Authority. This was based upon a preliminary design within the
Applicant’s Transport Statement.

The highway works are improvements to the public realm including a new, wider
footway at the northern end of the square, rearrangement of car and motorcycle

184


https://planningapps.brighton-hove.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=ZZZR6HDMXE610&activeTab=summary
https://planningapps.brighton-hove.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=ZZZR6HDMXE610&activeTab=summary
https://planningapps.brighton-hove.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=ZZZR6HDMXE610&activeTab=summary
https://planningapps.brighton-hove.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=ZZZR6HDMXE610&activeTab=summary
https://planningapps.brighton-hove.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=ZZZR6HDMXE610&activeTab=summary

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

parking, bins, cycle hoops, and replacement street trees. This technical design
has received Technical Approval subject to the outcome of this TRO decision.

The proposed TRO provides two disabled parking spaces for the hotel and
retains one zone Z residential parking space, approved as part of the Planning
Consent. It removes two existing zone Z residents’ parking spaces. These
spaces did not include a pay and display option.

There were formerly three zone Z residents only bays and one disabled parking
bay in a chevron arrangement, all located along the head of the square at its
upper northern end. The approved planning scheme, as enabled by the highway
works, introduces a new extended area of footway there. It also requires two on-
street disabled parking bays to be provided for the hotel, necessitating the
addition of one additional bay to add to the single bay already there.

Accommodating the new area of footway and the additional disabled bay has
required the loss of the two resident’s spaces. This is due to the limited space
within the square and the need to accommodate other existing demands, such as
a large taxi rank, vehicular entrances and related turning space for vehicles.

The Hotel is now constructed. The Highway works are under construction further
to a Section 278 Agreement and are due to be completed imminently.

The TRO is required to formalise the arrangement reflected within this by
removing parking spaces that have been built over with new footway and by
introducing the additional disabled parking spaces required by the Planning
Consent.

TRO-40b-2019 Circus Street (Phase 2):

This TRO relates to redevelopment of the former municipal markets at Circus St
into a large, mixed-use development. This was granted planning permission in
2015 under application BH2013/03461. The full planning description per the
original application is as follows:

Demolition of existing buildings and replacement with a mixed use development
comprising of: a part 5 (6 storey equivalent)/part 7 storey University of Brighton
Library and Academic Building (Use Class D1); a 3 storey (4 storey equivalent)
Dance Space building (Use Class D2); a 7 storey office building (Use Class B1
incorporating a maximum of 1,360 sq. m Gross Internal Area (GIA) of office Class
B1 office, research and development space); student accommodation (Sui
Generis) providing up to 450 bed spaces in 4 buildings (Student Cluster E and G
part 6/part 8 storey, Student Cluster F part 6,7 and 8 storey and Student Cluster
H part 6/part 13 storey (with recessed top 13th storey)); 142 residential
apartments (Class C3) consisting of 57 x 1 bed, 81 x 2 bed and 4 x 3 bed units in
4 buildings (Building A part 7/part 10 storey, Building B part 7/part 8 storey and
Buildings C and D both 6 storey); with ancillary retail (A1) café/restaurant (A3)
and/or commercial (B1) within the ground floor of part of student cluster buildings
G and H, part of office building and part of residential buildings A, B, C and D;
new public realm and associated infrastructure including provision of 38
undercroft parking spaces below the student cluster buildings (including 16 onsite
disabled parking spaces), on site cycle parking, and highway works including a
narrowing in width of Circus Street.

185



3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

Importantly, the scheme approved at planning permitted Circus St to be
substantially narrowed through statutory “stopping up”, with the new development
being constructed on the former highway space. This would clearly require a
substantial redesign of the much narrowed highway, and a S106 obligation was
secured at planning requiring the developer to design and implement a suitable
scheme, at their expense, via a Section 278 agreement with the Highway
Authority.

The main building works at Circus St are now substantially progressed.
Meanwhile, the Highway Authority have agreed in principle a scheme of highway
improvements for Circus St and other affected roads. This is subject to the
approval of a number of TROSs, including that presented here. These propose
that Circus St become one-way northbound from Kingswood St to Morley St, and
that a Restricted Parking Zone is be implemented. Under the latter, parking,
waiting and loading is restricted to marked bays only. These will include loading
bays and disabled parking bays. The one-way restriction is required due to road
safety and the reduced width of road space available following the earlier
stopping up works and constructions of buildings on former highway space. A
counter-flow cycle facility was considered by the designers and discounted
following road safety audit.

Kingswood Street will alter at the western end only. This is to improve visibility to
the pedestrian crossing and regularise the double yellow lining adjacent to the
junction with Circus St. This is necessary to allow alterations to the plan layout of
Circus St as part of the Development. The TRO for this alteration received no
objections and is not considered in this report.

TRO-36-2019 Kingsway:

This TRO relates to the redevelopment of the site of the former Texaco garage
and Alibi Public House. These are replaced with a mixed-use scheme including a
food store. This received planning consent in 2017 (BH2016/02756) and the full
planning description is as follows.

Erection of 55 No. residential apartments and 375 sqg.m of retail floorspace
(Al Use Class) in a new building of between 2 and 9 storeys together with
associated parking and landscaping; a change of use of the ground floor
of the former Alibi Public House to an Al café, and conversion of the first,
second and third floors to provide 3 No dwellings.

Importantly, the A1 Use Class component is to consist of a food store at ground
floor level, fronting onto Kingsway. To allow goods delivery vehicles to serve this,
the introduction of a new on-street loading bay was secured at planning via a
Section 106 agreement. This required the developer to design and deliver a
scheme of highway works, at their expense, to introduce it via a Section 278
agreement with the Highway Authority.

The size of delivery vehicle is controlled by Planning Condition and Service &
Delivery Management Plan.

186



3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

Identifying an appropriate design has proven complex due to concerns about
how waiting lorries might obstruct visibility for drivers emerging from St Aubyns.
To overcome this, a number of options where tested with safety specialists. After
some modification, the scheme associated with this TRO was developed from
one of the better performing options. In this, the proposed loading bay is carefully
positioned so as not to obstruct either the through-flow on Kingsway or the
sightline from St Aubyns South. The remainder of the frontage will have no-
loading restrictions added to the existing no-waiting at any time restrictions. This
is to make sure that the area in front of the loading bay is kept clear at all times
so that large vehicles using the loading bay have room to manoeuvre into the bay
without having to drive over the footway. The waiting and loading restrictions will
ensure that the junction is kept clear of parked vehicles making it safer for all
road users. These proposals incorporate the recommendations of a further road
safety audit of the detailed technical design.

The construction of the buildings is complete and these are now awaiting
occupation. The s278 highway works have not yet commenced. Whilst these
have been agreed in principle, final approval and signing of a related s278
agreement will be contingent on the approval of the TRO being considered here.
This is because the proposals will not be feasible with the proposed TRO
restrictions. The completion of the highway works is a Pre-Occupation
requirement within the Section 106 Agreement.

TRO-17-2019 Freehold Terrace:

This TRO relates to a purpose-built student housing development at 52
Hollingdean Rd, on the north-west corner of its junction with Freehold Terrace.
This was granted planning in 2015 under application BH2014/01637. The original
full planning description is as follows:

Demolition of all buildings at 54 Hollingdean Road and erection of a part 3, 4, 5
and 6 storey building (plus basement) to form 205 student rooms (181 cluster
bedrooms, 19 studios and 5 accessible rooms) with kitchen and common room
facilities, cycle storage and refuse facilities. Associated works include
photovoltaic panels on the roof of 6th storey, roof gardens on 3rd, 4th and 5th
storeys and general planting and landscaping of grounds. Demolition of 46
Freehold Terrace and erection of a 4-storey building comprising 8 affordable
housing units. Change of use and refurbishment of 52 Hollingdean Road from Al
retail with residential above to form an associated management suite including
reception, offices, toilets, laundry facilities and staff kitchen.

Freehold Terrace is currently two-way. However, it is an extremely narrow road
for much of its length — and particularly so at the Hollingdean Rd end in front of
the proposed development. Between the junction and sharp-bend passing space
for cars is inadequate and can be as little as 3.4m. Further, the bend limits the
ability for road users of all kinds entering from Hollingdean Rd to see if opposing
traffic is approaching. This poses a substantial safety concern. Whilst it currently
includes double yellow waiting restrictions to both sides of the carriageway for
most of its length, there are gaps in front of the proposed development owing to a
former vehicle access. This is to be removed and reinstated as footway

187



3.20

3.21

3.22

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

A Section 106 obligation was secured with the Planning Consent for the
proposed development. This requires a highway scheme to be agreed and
implemented, at the developer’s expense via a Section 278 agreement, to deliver
certain improvements. Amongst other things these include the introduction of a
one-way scheme for Freehold Terrace. Satisfactory completion of these
improvements is a pre-occupation requirement for the new development.

The TRO provides for the extension of double yellow lines to restrict on-street
parking to the front of the development, including the location of the reinstated
vehicle crossing. It also allows provides for Freehold Terrace to be made one-
way northbound for traffic, as required as part of the Planning Decision.

The construction of the highway improvement scheme is finalised. However, in
order for the proposed improvement scheme to be completed, such that the
development can be occupied, the TRO to implement changes to the waiting
restrictions and one-way working first needs to be made.

ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
TRO-43-2019 Queen Square:

Two objections were received as part of the TRO consultation process. Both
relate to the removal of the 2 on-street residents parking spaces.

One of the objections requests that at least one resident’s bay remains. This is
achieved by the proposed TRO which allows for one remaining residents bay.

The other objection refers to the taxi rank being extended. This appears to be a
misunderstanding as the taxi rank location and length is marked in accordance
with the now expired Temporary Traffic Regulation Order and will not alter under
the Permanent TRO. It is also concerned with whether alternative locations for
parking bays could be found.

There is not available space within the area of works to provide an alternative
option which incorporates additional parking bays. The previous underlying no
waiting at any time restriction on the western side and northern end of the street
must remain to allow for carriageway lane and turning space

The decision to provide two disabled spaces and the public realm improvement
which provides a new footway was effectively taken at planning committee by
virtue of the planning consent, the result of this is the loss of two residents’ bays.

TRO-40b-2019 Circus Street (Phase 2):

As part of the consultation on the TRO for the one-way arrangements, a single
objection was received. This was submitted by a representative of the local cycle
campaign and was on the basis that no contra-flow cycling facility is included in
the order. The objector requested various items of information, including details
of the design organisation and road safety audit. These have been provided to
them and the objector has since confirmed that they wish to uphold their
objection. Amongst other things they have noted that contra-flow cycling is
permitted on other streets in the city that are also narrow.

188



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

4.12

413

4.14

As noted above, an alternative design to that reflected in the TRO presented
here was considered earlier in the development of this scheme. This involved a
one-way “level surface” scheme which included also a contra-flow cycle lane.
However, this raised several concerns. Importantly, during an independent road
safety audit it was recommended that the contra-flow facility be removed as there
was concern that there was not enough space for cyclists and motorists to pass
safely and — additionally - that this could result in cyclists using the notional
footway leading to conflict with pedestrians. This recommendation led to
revisions to the scheme, including the removal of the contra-flow cycle facility.

In view of the independent safety recommendations, officers are unable to
recommend the provision of a contra-flow cycle lane with the proposals to
address the objector’s concerns.

A separate TRO to make Circus St into a Restricted Parking Zone and to amend
parking and loading restrictions received no objections at consultation. Though
that is not covered by this objection report, changes to the TRO to introduce one-
way working would likely require it to be amended via a further TRO consultation
before the highway works could be formally approved.

TRO-36-2019 Kingsway:

Nine objections were received as part of the TRO consultation together with one
response in support.

The nine objections all express concern about the ability to safely exit St Aubyns
South onto Kingsway with a delivery vehicle positioned in the loading bay. Many
of the objections reference the construction phase of the project and temporary
stopping or parking on the highway by construction vehicles as well as the
previous arrangement when the site was a petrol filling station and large vehicles
occasionally parked adjacent to the St Aubyns exit.

As discussed above, the current design proposal that this TRO supports arose
from the testing of various alternative options to overcome officer’'s own safety
concerns whilst still providing the loading bay required by the Planning Consent.

We have responded to all the objectors to set out the design more clearly. This is
because some comments suggest that the objectors may be unaware of the
design changes that have been made to the proposals since planning stage and
that the design has undergone close technical scrutiny following testing of
various alternative options. Other comments suggest that it may be incorrectly
assumed that behaviour observed during the temporary construction phase will
continue when the new formal facilities for the food store are constructed, despite
the physical changes to the road layout proposed.

Since the proposals have been through substantial design testing to avoid the

safety concerns that have been raised, and have since passed a road safety
audit, the officer recommendation is that the TRO is made without modifications.

189



4.15

4.16

4.17

5.1

5.2

6.1

7.1

7.2

TRO-17-2019 Freehold Terrace:

The response to the TRO consultation from the Traffic Management department
of Sussex Police was positive and supportive of the proposal. However, two
objections were received in regard to the introduction of one-way working. These
were owing to concerns about loss of permeability for cyclists.

In the opinion of officers, the proposed one-way system will enhance safety for
the cyclists as the available carriageway width will increase whilst vehicles will
not be permitted to park on the road. Officers also consider that cyclists residing
at Freehold Terrace should not see their journey times increased significantly
due to the proposed one-way system. Those residing in existing properties
backing on to Freehold Terrace wishing to travel eastbound will be unaffected.
Those wishing to travel westbound would need to do so via Popes Folly.
However, the detour for most will be small. The entrance to the cycle store of the
new student development is only ~15m from the junction. Students wishing to
travel west along Hollingdean Rd are likely to push their bikes this short distance
along the footway to avoid going around the one-way system.

The officer recommendation is that the TRO be made without modification.
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

The TRO process involves public consultation. TROs can only be made in
accordance with a statutory process. This requires orders to be consulted upon
before they are implemented and allows for objections. If objections are received
then local constitutional process is that Committee must consider if the proposed
TRO is removed or made.

All four TROs are associated with Planning Applications and consents which
have included consultation and representations from all stakeholders and
interested parties.

CONCLUSION

The recommendation of officers is that all four TROs are approved without
alteration.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

There are no costs to the council associated with the implementation of the traffic
orders recommended in this report. It is estimated that the impact on parking
income would be immaterial and therefore would not require any amendments to
current budgeted assumptions.

Finance Officer Consulted:; Steven Bedford Date: 18/02/2020

Legal Implications:

The Traffic Management Act 2004 places a duty on local traffic authorities to
manage the road network with a view to securing, as far as reasonably
practicable, the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of all types of traffic.

190



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

The Council regulates traffic by means of traffic regulation orders (TROs) made
under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 which can prohibit, restrict or
regulate the use of a road, or any part of the width of a road, by vehicular traffic.

After the public notice of proposals for a TRO has been advertised any person
can object to the making of the TRO. Where there are unresolved objections to a
TRO, then the matter must be returned to the Environment Transport &
Sustainability Committee for a decision. The Committee can decide to make the
TRO unchanged, to make it with modifications that reduce the restrictions or not
to proceed with it.

Lawyer Consulted: Stephanie Stammers Date: 17/02/2020

Equalities Implications:

No Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out nor is planned. No
specific Equalities Act related discrimination is identified.

General consultation with the public took place as part of the TRO advertisement
process to ensure among other considerations that the needs of the local
population were met. The needs of all road users have been considered in the
siting of locations.

The proposed highway works are a part of a Planning Consent and associated
Section 106 Obligation and the decision to implement those works was taken at
that time.

Sustainability Implications:

None

Brexit Implications:

None

Crime & Disorder Implications:

None

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

None

Public Health Implications:

None

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

None

191



Any Other Significant Implications:

7.12 None

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

TRO-43-2019 Queen Square:

1. Queen Square TRO Advert Plan and Statement of Reasons
2. Queen Square Highway Works Plan
3. Queen Square Summary of Consultation Objections

TRO-40b-2019 Circus Street (Phase 2):
4. Circus Street TRO Advert Plan and Statement of Reasons
5 Circus Street Highway Works Plan
Note — No summary of objections, single objection is addressed in main report.

TRO-36-2019 Kingsway:

6. Kingsway TRO Advert Plan and Statement of Reasons

7. Kingsway Highway Works Plan

8. Kingsway Summary of Consultation Objections and Further Information Provided
TRO-17-2019 Freehold Terrace:

9 Freehold Terrace TRO Advert Plan and Statement of Reasons

10. Freehold Terrace Highway Works Plan
11. Freehold Terrace Summary of Consultation Objections

Background Documents:

TRO-43-2019 Queen Square:

1. Planning Consent BH2012/00782 and later variations to this.
TRO-40b-2019 Circus Street (Phase 2):

2. Planning Consent BH2013/03461 and later variations to this.
TRO-36-2019 Kingsway:

3. Planning Consent BH2016/02756 and later variations to this.
TRO-17-2019 Freehold Terrace:

4. Planning Consent BH2014/01637 and later variations to this.

192



LEGEND

Motorcycle Parking - At Any Time

- Taxi Only - At Any Time
]

T T 1
infringes Cro

T T TT T
rvey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction

N x — >V T T I T == — T v
wn copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. (100032379) (2017) | Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right (2017) ’ e J |
% e =< ’

.09 44.79 \/\/ = .

TT T\ 1T

T
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Su

Disabled Parking - At Any Time

Permit Holders Only
9am - 8pm
Proposed Double Yellow Lines

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

Existing Double Yellow Lines

€6T

A | 03.12.19 [Issued For Comment

Rev| Date Description
This drawing has been specifically prepared to meet the requirements of the
named client and may contain design and innovative features which differ

H J dards

Drn |Chk|App

Gi\Project Centre\CAD\Library\Logos\PCL\NEW LOGOWEW PCL logo_150mm_CMYK jpg

38 Foundry Street
Brighton
BN1 4AT
Tel: +44 (0)1273 627189

Fax: +44 (0)1273 627199

Email:
info@projectcentre.co.uk

P o ADoK o0

Client

Project

Drawing Title

Drawing Status

| Scale | Size

Drawn Designed | Date

Drawing No. ‘ Rev

r
~ l/l/
mk* / ~-

Office Registered in England No. 02625312 4th Floor Westgate House, Westgate, Ealing, London, W5 1YY | -
- —
S:\Environment\Traffic\Parking Infrastructure\Traffic Orders\TRO-43-2019 Queens Square\Proposals\Documents\Drawings\1000003474- BHCC TRO PLAN.dwg | ######## | ----

www.projectcentre.co.uk

PLOT DATE: 12/12/2019 11:57:38 | CAD REFERENCE:


AutoCAD SHX Text
44.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
47.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
EAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
North Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
11 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Wykeham Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
4 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
28.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
31.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
1 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
DYKE

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Imperial Arcade

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
Quadrant

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
QUEEN'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
15b

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
206 207

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
6b

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
208

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
12 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
211

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
15 to 19

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
DISABLED

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
DISABLED

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Chk

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
This drawing has been specifically prepared to meet the requirements of the named client and may contain design and innovative features which differ from conventional design standards.

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Client

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Drawing Status

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
Size

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
Drn

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
App

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
Designed

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
38 Foundry Street   Brighton BN1 4AT Tel: +44 (0)1273 627189  +44 (0)1273 627189  Fax: +44 (0)1273 627199  +44 (0)1273 627199  Email:  info@projectcentre.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
Office Registered in England No. 02625312   |   4th Floor Westgate House, Westgate, Ealing, London, W5 1YY   |   www.projectcentre.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
PLOT DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
CAD REFERENCE:


V61



BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL
ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984

Brighton & Hove Various Controlled Parking Zones Consolidation Order 2018
Amendment Order No.* 202* (TRO-43-2019)

STATEMENT OF REASONS

To relocate on-street parking provision at the northern end of Queen Square subsequent
to the development of the former Ice Rink into an Apartment Hotel under Planning
Permission BH2012/00782 which creates an area of footway at the northern end of the
street where previously the carriageway extended to the building line. To formalise the
taxi rank locations as specified in the temporary traffic order 11.04.2017 and currently
marked.

Dated: 20th December 2019

Executive Director Economy, Environment & Culture
Brighton & Hove City Council

C/o Parking Infrastructure

Room G40 Hove Town Hall

Norton Road, Hove

BN3 3BQ

195



196



, T i < X ~ > T
Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. (100032379) (2017) | Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right (2017)

RIDGE TSN

47.09 mWﬁM = —
| —=< ©
| —= =~

1 T TN ] ] IT T

T
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery

NOTES:

—_

All signing and lining references to TSRGD 2016.

2. All works to be undertaken within the specification
for highway works.

3. All new sign posts to be 50 x 50 RHS with
foundation for post 300 x 300 x 650 ST4 concrete.

4. Mounting heights of lower signs at 2.3m.

/

T — . Proposed Disabled badge holders only sign to
: Schedule 4, Part 5,ltem 4. See drawing

[] | \ \ / - No.1000003555-4-120-15 for details

/ I \ Proposed Permit holders only. Schedule
| )i / 4, Part 4, Item 2. See drawing
| \ V, R No.1000008555-4-120-15 for details

/

DIA 1028 o

| h / ~ AN \

—— D [ | | [ _ N Proposed Motorcycle only sign R \ \
\
!
!
!
!
!

\ | [ \ <  |to Schedule 11, Part 2, ltem 56 \ \ e
—— Y / S %, |&Schedule 5, Part 1, Item 2. \ N \

[ / | \ ¥ 7 \\ ! \\\\ ) \ \

| | _ | \ I ! / \\\ " "|Signage fixed to repositioned / \ \

. /1 |lamp column

-

0 2 4 6 8 10m  1.200 @ A1

HI[I[ 1:400 @ A3

Location of taxi rank

and white lining to remain

197

D | 30.04.19 |AMENDMENTSTO DOUBLE YELLOWS D  GWI|GW

C |28.11.2018| MINORAMENDMENTS IC |GW | GW

B | 27/09/18 |MINORAMENDMENTS RH | RH | GwW
AMENDED FOLLOWING

A 101.05.2018 L\ c commENTs IC | RH |GW

- | 26.02.18 |S278 Application IC | PT | RH

Rev| Date Description Drn|Chk|App

This drawing has been specifically prepared to meet the requirements of the
named client and may contain design and innovative features which differ
from conventional d @3 tandard

38 Foundry Street

Brighton
, BNT 4AT
Management Tel: +44 (0)1273 627189
Fax: +44 (0)1273 627199
FS 77166 Email:

info@projectcentre.co.uk

Client
M K BUILD LTD
Project
APARTHOTEL
QUEEN SQUARE, BRIGHTON
Drawing Title

TRAFFIC SIGNS AND ROAD MARKINGS

Drawing Status

FOR APPROVAL

Drawn Designed Date Scale Size
ID 7 ID 7 30.04.19 7 1:200@A1 7 Al
T - ) . T AT A~ _ _ Drawing No. 7x@<
Office Registered in England No. 02625312 |  4th Floor Westgate House, Westgate, Ealing, London, W5 1YY | e P _ / | 1000003474-4-120-01 D
www.projectcentre.co.uk 7 - X\ T~
- - -~ - ars ~_ / /

PLOT DATE:  01/05/2019 10:39:38 | CAD REFERENCE: \\itservices.local\shared$\Project Centre Brighton\Brighton\CAD\00-PROJECT\1000003474\REV IPD\1000003474-4-120 - SIGNS AND MARKINGS REV D.dwg | ##### | -



198



Appendix 3

TRO-43-2019 - Queen Square

Who

Support / Object

Reasons

Landlord

Object

| am the landlord of the flat, and manager of the freehold of the
whole building and as such | regularly need to park in Queens Square
to undertake maintenance and other tasks associated with the
building and often need to carry numerous items from the car such
as paint pots, tools and equipment which are apparently "too small"
to be covered by "loading" by traffic enforcement officers. It has
been extremely frustrating for me not to be able to legally park
anywhere in the vicinity of the flat as there are no other parking bays
at all in the surrounding streets meaning at least a good 5 minute
walk to the nearest possible parking bay (although often it's a lot
longer because the bays are full). Obviously this is no good if you
have multiple things to carry and have to do multiple trips. | have
been told by my tenants and neighbours what a nightmare it has
been while the development of the ice rink area has been in
progress. Everybody with a car has received many parking fines over
the course of the hotel development period because the existing
bays were not available. Provision of parking bays outstrips the
benefits of extending the taxi rank as there is already enough space
for around 16 taxis which most of the time seem to sit for a
considerable amount of time doing nothing so | really don't see why
you need space for more? If you can relocate the bays to be perhaps
next to the designated Police bay (1 could fit behind it) or tucked up
next to the new hotel then that would be fine but we really need
some bays within Queens Square itself for the obvious reasons
stated.

Resident

Object

The 2 parking bays in Queens square are the only zone Z parking bays in the
area as all of the surrounding streets are double yellow lines. This makes it
very difficult when you have food shopping as traffic wardens do not allow
you to park outside the flat to take shopping up. During the development
of the former ice rink area | have had to pay numerous parking fines as a
result of not being able to legally park anywhere near my flat as the
development had 'temporarily' (so we were told) encompassed the parking
bays. We really need at least one bay to remain. One bay for the entire
street, is that really too much to ask?

199




200



— k}ﬂ-
Fi 13' \GG e
o
f / 1z2}/ fiogg /1215 .
Gy .
/ / 2,09 11.9 BT
12.16 D Eo
9 27.10
7 - REET & KINGSWOOD STREET - KEY
w5 PHASE 2: CIRCUS ST
12.19 / 11.83 11.88 by g L SK92 Threshold +§(1]v3e5
223 1 (4] - K Q + 13.16 .
/ %4: // &4 .Rs CATV 124 -
1.77
1217 / + 45 2 7
A 3 m 2.5 Floor level 2 B O U N D
/ 12.08 11.88 2,08 ‘tD v < Threshold 19.66 N Ea P HAS E
12.28 / RS 13.16 +
T
12.18 12 Column
1211 20 LP® %85
/. . DING & NO WAITING AT ANY TIME
CL=12.62 Column ] PROPOSED NO LOA
e / IL=8.06 N
.25 > . — K
/ 07 . S Lo 12 .zéy =) 3
| , | TIME
e / 5 Loy o5 e PROPOSED NO WAITING AT ANY
.
/ 1257
11.84 12.08
11.90 +12.41
o TING NO WAITING AT ANY TIME
212 o ) mmmm  EX|S
2.03 12.75
12,06
17\ L1264
1.2 . M
e / ¢ ) LUSIVE PAID PARKING, 2 HOURS, 9AM - 6P
11.93 o / o - PROP ) ! Floor level
E 7 1. .05
- ‘:’TD 4 3 / Ey 3 1209 2 24 | P
/ 12.05 ¥ ) RS ey, Raof level
12.03 5 N Og P 26.07
/ ° i [ o - RS, 9AM - 6PM
g - ! | EXISTING EXCLUSIVE PAID PARKING, ,
7 ar 222 . : R |
£~ 237 H o
+ rqr'"C’c I ” H 8 N -
11.91 / S e o £ o B
p.15 /,2.15 R 21.38 o S i
" 12.42 G, 7 = N LY
i Ridge " Threshold Pa 3 g
Eave’ JB Q Mster 8 5
/ 1211 2 2509 1256  Eavek s J C £
Nt
) 11.82 / 5 h + Eave ET 5 f
i 12.00 - Threshold 20.09 CATV a
/ SYCAMOR) + ® 12.78 H s
h.83 HT 12m & . X J ERS ON LY
+ I / 1207/ " o8 P Threshold § - PROPOSED
/ @ S 13.09 ] . 1 5‘93+
onc
1.77) _ 'gg ~
s/
ES
1204/ " 5 R g Tarm}
3 58 [ PROPOSED LOADING ONLY
HT 9m / . oo x 15, ej;{-lb
o 98 & Threshold - Conc ) o
1,82 18 + & +13.50 N h2. S 16,
140 ' :
2> g gt Face
(200 5 S ED LOADING. 6AM - 6PM ; Qemen s
! . TR PROPOS ; 27577
11 ¥
[ ] P : — BADGE HOLDERS, 6PM - 6AM
h PROPOSED BLU ,
¥ 12.03 & IS
12.05 2 & N
/ '2':’2407 K 1ok R
07 o .
(4] N ~OT
T~ irst
i q4:° S o 308 17.78_ 5 UB + 18.35 Floor J288 0 O
me y 2.67 {b 12.67 174pf | X .
. w 12.68 0 12.70 uB 8
e ~; 12.79 o . or Stbel + Yoo + > 1610
SBIRCH N  Threshold COJ‘I 270 S - CEIL HT
. Sil
- .41
0111663 9 12. 02 0 + en\Pip S Under Steel ta +16
‘ $ Vi FARPIA 828
S 3 =z MH
‘8‘/ e 3 cL 12.79
¥ iL 12116
11.55 QY B s nder Steel
. o 0
o
1.68 g - 5.91
L1166 1ee r‘})? i HT+ nd ‘Level
11.63 o s.bircy 1f.41 i~
: 6 ‘8 N IL 12.04
5 MH,
& cL
i Under Pipe 306 T~ _
L1168 //1 11.96 11.94 . Column 18.01 ) 12.70 3(,\7 1 g
o em ~9Q 3 r Steel Ground Level er Pipe =
1208 .0 & - 18.29 12.77 S
/lg -] c'g Colu)
111 I £
57 / 12.01 - S + Under r
11.94 11 = 18.35 2
11.70 ® 5 o +
+ Fy TS £ Unde e [,
11.82 & W g. 17.9¢ ho
¢ 11,91 ES R -
2 =] 2
9 Ridge o I3 &9 Groupd Lew?
11.80 5 19.88 B £ + & 2
11.88 + 1 12.00 + o 8 MH 3 3 2|
3 g I 12.59 N e 9
/ < - o - torny of R ining1 3
11.85 £ o Lo
5 _—
11.89 Threshold ndefside Overhex
e e 12.43 Tod of Hetaining Walf fnternall
11.85 0 M . Ground Level B of Réflining Wall [Eixternally
/ es — 6. . 1271 Columg, .\ - Pipe f Retflining Wall Ffternally:
/ sv > v o it 18.00 £
L1188 / e o 5‘95 +
11.89 / 11.89 c nder P e_ﬁc md / 5
N
18.00
69
11.98 z (7)) fs
o o f— o
11.92 / 11.91 /1188 ﬁ,,, 0 s 5
o - Ground Level
% 11.89 187 o 12.70 Undgf [Pipe
17 L1193 1191 Ji . C 4 @ k 17 o
// / g m 51 Cy n/Gro Level S
Ridge ~ 3 ow
/ 19.45 S
+ BT r~ © =3
@
7 1230 . 5 &
11.82 oy L]
531308.181 E 11 11.85 11.882 3{:\}4 - L=12.4 Bo egi -;?gL:cII;I
- 104503.285 N % e . N p = L f1.9 enf Jof Led
B —11.83 ‘$~ o 18g o ersfd& Iof dverhea
11.81 ) 9 s + - o all temc:llly
11.82 on 8 3 [2] - tto Ret: ernally.
e Z\ 11.83 N N / = + Top] of [Retai ernall;
Y
: ° Iy i
— +J .
145 11.87 / - s & 2.12, der Pipe o 1886 Pipe
- 11.72 11.75 11.77 & o [~ 17.96 2 n ; Stgel +
11.75 11.88, %’ 5= Column 9. 19.43
+ Seq
\\\.\117;‘) 178 11.79 / cy - 534' Lovel Gl d fevel
92 op 1187 12.63 Pipe
Ke ) 11.80 ] N ¥
g SHL. o o 1.4 ) o o g
= 11.81, h »S ) Eave 5’ Cqlmn "Grgynd Leve
% x 5| 16.27 1243
| PREE. Q E - 'g
3 11.82 & 2 EN . 3 ] ? @ |
-~ (=) -~ > A
178 o] ffre2 tiee & v Ridge = 5~ O N N + MH 2 - D
: g 18.23 2 s ;
+ o MH cl=| g
785 2} pay L=/12.4: 12.47 SN
"‘73 2 + ~ IL11.8 Ground Level [[Column - s > ~'3
=~ - o - CPL HT Under Pipe S 19 o
1,88~ = o 1543 17.94 + « =
N ~ $ =] sv X UB 9
< 7, 1175 - o " = 5 ‘ 6"\,’, & <
11.85 3 : - = o ] % 5 nder Pip
s +1.79 . 3.,? 3 17.9 Ground Dyvel
& 182 3 12.57 M
7 3 4
NI . Yater F X . + 3z e
,'00 s < e 11.78 zy Elec’ - w K3 @ § ~ Gy
Q Y A = Ridge g 53 L 3 5 9.35
\\ e % g 19.79H EBor level I3 Int’ Trap I &) S ipe/ [
AT + S Main Outlet S _ Jl 3% 19040 8 FLurn
11.85 B 2 Ridge > Sewer is 'combined & Under Pipe] &y ] und Lefel
+1.82 1.85 + 2 19.89+ a § - 16.75 - 58 o
‘ “-@, & . ?/;9 S g gao 8 Aj
S o 25mm MH 1 am 3 B Retdifiing Wal o
11880 - B3 5 ! CL=12.39 241 Sl f Edgp fof Ledgf
2 = . . I 0.95 ’ 29 verhﬁu SR
3 3 - 24, ¥ ernal :
756\ H1.77 = 0 p_of " emullyy = g
+ % S o + 225m, I3 Bof of
1180 SR H176 11.8 = 2 1811 3 , M pipe of REFi rmally
11.81 BN 5> Rtomal wey |, g
. >\ : Gol 2 £8 o x ace §
: - 7 o 5 1113 iz MH g
o 0 Colum IL 11.0 CL=12.37 3 GroygndJ) nt
Iron Rajl ic S Under Pipe . 5 & Levil f t
[} <= N Yl 3
_ 2.3m I3 UTL T £ 2 7.98 I 12/p6, o
g £ 12,17 = S N Ridge g Leve 5mm pioe 1h.36
o = R 23.04 Unde 1.25 Ic
® S 5 19148
Q [ + N
= - iy = = -4
173 70 e . b QIR = 2 ~ Col
- . Q w)
- 2 . Q ~ + n lit
o ‘Q ] @ ] RS - Ground s
1.78 e E ) * S R\) 2.38
g : O aff o sl »! ¥
; 3| N — == Sllz2N o [ofobind
e 11.69 & = P D N CL=12.47, 3 SUANS = Lyel o
HT 16m . ¥ - CATV o (3 5 : £ “ 52 +
% E Qv i &S >~ o lump,
172 L TS 411§ 8 ~
1.8 8 . / / i == £[/8 @& $
1225 1175 2 . CA D : if / / / J s o F N
134 a = o= i1 . 12.49 q
=) S==ad] 9,
1184 = o 05 - vth J 1837 &
. = Tarmac - Eave o = e
+ 29.62 2 oo & Thre, 52 £ g
1 = - — 2% 12, . -
11.63 Ky i A SIS K —/ | 2.48 - =
1.79 =N 5% 3 Ridge Internq) Wayy Ground Level uny
1293 08 + 3¢ 235 = TP 48 2253 o + Covnd bevel e S
g 13.0 Conc -
ELM Ridge 12 ic Co 247
15 o .51
HT 15m 1 . . 2 _;BD +29.56 " 12,57 DCL eNE Wjﬁ - n B S -
. © 3 . :
- & S [ P 5] 88 &8 [ D n 75 F-\Goury L
1.72 ] = - = 8 2/£9 ~ - 2.46 8 [Unas .46, Y :
1.2 - 1es a § N ) 6? =9 4 o / o 1 304! + + . ;
a g N 3
) Al e .
+ n +1188 Pipe Threg - = v
12.46 / P >I7<7 v - S +$$ 8
P o o 8 . NS = 4 & ° = ; :
11.52 . —_— Meter s & [ O = Ry R 12.47 ) o )
° i e 3 il ;
. $ “fo 5 =1oE g
: - Y ‘ g %
N : - . S N o T KSR e - 2 X 11
. ° o . e edg
1 @ 161 = kidge :VV [g m () k3 L O [~ Column —~ et edg
: ¥ 26.80 = N I3 Rbdi Extgrpfly
+ 156 S / U @ P
114q = 0 g m =] int
1.8 o m Sfts
s >(‘} + A M “0) Iy — @ To| Wa ]
it
/O N / o< S m< 19, o )
S - : A 3 m 22 2
11.84 IS Gy { 0 o o 0 I < : >
E + g 1 X Y Mo 2
- - . o
11.60 3 ’I 3 o§ Vs = S/ S s - 1H.40
1.5 - w0 g 0 + ~ Gy gif/m [ Colu NCP Bafs Ha
11.61 : 2 £ o3 - 17
- V 5 - o P PP\‘?IU
~ .
159 - TR ¥
© g Threshold D o2 =] Column o)
[ 1.0 N 2] 35 s dl |ISEE 35 % &
a <f 5 : of |2 : S — =
R 152 = iy Al =3
1.49 v rmac ;3,’ 5 T |
f K A1.28 s} 29 o S= L
: S Tarmac i .
[) My og £ ™ — o
+ IL=_11.52 £ =2y ~ = i A
1147 ° Floor level 1 187 > CL=12.20 . ) Column = 53 3
157 150 155 5 1.84% NS g ~ —r 2 S
= bl = S — 1441
IS » ol G L] —
S o =g Y Column E—
11 of [¥51 - 12.18 . =
J Threshold . © ”,‘; . 5 - — -
1152 11.89 = Gy 2 303 L] ts
t rif —3712.13 = -3 S 12.32 Column .
o< Wy 2 4 ¥ 1
147 o RS| 30 3 oD = . o 7
153 11.52 P Ridge = . Oyl a5 [5, 8 fo § 23 /
e © 205 £ ] | Threshold I = - &
o 2 : st o s reho n o |
u HT 8m 151 & MH 5 SEE 1209 e 4 / i
11.48 g 11.86 A 1 T I 12.31 Bottopn of Retainjng Vol £t
1. 29 + o B > w R 11.88 1.86 7 & e fogk B sis |
o sV - 1.9 il IN I Extent edg
svi = i1 & 2% [ s 7 Steps ’ L NS Colume Top of Retainjng Wall Extbrmally /
) = ¥ = S 8'233 Y
gln \ o‘: $1yD82 a . N Column o / 2
o9 . 0, Flopr leve :
- E:' s T1.93 2] >3 11.9 <|>'-=” 7 o 2 1231 & NCP Car Park <! o
11 Dray ~c, ~ x .09 C = s 8 - ea &
He37  tas & 11.66 Hatch 2 s Tafjhac [N 2T 2oz sIFE § 73 o 12.22 Upper Az /
g - 11.6¢ 83 s = g e s =t/ | e/ | N 8 ;1221 ;
- i a 3 - =
s ' 11.69 o (3 E-i - 270 12.25 P _
K ———— — 67 11.73 S 237 12,24 S er Hats
© e 3 — . B B M » - ' i S
frem S N5 [ — S é arm Cl=12.31 s 5 @
| s — e _— ROy oy 2R Column . Iy B
R e e 1175 11.89 . CL=11.99 Ic Tl 12, L2 h.46
11.57 5 o N IL=10.64 2)8 00 53 Ll y
1145 , e @ s, & IS = o (Foul Interceptor) = 2.08 Column I 1
- S N IS " )
S ~ £ Conc/Tarma . . il ;
¥ N = f Retaiffing Wall
a7 SHys 8 . " ConeTormae S oy Y 2 :
ae ' 148 5.53 o : = 12.02 Extent fof Ledg / )
=8 Joom o © g O N 27 g% Top of Retaining Wall Exfernally ) 5 5 4 .
+7) 11.38 o Y 5 i\' s L 3
N3z * 12 * = 8 12.00 ! t210 W Column / ¥ = 8 2 &
% .00m L 12.21 302 . 28 gl 3
148 3 141 11.5 Tarmqe 4 4 Cables -~ o WM MH 72 3 Conc c°|u:n ' 3 | o8 § 5
. 5m M/ D 73 o In] 3> > Raised > 12.23 25, / &
8 8 /*\ e 1237 " Parking JIs ENG ; 2] © 5
& 1.39 N . o .37 LX ©Q S
+ W - ES
10.61 cPs Clény98 Brora = 10 Column Top of Wa
2 " S a ® 16.77 P o)
6 00 .73 12.03 — Iy T35 L 301 . He 9.44 . 5
11.44 s ~ .U0m 4 00 eppe; =" =g, VA 12.16 2ight Restricy S E |
' 3. 12.08 S 6.61 S ofc S
o @ . m 2 - e ——— — Car Puzrlr(n Barrigy %o / e 0 &
1.40 11. E 7 : - % [/ o
(3] - B -
H. W TR~ = — . ; | 5
. e S o £
11.35 . 2 ' 4 ———— 218 : - -
RS ~
© —
7 L e M Py a8 — RS 43-00177 Nl FaR = ——— Il /Fence® 5
& © \ N, -
/7 g | .(;°|umn 11.74 Ridge . 4 L5\ - e = CATV Concrete  NffF
1135 73 ® 27.66 . " ¥ ¥ o e
\,;? 44 ~°'”& . 1-90 BTD - CPs ) , IN o 8.67 e o
° = 3
N / : 1.99 erc V][ © 5 <
11.26 2 — — MGR3, 1730 CPS PPe o JIE
11.21 = cPs — 1 c 19,29 g o -+
1 " — /‘\ 10.00 Tarmag T 4 & §
1127 e j Ridge — -vum gy
T 132.59 13,0 Gy 1
1.23 cps 13 93m 1873 1906
5 .
e 11.44 —y — 264 1355 12.95
— — 3.14 2035
11.31 ¥ B gf Wel — d .
126 +1.58 .1 57 19.22+
11.44 // 3.6.
! , w O+ ,
. [ CL=13.34 Ridge ~y é’,
g ©U
1 11.48 / o9 e
/
1135 [11‘43 7
T sz £ N e u [ 8 - — ——
Y 04401.357 H1.29 B l?; Wal // :
<,
& A
B 1.24) ]_12-3 :&,} | gg
9| X ] 11.42 )
N % = Vehicular access For
Sussex Police Station
b &
4 1140 -
132 9
11.26 . o
¥ 114 y
11.42 N/
11.40 o&.&f Wall -~
11.38
119 [
127 Brighton University Building
. . te
1.24 Original drg. size Da
11.36 1145 Scale OCT1 9
] 11.48 RUCTU RE Drawing Title 1 250
/7 : PARKING INFRAST -
Drawn Checked Approve
ight. Licence: . Brighton & Hove ANSPORT PROPOSED PARKING RESTRICTIONS CML
© Crown Copyright. Licence: 100020999. Brig TR —
= H - Drawing Number
City Council, 2015. Job title Bﬂghton & Hove [orovno stotus 9 BHCC CPZ C P2
— - Drawn Checked | Approved
Rev. | Date Revision detail




202



BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL
ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984

BRIGHTON & HOVE VARIOUS CONTROLLED PARKING ZONES CONSOLIDATION
ORDER 2018 AMENDMENT ORDER NO. * 202* (ref: TRO-40a-2019)

Brighton & Hove (Circus Street) (One-Way) Order 202* (Ref: TRO-40b-2019)

STATEMENT OF REASONS

As part of the Developer Highway Works Agreement (Section 278) related to the
redevelopment of the Former Municipal Market on Circus Street (Planning Application No.
BH2013/03461) and as part of highway safety improvements informed by Road Safety
Audit, alterations are required to the existing on-street parking arrangements and double
yellow lining in Circus Street and Kingswood Street which are funded and constructed by
the Developer.

Circus Street will become one way northbound from Kingswood Street to Morley Street
and a Restricted Parking Zone will be implemented whereby parking, waiting and loading
is restricted to marked bays only. These will include loading bays and disabled parking
bays. One way restriction is required due to road safety and the reduced width of road
space available. A counter-flow cycle facility was considered by the designers and
discounted following road safety audit.

Kingswood Street will alter at the western end only to improve visibility to the pedestrian
crossing and regularise the double yellow lining adjacent to the junction with Circus Street
to allow for alterations to the plan layout of Circus Street as part of the Development.

Dated: 13" December 2019

Executive Director Economy, Environment & Culture
Brighton & Hove City Council

c/o Parking Infrastructure

Room G40 Hove Town Hall

Norton Road, Hove

BN3 3BQ

203



204



G0¢

I, ¢ o $ z3 5¢ £, 42 | s ez Te _ RN | 5w e [173
¢ ( . £ . e = 4B 4 3 2 3 0+ P o
2 3 |5 N 2 gL | I Nl ————- 'tf'_l 2. D;“ 3 Sdo -
s 3 . e 2 PLIIETYY
£ S Iz . ¢ - . % : . 3 ' ! : | i, - o
e s B B 2 ¢t R ' | | - % ;
{ Zols & % g 5 53 £ E 5% +12.70 Ll e = g +’ e« . _
& asls ‘o 2 8t 3, 5% suipwsy jiom 8 3 3 p= Lozt orks FER o | +3 vy 9 "
{ 1 822 £ an oy poorsy LOCKB—— + I &) s | . 3 - g
- N 28 3d E.‘: %'& %3 3 %@ uwnjoy R . _15C gy CTRAL) _ . 2403 N ® o g ]
+ e i S g kS o BV posry oe 37 = @H e eigh ] [Wicion v 5] gd o g Q8
Y o S . 5 5 3 | e I ol ¥ £ 8 |k &
= L) 4 '3 4 19 Lad =
5 ¢ oxe ponoss Tmt ey PV ET 2 —— | g H 2
2= l | N 3 pPun i Tevzr - e - 0sT) = N | — i) R— 8 E‘J %:%
3 * : : [ Mas s . - 2 ST TP Jifo - AR S -
0 y % °‘£3, :’:: Al | & /' — Ll uod ov'zL =] \%3 611=10 961 1=1p , = dls © 23 ;ﬁ E: i Eﬁi o
H 3B - o7 o ﬁdez% PETL wet =y ) A/ v o - o g - * Q o | &
[ [ PN 150 Sl 60ZL  ,707| g6l % 5 Dgo . g% 1 N | .
— ] = - =] e = deys 2 = g 5 Bl|% .
u = N~ — . - rl <+
u%‘ g L & 1 Y N Y Y — jouseauL E6LLy ] N seu g - ' § K %8 b 1 ) | B4
SR S : oo s 1o v el 4 [ w8 ® 3 8 b A
w [ - 2 A - £ k-] -
X 3 4l 3 N AR ooy | 5 8 o5
~IREEIF ; &3 g i o i 3 8 #12x
S|l 24|l CIRCUS COURT £ - : |
oj §3/1I8 S 3 a ¥ . 2 O 2 = g
T n + S 2 - < i
: _g } %;+ 5 @ 5 foR }o
£ 1 23 e= e O 0 £
" | R , | - E i = I =3 . ] . | . ] 8
N [ . \ ~__ ; \ 3 * sfleig 3 F
7 2 s 5 r I - T3 s bl T "+ + 15
¢ 2§ B S N /G’( { [Tz zaLe 3= (- g
gg’ © u| = P g N [ W ] 5 | Da = Z £ |o
g gg:ol © i — — | 12 :H § ’-" ~ 'i— §’= N odid D - gl
- - o~ © + N I+ prd | — . N = d 0G1L .. o
g s 5 & | H~ — 2850 : R [ O\ [l e LOCK | " ; =t o
e 5[0+ LOCK« = [ i =S I ] . F 3 B Ay 9 28 MCK ovzi BT IR ooz R o :
o ZL’;l E|lw W Tr — =1 < - o\o — ,'{7) 00°ET -3 \% : o © " — y ﬁ
6‘*—0 S : IIPM J8uu| 30 jJuswubiy ejowixosddy / - A %% L_V] ﬁo GK C T e gﬁ + 5% 2 QL% 5;1 6:‘3 wyel A % @?3. 8 I
el £/ H ST+ - R floubbay, ““'ﬁ:“u_s g | — < sdais i . £ 119] S - D |
oz el | E E /o ET 1972t Tgert - = = ; E‘f__ 5 =0 ;_ ‘ioe 0B srerster] wouo oz = E_:t “i‘ S=ond S1040 3 \ \5‘ _"'%;gz [ |
H e - 5 ’ 233 [ = bzy ocfL  IIom/wy g A — * /Lxg;a.u — g
" 3 e B . (] 2 . N deis N =3 | wgg'o e 3‘% g e =1 4 Ty =0 vie=e oz ool — —+ |8 : acéD [
N Guoue & . Z g - g ) = e g% o dex SERYLe=1 1eTh = ® Le s6'LL Lot Rl & I
_ wenp Adoung . ) B o [ 2 D X
S L[ ___________ — Qe( . _Bumuer Adouny & o o 2. 5""" ‘l &~ > o 3 @Jﬁ S El ’ ’ E $ o g k|
- - Tt ——— —_—_—————— B uowienp Adoung  _ _ _fI- ° <y oDULID] /2u0) 1 " 9 - 2 2[:] =1
L9¥1 252l \P ‘?ZL+ SHTL, ZL —_—_—— 3 — 1 @ E 2 -~ ©, 5 s IR |
] g e e e Lec K [ P % — 9Lzl 2 ocel, TN sz, oz ‘% ) dD’ - y ] R
f\bi o 1 o ' 373 | e soel oz ozL 60 +agt olsg‘l:l & DHEH gh |
sdvg Sur - ) &= Q3 o!
g = q Suryred sAvg Suryrey o oo\ sk 5 ..E S |
¢ S £ £| AN £fe e : AR
. > t , o |
® § vz < : £ S 2
lllllll::I I 1] L 0Ty ) N ';3 % : " t 8 S o. @
¥ ) o 51 RN 69'LL N <]
b} - 3 )
N pL 18, g a P " i - ° S o~ L6} 3 ] } . |
; — + “+ e i AN ANRERN =< o — - -3
v‘! N B + opuyo) [ 1 L 4 92Z1=10 DA o , + + (llll lllllllll:IlllIllllllllllllllllllll +llllllllllllllIllllllllIlllllllllllllllllll: l;-ll 1] glzullll LT NN NN AN ‘t LI T LTI 4!-..............'lllllllll -+ + IE
c O)“” """"" = a=== e === =—o r 22 =] r r obULID) * i T 3& |
£ S = =Y S e e e ) F 0
E ) '\- Lo ), o I S - ) NN N N | N N N N O O - L1 11 -
3 Ol e sAvg Fapgrey N ' ; o] 5 £ E T |03,
3 2 ~ = 1S 3
@ | . [ - - 0 S .
b3 <t 3 vax O - o 1ba [ B @ |59 Paryse ; e D S ‘g 3 I3
Q g 2 | SE . 9 . . B - J Se] ol
§+ o] g %D ] . - % ‘ vo(%  — 7oL B Le°Ll % W, = . I = < <+ pad | B
Oy 1 ywTIn (=) i . |
SV e 5 s — £ = = AY & g = : z;l % |
. 8zl < ?“““L o ® o) » i 0 o %3
ﬂ L L L e T T 5 e gnmnnnnn LT T Ld° iﬁlnnll T, T - llllllllllllllll:o-l ZE' o o s ol D A @ = 4@‘ N (‘) g § @ B‘D _ &\ |I gg,
L) c9°Z1L 9e°C1 F4%A]N z INEE NN NN [P T " e H a :’ N [
c ég ploysauy] OolA"gal %% p|oqsL§uE_|l: 93‘ +% s _,olo ; , o OO'Zl“““““".“““. N NN AN RN LRSS RN lnlll!l;lllmﬂii i llllln;lllnl‘llﬂnihllllnllllnn 1 ‘; + - '% ;E I g_i
N G < % uBDg ® + . ) 1 -
A %% %% ?E 0.2+ - ot L) 29 o Prousas 8 I|
3 g (2 o9 B + [l e EoE) N
- o 22 o 8 S BE| 37| = E Y I3
2 < I H § |8
~ z 2
-— ‘ | °
| m+ 4.‘E
' L S
=
2
l l I l g%
ELUTTLTY o
E
=3
S
32 <
2 2 -]
:t';.a B
- 9
+ = i
ey oLt
T2l odyg M o oM
el sdorg frzy — —] —
liom vig) — — — 1
d [ - 1 — | =
o Seis " sgi ost et [ — = == —— e TR = KEY
3 i B & T L 4 3 [ e Foores on T T ERE X ® PROPOSED LIGHTING COLUMNS
- < QA sszL s S T=g o | ®  EXISTING LIGHTING COLUMN TO BE REMOVED
~ - £e'8lL [ 4 19ADIY o ([
?3 |9AeT punoug |8A87 punou | | o —86°7 a
3 I _—L i 19935 1opun) : 9 e y— — poy o (3 — e Bt 88 § gj
+ Hgas apug = S oM o e =8 41 X
\ i 2 %o PA:) I : LJa ouo orzL £611=10 g614= , =3 2 o o i 5 X
w_ S ¢ 150 S L o= 3 [ e th 7 7 == 22— t '+ g 4 ——  60mm UPSTAND TRADITIONAL KERB LAID FLAT
mE 2= Z3= - ¥ +20°ZL S6'L . - g g4 o
e [ ] Q. B ey 113150 : N s 5 e ||, gk £hl s DROPPED KERB
c| e — yseJy| < S
S| P : — 7 57 : T ; s b ! E
£ i . 0014 L €521 " =
% y g Sqfis ¢ 2 5 s N i o S| AN | e, [ c ] : B . A RESIDENTIAL MAIN ENTRANCES
- « N < = L - — o, -
5% 8 § £y ¢ 3 2% % =3 | 1 8 o LIRS A RETAIL UNIT & COMMERCIAL MAIN ENTRANCE
kX W * 3 u °J B S = — 5 5 8 0 © ) I I
@ - =5 b — ° B -
] (I 3 3 CIRCUS COURT i : 2| 3 EX = | Vv  FIRE ESCAPES
BN T 8 S 2k 5 af e 18 |F g
2 T H i 1M 730 = + 3 § Oy . 2 |
i [l NI 3 R e__ | |® - 5 5<
. P ; g : 5 5y 5|k T o o CTI BINSTORE
r-3 1 - -l 14 i
5 A / . ) L ) ] ] [ . 1 £ e CF 233 22 B & gl a ] - 1 PROPOSED MATURE TREES
% “r _ yay ymy Ay + T © id: o= fi “ § S
b : l& ] - /\*d"d g I %; BNy it W + b I8
‘;”o 9 : = 5= % ’_ ! =27 D 3 é :O [ BALCONIES
3 = — — -
o Bl ~ © + :H =. + [ [ — " ; S
i % 8 | ~—__ —— T T—— ?K’F 12.850 ) 'E - % (o ozl LgOCK I . : z1'zhy] < |
I°* ZL%I : N LOC K( ". I — — 1 L 1 | — | — | [ ]| 117 [ L -gé - 05 ] 0l £ %2 ozl HETL oM 60Z1L 2 } SCALE @ A1 1:250
3 B 1L £ o\o — . - o
3 9 H 2 e 0oeL B < ‘:l{ = e 2 3 = -
+'$ g : 1M Jouu] o juswubiy sjowixoiddy / \ 5.8 R; ELO GK C i — Ploysayy = L 59 2 ggé Y S %o =] |
< ey u (XN =7t - . : FED v ] e — 5 S of 127 syoby siox B3 = . - | G | UPDATED KERB RADII 28.08.19] RC JH
H | Y o L/ 5 L9°cL Toer! - ; / A Q TSRO ubyo . g =Aerd SisLo %g. \ \o —‘*g;ogz |
o juio| /ou i . O ZL " E e <+— +—— — AN + 7 <
: % J § 3 3 & o ders I 35 o e 1 “I "DMufzgo e g’»”l' Yo = — T — + + < %D r
3 E v o & . . R 3 - i 2 % 5 3; [ £} ¢ e (I T O it o * i F | UPDATED AS PER COMMENTS 22.08.19| JHC | PB
—_—— —_— /N . ubyieap Adouoy o . - - o o < > - h
89z O | 29Tl < N *_*——*—*O——f—— -———————————____“____“____B:wmﬁwa_ & 0.z © e v 2pULID) /U0 1 © g o 2 ® * g’\ N; I
Nl LYEL Z5CLT + 1sZL, SHTL, 71 - -_—— % N7 ;) I E -] I:l - 2 DD [ (<1< I
H 8 . - T eert L ' \ ) 7T p— g L . £ d - ] § S E | UPDATED AS PER COMMENTS 21.08.19] JHC | PB
: = . LGNCK P %5 o izl et oot e :i:zz# WL0T) Lo - - ) N |
r__R . ] ’ et ' [ Y gy
- sdvg Suryrsy . sdvg Supgrey R [ &= _ ‘5 ‘h.: D | UPDATED AS PER COMMENTS 08.08.19] RC PB
~ - o
¢ ’ ¥ SN
[ S + = AL (22> FaLFIE] “d 15
e f 53 5 T e _ 5 T St C | UPDATED ALIGNMENT 02.08.19| RC | PB
3 o[ 3 - . .
3 // ll:l [ 1] I o < % E = 80zl e l(g l:l
— L | - LB°L o
| J X = o o 5 - =2 N 2 5 B | AMENDED ALIGNMENT 31.07.19 RC PB
=E= | S § ; I | | ] O O o 0 T . = = - © = - =- 3 -] = = N :‘5 -~
2 i i | | f o ] - Ly 1
3 J ] THH d lj'
// - H L T A HHHHHH HHT i i A | HATCH ADDED 26.07.19] RC PB
© ‘ H H | HHHHHHHHHHHHT = i=l=l] T
| %Q J— “ 1 M H ] 1 u FHH ] — d =
c R H M HHH HH R o o 0 dgligigligly H H H HH HH Hgligigizizgls H H EgNglgighn H leo ..
& £ g/ 5b ‘J H | u UHH ullsls H HHHH Bplgiheigisieizizls HHHHH Ialy 3 Mark| Revision Date |Drawn| Chkd | Appd
- o / O gEghigim! 1 H H HHH 111 M H H H HpEpEpigln mln .
+ © S | ; TOHHH] O - T r 5t L HHHHHH HH HHHHH H = Tmt
| N f& gy n Aglighghghgh < A N 2= THHT # ﬁ = HHHHHHHEHHH LY X | SCALING NOTE: Do not scale from this drawing. If in doubt, ask.
- i N ghghk H LN I — N AAAAHAHH B g g nigigigligligis 1 1 - e g . . s . .
3 o * [LLLJ Ll Ll 1 N LA HAAAAA FEAEAE A ullnlnlululnlglly é |'= UTILITIES NOTE: The position of any existing public or private sewers, utility services, plant or apparatus shown on this
i FED T LHHHTRT v ! o wara i
?3:* ' B Sty ialghy iyl P L - H] H H 5 ] b lylly 3 gigigigisizitaii; N ] e majnly o " l 'g-’b; drawing is believed to be correct, but no warranty to this is expressed or implied. Other such plant or apparatus may also
- |1 | — - - o = =1 ~ = . . . . . .
- Ry ( o3 2 e 9<:z: H;:‘Zl Hiananan adg = o : prrAneey L L ainy b Erta e <o - H 70 . s :\ oL =l | be present but not shown. The Contractor is therefore advised to undertake their own investigation where the presence
. . . %,L % oodSFH ol %% i3 g; +% - %EI; piirk Zvier : i i TN e (Fin iy b g o gnorpnIan Iy Mo nfEhma oI ] ek ik i ° - R :; | g{ of any existing sewers, services, plant or apparatus may affect their operations.
. 8 B ) 98| 100]4 - Buy ~ % =t ke + e =
5 ) ey o 2B 2 AR + e x4 &2 + pioyseiul PHod K 23 2« + 06'L1L ) | .
§ N R 2 2 5 e £ 29 5 + gs 32 £ g £% 82 sa| w2 prowsast 23 N | Drawing Issue Status
- - A . & o [ - pi =
. ore d B B % & Py = 5l FOR INFORMATION
Z 0
) DISABLED PARKING BAYS / SERVICE BAY w 2 oY - |
. kS =0 LOADING BAY DISABLED PARKING BAY ] AR
L)
o 3 W0 13 . 153 82
°~ e +‘%ﬁ : 1 l m+ -
ta &
[ 2 ey e 14
2 Bl +5_q | — 1 | : ¢ | CIRCUS STREET
3 Q :
3 Ll
)
o "
5, + P bk : | BRIGHTON
N o% a 0 -
s 's Q -] 5% :B =i -+ |
<] 0 0 -
L=
A TR 2} STREET LAYOUT
o LI ]
% L E e =
Q e £ <l
; (o RN I~ 4
[ ] R ©
@. | opuLDy o
. g g D Client
‘ @ 2 M S ogul
E: ¢ oR 2 m dDzl () - HA
5 8l |o 3a 58 < n
¢ ¢z +ac [ 3 o :
— . ‘E - %% .%N H & >
B 0 244 £w FIAY LI <
o - A S - -
81390) B [pezr + + %o ST @ =
A /I £Zz1 ‘%Q - ployseaul € C .
, : A f terbrett
® LA ST T - 18
| :S S vz sdoyg " ez Sdo
T S 2 - Soib .
3 e o now part of
B e sdog liom 6o'cl . "
sdeyg T TR ggng 811 M CULL sdois = - Date of 1st Issue Designed Drawn
g IoM 98°LL o~ 0 ]
R S .=.% —— P EI R sl "M sems sdeis . 3 P 25/07/19 - RC
oM LE°LL gqoyg sdays P = a n e C
) % o} T — A1 Scale Checked Approved
[ A 2
: i : % 3z — g 1:250 PB -
2 i = = - pa—— === 7 o 3 = g peterbrett.com
B e ® > = " _y
: - .
—_— & Furssoz) - _ - 3 = Drawing Number Revision © Peter Brett Associates LLP
5 ) 9 5 o p 5 }*
= S g |s : o1 é — || 47040/5501/001 | G
—— % .
g = 2 X A% B — " Tel: 01189 500 761

File Location: j:\47040 circus street, brighton\transport\drawings, photos & videos\cad\dwgs\47040_5501_001g.dwg


AutoCAD SHX Text_76
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
12.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
12.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
11.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
11.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
11.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
11.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
12.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
12.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
11.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
11.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
11.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
11.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
HT 12m

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
SYCAMORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
11.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
11.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
11.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
11.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
12.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
11.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
11.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
11.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
11.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
11.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
11.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
11.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
11.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
11.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
11.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
12.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
11.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
11.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
11.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
11.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
11.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
11.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
11.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
11.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
11.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
11.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
11.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
11.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
11.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
11.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
11.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
11.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Top of Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
Top of Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
Top of Kerb

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
155

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
12.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
Glass Top

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
Wall Has Broken

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
Stepped Wall 1.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
UTL

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
CL=11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
CL=11.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
Sounded

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
Wall 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
Wall Ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
CL=11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
12.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
12.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
Car Parking

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
Conc/Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
12.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
Overhead Canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
27.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
12.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
12.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
12.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
12.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
Cycle Racks

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
Gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
Wall Remains

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
12.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
Pay

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
12.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
Conc/Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
C i r c u s     S t r e e t

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
25.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
12.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
12.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
12.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
12.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
12.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
12.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
12.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
12.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
12.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
JB

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
25.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
21.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
12.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
13.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
12.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
NB

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
12.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
12.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
CPS/

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
13.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
M o r l e y S t r e e t

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
12.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
Floor level

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
19.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
13.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
13.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
12.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
12.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
12.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
12.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
12.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
12.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
CPS/

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
Wall Ht=0.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
Wall Ht=0.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
Roof level

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
21.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
12.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
12.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
12.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
12.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
12.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
12.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
13.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
12.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
12.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
12.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
12.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
12.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
12.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
Pay

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
JB

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
21.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
20.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
20.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
12.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
12.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
12.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
12.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
12.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
12.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
12.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
12.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
12.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
12.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
12.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
12.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
Corner not accessible

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
12.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
12.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
13.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
12.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
12.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
12.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
Conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
12.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
12.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
12.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
12.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
12.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
Canopy Overhang

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
13.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
13.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
13.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
16.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
11.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
11.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
13.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
12.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
12.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
11.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
13.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
11.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
11.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
11.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
11.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
Crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
11.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
11.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
11.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
11.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
11.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
11.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
11.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
11.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
11.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
11.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
12.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
11.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
11.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
11.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
11.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
11.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
11.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
11.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
11.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
11.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
11.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
11.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
11.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
11.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
11.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
11.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
11.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
11.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
26.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
11.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
11.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
11.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
11.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
11.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
11.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
11.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
11.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
11.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
Floor level

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
C i r c u s     S t r e e t

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
Under Steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
12.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
Approximate Alignment Of Inner Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
22.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
19.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
12.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
12.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
12.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
12.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
12.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
12.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
18.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
12.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
12.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
12.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
12.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
12.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
12.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
Canopy Overhang

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
17.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
Under Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
12.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
16.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
CEIL HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
15.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
18.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
Under Steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
17.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
Under Steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
17.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
Conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
18.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
Under Steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
12.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
12.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
17.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
Under Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
12.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
Pay

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
19.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
12.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
12.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
12.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
12.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
12.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
12.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
19.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
16.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
Floor level

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
12.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
12.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
12.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
12.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
12.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
CL=12.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
12.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
12.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
12.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
Canopy Overhang

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
12.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
12.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
Position Of Start Of First Floor

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
18.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
12.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
12.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
16.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
CEIL HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
15.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
Pay Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
12.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
12.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
12.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
Wall Ht=1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
12.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
18.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
16.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
Floor level

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
11.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
12.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
Parking

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
Bay

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
2.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
Iron Rail

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
19.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
19.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
12.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
Floor level

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
11.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
Under Steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
CEIL HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
Conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
16.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
CEIL HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
12.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
12.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
12.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
12.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
16.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
Under Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
15.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
12.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
Internal Wall Face

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
UTL

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
UTL

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
Conc/Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
Wall 0.85m

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
11.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
CL=12.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
12.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
11.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
12.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
12.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
12.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
12.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
CL=12.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
12.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
Internal Wall Face

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
11.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
11.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
11.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
29.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
11.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
11.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
11.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
11.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
11.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
11.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
11.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
11.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
Conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
0.85m

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
Ret/Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
29.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
29.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
13.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
CL=12.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
12.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
12.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
12.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
13.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
12.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
12.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
12.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
Chain Link Ht=2.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
Cycle Racks

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
Pay

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
12.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
11.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
12.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
12.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
12.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
12.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
THR'HLD

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
12.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
12.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
12.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
12.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
2.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
(Foul Interceptor)

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
IL=10.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
CL=11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
Floor level

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
Bay

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
Parking

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
0.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
26.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
11.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
11.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
11.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
11.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
11.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
11.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
20.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
11.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
11.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
11.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
11.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
11.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
11.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
11.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
11.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
IL=11.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
CL=12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
12.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
12.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
12.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
IL=9.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
CL=12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
IL=11.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
CL=12.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
Racks

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
Cycle

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
12.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
11.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
12.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
12.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
11.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
12.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
11.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
1.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
Grill

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
25.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
11.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
11.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
11.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
11.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
11.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
11.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
11.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
11.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
Hatch

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
Dray

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
11.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
11.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
11.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
11.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
11.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
11.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
11.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
11.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
11.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
27.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
11.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
CL=11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
Mercury

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
11.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
11.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
11.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
11.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
11.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
11.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
11.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
11.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
Wall 1.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
12.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
Cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
WM MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
CL=12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
11.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
12.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
12.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
12.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
11.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
12.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
11.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
11.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
12.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
12.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
32.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
NB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
NB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
150 pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
Elec'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
MH 12.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
CL=12.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
CL=12.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
CL=12.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
CL=12.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
CL=12.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
CL=12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
CL=12.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
CL=12.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
Int' Trap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
IL 12.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
IL 12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
IL 11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
IL 11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
IL 11.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
IL 10.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
Sewer is 'combined'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
Main Outlet

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
CL=12.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
IL=8.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
IL=8.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
CL=12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
IL=9.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
300%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
Manhole Obscured

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
308

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
12.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
11.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
12.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
12.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
11.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
11.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
12.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
12.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
12.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
12.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
Cladding at Pavement

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
Main Building Face

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
FLUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
12.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
12.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
16.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
Glass Top

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
Wall Has Broken

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
Stepped Wall 1.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
UTL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
CL=11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
CL=11.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
Sounded

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
Wall 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
Wall Ht=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
CL=11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
12.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
12.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
Car Parking

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
Conc/Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
12.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
Overhead Canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
27.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
12.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
12.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
12.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
12.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
Conc/Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
12.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
Wall 2.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
Cycle Racks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
Gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
Wall Remains

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
Floor level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
CL=12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
12.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
Car Parking

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
13.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
13.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
13.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
12.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
12.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
12.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
13.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
Pay

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
13.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
Vehicular

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
CL=13.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
CL=13.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
12.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
4.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
13.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
13.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
13.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
13.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
13.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
13.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
13.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
Conc/Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
C i r c u s     S t r e e t

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
12.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
12.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
12.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
12.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
12.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
12.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
12.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
12.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
JB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
25.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
21.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
12.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
13.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
12.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
NB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
12.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
12.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
CPS/

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
13.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
Position Of Start Of First Floor

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
M o r l e y S t r e e t

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
12.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
13.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
12.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
12.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
12.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
12.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
12.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
12.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
CPS/

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
Wall Ht=0.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
Wall Ht=0.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
Roof level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
21.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
12.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
12.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
12.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
12.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
12.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
12.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
13.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
12.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
12.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
12.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
12.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
12.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
12.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
Pay

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
JB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
21.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
20.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
20.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
12.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
12.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
12.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
12.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
12.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
12.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
12.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
12.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
12.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
12.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
12.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
12.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
Corner not accessible

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
12.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
12.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
13.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
12.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
12.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
12.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
Conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
12.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
12.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
12.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
12.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
12.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
Canopy Overhang

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
13.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
Sets

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
Roof level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
22.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
13.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
13.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
13.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
13.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
13.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
13.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
CL=13.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
13.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
13.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
13.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
13.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
13.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
16.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
CEIL HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
16.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
11.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
13.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
12.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
12.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
13.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
11.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
11.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
12.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
11.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
11.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
11.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
11.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
11.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
11.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
11.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
11.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
11.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
11.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
11.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
11.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
11.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
11.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
11.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
11.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
26.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
11.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
11.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
11.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
11.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
11.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
11.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
11.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
11.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
11.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
11.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
11.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
Floor level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
C i r c u s     S t r e e t

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
Under Steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
12.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
Approximate Alignment Of Inner Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
22.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
19.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
12.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
12.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
12.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
12.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
12.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
12.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
18.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
12.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
12.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
12.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
12.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
12.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
12.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
Canopy Overhang

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
17.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
Under Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
12.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
16.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
CEIL HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
15.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
18.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
Under Steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
17.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
Under Steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
17.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
Conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
18.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
Under Steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
12.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
12.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
17.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
Under Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
12.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
Pay

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
19.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
12.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
12.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
12.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
12.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
12.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
12.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
19.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
16.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
Floor level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
12.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
12.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
12.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
12.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
12.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
CL=12.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
12.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
12.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
12.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
Canopy Overhang

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
12.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
12.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
Position Of Start Of First Floor

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
18.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
12.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
12.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
16.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
CEIL HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
15.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
Pay Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
12.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
18.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
Under Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
18.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
Under Steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
18.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
Raised Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
12.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
12.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
Under Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
12.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
12.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
18.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
Under Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
Wall Remains

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
Raised Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
12.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
12.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
Wall Ht=1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
12.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
18.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
16.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
Floor level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
11.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
12.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
Parking

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
Bay

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
2.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
Iron Rail

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
19.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
19.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
12.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
Floor level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
11.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
Under Steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
CEIL HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
Conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
16.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
CEIL HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
12.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
12.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
12.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
12.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
16.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
Under Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
15.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
12.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
Internal Wall Face

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
UTL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
UTL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
Conc/Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
Wall 0.85m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
11.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
CL=12.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
12.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
11.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
12.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
12.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
12.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
12.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
CL=12.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
12.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
Internal Wall Face

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
11.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
11.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
11.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
29.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
11.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
11.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
11.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
11.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
11.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
11.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
11.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
11.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
Conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
0.85m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
Ret/Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
29.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
29.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
13.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
CL=12.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
12.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
12.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
12.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
13.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
12.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
12.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
12.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
Chain Link Ht=2.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
Cycle Racks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
Pay

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
12.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
11.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
12.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
12.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
12.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
12.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
17.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
Under Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
12.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
12.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
23.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
17.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
12.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
Under Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
17.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
Cycle Racks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
THR'HLD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
12.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
12.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
22.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
12.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
CL=12.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
12.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
12.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
12.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
12.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
12.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
Internal Wall Face

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
12.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
Ground Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
Wall 2.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
2.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
18.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
12.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
(Foul Interceptor)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
IL=10.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
CL=11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
Floor level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
Bay

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
Parking

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
0.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
26.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
11.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
11.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
11.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
11.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
11.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
11.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
20.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
11.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
11.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
11.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
11.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
11.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
11.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
11.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
11.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
IL=11.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
CL=12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
12.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
12.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
12.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
IL=9.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
CL=12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
IL=11.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
CL=12.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
Racks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
Cycle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
12.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
11.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
12.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
12.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
11.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
12.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
11.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
1.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
Grill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
Eave

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
25.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
11.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
11.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
11.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
12.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
11.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
11.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
11.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
11.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
11.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
Hatch

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
Dray

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
11.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
11.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
11.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
11.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
11.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
11.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
11.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
11.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
11.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
Column

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
Parking Bays

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
27.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
Threshold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
11.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
CL=11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
Mercury

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
11.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
11.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
11.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
11.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
11.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
11.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
11.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
11.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
Wall 1.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
12.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
Cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
WM MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
CL=12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
11.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
12.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
12.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
12.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
12.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
11.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
11.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
12.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
11.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
11.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
CPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
Gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
12.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
12.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
12.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
12.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
12.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
32.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
Tac

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
Tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
BO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
NB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
NB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
150 pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
Elec'

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
MH 12.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
CL=12.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
CL=12.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
CL=12.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
CL=12.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2074
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2075
CL=12.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2076
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2077
CL=12.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2078
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2079
CL=12.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2080
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2081
CL=12.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2082
CL=12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2083
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2084
CL=12.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2085
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2086
CL=12.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2087
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2088
Int' Trap

AutoCAD SHX Text_2089
IL 12.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2090
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_2091
IL 12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2092
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_2093
IL 11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2094
IL 11.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2095
IL 11.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2096
IL 10.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2097
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_2098
IL 11.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2099
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_2100
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_2101
Sewer is 'combined'

AutoCAD SHX Text_2102
Main Outlet

AutoCAD SHX Text_2103
CL=12.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2104
IL=8.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_2105
IL=8.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2106
CL=12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_2107
IL=9.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2108
300%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2109
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2110
Manhole Obscured

AutoCAD SHX Text_2111
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2112
308

AutoCAD SHX Text_2113
12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2114
307

AutoCAD SHX Text_2115
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_2116
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_2117
12.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2118
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_2119
11.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2120
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_2121
12.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2122
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2123
12.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2124
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2125
11.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2126
11.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2127
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2128
12.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2129
12.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2130
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2131
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2132
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2133
12.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_2134
12.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2135
12.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2136
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2137
12.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2138
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2139
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2140
Cladding at Pavement

AutoCAD SHX Text_2141
Main Building Face


90¢



KINGSWAY & ST AUBYNS SOUTH - KEY

mmmmmn - PROPOSED NO WAITING & NO LOADING AT ANY TIME

EXISTING NO WAITING AT ANY TIME

PROPOSED LOADING ONLY

© Crown Copyright. Licence:
100020999. Brighton & Hove City
Council, 2015

Project : KINGSWAY & ST AUBYNS SOUTH

Scale: NTS I a |
Date : NOV19

Title :PROPOSED PARKING RESTRICTIONS
207

& Hove
Drawn: CML g Council

Drawing Number : B&H/CPZ_N




208



BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL
ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984

BRIGHTON & HOVE VARIOUS CONTROLLED PARKING ZONES CONSOLIDATION
ORDER 2018 AMENDMENT ORDER NO. * 202* (ref: TRO-36-2019)

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The Council’s reasons for proposing the following order are set out below:-

As part of the redevelopment of the former petrol filling station at 133 Kingsway, Hove
(Planning Application No. BH2016/02756), the developer must provide a loading bay to
serve the new food store.

The proposed loading bay has been carefully positioned so as not to obstruct the through-
flow on Kingsway and not to obstruct the sightline from St Aubyns South. The remainder of
the frontage will have no loading restrictions added to the existing no waiting at any time
restrictions, this is to make sure that the area in front of the loading bay is kept clear at all
times so that large vehicles using the loading bay have room to manoeuvre into the bay,
without having to drive over the footway.

The waiting and loading restrictions will ensure that the junction is kept clear of parked
vehicles making it safer for all road users.

Dated: 13" December 2019

Executive Director Economy, Environment & Culture
Brighton & Hove City Council

c/o Parking Infrastructure

Room G40 Hove Town Hall

Norton Road, Hove

BN3 3BQ

209



210



TT¢

Notes:
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. For clarity, existing utilities covers and hatches are not shown on
_ this drawing. Contractor carrying out S278 works is required to
Existing lamp post L.1ght bollard obtain releltvant permissions and adjgsF all utility manhole covers to
Light bollard Sign 8, new /_ Sign 7 be level with the proposed surface finishes.
Light bollard Sign 7 3. Kingsway Road lane widths to be checked to ensure minimum
[ Sign 7 / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / width of 3.30m for each lane on completion.
—
@ & diag.1010
y v '] 4 y 2 R SN Y Y ] Y2 4 V4 /4 v 7/ / l / / / / / / / / / / / 1 -
j. _ Existing Asphalt bellmouth
diag.1010 Flush kerb with ) diag1040.4 removed and new Cobble Stone @ S diag1040.4
= diag 1008 2 75mm upstand. | diag.1008 style bellmouth to be- S K
@ ' @ See kerb setout — Visibility splay: constructed. See detail.
\o 2.4mx43m
Juncfion signage moved to _ Visibility splay: Diagl018.1 IS)‘{%“ iglé“ew Diagl018.1
align with new kerb buildout. . 24mx 47.5m Diag1040.4 1ag ) 3 “
2 diag.1040.5 , S diagl049 Bisel0283 o gl 133 Diagl004 Sign 9, New = 2 Legend:
5] / diag.1003 diag1040.4 1ag LUZ0. 1ag1uzo. Diag1003 diagl028.4
diag.1028.4 1 - =m —— — _\ S - W’ ' J New Footway Stone
g [ N N - = B 1y \\ ] T };I/ —
e AT T T T T NN e = — - [IEER N / =
| _H | = I diag. 1023 7/, 10300 N\ N | 4 — ESEEE New Footway Stone
2 =® / ¥ N\ | { / I (strengthened sub-base)
I I | I | \ New loading bay —L"ﬂ“‘\ : | —
' N | I i Sign.6 New Loading Asphalt Finish
Diagl018.1 Sign.2A i 1 — =
relocated -f b 2 — — —
¢ = 3
Existing Tactile ST | T Y, ! New Cobble Style paving
. o | 3 new Sheffied ) I e i ek e e s e o ) (e ]
Paving maintained. . L !
H oU bike stands. = £ .
= I ) i New Paving for bellmouth,
1 B V4 l Sign 12, New Sign 11, New | Legal Site Regularised Site I cross-over and loading tailgate
Sign.1B /' /' - 600mm from kerb face 600mm from kerb face boundary boundary as part of I Site
3500 | 4 ! N 5278 Works / boundary Sign Post
- Sign.2B i L_ Relocated lamp post position, ; °
- relocated = | Existing paving stones to be removed 600mm from kerb face I Tactile Pavi
j ! and new pedestrian paving to be i actile Paving
¥ 17| Dropped kerb provided to match existing style. I
) J 1 for cyclists. I Note: To be printed in color.
Reflective E I
. Bpllard 1 New kerbline ; F—
with Sign 14, I I
3 sec separate :
New | drawi |
| rawing :
I
. ThH—— i -
Sign.3 Tx Existing flush '
1 channel i
1 maintained. i
== i
- !
€ I L
- I
; i
2000 8014 | ! i
! i
| !
i Sign.5 ) |
_H ] SR
' !
. 1E ;
1 E
l !
! NN !
i | |
= /
! s
I& \L:_ New kerbline I
1 see separate t
i drawing I
1 ¢ I~ Hirt 4w N E == < @ - J 2 - = J
i o
_ . = Y4
| /
gl Existing Concrete Cross-Over J
Sion13. new 5\ " ' / removed and new Cobble K4
g, S /'/ ! Stone style driveway dropped K4
i kerb access constructed. See K4
Diag1018.1 1 " detail. "’
1 :/
| \ edge of kerb for transition L
i into car park. !
iy gl | ' /
1 / i &
( [ l 1703 3 %
_——* ~/
. i /
Diag.1046 ! <
1ag _\ i :/
: 4 SIGN PLATES Foundation
Sign.4 I 4 (In accordance with Schedule 2, 3, & 4 or 'The Traffic Signs Regulations and Post Installation 1Ldi L
\{ | VA General Directions 2002") = ‘ (all dimension in mm) Remarks Illumination
- 4 . - . t ini
1 4 Sign No. Description Diag. No.| Size HI:( e(rili;())n 21121::::22 Depth | Length | Width 10 | 22.10.19 | KK | Issued for Information
i /
4 Sign.IA | No entry for vehicular traffic| 616 - - - - - - Existing signage, unchanged Yes Rev.| Date  |Drawn | Amendment
Sign.1B Speed Limit Sign 670 - - - - - - Existing signage, unchanged
Sign.2A | No entry for vehicular traffic| 616 . . . . . . Existing signage, moved to new location Yes PRIN G l l ER—J A M E s
Sign.2B Speed Limit Sign 670 - - - - - - Existing signage, moved to new location CONSULTING ENGINEERS
. . Existing Parking sign reused,
Sign.3 Parking Signage 6603 one way signage removed, see clearance plan 10 Beulah Road, Wimbledon, LONDON, SW19 3SB
: o Existing signage Phone: 020 8940 4159
Sign.4 Parking signage 660.3 . one:
Permit Holders only, N, %am to $pm Email : mail@pjce.com Website : www.pjce.com
Sign.5 Local advisory sign - - - - - - - Existing local sign, unchanged
. C Existing signage
Sign.6 Parking Signage 660.3 . .
Permit holders, N, 9am to 8pm or Pay and display
. Yellow Lighting bollard with C ROCCO HOMES LTD
Sign.7 610 - - - - - - Existing signage
Keep Left
Piag 1046 Sign.8 0 606 it lly within the island
1:150 0 5m 10m 15m 180, ne Way 607 600 3650x75 2100 675 250 250 Position centrally within the island. Yes
/ I I KINGSWAY, HOVE
IIIIIIIII|IIIIIIIII|IIIIIIIII|IIIIIIIII|IIIIIIIII|IIIIIIIII|IIIIIIIII|IIIIIIIII|IIIIIIIII|IIIIIIIII Sign.9 No Right Turn 612 | 600 | 3650x75 2100 675 | 250 | 250 |Sign to face the development, minimum 450mm from carriageway edge|  Yes
AH lN 3 O N 141 0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 Sign.10 One Way 282 600 3650x75 2100 675 | 250 | 250 |Sign to face the development, minimum 450mm from carriageway edge Yes
. . 240 x "Except for Authorised Vehicles".
Sign.11 Loading Only 640.4 600 Sign to be mounted on same post as Sign 10, facing highway PROPOSED ARRANGEMENT
Sign.12 Loading Only 640.4 20x 3650x75 2100 675 | 250 | 250 "Except for Authorised Vehicles", mounted facing highway
600
Sign.13 One Way 282 600 3650x75 2100 675 | 250 | 250 min 450 from edge of carrigeway, with 1m clearance to wall. Yes
Sign.14 Keep Left 610 300 - - - - - "Keep Left" on illuminated bollard Yes
PROPOSED LAYOUT ot APPROYAL
Scales:  Asnoted @ Al Date:  Aug. 2017
S C al e 1 . 1 5 O Drawn : JC Engineer : VM Checked : TP
Drawing No. Revision




A4



Appendix 8

TRO-36-2019 - Kingsway, Hove

Who

Support / Object

Reasons

Resident

Support

| fully support this application

Resident

Object

We have given this problem some serious thought, and we believe that the
safest way round all this is to propose that we wish to have traffic lights
fitted near the exit at St.Aubyns South onto Kingsway which is a very busy
main road, as we believe this would stop as we believe a build up of traffic
in St. Aubyns South trying to get onto the Kingsway highway, that way
things from a road safety point of view and without visability being
obstructed would be much safer option and beneficial for everybody as all
drivers would be able to on a green light to either turn left or right or go
straight on with no worries unless somebody jumps the traffic lights of
course.

Resident

Object

The loading /unloading of vehicles in this location in connection with the
current building works has caused a lot of difficulty and danger for drivers
emerging from St. Aubins South. Making this permanent and authorised
would create a situation where an accident involving injury is waiting to
happen. Parking/loading on the the frontage of the new development
should be be prohibited to enable vehicles emerging from St. Aubins South
to have visibility which enables safe movement.

Resident

Object

The junction between St Aubyns South and Kingsway has always been
difficult but when vehicles park on the existing hashed yellow lines, it
becomes virtually impossible to cross the junction safely. It is impossible to
see what traffic is approaching from hte east wihtout pulling right forward
into Kingsway's nearest lane - obviously a dangerous manoure! If such
parking is authorised by the Council | am afraid there is bound to be a
serious accident.

| hope very much that, for the sake of all users of that junction and in
particular for those of us who negotiate it with children in our cars, you
decide to reject this proposal and look at alternative methods of allowing
deliveries to the new Co-op store.

Resident

Object

| object to the proposal to make parking/loading facilities for lorries in this
location as it causes a dangerous visual obstruction for traffic exiting from
St. Aubyns South. This could possibly be overcome by reversing the traffic
flow into St. Aubyns South and eastwards along Kings Esplanade and up
Medina Terrace but otherwise it will be a dangerous implementation
which will cause accidents.

Resident

Object

Danger especially to cyclists turning out of St Aubyns

213




Resident

Object

During the building works of 133 Kingsway, we have experienced great
difficulty in driving from St Aubyns South, either onto Kingsway eastward
or straight over into St Aubyns, whenever there is a vehicle unloading onto
the building site. St Aubyns South is the only exit route from our car park
and garage, located in the grounds of Bath Court where we live.
Westbound carriageway traffic on Kingsway travels very fast in both lanes
and we cannot see them, nor they us, if there is a high-sided vehicle
parked in the current site unloading area until there is insufficient time for
them to stop. The proposal will worsten this problem since the new
unloading bay will be even closer to the exit from St Aubyns South. The
proposal is dangerous and poses a threat to our safety

Resident

Object

We support action on this junction as it is currently very dangerous and
will get more so once the Waterfront development and Co-op are
complete. We support the Council making changes at the junction between
St Aubyns South and Kingsway, however, the proposed changes are not
appropriate given the dangers. For traffic turning left, lorries and cars
continually park on the existing hatched area blocking the turning car's line
of sight. For traffic turning right it is even more challenging as you are
required to wait in the fast lane of the Kingsway. Given the delivery lorries
that will be unloading daily at Co-op, the only safe solution is a set of
traffic lights on Kingsway to allow vehicles from St Aubyns South to access
Kingsway safely. There is a similar system further along Kingsway for
vehicles joining Kingsway from the King Alfred car park.

Resident

Object

We object to the proposal on the basis that the loading bay will have the
effect (which we have lived with for some time now during the building
development) of obstructing the view of vehicles to the right when turning
out of St Aubyns South. This is currently dangerous as every morning we
have large vans and lorries parked in this position which obscure the view,
and the loading bay design would not reduce this issue. Traffic lights would
be the best solution and allow vehicles to exit St Aubyns South safely. | do
believe that without such a measure there will be accidents at this
junction.

Resident

Object

| am writing to object to the proposal on the following grounds, if you have
any parking or loading in front of the shops it causes an obstruction to the
vision of any person trying to drive out of St Aubyns south. If you look at
the picture enclosed, you will see the lorry that is parked over the
proposed new entrance, it is about 10 meters past your porposed loading
bay as you can see it is causing a visual obstruction, making coming out
even more difficult.

During the past 14 months all the residents of the flats and houses that
have to come out of St Aubyns South have found it to be really difficult
when lorry's have been parked there, there have also been 2 accidents
caused by this.

It is my and other people's opinion that if you allow this there will be more
accidents in the future. | would suggest that it would be better to either
make St Aubyns south two way up to the entrnace of the car park in to St
Aubyns mansions and Bath court with the loading bay in St Aubyns south
or just fit traffic lights without altering the road so that traffic can leave St
Aubyns south safely.

214




Background

The proposed arrangements, including the Traffic Regulation Order, seek to:

e Ensure that suitable visibility splays, in accordance with Department for Transport guidance, is
provided for vehicles emerging from St Aubyns (South); and

e Provide safe and suitable servicing arrangements that improve on those that have occurred
both historically and during construction activities.

It should be noted that the proposed arrangement and associated management processes differ
significantly to those used during construction activities where vehicles were required at times to load
and unload from the carriageway lane, whereas the proposed arrangement provides an off-
carriageway area for vehicles to undertake servicing outside of the junction visibility, as discussed
below. The arrangement has been subject to an extensive detailed design process that included
independent Road Safety Audits to achieve the objectives set out above.

Existing Arrangement

In its present form, vehicles servicing the commercial properties immediately to the east of St Aubyns
(South) are required to park on the inside lane of the Kingsway carriageway. In turn, this obstructs
both through traffic along Kingsway and the visibility splay of drivers emerging from St Aubyns
(South); the achievable visibility is less than that recommended by Department for Transport (DfT)
guidance.

Proposed Arrangement

The proposed Traffic Regulation Order supports a scheme of improvements designed to address the
matters set out above.

e Loading bay - an off-carriageway loading bay facility is to be provided to the south of the
carriageway, removing stationary servicing vehicles from the carriageway and outside of the
visibility splay. This arrangement also provides an area for these activities to occur without
blocking the nearside lane which addresses the potential for rear-shunt or side-swipe
collisions due to sudden overtaking. The Traffic Regulation Order is proposed to restrict where
a vehicle can park within the bay, in addition to prohibiting parking in the remainder of the
bay, in order to position the vehicle outside of the required visibility splay for vehicles
emerging from St Aubyns (South). The size of the bay has been designed to enable a vehicle
to enter the bay in forward gear and then manoeuvre into position without impacting the flow
of traffic on Kingsway;

e Footway buildout — a footway buildout is introduced on St Aubyns (South) to ensure that
vehicles emerging from St Aubyns (South) are positioned to the west of the road in order to
maximise the visibility splay for emerging drivers. This measure also prevents two vehicles
emerging from the junction simultaneously where visibility for the driver on the left would be
obstructed by the vehicle on their right; and

e Delivery Management Plan — in addition to the highway works, the planning consent
associated with the commercial property requires a Delivery Servicing Management Plan be
operated, controlled by planning condition. The Plan contains measures controlling the
servicing process and restricts the size of the vehicles used in delivery to 10 metres to prevent
obstruction of the visibility splay. As part of this management plan, it is specified that the
commercial store must, at all times, adhere to the extent of the TRO restrictions. Further,
adherence to the TRO would also be legally enforceable.

215



The arrangement has been subject to rigorous testing through the Technical Approval process
including a Design Manual for Roads and Bridges Road Safety Audit process. Matters raised by the
Audit Team have been incorporated into the design and addressed in accordance with their
recommendations. Visibility splays extending at least 43 metres in both directions, set back a distance
of 2.4 metres from the give way line on St Aubyns (South), in accordance with the DfT’'s ‘Manual for
Streets’ guidance.

\\\ 2.4m x 43m VISIBILITY SPLAY ~ oo .
) Ty (TO VEHICLE NEARSIDE)
W A
| 7 i Y \\ ‘ , ]
[ 3 _ —
A 7 | \\\\ i B
‘ /\ o T===lNuy ; - 7 T
. 7] ‘

W Rt

-

1 S —

Summary

The principal of incorporating a delivery loading bay is established by the Planning Consent for the
adjacent development which requires a loading bay be designed and implemented by the developer
under a Highway Works Agreement with the Council.

The proposed arrangement of loading bay and associated traffic order is an improvement on the
previous and temporary construction situation of vehicles parking in the nearside lane of traffic or
blocking the sightline from St Aubyns (South). The proposed design has incorporated the
recommendations of a Road Safety Audit to the satisfaction of the Local Highway Authority, Brighton
and Hove City Council, and meets current design standards and guidance.

216



i

g S N / / 7
%WB Copy cence.100020999. Brig ‘ ove @ity Codncil, 2015:

Y T T T drawn by date
Address: Freehold Terrace, KEY | l a ! | NTS DLA AUG 2017
. P dch f Length to Double Yell
Brlghton - Amendments due to Liﬁ’g’fs‘* ange ot -engih fo Bouble Telow PARKING STRUCTU drawing no.
redevelopment at corner of Hollingdean Proposed One Way —> Brgnn & Hove BHC-FREEHOLD-001
Road & Freehold Terrace Exisitng One Way —> Council | transeorr




8T¢



Brighton & Hove City Council
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984

Brighton & Hove Outer Areas (Waiting, Loading and Parking) and Cycle
Lanes Consolidation Order 2018 Amendment No. * 201* (TRO-17-2019)

Brighton & Hove (Freehold Terrace & Popes Folly) (One-Way) Order 201*

Statement of Reasons

As part of the Section 278 Agreement related to the redevelopment at 54
Hollingdean Road (Planning Application No: BH2014/01637), the developer
must provide a one-way traffic regulation order to Freehold Terrace. As
Freehold Terrace is a very narrow carriageway this will improve the traffic
flow, vehicle manoeuvres and reflect the removal of the former site access to
the south west of Freeehold Terrace.

Freehold Terrace is currently enforced with double yellow waiting restrictions
to both sides of the carriageway along the site frontage. As the proposed
highway works will physically alter the public highway arrangement, to
complement the new development frontage access the double yellow waiting
restrictions will be refreshed to match the existing extents.

There are no proposals for new street parking bays and no impacts to existing
street parking bays.

Dated: 7" June 2019

Executive Director Economy, Environment & Culture
Brighton & Hove City Council

c/o Parking Infrastructure,

G40 Hove Town Hall

Norton Road

Hove

BN3 3BQ

219



220



| X4

Al

NOTES

N

1. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other RGP drawings, and with all
< relevant Architect's and Engineer's drawings and specification. Any discrepancies

STUDENT \\ found are to be reported immediately to the Engineer.
N ACCOM]\SSE\IATION N 2. RGP accepts no responsibility for inaccuracies in data provided by third parties such

BUI g as topographic surveys or Ordnance Survey mapping.
\ // /%‘ ‘ 3. Do not scale, work to figured dimensions only. All dimensions are in millimeters
\ / ¢ ' unless noted otherwise and all levels are in metres from the topographic survey

\ a / datum.
(Y7 o=

CUTLINE

4. Any information given regarding existing underground services is given in good faith
after consultation with the relevant authority, however accuracy is not certain. The
main contractor is responsible for checking all information on site prior to work
commencing and taking due care whilst undertaking the works.

5. Al dimensions to be checked on site. All details and dimensions relating to
sub-contractors work must be checked and agreed between the sub-contractor or
supplier and the general contractor.

6.  The electronic information from this drawing can not be guaranteed as dimensionally
drawn exact. Figured dimensions must be used for setting out and detailing. RGP
logos and company information must be removed from copies if information is
re-used.

7. The main contractor is responsible for the design of all temporary works, and is also
responsible for the safe maintenance and stability of existing buildings at all times.

8. The main contractor is responsible for dealing with all occurrences of ground water
during the construction period.

9. The contractor must comply with all current legislation relating to health & safety.

10.  All products specified shall be installed in strict accordance with the manufacturers
recommendations and instructions. If there are discrepancies between that
information and the details on any RGP drawings, the manufacturers instructions
must be used.

MANAGEMENT]
SUITE

Swept Path Analysis - Bay 1 Egress

CUTLINE

T = . . . .
11.  Contractor to confirm all invert levels where connections are proposed prior to

commencing any drainage works. Contractor to commence drainage works at the
point of discharge.

Hughes Roaq

Ex Footway

Existing gully and 7 no. Proposed bus stop flag. Location to Existing HB2 kerb
bollards retained. be agreed with highways inspector. retained.

Proposed bus stop cage. Vehicle Profile

I

All private detailing on RGP Design drawing reference 2016-D1135-009 is

provided for the beneficial of the S278 Agreement only. RGP Design are REFUSE STORE
not responsible for the private infrastructure design and the contractor B9t 287
shall refer to third party design information.

Existing vehicular access to

be reverted to a footv_vay Large Car
dropped crossing. Overall Length 4.988m
- CCess Overall Wid ) 1.793m
3 Overall Body Height 1.502m
L [l\_/lln E%yd(%roun Clearance %).Z%m
Ramp (3.5m.in Jength). N~ rac idth .700m
. pl( indength) Ao Lock-to-lock time ) 4.00s
Landing (1.2m in length). 'i Curb to Curb Turning Radius 6.200m
2 no. private steps. il -
5 Tie-in to existing
\ ‘ low upstand kerb.
STUDENT J REEHOL ) TERR 4
ACCOMMODATION - % CE (PUBLjC 1y
BUILDING Bollard featurg to m,a.'”,t?'” —— GHw AY)
pedestrian visibility. i SN
1 , , - -~y
o’ Existing lighting column (heritagJ Rl S -
\ ¢’ to be replaced. Location to be
Proposed private parking. \'s ’ 4 determined on site with highway
P inspector.
v ‘\\ ‘\ 74 5 ’ Section of existing double
b d i f\’ g ‘\ / (4 % P yellow lines to be refreshed.
roposed ramp markings . 2 \ P
to be provided. \ v \ ¢ ¢’ Existing full height kerbs
- /‘\\ Y \ " ,’ to be refreshed.
Existing footway extended to < ?&2 \concle \ S 7 Vs
serve development. ) TN _ l\ V4 ’
M AR ‘/// AN v ’ Carriageway width locally reduced to
EF edai ' Accesg \ Yo ’ ’ 3.5m around proposed building.
T edging demarcation. \ v 4 4
[\ ' _ 3 /3 4 y ’ Existing double yellow lines/altered
oy ~ Note: Proposed bus stop shelter to be in Proposed one-way signage located on ‘e ” -7 /2 @.C’ ’ and extended along Freehold Terrace.
ey - ’, LY accordance with the approved B&HCC. either side of Freehold Terrace. \ A
- \ (4 ’ Proposed road gully and connection
4 v s’ to existing combined sewer.
Proposed bus stop shelter. Existing tactile paving altered to suit \ ’ ’
proposed junction realignme_nt. 3, V4 Existing rear access.
(1200mm depth min) Vs
Vs Proposed raised table arrangement.
X4
Existing lighting column retained. / S ¢
-~ Proposed bus Existing cover to be replaced as a
y stop cage. ” s, recessed cover with'inset tactiles
Y . . i Proposed kassel kerbs ¢ '
7 Existing permanent automatic traf_flc (9m in length). W g MANAGEMENT] Give-way marking removed from access
\ \counter and control box to remain. ’ . SUITE to create one-way arrangement and G 06/06/2017 B&HCC Comments 12/05/2017 SPB MJA
\ —_— 5 Ny table top ramp enfry. Fooo11/05/2017 B&HCC landscape comments 05/17 RAA  MIA
=
\ . - 7 2 Existing lighting column retained. E 18/04/2017 Street lighting column note updated RAA | MJA
-~
. S 2 L Existing right-turn lane removed. Centre-line road D [30/11/2016 B&HCC Comments dated 24/11/2016 RAA | MJA
= markings adjusted to suit existing crownline. C |07/11/2016 B&HCC Comments dated 14/10/2016 RAA | MJA
o . & 23m\ J -~ B |27/09/2016 B&HCC Comments dated 23/09/2016 RAA | MJA
Existing lighting column retained. Q \ § i S e A 12/07/2016 Extents Updated Issue For $278 RAA MJA
- ..
- - Existing lighting 15/06/2016 Original Issue RAA MJA
- column retained.
oy w Rev. Date Amendments Drawn | Appr.
Sy _S0NCTEY - - =
oy -~ - -~y 5
=8 T - &)
-GENERAL ARRANGEMENT KEY- e - £ /
-y - w0 ,‘\E
H NN BN BN BN BN BN BN B N nghWay Boundary Existing slow road marking Bl B ~—li \/ 7
relocated to suit proposed - T — 7
: centre-line road markings. Sem ey E vd / i
o Sign Post ~~a XCos To— 4
Il = C:\Users\m.akmenkalns\Documents\Plot Styles\RGP—Logo—Design_RGB.jpg
-
Bus Shelter -
Existing illuminated sign Proposed 'Keep Clear' road marking to be Existing 20mph road marking = 3518vs,
to remain. provided at access to Freehold Terrace. relocated to the east. = q
E— Kassel Kerb Bl S I |
Ty [y - I
-
Sy e 35 Transport Planning and Infrastructure Design Consultants
Existing H-marking Es = - Metro House, Northgate, Chichester, West Sussex, PO19 1BE
to be refreshed. o Tel: 01243 410418 Fax: 01483 861682 www.rgp.co.uk
Raised Table Client
Existing disabled bay Existing pedestrian . ) ) -
retained and refreshed. crossing retained. AX|Om PrOJeCT SeI’VICGS
Existing Road Marking
L
Proposed Road Marking (White) = Project
-]
o . .
Proposed Road Marking (Yellow) Hollingdean Road, Brighton, BN2 4AA
o
14
D Proposed Road Gully with Connection 0_9
%]
i Kerb Inlet Gully with Connection < Drawing Title
S
ODE========== Channel Drain with Yard Gu||y T GeﬂerC” ArrOﬂgemeﬂT
Ex C >> _r .
. Existing Combined Sewer
Scale Drawn By Checked By | Approved By
1:200 RAA MJA MJA
(hv{0[o @ NN LALLY N N T (T U U A O A B i
1400@A3. 0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 | m Date Drawing No. Rev.
June 2016 2016-D1135-002 G



AutoCAD SHX Text_2142
Overhanging Tree Canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2143
Overhanging Tree Canopy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2144
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2145
Paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_2146
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_2147
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2148
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2149
No's 42 To 52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2150
Janitorial Supplies

AutoCAD SHX Text_2151
Southern Counties

AutoCAD SHX Text_2152
No 105

AutoCAD SHX Text_2153
No 97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2154
No's 97 To 105

AutoCAD SHX Text_2155
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2156
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2157
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2158
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2159
Paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_2160
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2161
Rendered Wall Ht. 1.35m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2162
Ht. 1.05m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2163
Ht. 1.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2164
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2165
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2166
Ht. 1.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2167
Ht. 1.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2168
Advertising Hoarding

AutoCAD SHX Text_2169
Advertising Hoarding

AutoCAD SHX Text_2170
IRF Ht. 1.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2171
Sub Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_2172
CBF Ht. 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2173
CBF Ht. 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2174
Close Board Fence Ht. 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2175
Railway Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2176
Railway Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2177
Railway Arch

AutoCAD SHX Text_2178
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2179
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2180
Paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_2181
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2182
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2183
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2184
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2185
SVW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2186
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2187
BO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2188
BO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2189
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2190
SVG

AutoCAD SHX Text_2191
BO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2192
BO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2193
SVG

AutoCAD SHX Text_2194
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2195
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2196
CL 31.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2197
IC (?)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2198
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2199
CL 34.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2200
IC (?)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2201
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2202
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2203
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2204
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2205
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2206
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2207
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2208
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2209
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2210
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2211
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2212
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2213
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2214
CL 34.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2215
IC (?)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2216
SVW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2217
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2218
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2219
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2220
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2221
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2222
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2223
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2224
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2225
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2226
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2227
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2228
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2229
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2230
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2231
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2232
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2233
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2234
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2235
LP / RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2236
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2237
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2238
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2239
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2240
SVW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2241
CL 32.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2242
IC (?)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2243
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2244
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2245
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_2246
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_2247
DISABLED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2248
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2249
Electricity

AutoCAD SHX Text_2250
SLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2251
SU

AutoCAD SHX Text_2252
SU

AutoCAD SHX Text_2253
IL 33.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2254
IL 32.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2255
%%C100

AutoCAD SHX Text_2256
%%C100

AutoCAD SHX Text_2257
No Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_2258
No 50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2259
No 52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2260
Popes Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2261
No 46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2262
Wall Ht.1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2263
Gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_2264
Covered area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2265
Overgrown

AutoCAD SHX Text_2266
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2267
CBF Ht.1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2268
CBF Ht.1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2269
Corrugated Metal Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2270
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2271
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2272
Unmade Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_2273
Paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_2274
Paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_2275
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2276
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2277
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2278
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2279
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2280
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2281
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2282
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2283
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2284
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2285
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2286
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2287
9A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2288
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2289
CL 33.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2290
IC (S)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2291
Col

AutoCAD SHX Text_2292
Col

AutoCAD SHX Text_2293
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2294
Col

AutoCAD SHX Text_2295
Col

AutoCAD SHX Text_2296
Col

AutoCAD SHX Text_2297
Col

AutoCAD SHX Text_2298
Col

AutoCAD SHX Text_2299
Col

AutoCAD SHX Text_2300
CL 34.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2301
IC (F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2302
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2303
Top Of Fence 40.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2304
Decking

AutoCAD SHX Text_2305
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2306
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2307
Paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_2308
Approx ground level 35.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2309
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2310
Conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2311
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2312
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2313
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_2314
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2315
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2316
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2317
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2318
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2319
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2320
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2321
CLF 1.6Ht

AutoCAD SHX Text_2322
IL 32.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2323
IL 33.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2324
%%C100

AutoCAD SHX Text_2325
%%C100

AutoCAD SHX Text_2326
Block Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2327
Brick/ Stone Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2328
No Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_2329
F R E E H O L D  T E R R A C E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2330
H O L L I N G D E A N  R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2331
One Digital

AutoCAD SHX Text_2332
One Digital

AutoCAD SHX Text_2333
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2334
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2335
Paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_2336
Wall Ht1.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2337
Overgrown Sloping Masonary No Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_2338
Overgrown Sloping Masonary No Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_2339
Covered Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2340
Shed

AutoCAD SHX Text_2341
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2342
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2343
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2344
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2345
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2346
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2347
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2348
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2349
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2350
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2351
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2352
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2353
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2354
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2355
16.0HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2356
SY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2357
16.0HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2358
SY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2359
16.0HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2360
SY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2361
16.0HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2362
SY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2363
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_2364
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_2365
CL 33.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2366
IC (F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2367
CL 33.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2368
IC (?)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2369
CL 33.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2370
IC (F)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2371
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2372
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2373
Unmade

AutoCAD SHX Text_2374
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2375
CLF Ht.1.6m On wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2376
Ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_2377
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2378
Wall Ht0.25m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2379
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2380
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2381
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_2382
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2383
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2384
SVG

AutoCAD SHX Text_2385
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2386
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2387
SVG

AutoCAD SHX Text_2388
JB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2389
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2390
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2391
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2392
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2393
2.2m high MS  Fence/Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2394
5@150mm

AutoCAD SHX Text_2395
No 50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2396
No 52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2397
Wall Ht.1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2398
Gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_2399
Covered area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2400
Overgrown

AutoCAD SHX Text_2401
32.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2402
32.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2403
32.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_2404
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2405
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2406
31.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2407
31.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2408
31.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2409
32.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2410
32.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2411
32.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2412
32.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2413
32.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2414
32.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2415
32.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2416
32.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2417
32.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2418
33.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2419
32.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2420
32.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2421
32.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2422
33.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_2423
34.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2424
36.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2425
Roof

AutoCAD SHX Text_2426
Roof

AutoCAD SHX Text_2427
39.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2428
38.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2429
39.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2430
RL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2431
RL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2432
RL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2433
TWL 33.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2434
TWL 32.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2435
TWL 33.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2436
32.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2437
32.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2438
32.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2439
32.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2440
31.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2441
31.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_2442
32.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2443
32.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2444
32.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_2445
31.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2446
Decking

AutoCAD SHX Text_2447
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2448
THL 32.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2449
31.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2450
32.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2451
32.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2452
32.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2453
31.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2454
31.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2455
31.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2456
31.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2457
31.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_2458
31.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2459
32.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2460
32.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2461
31.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_2462
IL 32.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2463
%%C100

AutoCAD SHX Text_2464
F R E E H O L D  T E R R A C E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2465
Paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_2466
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2467
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2468
33.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2469
33.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2470
33.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2471
32.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2472
32.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2473
32.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2474
32.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2475
32.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_2476
33.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_2477
33.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2478
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2479
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2480
33.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2481
CL 33.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2482
IC (?)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2483
CL 33.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2484
33.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2485
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2486
33.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2487
33.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2488
33.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2489
33.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2490
33.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2491
32.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2492
32.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2493
32.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2494
32.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2495
32.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2496
32.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2497
32.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_2498
33.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_2499
33.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_2500
33.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2501
32.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2502
32.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2503
32.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2504
32.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2505
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2506
Wall Ht0.25m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2507
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_2508
Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2509
Tactile

AutoCAD SHX Text_2510
THL 33.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2511
TWL 35.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2512
TWL 35.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2513
33.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2514
32.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2515
32.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2516
32.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2517
32.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2518
32.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2519
32.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2520
32.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2521
32.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2522
40.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2523
36.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2524
37.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2525
41.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2526
Roof

AutoCAD SHX Text_2527
Roof

AutoCAD SHX Text_2528
Roof

AutoCAD SHX Text_2529
33.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2530
33.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2531
33.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2532
33.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2533
33.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2534
33.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2535
33.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2536
33.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2537
33.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2538
33.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2539
33.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2540
33.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2541
33.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2542
33.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2543
33.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_2544
32.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2545
32.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2546
32.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2547
32.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2548
32.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2549
32.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2550
32.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2551
Large Car

AutoCAD SHX Text_2552
Large Car


c¢ee



Appendix 11

TRO-17-2019 - Freehold Terrace

Who

Support / Object

Reasons

Cycling Group

Object

Because it unnecessarily stops the passage of cycles in contradiction of the
avowed sustainable transport policies of Brighton and Hove City Council.
The statement of reasons says that "the developer must provide a one-
way traffic regulation order to Freehold Terrace. As Freehold Terrace is a
very narrow carriageway this will improve the traffic flow, vehicle
manoeuvres and reflect the removal of the former site access to the south
west of Freeehold Terrace" but this prioritises motor vehicle movements
over active travel by cycle which is against BHCC policy. Also, where space
is limited, active travel should be prioritised over travel by motor vehicle
because active travel is a more efficient way to move people and healthier.
| am objecting on behalf of Bricycles (Brighton and Hove Cycling Campaign
and as a Cycling UK representative for Brighton and Hove, also as a
Brighton resident. BHCC must stop creating one way streets. These cause
massive inconvenience for anyone using a bike, particularly residents in
the street, and set up the conditions for conflict between the different
road users where people inevitably ignore the unreasonable order and
continue to cycle.

Resident

Object

| support the double yellow lines but making the street one-way is
unnecessary for people cycling. With the new student block and
substantial cycle parking provision here, to make the students cycle all
round the block to exit north is unreasonable and will lead to this
restriction being ignored or people cycling on pavements. It has not been
thought through properly and is being thought of solely in terms of car
movements not sustainable transport.

Sussex Police

Support

Thank you for the below proposed order for Freehold Terrace. | have now
had an opportunity to look at the plan, statement of reason and also
looked at Google Maps. The change to a one way street will be a
fundamental change to how this road is used, particularly to the existing
residents. | take it hat they have been consulted and support this change.
Their support would be essential to alleviate any potential risk taking by
driving the wrong way along a one way street, which could result in injury
collisions and potentially public order type offences when drivers are seen
to do this. Signage and road marking should also be in place to ensure that
road users know what is expected of them and so the road becomes self-
enforcing. On this basis | have no objections to what is being proposed.

223




224



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 85
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Dyke Road Waiting Restrictions Experimental TRO
(TRO-12-2019)

Date of Meeting: Tuesday 17 March 2020

Report of: Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture

Contact Officer: Name: Ben Thomas Tel: 01273 290398

Email: Ben.Thomas@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: St Peters & North Laine, Regency

FOR GENERAL RELEASE.

1.

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

The committee is asked to consider objections to and officer responses to the
Experimental Traffic Order for the southbound bus stand in Dyke Road, Brighton
and to consider whether to make the order permanent.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the committee, having taken account of all duly made representations,
approves as advertised the Dyke Road Waiting Restrictions Experimental TRO
(TRO-12-2019) which relates to the provision of a southbound bus stand at the
bottom of Dyke Road.

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION

To cut delays and reduce congestion around the bottom of Dyke Road near
Imperial Arcade, at the Clock Tower and in Churchill Square — alterations were
made to certain bus routes in April 2019. The changes - which were devised by
the bus operators and supported by the city council - saw a number of services
re-routed and directed to use different stops around the city centre to help
smooth the flow of buses, which would also indirectly improve air quality.

To facilitate the changes, a new bus stand was required for buses that serve the
A259 Coast Road to use to take their layover time before re-entering service and
picking up passengers from the bus stop outside of Pizza Hut at the bottom of
Dyke Road.

Discussions and a site meeting with Brighton & Hove Buses in early 2019
identified that a new southbound bus stand at the bottom of Dyke Road, to the
north of the junction with Upper North Street, was the most practicable location.
This was because the bus stand could be created with signage and road marking
changes, without the need for significant and costly infrastructure works.

The amendments to the waiting restrictions to allow for the installation of the new

bus stand were introduced using an Experimental Traffic Order in April 2019.
This allowed necessary changes to loading restrictions, the road markings and

225



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

signage to create the bus stand. Making the changes under an Experimental
Traffic Order meant the city council and members of the public could then
monitor the area, to see how the changes worked in practice and assess the
positive or negative impacts.

Members of the public had six months to see how it worked and could at any
point during this time provide their objections to the Experimental TRO. Two
objections were received from members of the public before the deadline of 3
October 2019. All of the points raised in the objections were investigated and
responded to in detail.

The first objector withdrew their objections, but the second objector did not and in
summary their objections were that; the new bus stand poses a visibility safety
risk for vehicles emerging from Church Street junction, it increases the volume of
buses in Dyke Road which the objector would like to see reduced, more than two
buses use the stand causing congestion, vehicles leave their engines running,
and that the re-routing of buses has caused passenger congestion on the
pavement at stop K outside Pizza Hut on Dyke Road.

The location of the bus stand has been assessed by the city council’s Accident
Investigation & Prevention officer who advised there to be no issue with visibility
coming out of Church Street, as vehicles coming up Dyke Road have set off from
the traffic signals and junction so are generally approaching at a low speed. They
are also on the opposite side of the road. CCTV shows that vehicles heading
northbound on Dyke Road are staying to the west of the white lines — which were
moved further over as part of the works to create the bus stand - so this further
increases visibility for any vehicles turning out of Church Street.

As a result of the changes to bus routes, there are now up to 13 fewer buses per
hour that wait in the bus stands around Imperial Arcade and Century House as
they instead take their layover time in the new bus stand north of the junction
with Upper North Street. This has therefore removed the number of waiting
buses, freeing up space in the area around Imperial Arcade and the exit from
Wykeham Terrace.

Monitoring of the area has not found three buses attempting to use the new bus
stand to be a regular occurrence. If this occasionally happens we believe this
situation will only be for a short duration (a maximum of tens of seconds) before
the first bus will pull away, thereby allowing the following two buses to be fully
located within the area of the bus stand. Further changes to bus services are
being introduced from 22 April which will mean the number of buses using the
new bus stand north of Upper North Street will be reduced to 4 per hour which
should eliminate this problem.

Bus drivers are instructed to switch off their engines while waiting at bus stands.
Many of the vehicles that use the stop automatically switch off their engines
when stopped which not only keep emissions down but assists with reducing
noise. Furthermore, the newest hybrid vehicles have very quiet ignition and pull
away to help with noise reduction even further.

The alterations to bus routes have meant more people are now waiting at bus
stop K outside Pizza Hut. To alleviate pavement congestion, additional seating

226



4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

6.2

7.1

has been installed. The further changes to bus services being planned from 22
April referred to above may also reduce the number of passengers who use this
stop in future.

ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

This location was chosen as there is adequate space for the bus stand and for
passing traffic on the existing carriageway.

There is no obvious alternative for a bus stand for up to two buses to use in the
city centre without requiring costly and disruptive infrastructure changes to the
highway

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

The Experimental Traffic Regulation Order was advertised between 3 April 2019
and 3 October 2019.

Detailed plans and the order were available on the Council website and could be
viewed using the public computers at Customer Service Centres at Bartholomew
House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton and at Hove Town Hall, Ground Floor,
Norton Road, Hove.

The Ward Councillors for the area were consulted on the Traffic Regulation
order, as were other statutory consultees such as the Emergency Services, as
well as other stakeholders.

Notices were also displayed on the street from 5 April 2019. The notice was also
published in The Brighton Independent newspaper on the same date.

The works on the ground were completed and in place by 10 April 2019, in time
for the Order coming in to force from 15 April 2019. Buses began using the new
stand from 28 April 2019.

CONCLUSION

Each of the objectors concerns have been examined and responded to, and
where appropriate mitigating measures have been taken.

It is considered that the benefits delivered by the revised city centre bus services
which have been facilitated by the creation of this new Bus Stand outweigh any
disbenefits and that it is making a significant contribution to reducing traffic
congestion through and around the Clock Tower junction.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

If the recommendation is approved and the Experimental Traffic Regulation
Order is made permanent it is assumed that any costs would be contained within
existing budgets. If the objections were sustained and it is not approved then

227



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

there would be the cost of removing the bus stand involving removal of the
existing lines and signs at a cost of about £2,000.

There would also need to be work undertaken to find an alternative location
suitable for a new bus stand somewhere else in the vicinity, which would require
additional infrastructure spending as yet unquantified. This may or may not be
containable within existing budgets depending on the value of the costs involved.
Finance Officer Consulted: Jess Laing Date: 27/02/2020

Legal Implications:

The Council regulates traffic by means of orders made under the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984. Procedural regulations require public notice of orders to be
given and any person may object to the making of an order. Any unresolved
objections to an order must be considered by the Environment, Transport and
Sustainability Committee before it can be made.

The Council’s powers and duties under the Highways Act 1980 and the Road
Traffic Regulation Act 1984 must be exercised to secure the expeditious,
convenient and safe movement of all types of traffic. The action recommended
in this report will assist in demonstrating that the Council is complying with

its statutory duty.

Lawyer Consulted: Stephanie Stammers Date: 27/02/2020

Equalities Implications:

An Equalities Impact Assessment has not been carried out in relation to the Bus
stand but its operation has improved facilities for adjacent users of Stop K many
of whom will be passengers with reduced mobility. Consultation with
stakeholders and engagement with objectors has been part of the process from
the start.

Sustainability Implications:

Improvements to traffic flows through the Clock Tower is likely to contribute
general to reductions in air pollution and greater use of this sustainable transport
modes.

Brexit Implications:

There are no implications

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1.

2.

Appendix A Plan showing the location & arrangement of the Bus Stand

Appendix B Experimental Traffic Order Notice

228



Background Documents

1. None

229



230



T€C

CHURCH STREET

EXPERIMENTAL TRAFFIC ORDER
1 - Revoke approximately 25m of

1\ USRS AN the current "No Loading /

\: R Unloading Monday to Saturday -
R 2 T 8am to 9.30am and 4pm to 6pm
\ N ; N ; Vv ; Vv ; Vv ; Vv : v : v : v 2 - ReplaCe Wlth 25m BUS Stand for
;; L v e e e e e Local Buses Only

3.2m

3 - Burn off existing centre lining

No loading
Mo Sat L L and replace as shown.
8.00 - 9.30 am vy
4.00 - 6.00 pm vioov v v vy _
v v v+ v vN4-Remove loading ban kerb
IR markings from bus stand area
// v v v v N2 N
« v « « « « | 5-Replace existing 'No loading'
v v ov v signs with 'Bus Stand' sign as
.. . T~_. | indicated below
WWWWWWWWWWWWW No loading BUSS.TAND
vy ooy v vy Mon-Sat No stopping
e e e e e 8.00 - 9.30 am except
N N v v v v 4.00 - 6.00 pm local buses

No loading
Mon-Sat
8.00 - 9.30 am
4.00 - 6.00 pm

=

W v v

No loading
Mon-Sat
8.00 - 9.30 am
4.00 - 6.00 pm

Vv

N3

%

%

€

O ¢

€

v

Notes:

1- Revoke the existing parking restriction (No loading or unloading Monday
to Saturday - 8am to 9.30am & 4pm to 6pm)

2 - Replace with a 25m Bus Stand restricted for the use of 'Local Buses
Only",

3- Remark centre lining as shown in black

.

Rev | Revision details Initials /Date
Added existing TRO’s & lining, B&H drawing f & I
B fidyeupe;(:)il?sgSUing'S ning rawing ftrame genera SAP 12/02/19
— A Egoszcr)::flio%l;’rlline based on 0.S. base and checked against SAP 15/01/19
: v : \v\v\ Signed Date
oo *\ Drawn: SAPOWER Feb 2019
\vwwwwwwww\ [: Designed:
viooovv " }/\ Checked:
: . : . : . : . W‘\ Approved:
v v v w\‘ < }/\ (L File/Acad ref:
v v v v v ‘\‘ “ L = 2
N N N N g
LT Brighton
|
\Z \Z v N\ \1\‘ [/ @
City Council
vooovv v Site Name
coe e DYKE RD BETWEEN CHURCH STREET
coe e AND UPPER NORTH STREET
L Drawing Title
vovov v EXPERIMENTAL TRAFFIC ORDER
v v v PROPOSED STAND FOR LOCAL BUSES
vovoov v v v Drawing No Scale Rev
Coe e e e NNSTST1o0 TB3T Not to scale B 1




[ANA



BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL
ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984

Brighton & Hove (Dyke Road) Waiting Restrictions Experimental Order 2019 (Ref: TRO-12-
2019)

NOTICE is hereby given that Brighton & Hove City Council (“the Council”) made the above named
experimental Order on the 3rd April 2019 under the relevant provisions of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984 as amended which comes into force on 15™ April 2019 for a period not
exceeding eighteen months. The effect of the Order will be to change the provisions of the Brighton
& Hove Various Controlled Parking Zones Consolidation Order 2018 by:

e Removing a section of loading ban on Dyke Road on the north-east side between Church
Street and Upper North Street
e Introducing a bus stand for local buses only on the same section.

A copy of the experimental Order as made, a plan showing the lengths of road affected and a
statement of the Council's reasons for making the Order may be seen online at www.brighton-
hove.gov.uk/tro-proposals.

The documents can also be viewed using the public computers at Customer Service Centres at
Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square, Brighton and Hove Town Hall, Ground Floor, Norton
Road, Hove (Monday to Friday 9am - 4.30pm).

The Council will be considering in due course whether the provisions of the experimental Order
should be continued in force indefinitely. Any person wishing to object to such indefinite
continuation of the provisions may within a period of six months from 3rd April 2019, (or if this Order
is varied by another Order or modified pursuant to section 10(2) of the Act, six months from the day
on which the variation or modification or the latest variation or modification came into force) object in
writing stating the grounds on which that objection is being made. Objections should be sent to the
Head of Transport, Brighton & Hove City Council, Parking Infrastructure, Hove Town Hall (room
323), Norton Road, Hove, BN3 3BQ or by e-mail to parking.consultation@brighton-hove.gov.uk or
online (see details above) no later than 3" October 2019. In all cases the reference TRO-12-2019
should be quoted.

Any person who wishes to question the validity of the experimental Order or of any of its provisions
on the grounds that it or they are not within the powers conferred by the Act, or that any
requirements of the Act or of any instrument made under it have not been complied with may, within
six weeks from the date on which the Order was made, apply to the High Court for that purpose.

Dated: 5th April 2019

Executive Director Economy, Environment & Culture
Brighton & Hove City Council

c/o Parking Infrastructure

G40 Hove Town Hall

Norton Road

Hove BN3 3BQ

www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/tro-proposals

blidl

Brighton & Hove
City Council

233


http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/tro-proposals

234



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & Agenda Item 86
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: BTN Bikeshare Contract

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2020

Report of: Executive Director, Economy, Environment &
Culture

Contact Officer: Name: Matthew Thompson Tel: 01273 29-0235

Email: Matthew.thompson@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on the current sponsorship
arrangements and future procurement needs for the Brighton & Hove Bikeshare
Scheme.

The Bikeshare’s current sponsor will cease their support on 31 March 2020,
creating the opportunity for further refinement of the sponsorship and business
model arrangements.

The current contract is a concession contract. The current value can be found in
the Part 2 report. Constraints on the scope of the original specification will hinder
the Scheme’s ability to respond to market trends, advances in technology and to
achieve further expansion. The procurement of a revised and updated scheme
will therefore be needed if the Council wishes to sustain growth and retain an
efficient and popular bike share scheme for Brighton & Hove.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee

Approves immediate variations to the current contract to allow for the change in
business model and sponsorship arrangements with effect from 31 March 2020
and to allow for the operational and additional minor amendments referred to in
paragraph 3.16 below;

Approves a 12 month contract extension and supporting revenue funding for the
current operator from 01 September 2020;

Approves the initiation of a full procurement options review to include additional
support for service and redistribution and the introduction of e-bikes to the
scheme, with the option of considering an in-house operation, and for including
wider city region Local Authority partners;

Agrees that a further report be brought to 23th June 2020 Environment,
Transport & Sustainability Committee detailing the outcome of the procurement

235



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

options review with recommendations for the retender of the new service or an
in-house operation.

CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION

In 2014, the Council, in partnership with Brighton & Hove’s Clinical
Commissioning Group, commissioned a business case and plan for introducing a
public Bikeshare system to Brighton & Hove. The work enabled the Council to
develop and submit a bid for significant, external funding to the Coast to Capital
Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) for a scheme to start in 2015/16. The
submission of the funding bid for the scheme was endorsed by the Council’s
Environment, Transport & Sustainability Urgency Sub-Committee on 16th
February 2015. The bid was independently assessed for the LEP and in March
2015, the Council was awarded a conditional offer of funding of £1.16 million for
2015/16 by the Local Transport Body, which would be supported by a local
contribution of £290,000.

A report seeking approval for the tendering of a concession agreement for the
provision of a Bike Share Scheme for the city was first approved by Environment,
Transport & Sustainability Committee on 24 November 2015.

A subsequent report seeking approval of the extension of this contract to allow
for a ‘mobilisation period’ was approved by the Committee on 11 October 2016.

The winning bidder (the Operator), Hourbike Ltd, was subsequently appointed in
December 2016. The contract was entered into on 2 March 2017, followed by a
mobilisation period of six months. The operational start date was agreed as 1
September 2017. The initial three year contract period therefore expires on 31
August 2020. The contract allows for two extensions of up to two years each.
Notice of intention to extend must be given three months before the current
expiry date (i.e. by 1 June 2020).

The LEP and local contribution match funding will be fully spent by the end of the
current financial year (2019-20). This funding was used to purchase the initial
bike fleet of 450 and paid for hubs, totems and any necessary civil engineering
works. An additional 120 new and 30 reconditioned bikes have since been
purchased for deployment. A further 43 used bikes, controllers, batteries and
other parts were also purchased to ensure the bikes, which are no longer made,
remain functional for their five year lifespan. The Council has also taken delivery
of an additional stock of 200 Electric-bikes (e-bikes) from the now defunct Derby
City Council scheme (of which 80 are still functioning — see Part 2 report for
explanation) which will be used to support the spares programme and for
potential use in e-bike trials in the City. Hubs have expanded beyond the initial
area outlined in the Business Case to Portslade Station to the west and
Rottingdean to the east. The total number of Bike Hubs have increased from the
initial 50 to a total of 70 with two further sites pending. The fleet and
infrastructure are wholly owned by the Council.

Benefits of the scheme to date.

3.6

Between 1 September 2017 and 31 Jan 2020, the scheme has delivered:
e 106,824 total subscribers.

236



3.7

3.8

e 910 stands at 70 Hubs across the city / 2 hubs pending.

o Afleet of 570 Bikes (with 30 bikes to be added over winter/ spring,
increasing total fleet to 600).

e A total of 873,742 trips were made.

e A total distance cycled by subscribers of 1,727,054 Miles

BTN Bikeshare won a ‘Highly Commended’ award at the 2019 National Transport
Awards in the ‘Excellence in Walking and Cycling’ category.

COMO UK are the accreditation body for UK Shared mobility schemes including
Car clubs and Bikeshare, and commission an annual survey of Bikeshare users
in 35 towns and cities across the UK. There were 2405 responses in 2019-20,
408 of which were from Brighton & Hove. 91.5% of BTN Bikeshare users agree
or strongly agree that Bikeshare enhances the city’s public transport, and 82.7%
agree or strongly agree that the scheme makes the city a better place to cycle
(see 5.2 and Appendices 2-3 for further results - a summary of public comments
is available in members’ rooms).

Original Business Case

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

The December 2014 Business Case for the Bikeshare Scheme was the
document submitted to secure LEP funding. It was prepared by external
consultants for the purposes of securing the funding bid, and analysed predicted
costs, demand and revenue forecasts, and the strategic, economic and financial
cases for the proposed scheme. The ‘Business Model’, also referred to in this
section, is the more detailed financial operating model envisaged at the time of
procurement. It is this model we are seeking to adjust in the contract variation.

At the time the 2014 Business Case was written, Bikeshare was a new type of
business for Brighton & Hove, and therefore involved making estimates and
assumptions which did not have direct precedent. A review in the light of two and
a half years of operations shows that overall costs were actually lower than the
range predicted by the business case. This was achieved by opting for a system
of GPS enabled ‘smart bikes’ and a phone app based booking system rather than
‘smart hubs’, eliminating electricity and IT equipment costs. However, this saving
has been partly offset by an increase in fleet numbers and hubs and a
broadening of the geographical spread of the scheme. Redistribution and
servicing hours have also been extended to meet customer demand.

The 2014 Business Case factored in an additional figure for fleet replacement of
10% of Operational costs per year. This cost was not included in the
procurement business model but is captured by the proposed Business model
variation (see 3.15 below and Part 2 report).

A review of the revenue estimations in the 2014 Business Case shows the
contribution of Sponsors assumed by the procurement Business Model was over
estimated. The past few years have seen a decline in this kind of placement
sponsorship in favour of investment in online marketing spend. Nevertheless, the
Sponsor contributions which were secured were generous relative to those
secured by other schemes and have been necessary to maintain BTN
Bikeshare’s initial viability.

237



3.13

3.14

Demand forecasts in the 2014 Business Case used industry guidelines at the
time to suggest a suitable number of bikes per 1000 residents and considered a
broad range of data to determine optimal hub locations. Demand was calculated
for residents, rail users, employees and tourists and predicted at 5.6 trips per
bike per day. This has subsequently proved unrealistic across many UK
schemes. Actual demand averages just over 2 trips per bike per day across the
year, with peak season usage going as high as 4 trips per bike per day.

This demand forecast had an impact on hire revenue forecasts in the business
case, which were therefore higher than actual hire revenue income proved to be.
(See Part 2 report for actual figures).

Contract issues

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

The full value of the concession contract over the longest possible term provided
in the agreement (7 years maximum term; currently in year 3 - see Part 2 report)
would, (due to the unanticipated growth identified in the previous paragraph),
exceed the threshold specified under the Concession Contracts Regulations
2016. This means that, as the law presently stands, the Concession Contracts
Regulations will apply and substantial changes to the contract would not be
permitted.

A surplus was achieved in 2018-19, the first full year of operation, due to the
business model finally adopted. However, work undertaken by officers with the
scheme operator in the last six months indicates that, whilst the service can
generate a surplus, the actual costs of running the operation are higher than the
assumptions made in this business model. Costs of attrition of the fleet
(weathering factors, wear and tear, losses, servicing and refurbishment costs)
also need to be reintroduced.

It is proposed to vary the business model to reflect the actual operating costs.
Officers have worked with the operator to develop an open book model that is
responsive to market conditions, but continues to provide a 50/50 surplus share
back to the Council above actual break-even point in any given year, rather than
the current fixed threshold (details of the current fixed threshold can be found in
the Part 2 report). It is considered that amendments to the contract to develop
further open book accounting arrangements would not amount to a substantial
change under the Concession Contract Regulations.

The current sponsor is withdrawing on 31 March 2020 due to other commitments,
having twice offered an extension across the last two quarters of 2019-20 to
support the scheme over autumn/winter months. Positive discussions with
potential alternative sponsors are ongoing, but have not been conclusive. The
existing contract allows for a change in sponsor and it is proposed that the
contract be varied to allow a three way sponsorship agreement between the new
sponsor, the operator and the Council.

Further amendments to the existing contract are proposed dealing with various

operational issues and additional minor matters. These are summarised in
Appendix 4 of the Part 2 report.

238



3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

4.1

4.2

Re-procurement

Proposals are being considered to extend the Scheme beyond the current
geographical area and possibly to join with other neighbouring local authorities in
linking or dovetailing bikeshare schemes across local authority boundaries.
These proposals could be achieved through the procurement of a new contract in
2021 and a re-procurement could also take account changes to the bikeshare
market. Such changes include the possibility that the Department for Transport
will derestrict the use of e-scooters on the public highway creating an increased
demand for e-bikes. Both factors could attract alternative providers of dockless
systems outside the Council’s control, damaging the viability of the Council’'s own
Bikeshare scheme in its present form.

Further factors relating to the current operator which should be taken into
account are included in the Part 2 report.

A 12 month extension to the existing contract will allow the Council to explore the
option of bringing the service in-house, as well as the potential to include our
neighbouring authorities in a wider scheme to include docked pedal and e-bikes.
This will minimise street clutter and help us to encourage more commuters to
cycle from more distant or hilly locations (within or beyond city boundaries) to the
city centre.

Further information on fleet servicing is included in the Part 2 report.

This report has been prepared in consultation with Procurement officers and
procurement options will be referred to the Procurement Advisory Board (PAB)
following the decision of this committee. The Procurement Advisory Board will be
involved in the final review of on the procurement strategy or decision to bring in-
house.

A further report will be brought to 23 June 2020 Environment, Transport &
Sustainability Committee detailing the outcome of the procurement options
review with recommendations for the retender of the new service or an in-house
operation

ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

Sections 3.6-3.8 of this report demonstrates the successes of the BTN Bikeshare
Scheme. Compared to most other Local Authority schemes it has sustained
growth and generated significant mileage. It has won a national award and has
been very popular with residents and visitors. The results of a tariff increase (see
Part 2 report — Appendix 6) from 1 August 2019 have been impacted by poor
weather over autumn/ winter relative to 2018, but are likely to reduce the
scheme’s dependence on sponsorship and other subsidy. The Council has
continued to invest in fleet and infrastructure as part of its commitment to the LEP
and will continue to do so in 2020-21 using Local Transport Plan allocated
funding.

Many public Bikeshare schemes across the UK have closed in the last year,
including Lincoln, Derby, Northampton and Reading. The general consensus is

239



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.4

5.1

that the type of business model on which the current scheme is based is not
sustainable without continued Local Authority revenue and capital support and/ or
defined levels of sponsorship, both of which have proven difficult for many
schemes to secure.

The ‘first wave’ arrival of dockless pedal only schemes run by external operators
without Local Authority affiliation began three years ago with launches in London
Boroughs and other major UK cities. This compounded the problem for existing
public schemes and led some to close. Some dockless pedal schemes then
collapsed or were withdrawn in many instances.

Many authorities have contracted out to private sector operators who may or may
not own the fleet and infrastructure, and where these have not been successful, a
few have sought to operate schemes ‘in-house’. Liverpool City Council brought
their scheme in-house but did not recruit additional staff to maintain customer
service levels, adding tasks to existing officer posts. A lack of resources made it
difficult to maintain Customer Service standards, revenue dropped, innovation
and investment stopped and fleet numbers have declined due to budget
constraints. In January 2020, the wider Liverpool City region put a cross
authority scheme proposal out for tender. They are seeking a joint external
operator to license.

Nottingham City Council took their Bikeshare scheme in-house, made the bikes
free to rent and saw their scheme decline due to vandalism. A tariff has since
been reintroduced, but the scheme has continued to reduce in size and coverage
and has been badly affected by recent flooding. Nottingham and Derby are now
scoping a joint re-procurement process together with Leeds, and a report looking
at best practice for procurement specifications will be shared with other COMO
UK members (including Brighton & Hove) in due course.

The cost of bringing the scheme permanently in-house at current service levels
would require significant revenue funding and further contingency funds for
service vehicles and premises leases. It would involve the creation of an
additional staff structure to manage the scheme, negotiate agreements with
existing and new subcontractors, a premises lease renewal, potential vehicle
procurements and service level agreements with the Council’s Finance and
Communications teams. Further funds would be required to allow the scheme to
continue to grow. (See Appendix 5 of Part 2 report). However, the in-house
service option will continue to be reviewed as part of the development of the
procurement strategy and the options review will be referred to the Procurement
Advisory Board prior to a final decision being made on the procurement strategy.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION

COMO UK's 2019-20 report on UK Bikeshare schemes can be found at Appendix
1. Key findings include:

e The national average gender split of Bikeshare users (40% Female/ 58%
Male) is much more even that general cycling.

e Shared E-bike schemes support users to commute to and from work more
frequently

240



5.2

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

e 48% of users reported health benefits/ exercise as reasons why they use a
Bikeshare scheme

e 46% said joining a Bikeshare scheme was a catalyst to start cycling again.

e Bikeshare enables use of public transport by offering a ‘last mile’ solution.

The report on the responses of 408 BTN Bikeshare users to the COMO survey
can be found at Appendix 2. Some respondents chose not to answer every
question. The small size of the sample means the following findings cannot be
treated as conclusive. Key findings include:

e 68% would be likely to use an electric bike if it was part of the Scheme

e 39.1% would be likely to use electric scooters and 40.8% would be unlikely.
e 43.3% would prefer the scheme to retain the current model where bikes can
be found docked in hubs but can also be found and left elsewhere.

11.95% would prefer bikes to be left docked at designated hubs only.

32% would prefer a free floating scheme where bikes can be left anywhere.
55.85% of users are female.

22% of users earn less than £20,000 per annum

27% of users work part time or are students, retired or unemployed.

CONCLUSION

The current contract requires some immediate variations to ensure service
continuity to the public for the following 17 months (the remaining term of the
current contract plus a 12 month extension) while procurement or in-house
options are reviewed and any re-procurement exercise is initiated. A revenue
contribution will be necessary to support the scheme during this time. This is not
without risk, but the option to bring the service in house during this period would
cost the Council more than a 12 month extension to the current operator’s
Contract. The current operator’s financial position no longer gives cause for
concern, but will be kept under review.

The existing Contract does not allow for expansion of the scheme beyond the city
boundary to neighbouring authorities because its value exceeds the Concession
Contracts Act 2016 threshold. Both Lewes District and Adur & Worthing Councils
have expressed interest in joining the scheme. E-bikes with swappable batteries
are likely to encourage more commuting journeys into and across the city, and
will find a ready market. The preferred option, therefore, is a new procurement
as a wider City Region (to include other Local Authority partners), which would
bring added purchasing power and a larger market than the existing scheme and
would be a more attractive proposition to prospective operators and sponsors.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

Financial implications associated to the recommended contract variations and 12
month contract extension are included in Part 2 of this report.

The recommendations include carrying out initiation of a full procurement options

review, which will be prepared on a basis to maximise economy and
effectiveness, and will therefore support achieving value for money.

241



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

Procurement options will be referred to the Procurement Advisory Board (PAB)
and a further report will be brought to this Committee detailing the outcome of the
options review with recommendations for the retender of the new service or an
in-house operation.

Finance Officer Consulted: Steven Bedford Date: 09/03/20

Legal Implications:

The Environment, Transport and Sustainability Committee is the appropriate
decision-making body in respect of the recommendations at paragraph 2 above,
given that the Committee’s terms of reference include environmental health,
highways management, traffic management and transport.

The current contract allows for amendments through a change-control process.
As the law presently stands (and will continue to stand during the Brexit transition
period), the Concession Contracts Regulations 2016 (CCR) apply to the contract.
It is considered that the proposed changes to the contract are not substantial and
that they would be permitted under the CCR. The risk of a successful challenge
to the proposed changes is therefore considered to be low.

Exempt Information

The report above refers to certain additional information in part 2 that should be
read before the Committee considers the recommendations in paragraph 2
above (“Part 2 Information”). The Part 2 Information is commercially sensitive
and is to be treated as confidential.

Lawyer Consulted: David Fairfield Date: 02/03/2020

Equalities Implications:

BTN Bikeshare has much higher than UK average levels of female participation
but a BME patrticipation rate of 4.71% does not reflect the 2011 Census Ethnicity
statistics

Sustainability Implications:

The Bikeshare scheme contributes to the city’s sustainability goals including
Carbon Net Zero emissions by 2030.

Brexit Implications:

Procurement may need to take account of EU competition rules during the
transition period while a trade deal is being negotiated if this is extended beyond
31 December 2020.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

An assessment of the risks associated with the extension of the contract is in the
Part 2 report.

242



Public Health Implications:

7.10 Bikeshare usage by residents has a significant impact on the health and
wellbeing of the city as a whole.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

7.11 The scheme cannot expand to reach areas of the city not currently served under
the current contract, despite evidence of significant demand.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:
1. COMO UK Bikeshare users survey report
2. COMO UK BTN Bikeshare users survey results.

3. COMO UK BTN Bikeshare users — Postcode data

Background Documents:

1. COMO UK BTN Bikeshare users — Comments received.

243



244



86% OF RESPONDENTS AGREED
WITH THE STATEMENT THAT

€¢c |
bike share makes
the city a better
place to cycle ,,

Bike Share
Users Survey

mouk Q

supporting shared transport




ove

2019 Survey

Result Key Findings

THE GENDER SPLIT OF BIKE SHARE
USERS IS MUCH MORE EVEN THAN FOR
GENERAL CYCLING

v -
<
40% 58%
FEMALE MALE

DATA AVERAGED OVER 4 YEARS OF RESULTS

48%

SPECIFICALLY REPORTED ON
EXERCISE/PHYSICAL HEALTH BENEFITS
AS REASONS WHY THEY CHOOSE TO
USE THE BIKE SHARE SCHEME

BIKE SHARE IS A TOOL FOR
RE-ENGAGING CYCLISTS.

— ).

A\ [

46%

BIKE SHARE USERS SAID THE BIKE
SHARE SCHEME WAS THE CATALYST TO
CYCLING (AGAIN)

SHARED EBIKE SCHEMES
SUPPORT USERS TO CYCLE TO WORK
MORE FREQUENTLY

9
60%

OF THOSE USING EBIKES SHARE
REPORTED THAT THEY WERE
COMMUTING

BIKE SHARE ENABLES USE OF
PUBLIC TRANSPORT BY OFFERING
A LAST MILE SOLUTION.

==

N\
S5

23%

RESPONDENTS USE BIKE SHARE IN
CONJUNCTION WITH THE BUS

cy

3 5 (0]
RESPONDENTS USE BIKE SHARE IN
CONJUNCTION WITH THE TRAIN

DATA AVERAGED OVER 4 YEARS OF RESULTS




YA L

This report presents the results
of the fourth annual Bike Share
Users Survey; the only such
research being carried out across
the UK. The survey is key to
providing the evidence of the
social and environmental impacts
of public bike share.

The data has been reviewed
by an independent analyst and
it is presented in the context
of the previous three years of
results years to create a robust
assessment of the sector.

The survey is a key tool for understanding the impacts
of bike share schemes, and how the UK’s bike share sector

is performing.

It has been a year of mixed
fortunes for bike share. New
schemes have developed

in Edinburgh, and Cardiff
plus there are many new
operations in London.
However, the year has

also seen several schemes
closing (Derby, Reading and
Northampton).

The problems experienced
are mainly due to business
models and vandalism, and do
not negate the benefits that
providing on-street public
bike hire can provide.

Bike Share Users Survey 2019

It can be argued that now,
more than ever, there is a
need to understand the scale
and range of impacts of bike
share.

This report looks at key policy
areas such as whether bike
share can support health

and wellbeing, and trigger
sustainable travel behaviours,
as well as assessing
differences due to gender,
geography and e-bikes.

01



8v¢

Methodology

The Bike Share User Survey
was produced by CoMoUK
(previously Carplus Bikeplus)
in conjunction with, UK bike
share operators, and local
authority representatives.

It was distributed via email,
and social media, to users

of schemes in 35 towns

and cities, run by: Hourbike,
nextbike, Serco, Beryl, Lime,
Jump, Freebike, Mobike,
Smoove / ITS, Brompton Bike
Hire, Co-bikes and Liverpool
City Cycles. between the 10th
June and 22nd July 2019.

As in previous years, as an
incentive, respondents were
given the opportunity to enter
a prize draw to win one of 5
£50 shopping vouchers.

02

In total, 2,405 responses
were received, comparing

to 1,790 in 2018. It is difficult
to assess the number of

bike share users due to

their transient nature but
data collected by CoMoUK
estimates that there are over
600,000 current active users,
in the UK and over 100,000
outside London. Responses
from the London Santander
Cycle scheme are low as this
scheme has its own survey.
Taking the response numbers
of the users in relation to
user of other schemes it is
estimated the response rate
is around 2%.

610 respondents reported
that they used an electric
bike when bike sharing, and
their responses are analysed
separately in some instances.

The results were analysed

by independent consultant
Conor Walsh and verified by
Dr Sally Cairns, of Sally Cairns
& Associates Ltd.

Bike Share Users Survey 2019

NUMBER OF RESPONDENTS

3000

2250

1500

750

CoMoUK bike share user
survey responses

2016

2017

2018

2019

There was a more even
geographical spread of
responses this year (albeit
that response numbers do
not reflect the size of the
schemes, with London under-
represented). Response
numbers broke down as:
Glasgow 26%, Brighton 20%,
Cardiff 10%, Edinburgh 7%,
London 16%, Milton Keynes
5% and Stirling 5%.

Of those responding, 70% of
users had joined a scheme in
the last 2 years - 34% in 2019
and 36% in 2018




6v¢

Demographic of
bike share users

The gender split for bike share
users, as indicated from the
2019 survey, was 61% male
compared to 37% female
(with 2% of the sample not
responding, ‘other’ or ‘prefer
not to say’). The proportion of
women was somewhat lower
than in previous years.

Age

The age spread of bike share
users was from 15 to 75 with
the majority in the 25-54
category (78%), including
30% in the 25-34 group, 29%
in the 35-44 group and 19% in
the 45-54 group.

Results averaged for
2016-2019 give a ratio of
58:40% (with the remaining
2% classified as ‘prefer not
to say’).

These figures can be
compared to the latest
National Travel Survey
(England 2018), where, on
average, only 29% of cycle
trips were carried out by
women.

Ethnicity

The percentage of White
British respondents was

66% in 2019, down from

73% in 2018, and there was

a subsequent slight increase
in the percentage of other
ethnic backgrounds: 20%
selected the category “white
other”, 4% identified as Asian
/ Asian British, 3% as “mixed
multiple ethnicity” and 7% as
other ethnicities.

70%

53%

35%

18%

2016

Employment

82% of respondents stated
they were employed; 1%

were students; and 2% were
retired. Less than 1% were
unemployed. The remaining
chose “other” or “prefer not
to say”. Responses were
received from all income
groups. Of those who
answered the question about
individual personal income
(50%), 21% were on an income
of less than £20,000 including
9% of the total who were

on an income of less than
£10,000.

2017 2018 2019

THE GENDER SPLIT OF BIKE SHARE
USERS IS MUCH MORE EVEN THAN FOR
GENERAL CYCLING

<
40% 58%

DATA AVERAGED OVER 4 YEARS OF RESULTS

Bike Share Users Survey 2019 03



Potential to attract
new cyclists

As with the survey responses from previous years, the data indicates that bike share is
a catalyst to re-engaging with cycling. A total of 46%, said that bike share was a trigger
to them cycling again - 26% of respondents said they had begun cycling after a gap of 1
year or more, and a further 18% hadn’t ridden a bicycle for between 1and 4 years.

Cycling for the first Cycling for the first Cycling for the first None of the above
time ever time after a long time after a shorter - | already cycled
break (5 years +) break (1-4 years)

0G¢

When looking at the gender split of responses to the question, a higher proportion of
women were more likely to have started cycling for the first time or after a 5+ year break.

. Male
. Female

CYCLING AFTER A SHORT
BREAK (1-4 YEARS)

CYCLING AFTER LONG
BREAK OF 5+ YEARS

CYCLING FOR
THE FIRST TIME

NONE OF THE ABOVE-
ALREADY CYCLED

0% 17.5% 35% 52.5% 70%

04 Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Looking back at the data from the four
years of surveys, on average, over 20% of
respondents reported that the bike share
scheme was a trigger to cycling (again).

New to cycling or a gap
of 5 years or more

20% 23% 23%
13%
7% i
(0]

26%

2016 2017 2018

BIKE SHARE IS A TOOL FOR
RE-ENGAGING CYCLISTS.

46%

BIKE SHARE USERS SAID THE BIKE
SHARE SCHEME WAS THE CATALYST TO
CYCLING (AGAIN)

26%

2019



TG¢

Increasing

cycling tri

The survey asked whether
users had changed the
amount that they cycle
since they started using
the scheme. Well over half
(63%) reported an increase
with 40% stating that they
are cycling more often and
a further 23% choosing the
option indicating that they
cycling “much more often.”

oS

Results for those who use
bike share for commuting
(between 1-5 days a week)
increases the proportion of
those cycling much more

, often to 42% indicating
that providing bike share
in locations which support
commuting may particularly

are increase the amount that
people cycle.

Change in cycling levels since using bike share BIKE SHARE IS A COMPLEMENT

LESS
OFTEN

ABOUT
THE SAME
AS BEFORE

MORE
OFTEN

MUCH MORE
OFTEN

TO OWNERSHIP

12%

OF USERS WENT ON TO BUY A BIKE

47%

0% 12.5%

. All

USE A PERSONAL BIKE AS WELL
25% 37.5% 50% AS BIKE SHARE.

Use bike share for
commuting between
1-5 days a week

Bike Share Users Survey 2019

05



¢S¢e

Health
benefits

There is a large amount of
evidence to support the theory
that bike share increases
physical activity, and has
positive impacts on both
mental and physical health.

When asked about the total
amount of moderate or
vigorous exercise done in

the last week through using
bike share - 12% said they
had done the Government’s
recommended 2.5 hours a
week or more, whilst 23%

had done between 1and 2.5
hours. 37% reported that they
had done none, presumably
because they had not used the
scheme, whilst 29% had done
less than an hour.)

13% of respondents reported
that use of bike share is the
only moderate to vigorous
exercise they get on a regular
(weekly) basis

06

BIKE SHARE OFFERS A VALUABLE
OPPORTUNITY TO INCREASE PHYSICAL
ACTIVITY LEVELS

13%

OF RESPONDENTS REPORTED THAT
THIS WAS THE ONLY MODERATE TO
VIGOROUS EXERCISE THEY GET ON A
REGULAR (WEEKLY) BASIS

48%

SPECIFICALLY REPORTED ON
EXERCISE/PHYSICAL HEALTH BENEFITS
AS REASONS WHY THEY CHOOSE TO
USE THE BIKE SHARE SCHEME

29%

REPORTED ON MENTAL HEALTH
BENEFITS, AS REASONS WHY THEY
CHOOSE TO USE BIKE SHARE SCHEMES

Bike Share Users Survey 2019




€a¢

Personal benefits of opting
to travel by bike share

Respondents were asked to choose ‘all that applied’ from a list of reasons
for using the bike share scheme. The 2019 survey results reinforce
previous results, showing that convenience (time savings, and ease),
exercise and fresh air were the top reasons for choosing bike share.

TO MAKE MY
JOURNEY EASIER

TO SAVE
TIME

FUN AND
FRESH AIR

EXERCISE / PHYSICAL
HEALTH BENEFITS

ENVIRONMENTAL
REASONS

AVOID WORRY OF OWN BIKE
MAINTENANCE, STORAGE, THEFT

TO AVOID TAKING MY BIKE ON
TRAIN, BUS, CAR

MENTAL HEALTH
BENEFITS

GETTING TO PLACES NOT
SERVED BY PUBLIC TRANSPORT

CHEAPER THAN
OTHER MODES

AVOID TRAFFIC CONGESTION
OR CAR PARKING PROBLEMS

BACK UP FOR WHEN MY
USUAL MODE ISN’T AVAILABLE

CHEAPER THAN
BUYING A BIKE

TO TRY
CYCLING

61%
56%
49%
48%
32%
29%
27%
27%
26%
26%
8%
0% 20% 40% 60% 80%

Bike Share Users Survey 2019

07



14514

Trip
purpose

Respondents were asked how
often they use bike share for

a range of different journey
purposes. 30% of respondents
used a bike to travel to work
at least once a week, and a
further 12% of respondents
used a bike for a business trip
at least once a week. Other trip
purposes included: cycling for
leisure (41% >1 trip per month);
personal business trips, (52%
>ltrip per month) and visiting
friends and family (35% >1trip
per month).

WARWICK

STIRLING

MILTON
KEYNES

LONDON
GLASGOW
EDINBURGH
CARDIFF

BRIGHTON

There was some regional
variation in trip purpose. In

the larger cities, commuting
was more commonly reported,
whilst the areas with more nice
cycle rides along the sea front,
in the country or parks had a
higher proportion of leisure
trips

0% 20%

08

Leisure travel at
least one day a
week

Business travel
at least one
day a week

Commuting at
least one day
a week

Bike Share Users Survey 2019

The proportion of users
commuting by bike share
more than doubled, when
looking at the sub-sample
(610 respondents) with access
to electrically-assisted bikes.

70%

52.5%

35%

17.5%

0%

EBIKE ALL

SHARED EBIKE SCHEMES
SUPPORT USERS TO CYCLE TO WORK
MORE FREQUENTLY

9
60%

OF THOSE USING EBIKES SHARE
REPORTED THAT THEY WERE
COMMUTING

Business travel
at least one
day a week

. Commuting at
least one day

a week



GG¢

Mode shift for
commuting

Bike share commuters (1,220 A separate question
respondents) were asked how  asked whether bike share
they previously travelled to commuters had changed the
work. (Respondents could amount they use their car.
choose more than one option 37% said they were using their

and a significant proportion car either much less (12%)
indicated that they used or less (25%). The remaining
bike share in addition rather respondents were using their
than instead of to their usual car about the same amount.
mode). (Respondents were given the

option to choose more often,

The results for all cities or much more often, but did
combined were: not do so.)

32% previously walked

21% were using the bus, and
9% switched from the train

6% previously used their
own bike

17% said they previously
travelled by car (driver
or passenger) or taxi,
suggesting the potential
for bike share to reduce BIKE SHARE
. . REDUCES CAR USE
congestion and pollution.

=

17%

OF BIKE SHARE COMMUTERS HAD
PREVIOUSLY TRAVELLED BY CAR
(DRIVER OR PASSENGER) OR TAXI

Split out by city, there are more respondents switching from
car in less dense cities such as Cardiff and Brighton.

If you use bike share for commuting, which mode(s) did bike

share replace? (Selected cities)

@ i

Private Car (as driver)

. Private Bicycle

Bike share is in addition to
my existing mode

LONDON

GLASGOW

CARDIFF

BRIGHTON

ALL

. Bus
@ \walking

Local train, tram
or underground

0%

15%

30% 45%

Bike Share Users Survey 2019

60%

09



9G¢

Electric bikes
INn bike share

The extent to which people SHARED EBIKES REDUCE CAR USE
. EVEN MORE THAN CONVENTIONAL

were able_to reduce their car BIKE SHARE

use was higher for those with

access to electric bikes in

their scheme.

Around a quarter of

respondents using e-bikes o

said they used their cars 23 /)

‘much less often” as opposed OF RESPONDENTS USING SHARED
9 EBIKES SAID THEY USED THEIR CARS

to only 12% Of_ the whole MUCH LESS OFTEN AS OPPOSED TO

sample, and figures were also ONLY 12% OF THE WHOLE SAMPLE

higher for those saying ‘less

often’

70% . E-Bike(N=154)

All &

47%
35%
30%
23%

12%

0%
MUCH LESS LESS OFTEN SAME
OFTEN

10 Bike Share Users Survey 2019



Multi
modal trips

BIKE SHARE ENABLES USE OF
PUBLIC TRANSPORT BY OFFERING
A LAST MILE SOLUTION.

Bike share adds flexibility and chaining with bike share has
convenience to journeys, and  varied considerably, as the

JAST

is often used for either the
first or last mile.

For their most recent trip
using bike share, 19% of

respondents used bike share

in conjunction with the bus,
and 28% with the train.
Looking at this data over 4

years the average is 23% bus

/ 35% train. The extent to
which the car is part of trip

survey has been influenced
by geographical differences
in responses. This year, it is
only 11% of responses but it
has been as high as 40%.
The average is 26%.

When asked about their
views on the statement
“bike share enhances
public transport”, 89%
of respondents agreed.

. Bus . Local Train,

Tram or
Undeground

Private Car

50%

37.5% 40%

36%

25%

12.5%

0%

2016

28%

Bike Share Users Survey 2019

23%

RESPONDENTS USE BIKE SHARE IN
CONJUNCTION WITH THE BUS

%

35%

RESPONDENTS USE BIKE SHARE IN
CONJUNCTION WITH THE TRAIN

DATA AVERAGED OVER 4 YEARS OF RESULTS



8G¢

Trip
length

In terms of the trips made
using bike share, around a
third (32%) of respondents
reported their most recent
ride was between 5-15mins
and just under half (43%) said
15-30mins.

When looking at the time
taken to walk to a bike, most
people (62%) said it was a
less than a 5-minute walk
while a quarter said it took
them 5-10mins. Slightly lower
times were reported from
the drop-off location to final
destination.

12

Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Customer
satisfaction

When asked to rate the
different aspects of the
public bike share service,
the majority of elements
were rated as ‘very’ or ‘fairly
satisfactory’ by at least 70%
of respondents.

A few aspects had lower
levels of endorsement such
as gears (66% rated these
as ‘very’ or ‘fairly’ satisfied),
customer service (62%) and
communications (59%).

Station coverage remained as
one of the lowest rated areas,
with 27% of respondents
saying they were very or fairly
dissatisfied. This was also

the main topic raised in free
comments.

Dockless vs

station based

Around half of respondents
indicated that they preferred
hybrid models of bike share,
where bikes are mostly found
in stations but can also be
found and parked elsewhere.
The remainder were split
between those who preferred
‘free-floating’ bike share and
those who preferred fully
station-based options.

The survey showed that a lack
of bikes in particular areas
discouraged many users from
trying a bike share scheme.
Not being able to guarantee
an available bike also resulted
in many riders giving up on
using a scheme prematurely.
Lack of coverage at transport
hubs, including stations,

also made many journeys
impractical.

Of those respondents who
indicated that they hadn’t
used a scheme yet (323
respondents), around one
third mentioned that this was
due to a lack of convenient
stations, whilst another

20% said they preferred

to use their own bike.
Disappointingly, 13% said they
hadn’t hired a bike as they
had encountered a specific
problem with the service
when trying to hire a bike.




6G¢

Use of
co-mobility
services

as a Service), whilst 42% said
they were likely to hire shared
e-scooters if they were made
legal on UK roads. Around a
of ‘already using it’, ‘likely quarter of people said they
to use’, ‘unlikely to use’ and were likely to use car clubs,
‘unsure/don’t know’. 60% said  ride share, shared taxis and
they were ‘likely to use’ shared demand responsive bus
electric bikes. 44% were likely  services.

to use a monthly account /

contract giving use of a range

of transport services (Mobility

Respondents were asked
about how likely they were
to use other shared mobility
services, with the options

BIKE SHARE USERS ARE LIKELY TO USE OTHER SHARED
MOBILITY SERVICES

9
60%

9 4

42%

SHARED RIDE SHARE SHARED
(PRIVATE CAR)

ELECTRIC BIKES ELECTRIC SCOOTERS

Do

- - - - o \9
28% 28% 25%
SHARED CARS SHARED SHARED ON

(CAR CLUBS) TAXIS DEMAND MINI BUS

How likely are you to use the follwoing types of trnsport
(if they were available in your area)?

SHARED ELECTRIC
BICYCLES

SHARED ELECTRIC
( STAND UP) SCOOTERS
( NOT YET LEGAL IN THE UK)

SHARED CARS
(SELF SERVICE SHORT
TERM CAR HIRE)

SHARED RIDE IN
PRIVATE CAR ( DRIVER
OR PASSENGER)

SHARED TAXI (2+
PASSENGERS)

SHARED ON
DEMAND MINI BUS

A MONTHLY ACCOUNT /
CONTRACT GIVING USE
OF A RANGE OF
TRANSPORT SERVICES

2% 44% 32% 22%

-
(5}
X

. Likely to use

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Already using Unlilkely to use

. Unsure or don’t know

Bike Share Users Survey 2019 13



@
<@
5]
=
°
<
IS
°
<
o
=)
c
&
£
=
5
<
S
o
o
2
i)
=)
Q
o
2
pv4
2
o
=
[S]
()

o~
o
o
<
<
=3
Q
A

<]
k=
o

c
S

o

o
(%]
-

c

5]
=)
==
o
15
o
=]

]
=

Find out more about bike share online at Acknowledgements SHARE ' Q

www.como.org.uk | info@como.org.uk North
Thanks to Conor Walsh and Sally Cairns

mo J Registered office: of Sally Cairns Associates for their Hileriey -
Morth EE.'_J Fliegmn

supporting shared fransport Kings House, King Street, Leeds LS1 2HH support with survey design and analysis.




Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q1 | agree to my responses being used for research led by CoMoUK. |
understand only anonymised data and no personal data will be shared
with research partners.

Answered: 408  Skipped: 0

100%

1991757
80%
60%
40%
20%
0.25%
0%
| agree and will respond to the I don't agree and don't wish to
survey respond to the survey
ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
I agree and will respond to the survey 99.75% 407
| don't agree and don't wish to respond to the survey 0.25% 1

Total Respondents: 408



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q2 In which town or city do you use a bike share scheme most often?
Answered: 408  Skipped: 0

100%
100:00%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%
Ashf Bath Belf Birm Brig Bris CambCant Card Craw Derb Didc DundEast Edin Exet Glas Guil Hass Henl Ipsw Jers Linc Live LondMancMilt NewcNc

ord ast ingh htontol ridg erbuiff ley vy ot ee bourburger gow dfor ocksey ich ey oln rpooon heston astl hs
am e ry ne h d L er Keyne to
es
2125



ANSWER CHOICES
Ashford
Bath
Belfast
Birmingham
Brighton
Bristol
Cambridge
Canterbury
Cardiff
Crawley
Derby
Didcot
Dundee
Eastbourne
Edinburgh
Exeter
Glasgow
Guildford
Hassocks
Henley
Ipswich
Jersey
Lincoln
Liverpool
London
Manchester
Milton Keynes
Newcastle
Northampton
Nottingham
Norwich
Oxford

Peterborough

Poole and Bournemouth

Portsmouth
Slough
Southampton

Southend

Stirling

Swansea

Three Bridges Station
Warwick University
Worcester
Wolverhampton

Other (please specify)
TOTAL

Bike Share Users Survey 2019

RESPONSES
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

100.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

408



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q3 Which scheme do you use most often? (Leave blank if you are not
sure).

Answered: 354  Skipped: 54

100%
98.87%

80%
60%
40%

20%
0.28% 0.280:28% 0.28%

0%
BeryBeweBronBTN Co- City Ebik Fort FreeJumplustLimeMobinext PonyRide SantSlouYobi Wo
L gen ptonBikeb  bikee h  bike bike Eat bike ke bike bike - andegh ke bik

Bike Bike sharikes Live Derbbike s Cycls on r  Cycl s
s H.. e.. f. y es C... e...

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Beryl Bikes 0.00% 0
Bewegen 0.00% 0
Brompton Bike Hire 0.00% 0
BTN Bikeshare Brighton 98.87% 350
Co-bikes 0.00% 0
Citybike Liverpool 0.00% 0
Ebike Derby 0.00% 0
Forth bike 0.00% 0
Freebike 0.00% 0
Jump bikes 0.00% 0
Just Eat Cycles 0.00% 0
Lime bikes 0.28% 1
Mobike 0.00% 0
nextbike 0.00% 0
Ponybike 0.00% 0
Ride-on 0.28% 1
Santander Cycles 0.28% 1
Slough Cycle Hire 0.00% 0
Yobike 0.00% 0
Woo bikes 0.28% 1
TOTAL 354

4,25



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q4 Which year did you begin using this bike share scheme?

Answered: 389

90%

70%

47.56%
50%

26.99% 23.91%

30%

10%

2019 2018 2017

ANSWER CHOICES

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2009-2013
TOTAL

1.29%

2016

Skipped: 19

2015 2014

RESPONSES

26.99%

47.56%

23.91%

1.29%

0.00%

0.00%

0.26%

0.26%

2009-

105

185

93

389



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q5 Has bike share been a catalyst to you....

Answered: 356  Skipped: 52
100%

80%

60% 49.72%
40% 28.93%
19.38%
20%
- 1'97‘%)
0%
Cycling for the Cycling for the Cycling for the None of the
first time after first time after first time ever above- |
alongbreak (5 ashorter break already cycled
years+) (1-4 years)
ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
Cycling for the first time after a long break (5 years+) 28.93%
Cycling for the first time after a shorter break (1-4 years) 19.38%
Cycling for the first time ever 1.97%
49.72%

None of the above - | already cycled

Total Respondents: 356

103

69

177



Q6 Since beginning to use bike share, do you now cycle...

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

ANSWER CHOICES
Much more often
More often

Less often

About the same as before

Total Respondents: 356

Bike Share Users Survey 2019

18.26%

Much more often

Answered: 356

45.22%

More often

Skipped: 52

1.97%

Less often

34.55%

About the same
as before

RESPONSES

18.26%

45.22%

1.97%

34.55%

65

161

123



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q7 In the past week, how many hours of moderate or vigorous physical
activity have you undertaken through using bike share?(Activity which

raises your heart rate)

Answered: 354  Skipped: 54
100%
80%
60%
40.11%
40% 24.58% 23.45%
0,
- - =
0%
Time
. None . less than 1 hour 1 hour to less than 2.5 hours
2.5 hours or more
NONE LESS THAN 1 1 HOUR TO LESS THAN 2.5 2.5 HOURS OR TOTAL
HOUR HOURS MORE
Time  40.11% 24.58% 23.45% 11.86%
142 87 83 42 354
8 12 l;

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

2.07



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q8 Is the use of bike share the only moderate to vigorous exercise you
get on a regular (i.e. weekly) basis?

Answered: 352  Skipped: 56
100%
80% 86:08%0)
60%

40%

13.92%

20%

0%

Yes No
ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
Yes 13.92% 49
No 86.08% 303
TOTAL SE22
a/ ‘35



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q9 Please tell us about your bike ownership..

Answered: 356
100%
80%
60%
41.29%
40%
14.33%
20% 9.27%
0%
| | already lowna
purchased owned my bike but it
or own bike isin
upgraded disrepair
ANSWER CHOICES
| purchased or upgraded my own bike since joining the scheme
| already owned my own bike
| own a bike but it is in disrepair
| don't own my own bike
I used to own a bike but I no longer do since joining the scheme
None of the above
Total Respondents: 356
1(\ 12

6.46%
|

lused to
own a bike
but I no
longer d...

1.97%

None of
the above

RESPONSES
9.27%

41.29%

14.33%

26.69%

6.46%

1.97%

33

147

51

95

23



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q10 What are your reasons for choosing to use bike share? (Please
tick all which apply)

Answered: 356  Skipped: 52

100%
80%
5 50.84%09.449 .
60% 49.44% 48.31%;5 519,
36.80% 37.08%
40% % 26.97%, 29.78%
23.88% 21 63% 17.98% mmm 21-07%
B I l I . I .
0%
Avoid Avoid Back Cheap Cheap Envir Exerc Fun Getti MentaTo To To
the traff up er er onmenise  / ng L avoid make save try
worry ic for  than than tal / fresh to healt takin my time cycli
of.. co.. wh.. bu.. ot.. re.. physi air place h.. g jo... ng
ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
Avoid the worry of own bike maintenance, storage, theft 36.80% 131
Avoid traffic congestion or car parking problems 23.88% 85
Back up for when my usual mode isn't available 30.06% 107
Cheaper than buying a bike 21.63% 77
Cheaper than other modes 26.97% 96
Environmental reasons 37.08% 132
Exercise / physical health benefits 50.84% 181
Fun / fresh air 49.44% 176
Getting to places not served by public transport 17.98% 64
Mental health benefits 29.78% 106
To avoid taking my bike on train, bus, car 21.07% 75
To make my journey easier 48.31% 172
To save time 45.51% 162
To try cycling 7.02% 25
Total Respondents: 356
] 1 I

271



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q11 How often do you travel by the bike share for each of these

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

Commuting to work

Business travel / part of job

Cycling to a place of
education

Personal business e.g.
shops

Visiting friends and family

Cycling for leisure

272

purposes?
Answered: 315  Skipped: 93
68.89% 4%
55.24% 53.33%
30.7930.79% 3016% o
o 279% 23179 /o 2(26:03%
THEBB% | 1 e, 17.4%5 09 17788
10.16% 510.16%
7. 30 8.57Y
II 2.9% 73‘1'7“ I
Commuting Business Cycling to Personal Visiting Cycling
to work travel / a place of business friends and for leisure
part of job education e.g. shops family
. 3+ days per week . 1+ per month 1+ per year . never
3+ DAYS PER 1+ 1+ PER NEVER TOTAL
WEEK PER MONTH YEAR
17.78% 16.83% 10.16%  55.24%
56 53 32 174 315
7.30% 13.65% 10.16%  68.89%
23 43 32 217 315
2.22% 4.76% 3.17%  89.84%
7 15 10 283 315
17.14% 30.79% 21.27%  30.79%
54 97 67 97 315
8.57% 23.17% 14.92%  53.33%
27 73 47 168 315
17.78% 30.16% 26.03%  26.03%
56 95 82 82 315
1’) 12

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

4.67

5.26

5.76

431

4.96

4.25



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q12 If you use bike share for commuting to work, which mode(s) did
bike-share replace? (tick all that apply)

100%

80%

60% ' 46.79%
37.82%
40%

20%

0%
Bus Walking

ANSWER CHOICES

Bus

Walking

Bike share is in addition to my existing mode
Private car as driver

Private bicycle

Local train, tram or underground train

Taxi

Private car as passenger

Employee shuttle bus

Total Respondents: 156

Answered: 156  Skipped: 252

28.21%

Bike
share
isin
addi...

23.08%

14.10%
7.69%  6.41%

Private  Private Local Taxi
car as bicycle  train,
driver tram
or
1235

273

o
5.77% 1.92%

Private  Employe
car as e
passeng shuttle
er bus

RESPONSES
46.79%

37.82%
28.21%
23.08%
14.10%
7.69%
6.41%
5.77%

1.92%

73

59

44

36

22

12

10



Q13 As a result of using bike share, do you now use a car ...

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

ANSWER CHOICES

Much less often than before

Less often than before

The same as before

More often than before

TOTAL

Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Answered: 288  Skipped: 120
63.54%
27.78%
7.99%
Much less often Less often than The same as
than before before before
Yor

0.69%

More often than
before

RESPONSES

7.99%

27.78%

63.54%

0.69%

23

80

183

288



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q14 Thinking about the last trip you made with your main bike share
scheme - (the one you named at the start) how would you have made
this trip if bike share was not available?

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%
Walk

ANSWER CHOICES

Walk

Bus

Private car as driver

| wouldn't have done this trip
Own bicycle

Taxi

Train

Private car as a passenger
Other (please specify)
Underground, light rail or tram
Employer shuttle bus

Park and ride

Total Respondents: 315

31.75%,

Answered: 315

27.62%

Bus

13.33%17.75%

7-62% 413%

Privat | Own  Taxi
e wouldnbicycl
car 't e

as hav...

1 2‘:7’535

Train

Skipped: 93

Privat Other

e
car
asa

1.90% 0.63% 0.63% 0.32% 0.32%

Underg EmployPark

(pleas round, er and

e light  shuttl ride

spe.. rai.. e
RESPONSES
31.75% 100
27.62% 87
13.33% 42
11.75% 37
7.62% 24
4.13% 13
1.90% 6
0.63% 2
0.63% 2
0.32% 1
0.32% 1
0.00% 0



Frequency

Now

Before joining
the bike share
scheme?

Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q15 How often do you typically make this trip?

Answered: 296

Frequency
100%

80%

60%

40% 27.21%

14.6513.9514.297) 5 515-65%

20%

0%

1319987

Skipped: 112

5%

23.81%
15.75%

12. 09°/ 11 72%)
[ ] ll
— | --

Before joining the bike share
scheme?

. 4 or more times a week . 2-3 times a week
. At least once a fortnight . At least once a month . Less than once a month

- Never
4 OR 2-3 AT LEAST
MORE TIMES ONCE A
TIMES A A WEEK
WEEK WEEK
14.63% 13.95% 14.29%
43 41 42
13.19% 15.75% 12.09%
36 43 33

AT LEAST
ONCE A
FORTNIGHT

11.56%
34

7.69%
21

AT LEAST
ONCE A
MONTH

15.65%
46

11.72%
32

At least once a week

LESS THAN
ONCE A
MONTH

27.21%
80

23.81%
65

NEVER

2.72%
8

15.75%
43

TOTAL

294

273



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q16 How long was this last trip by cycle?
Answered: 315  Skipped: 93

100%
80%

60%

42.22%
40% 25.08%
15.24%
20% 7.94% 7.30%
0%
o
less than 5-<15 15-<30 30-<45 45-<60 An hour or
5 minutes minutes minutes minutes minutes more
ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
less than 5 minutes 2.22% 7
5-<15 minutes 25.08% 79
15-<30 minutes 42.22% 133
30-<45 minutes 15.24% 48
45-<60 minutes 7.94% 25
An hour or more 7.30% 23
TOTAL 315
17/ 35

277



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q17 Do you use any other forms of transport (other than walking) as
part of this trip?

Answered: 315  Skipped: 93

100%

80%

60.95%
60%
40%
23.17%
16.19% 16.19%
20% 7.30%
- - o 1.90% 3.17%
0% —
Bus Train Taxi Car as Car as Undergro  Other No
driver passenge und, other
r tram, modes
light...
ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
Bus 23.17%
Train 16.19%
Taxi 6.03%
Car as driver 16.19%
Car as passenger 7.30%
Underground, tram, light rail 1.90%
Other 3.17%
No other modes 60.95%
Total Respondents: 315
18 L325

73

51

19

51

23

10

192



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q18 Given the last trip you took by bike share, how long was the walk to

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

ANSWER CHOICES

0-<5 Mins

5-<10 Mins

10-<15 Mins

15+ Mins
TOTAL

57.33%

0-<5 Mins

the bike or docking station?

Answered: 307  Skipped: 101

23.45%

5-<10 Mins

1 57’935

10.10%

10-<15 Mins

RESPONSES

57.33%

23.45%

10.10%

9.12%

9.12%

15+ Mins

176

72

31

28

307



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q19 And also for the last trip you took by bike share, how long was the

walk to your destination after you dropped off the bike ?

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

ANSWER CHOICES

0-<5 Mins

5-<10 Mins

10-<15 Mins

15+ Mins
TOTAL

65.90%

0-<5 Mins

Answered: 305  Skipped: 103

21.64%

5-<10 Mins

8.20%

10-<15 Mins

RESPONSES

65.90%

21.64%

8.20%

4.26%

4.26%
I

15+ Mins

201

66

25

13

305



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q20 If you use an electric bike as part of the bike share scheme, which

100%

80%

60%

34.62%
40%

20%

0%
Cycle up
hills

ANSWER CHOICES

Cycle up hills

Reduce my journey time

To travel longer distances
Avoiding fatigue or getting sweaty
Other (please specify)

Health difficulties or fitness levels

To try-before-you-buy

Total Respondents: 78

25.64%

Reduce
my
journey
time

Answered: 78  Skipped: 330
24.36% 24.36% 23.08%
To Avoiding Other
travel fatigue (please
longer or specify)
distan... gettin...

23,35

28

1

reasons are important to you?

16.67% 16.67%

Health To
difficult try-befor
ies or e-you-
fitnes... buy

RESPONSES
34.62%

25.64%
24.36%
24.36%
23.08%
16.67%

16.67%

27

20

19

19

18

13

13



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q21 How likely are you to use the following types of transport (if they
were available in your area)?

Answered: 305  Skipped: 103

100%

80% @ 68.20%

59.87% 58.72%
9 52.84%
60% 52.17% o
3949:80% 40.80%
34.11%
40% 28.76% . o5
21.40% 20.879 Ho7
I51547% [18:73% " 17.39%16.3918-39% g o5e, 1010”0
20% 9.03% o,
1.31% 1.349 5'35ﬁ 3.34¢ 1.019 1.349
—_ — . || - _ —
0%
Shared Shared Shared Shared Shared Shared A
electric electric cars ridein taxi (2+ on- monthly
bicycles (stand (self-ser private passenger demand account
up)... vice... car... s) mini bus /
contra...
. Already using it . Likely to use Unlikely to use Unsure /Don't know
ALREADY LIKELY UNLIKELY UNSURE TOTAL  WEIGHTED
USING IT TO USE TO USE IDON'T AVERAGE
KNOW
Shared electric bicycles 1.31% 68.20% 15.08% 15.41%
4 208 46 47 305 2.45
Shared electric (stand up) scooters (not yet 1.34% 39.13% 40.80% 18.73%
legal on road in the UK) 4 117 122 56 299 2.77
Shared cars (self-service short term car 9.03% 21.40% 52.17% 17.39%
hire) 27 64 156 52 299 2.78
Shared ride in private car (driver or 5.35% 16.39% 59.87% 18.39%
passenger) 16 49 179 55 299 291
Shared taxi (2+ passengers) 3.34% 28.76% 52.84% 15.05%
10 86 158 45 299 2.80
Shared on-demand mini bus 1.01% 20.81% 58.72% 19.46%
3 62 175 58 298 297
A monthly account / contract giving use of 1.34% 40.80% 34.11% 23.75%
arange of transport services 4 122 102 71 299 2.80
2’) 12
)

282



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q22 Please rate how you feel about the following statements regarding

bike share

Answered: 307  Skipped: 101
100%
80%

55.88% 54.79%
60%
35.62%
40% 28.01%
10.42%

20% 6.86% 9

0.98% 0.65% 5:21% 1.63%

|

0%
Bike share enhances public
transport

Bike share makes the city a
better place to cycle

. Strongly Agree . Agree Neither agree of disagree [ Disagree
. Strongly disagree
STRONGLY AGREE NEITHER DISAGREE STRONGLY TOTAL
AGREE AGREE OF DISAGREE
DISAGREE
Bike share enhances 55.88% 35.62% 6.86% 0.98% 0.65%
public transport 171 109 21 3 2 306
Bike share makes the 54.72% 28.01% 10.42% 5.21% 1.63%
city a better place to 168 86 32 16 5 307

cycle

?2"8’33 5

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

1.55

171



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q23 Please rate your experience of the following aspects of the bike

share scheme you use most often?
Answered: 296  Skipped: 112
100%

80%

. 50.179 51.86%
60% ' 45.6144:0695 71:%/0/ 45 0847-28%5, 2-7;/2‘0{'5 / -5821589% 30.86%29.73%
o

32.65% Q1% 31,27%,30.89%
0% 23 730/2523905% 22,21%, 26.80%.05%
.20 27/1 53% 18 98%
0% 8710 81%% 5/" ol 1GEasIZIe% oo

5% o1 6% %11
34..:" oa% 3% 69° 68980, ead2.369 n17eso 709 31C35°u11r03°/1 168H -

-
0%
Regis App Payme Bike Light BrakeGears Baske The Value Custo CommuCover

trati  / nt comfo s s t hire  for mer nicat age
on websi optio rt (if proce moneyservi ions of
te ns appli ss ce e.. bi.
ca...
B verysatisfied [l Fairly satisfied Neither satisfied or dissatisfied

Fairly dissatisfied . Very dissatisfied

VERY FAIRLY NEITHER FAIRLY VERY TOTAL
SATISFIED  SATISFIED  SATISFIED OR DISSATISFIED  DISSATISFIED
DISSATISFIED
Registration 42.91% 45.61% 8.78% 2.36% 0.34%
127 135 26 7 1 296
App / website 42.91% 44.26% 10.81% 2.03% 0.00%
127 131 32 6 0 296
Payment options 45.76% 43.05% 9.15% 2.03% 0.00%
135 127 27 6 0 295
Bike comfort 23.73% 50.17% 18.64% 5.76% 1.69%
70 148 55 17 5 295
Lights 25.42% 45.08% 23.05% 4.75% 1.69%
75 133 68 14 5 295
Brakes 32.65% 47.28% 13.95% 5.44% 0.68%
96 139 41 16 2 294
Gears 23.31% 45.27% 20.27% 8.78% 2.36%
69 134 60 26 7 296
Basket (if 39.18% 40.55% 17.53% 1.72% 1.03%
applicable) 114 118 51 5 3 291
The hire process 34.01% 45.58% 10.54% 8.16% 1.70%
100 134 31 24 5 294
Value for money 41.55% 41.89% 12.16% 3.04% 1.35%
123 124 36 9 4 296
Customer service 31.27% 26.80% 39.86% 1.03% 1.03%
91 78 116 3 3 291
Communications 27.05% 30.82% 39.73% 1.71% 0.68%
e.g. emails, texts 79 90 116 5 2 292
and social media
Coverage of bikes 18.98% 51.86% 13.56% 11.19% 4.41%
across the city / 56 153 40 33 13 295
distance to walk
24 125

284

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

2.60

2.59

2.85

2.83

2.74

2.90

2.65

2.78

2.64

272

2.76

3.01



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q24 What improvements, if any, would you like to see with the bike
share scheme you use most often?

Answered: 193  Skipped: 215

22':8’535



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q25 Bike share schemes are changing. Which of these options for
parking bikes appeal to you most?

Answered: 293 Skipped: 115

100%
80%
60%
) 43.34%
9
40% 32.08%
0 0y
20% 11.95% 11.95%
0%
"Free floating" Semi "docked" Marked bays Docked where
schemes where where bikes are where bikes are bikes can only
bikes can be mostly found in picked up in be found and
parked anywhe... stations but ... designated zones parked in...
ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
"Free floating" schemes where bikes can be parked anywhere with a smart lock (locking back wheel only) 32.08% 94
Semi "docked" where bikes are mostly found in stations but can be found / parked elsewhere too 43.34% 127
Marked bays where bikes are picked up in designated zones 11.95% 35
Docked where bikes can only be found and parked in physical stations 11.95% 35
TOTAL 2L
26,125



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q26 If you registered with the scheme but have not yet used the bikes

what are your reasons?

Answered: 50

100%
80%
60%

40% 30.00%32-00%

20% 6.00% 0%
0%
| The | The
prefer bikes have  bikes
to aren't had are
use loc...  pro.. not..

ANSWER CHOICES

| prefer to use my own bike

The bikes aren't located where | need them

| have had problems hiring a bike

The bikes are not suitable for the journeys | make
| have moved house

It is a back up for when my usual travel mode isnt available
It's too expensive

My personal circumstances have changed

I'm unable to cycle due to poor health

I've just not got round to it

Other (please specify)

Total Respondents: 50

Skipped: 358

10.00%
2.00% 4.00% 9 00% 4-00%
— — —
1 Itis It's My I'm
have a too person unable just
moved back  expens al to
house up ive cir... cyc...
2735

28

7

20.00%

10.00%
m

I've

not

got...

Other

(pleas

e

spe...

RESPONSES

30.00% 15
32.00% 16
6.00% 3
12.00% 6
2.00% 1
10.00% 5
4.00% 2
2.00% 1
4.00% 2
10.00% 5
20.00% 10



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q27 Which of the following age brackets do you fall into?

100%

80%

60%

40%

20% " 4.35%

I
0%

15-24

ANSWER CHOICES
15-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-59

60-64

Prefer not to say
65-74

75+
TOTAL

20.40%

25-34

Answered: 299  Skipped: 109
37.46%
26.76%
)0,
6.69%  301% o.67%
I
35-44  45-54  55-59  60-64  Prefer

not to
say

RESPONSES
4.35%

20.40%

37.46%

26.76%

6.69%

3.01%

0.67%

0.67%

0.00%

0.67%

65-74

75+

13

61

112

80

20

2009



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q28 What is your home postcode?

Answered: 289  Skipped: 119

258’93 5



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q29 Are you ..?
Answered: 299  Skipped: 109

100%

80%

55.85%
60%
41.47%
40%
20%
2.68%
I
0%
Male Female Other Prefer not to
ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
Male 41.47%
Female 55.85%
Other 0.00%
Prefer not to say 2.68%
TOTAL
3C,525



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q30 Please specify your ethnicity

100%
78.45%
80%
60%
40%
20% 10.44%
0%
White White
British other
ANSWER CHOICES
White British
White other

Mixed / multiple ethnic group
Asian / Asian British

Black: African / Caribbean / British
Other ethnic group

Prefer not to say

TOTAL

Answered: 297

2.36%

Mixed /
multiple
ethnic
group

Skipped: 111
6.40%
0.67% 0.67% 1.01%
|
Asian / Black: Other Prefer
Asian African / ethnic not to
British Caribbean group say
/ British
RESPONSES
78.45%
10.44%
2.36%
0.67%
0.67%
1.01%
6.40%
21 1/ ‘35

29

1

233

31

19

297



Q31 What best describes your current employment status?

100%

80%

60%

40%

0% 4.08%

I
0%

Prefer
not to

ANSWER CHOICES
Prefer not to say

Full time employed
Part time employed
Student

Retired

Unemployed

Other
TOTAL

Answered:
63.27%
20.41%
Full Part
timel . time.
3

Bike Share Users Survey 2019

294  Skipped: 114

3.74%

Student

/D

292

1.70% 1.02%

Retired Unemploye
d

RESPONSES
4.08%
63.27%
20.41%
3.74%

1.70%

1.02%

5.78%

5.78%
|
Other

12

186

60

11

17

294



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q32 Which income bracket do you fall into personally?
Answered: 292  Skipped: 116

100%
80%
60%

40% 26.37%
20.55%

15.07% 15.41%
20% . 6.85% . 6.16% 3.42% 9274% 3.42%
| | == —

0%
Prefer ~ £10,000 £11,000 £21,000 £31,000 £41,000 £51,000 £61,000 £71,000

not to or -20,000 -30,000 -40,000 -50,000 - - or
say less £60,00 £70,00 above
ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
Prefer not to say 20.55%
£10,000 or less 6.85%
£11,000-20,000 15.07%
£21,000-30,000 26.37%
£31,000-40,000 15.41%
£41,000-50,000 6.16%
£51,000-£60,000 3.42%
£61,000-£70,000 2.74%
£71,000 or above 3.42%
TOTAL
22/ ‘3 5

293

60

20

44

7

45

18

10

10

292



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q33 We are compiling case studies of bike share scheme users to
understand more about who uses bike share. If you are willing to help,
please use this box to tell us a little about yourself and how you use the

bike share scheme. Please only provide information you would be

happy to see used as an anonymous quotation.

Answered: 71 Skipped: 337

298



Bike Share Users Survey 2019

Q34 If you would like to be entered into the free prize draw to win one of
five £50 shopping vouchers please provide your email address below.
Terms and Conditions. Your email address will only be used for the draw
and will not be stored.

Answered: 244  Skipped: 164

?2':9’535



296



Appendix 3. COMO UK BTN Bikeshare Survey 2019 - Users by Postcode

COMO survey - User Postcodes

24

H BN1
m BN2
M BN3
H BN41
H Other

Postcodes Users %

BN1 72 26.8

BN2 75 28

BN3 82 30.6

BN41 15 5.6

Other 24 9
268 100

297




298



Document is Restricted

299






Document is Restricted

309






Document is Restricted

311






Document is Restricted

313






Document is Restricted

325






Document is Restricted

329






Document is Restricted

331






	Agenda
	71 Minutes
	74 Public Involvement
	Item 74b Written questions

	75 Member Involvement
	75 (c) (1) Cllr Wares 170320 Carden Woods (002)
	75 (c) (1) 170320 Carden Woods map 01
	75 (c) (2) Cllr Wares 170320 Bikeshare
	75 (c) (3) Cllr Wares 170320 Cityclean modernisation update reports
	75 (c) (4) Cllr Wares 170320 old london road pavement
	75 (c) (5) Cllr Wares 170320 Patcham Roundabout
	75 (c) (6) Cllr Nemeth 170320 Glebe Villas
	75 (d) ConsGrp NoM EIA

	76 Health & Safety Service Plan 2020-21
	Health & Safety Service Plan 2020-21 APX. n 1

	77 Official Feed and Food Controls Service Plan 2020/21
	Official Feed and Food Controls Service Plan 2020/21 APX. n 1

	78 Graffiti Reduction Strategy - outcomes of consultation
	Appendix 1 - consultation results APX. n 1
	Appendix 2 - Statutory Undertakers APX. n 2
	Appendix 3 - large business APX. n 3
	Appendix 4 - SMEs APX. n 4

	79 Bulky waste contract
	Bulky waste contract APX. n 1
	Bulky waste contract APX. n 2

	80 Nature2020 - a celebration of biodiversity in the Biosphere
	81 2020/21 Local Transport Plan Capital Programme
	2020/21 Local Transport Plan Capital Programme APX. n 1

	82 Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) – Update Report
	Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) – Update Report APX. n 1

	83 Traffic Regulation Orders Update Report
	Appendix A
	Sheets and Views
	ISO A1 Title Block


	Appendix B Outer Area Plans2
	Appendix C
	Sheet1


	84 Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 1a
	Sheets and Views
	01


	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 1b
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 2
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 3
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 4a
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 4b
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 5
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 6a
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 6b
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 7
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 8a
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 8b
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 9a
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 9b
	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 10
	Sheets and Views
	002


	Traffic Regulation Orders - Objections to Orders related to new Developments APX. n 11

	85 Dyke Road Waiting Restrictions Experimental TRO (TRO-12-2019)
	Dyke Road Waiting Restrictions Experimental TRO (TRO-12-2019) APX. n 1
	Dyke Road Waiting Restrictions Experimental TRO (TRO-12-2019) APX. n 2

	86 BTN Bikeshare
	BTN Bikeshare APX. n 1
	BTN Bikeshare APX. n 2
	BTN Bikeshare APX. n 3

	87 BTN Bikeshare (Exempt Category 3)
	BTN Bikeshare (Exempt Category 3) APX. n 1
	BTN Bikeshare (Exempt Category 3) APX. n 2
	BTN Bikeshare (Exempt Category 3) APX. n 3
	BTN Bikeshare (Exempt Category 3) APX. n 4
	BTN Bikeshare (Exempt Category 3) APX. n 5
	BTN Bikeshare (Exempt Category 3) APX. n 6


